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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

o

All references to the “Company,” “Bowhead,” “we,
corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries.

our” and “‘us,” unless the context otherwise requires, are to Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc., a Delaware

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than
statements of historical facts contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including statements regarding our future results of operations or financial condition, business
strategy and plans, and objectives of management for future operations are forward-looking statements.

2 G

Some of the forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of terms such as “believes”, “expects”, “may”, “will”, “should”, “could”, “seeks”, “intends”, “plans”,
0 <

“estimates”, “anticipates” or other comparable terms. However, not all forward-looking statements contain these identifying words. These forward-looking statements include all
matters that are not related to present facts or current conditions or that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K
and include statements regarding our intentions, beliefs or current expectations concerning, among other things, our consolidated results of operations, financial condition,
liquidity, prospects and growth strategies, management’s expectations with respect to any regulatory actions related to Insurance Regulatory Information System (“IRIS”) ratio
results, the industries in which we operate, and other statements relating to our future performance.

Forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. Our actual results may differ materially from
those expressed in, or implied by, the forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as a result of various factors, including, among others:

*  our inability to accurately assess our underwriting risk;

* intense competition for business in our industry;

*  our inability to maintain our strategic relationship with American Family Mutual Insurance Company, S.I. (“AFMIC” and together with its subsidiaries, “AmFam”);
* adecline in AmFam’s financial strength rating or financial size category;

*  exposure to certain risks arising out of our reliance on insurance retail agents, brokers and wholesalers as distribution channels;
+ inadequate losses and loss expense reserves to cover our actual losses;

» unexpected changes in the interpretation of our coverage or provisions, including loss limitations and exclusions, in our policies;
*  our reinsurers’ failure to reimburse us for claims on a timely basis, or at all;

» adverse economic factors and their impact on our growth and profitability;

+  existing or future regulation and our ability to comply with these regulations;

+ the loss of one or more key personnel;

»  disruptions of our operations due to security breaches, loss of data, cyber-attacks and other information technology failures;

* increased costs as a result of operating as a public company; and

»  other risks and uncertainties discussed in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made. Except as expressly required under federal securities laws or the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), we do not assume any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise. You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified by these
cautionary statements.

il
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PART I
ITEM 1 BUSINESS
Who We Are

We were founded in September 2020, backed by capital provided by GPC Partners Investments (SPV III) LP (“GPC Fund”), a private equity fund managed by Gallatin Point
Capital LLC (“Gallatin Point”), and our strategic partner, AmFam, to take advantage of favorable pricing environments, and to address a growing and unmet demand from brokers
and policyholders for specialized insurance solutions and quality service in complex lines of business. Our principal objective is to create and sustain superior returns for our
stockholders by generating consistent, underwriting profits across our product offerings and through all market cycles, while prudently managing capital.

We offer commercial specialty property and casualty (“P&C”) insurance products to policyholders that vary in size, industry and complexity, focusing on casualty,
professional liability, and healthcare liability risks. We provide “craft” underwriting solutions, which require deep underwriting and claims expertise in order to produce attractive
financial results. In May 2024, we supplemented our “craft” solution with our “flow” underwriting operation, which is a streamlined, tech-enabled low touch form of underwriting,
focused on small, niche and hard-to-place risks. Our policies are primarily written on a non-admitted, or excess and surplus lines (“E&S”) basis, which is free of rate and policy
form restrictions, and provides the flexibility to rapidly adjust to emerging market opportunities. We distribute our products through carefully selected relationships with leading
distribution partners in both the wholesale and retail markets.

The policies we write are issued on AmFam paper under their own name through our wholly-owned managing general agency subsidiary, Bowhead Specialty Underwriters,
Inc. (“BSUI”), in exchange for a ceding fee (“Ceding Fee”), and reinsured 100% to Bowhead Insurance Company, Inc. (“BICI”), our wholly-owned insurance company subsidiary.
This mutually beneficial partnership with AmFam has enabled us to grow quickly, but prudently, to take advantage of favorable market conditions, and allows us to deploy capital
efficiently.

We are a nimble, remote-friendly organization that is able to attract best-in-class talent nationwide, who are committed to operational excellence and superior service. We are
led by a highly experienced and respected underwriting team with a disciplined approach to underwriting and decades of individual, successful underwriting experience. We are
supported by a collaborative culture that spans all functions of our business, which allows us to provide a consistent, positive experience for all our partners. We believe that our
current market opportunity, differentiated expertise, relationships, culture and leadership team position us well to continue to grow our business profitably.

Our Business
Our Products

We currently offer underwriting solutions to a wide variety of businesses across four underwriting divisions: Casualty, Professional Liability, Healthcare Liability, and Baleen
Specialty.

Casualty

Our Casualty division provides tailored solutions on a primary and excess basis through a wholesale-only distribution channel and consists of a team of experienced
underwriters with nationwide capabilities who excel at handling complex risks. We specialize in general liability coverage, which protects a company against liability arising from
bodily injury, personal injury or property damage, for risks in the construction, distribution, heavy manufacturing, real estate, public entity and hospitality segments and also
consider underwriting risks in a broader range of industries. In the fourth quarter of 2024, we offered a new environmental liability product, providing excess contractors pollution
and professional liability coverage through specialized wholesale and retail distribution partners.



Table of Contents

Professional Liability

Our Professional Liability division provides underwriting solutions on both an admitted and E&S basis for standard and nonstandard risks, and writes a broad variety of
entities, including publicly traded and privately held financial institutions as well as not-for-profit organizations. We distribute this business through wholesale and retail channels.
We offer management liability products, including Directors and Officers liability, Errors and Omissions liability, Employment Practices liability, Fiduciary liability, Fidelity
liability and Miscellaneous Professional liability, Crime insurance, and Cyber. We provide primary coverage and excess coverage for most of our Professional Liability products.

Healthcare Liability

Bowhead’s Healthcare Liability division focuses solely on healthcare entities to provide tailored solutions. We offer Professional and General Liability coverage, as well as
Management Liability coverage, across four major healthcare segments—hospitals, miscellaneous medical facilities, senior care providers, and managed care organizations—
through select wholesale and retail channels.

Baleen Specialty

Baleen Specialty is a technology-powered underwriting operation that specializes in small to mid-sized risks that are not eligible in the admitted market. We have a wholesale-
only distribution model and offer exclusively non-admitted products. Currently, we offer general liability products for two segments — Construction and Real Estate, and our
coverage offering is restrictive, as customers are typically distressed or hard-to-place. Typically, small to mid-sized E&S risks are placed through binding authorities managed by
wholesale brokers. Using technology, Baleen Specialty can quickly intake, evaluate, and respond, with either declinations or a quote, in a reliable manner. Baleen Specialty’s
appetite will continue to expand to meet the evolving needs of our wholesale broker partners.

The table below provides our gross written premiums by underwriting division for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022:

Years Ended December 31,

2024 % of Total 2023 % of Total 2022 % of Total
(8 in thousands, except percentages)
Casualty $ 431,817 62.1 % $ 277,455 547 % $ 192,592 54.0 %
Professional Liability 160,651 231 % 145,251 28.6 % 105,367 29.5 %
Healthcare Liability 101,619 14.6 % 84,982 16.7 % 58,989 16.5 %
Baleen Specialty 1,630 0.2 % — — % — — %
Gross written premiums $ 695,717 100.0 % $ 507,688 100.0 % $ 356,948 100.0 %

Through our strategic partnership with AmFam, we are able to write business on an admitted basis in all 50 states and Washington D.C. and on a non-admitted basis, in all 50
states, Washington D.C., Puerto Rico and selected risks in Bermuda and the Cayman Islands where such risks are being handled by a U.S. broker.
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The table below provides our gross written premiums in the top five states we do business for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022:

Years Ended December 31,

2024 % of Total 2023 % of Total 2022 % of Total
(8 in thousands, except percentages)
California $ 123,398 178 % $ 84,578 16.7 % $ 64,323 18.0 %
Florida 84,136 12.1 % 67,602 133 % 38,360 10.7 %
Texas 64,334 92 % 49,915 9.8 % 32,476 9.1 %
New York 54,839 79 % 52,244 10.3 % 38,402 10.8 %
Illinois 32,716 47 % 25,587 5.0 % 15,858 4.4 %
Other 336,294 483 % 227,762 44.9 % 167,529 47.0 %
Gross written premiums $ 695,717 100.0% $ 507,688 100.0 % $ 356,948 100.0 %
Competition

The commercial specialty P&C insurance industry is highly competitive. We compete with domestic and international insurers, MGAs and program administrators, some of
which have greater financial, marketing and management resources and experience than we do. We may also compete with new market entrants in the future. Competition is based
on many factors, including the perceived market strength of the insurer, pricing and other terms and conditions, services provided, the speed of claims payment, the experience and
reputation of members of the underwriting and claims teams and ratings assigned by independent rating organizations, such as A.M. Best. Our competition is broad and certain
competitors may be specific to only one or two of our underwriting divisions. Some of our notable competitors include American International Group, Inc., Arch Capital Group
Ltd., AXA S.A., AXIS Capital Holdings Ltd., Berkshire Hathaway Corporation, C.V. Starr & Co., Inc., Chubb Ltd., Cincinnati Financial Corporation, CNA Financial Corporation,
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company, The Doctors Company, The Travelers Companies, Inc. and W.R. Berkley Corporation. In
determining this list of competitors, we considered factors such as the number of policies and/or the amount of premiums written by such companies and such companies’
reputations within the space.

Our Competitive Strengths
We believe that our competitive strengths include:

Focus on targeted, commercial specialty P& C insurance market segments with profitable growth opportunities. We primarily operate in the $83.3 billion U.S. commercial
E&S market (for the year ended December 31, 2023) that has grown 20.9% annually since 2019. We entered into specific segments of this market where we believe we can
achieve profitable growth based on our significant underwriting expertise or by acquiring talent with proven track records of generating underwriting profits. Certain of our target
markets have experienced meaningful dislocations, allowing favorable market conditions to continue. We believe that we have positioned ourselves as a leader within our sectors
and that our specialized, innovative and customized underwriting approach, combined with our strong broker relationships will provide us with an enduring competitive
advantage.

Disciplined approach to underwriting led by highly experienced teams with specialized expertise. Our underwriting team is led by industry veterans, who have each served
as senior insurance executives, with decades of relevant industry experience. They bring specialized industry knowledge, strong distribution relationships and long track records of
underwriting profitability in the lines of business we specialize. We underwrite each risk individually, within prudently managed risk limits, to meet the unique demands of our
policyholders. We focus on delivering accurate pricing, speed of execution and consistency to our clients across market cycles.



Table of Contents

Fully integrated and accountable underwriting value chain. We maintain strict control across our underwriting value chain, which is managed in-house and fully integrated
across origination, structuring, data and analytics, actuarial, claims and legal. These functional teams are not siloed; they collaborate closely with our underwriters to deliver
flexible solutions to our customers quickly and profitably. Our organization is singularly focused on underwriting profitability.

Deep, long-term distribution relationships based on expertise, service and mutual benefit. Our management team and underwriters have built meaningful long-term
relationships with the leading distributors in their respective lines of business. We are selective in choosing our distribution partners and look for those that have technical expertise
in our chosen lines and a shared commitment to excellent service. Further, we seek out relationships where we have the ability to write a significant portion of a distribution
partner’s business. We provide our brokers timely responses and feedback to submissions, and mobilize resources across the organization to ensure the appropriate deal gets done.
As aresult, we consistently receive high-quality business from our broker network. We believe our existing broker relationships and our approach to maintaining these
relationships are key components to our long-term growth and success.

Highly collaborative and execution-oriented culture that spans across all functions working toward a common goal of underwriting profitability. Across our company, we
collaborate at all levels and operational functions. We frequently hold roundtable discussions where key members of our team provide insights and perspectives, which allow us to
assess emerging opportunities quickly and holistically, all while establishing a common culture of excellence. We leverage technology and our flat organizational structure to
mobilize our resources across the organization to promptly execute on opportunities.

Nimble and efficient platform with hybrid operating model and modern technology. We built our operating platform on a remote-first basis using leading-edge technology.
We believe our hybrid operating model provides us with a significant competitive advantage, allowing us to attract and retain the best industry talent from across the country and
to deploy them locally to meet our clients’ unique needs. Our cloud-based modern technology systems allow us to run day-to-day operations efficiently and integrate new tools
seamlessly. We developed our pricing and analytics tools purposefully in-house and we strategically leverage third-party technology partnerships where we deem them to be more
efficient. We are unburdened by the typical legacy system issues that impact many of our competitors.

Strong balance sheet and no reserves from accident years prior to 2020. We believe our strong balance sheet is a key advantage that enables us to grow our business while
delivering strong financial performance. We entered the market towards the end of 2020 when insurance rates were starting to increase following multiple years of rate inadequacy.
Since then, we have continued to experience a favorable pricing environment, while many of our competitors are confronting the potential for adverse development.

Experienced and entrepreneurial leadership team. We have assembled what we believe is a best-in-class team of leaders from across the P&C industry. Our team is
comprised of highly experienced executives who have previously held leadership roles across underwriting, claims, actuarial, technology, legal and operations at leading insurance
companies. We are led by our founder and Chief Executive Officer, Stephen Sills, who has over four decades of experience leading businesses in the commercial specialty P&C
insurance industry. Our underwriting team is led by David Newman, our Chief Underwriting Officer, who, along with our underwriting division leads, have extensive experience
in the P&C industry. In addition, our board of directors includes accomplished industry practitioners who bring decades of invaluable experience from prior roles at insurance and
financial services companies.
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Our Strategy

We believe that our approach to our business will allow us to achieve our goals of both growing our business and generating attractive returns for our stockholders. Our
strategy involves:

Attract and retain best-in-class talent across the business. Our long-term success as an organization relies on hiring and retaining the right people to help us grow our
business profitably. We seek to hire talented professionals nationwide with strong industry experience and technical expertise across our organization to help drive underwriting
performance and operational efficiencies. We believe that our hybrid operating model and entrepreneurial, collaborative, execution-driven and customer-first culture have made us
a company of choice for the best talent in the industry.

Profitably grow our existing lines of business. We are focused on generating an underwriting profit while growing our existing book of business sustainably. Our business
lines are highly specialized and require deep industry knowledge and strong execution capabilities. As a result, we believe we can generate underwriting profitability by
identifying market dislocations early and executing on these opportunities quickly. As the demand for specialized insurance solutions continues to rise, we expect to capitalize on
the broader market opportunity and expand our market share to generate strong underwriting results.

Opportunistically and strategically expand into new products and markets. We are focused on generating long-term value for our stockholders, which includes expanding
into new products and markets. We actively evaluate new lines of business for capital deployment based on our established capabilities in the commercial specialty P&C insurance
market. We believe we can leverage our distribution relationships and expertise in our Casualty, Professional Liability and Healthcare Liability divisions to expand into adjacent
lines and classes that share a similar underwriting framework. We also believe there is an attractive opportunity in the small and micro commercial lines segment, where we can
generate new and profitable growth opportunities by leveraging our existing expertise and distribution relationships. We regularly monitor the broader market for organic
expansion opportunities, where we believe there is alignment between our capabilities and our perception of attractive underlying market conditions and needs.

Maintain our underwriting-first culture across market cycles. We strive to deliver consistent and strong underwriting results across all market cycles. We take a methodical
approach to building our lines of business and our distribution network. We do not chase pricing trends; we aim to get ahead of such trends by identifying leading indicators at the
micro level, forming our own view of risks and executing promptly when opportunities arise. We will only pursue lines of business that align with our expertise and expected
underwriting profitability. We have developed tools and resources to enable quick and accurate decision-making and to monitor alignment between our underwriting framework
and bottom-line results. We believe our continuous focus on underwriting excellence will allow us to generate profitable growth through all market cycles.

Leverage expertise, technology, data and analytics to drive underwriting performance. Since the establishment of our platform, we have made significant investments in
technology and will continue to do so to support our growth and operational efficiency. We leverage our proprietary Bowhead Risk Analysis Tools (“BRATs”) to drive efficiency,
accuracy and speed in our underwriting process. BRATSs allow underwriters to streamline underwriting workflows and make pricing decisions that are based on a consistent view
of risk informed by our own loss experience and broader industry level developments. We continue to introduce and integrate new tools into our internal system to allow our
underwriters to process quotes more efficiently and perform day-to-day tasks in seamless coordination with other functions. Our goal as an organization is to build a technology
stack that frees up our underwriters from performing highly repetitive, uniform tasks, which allows them to apply judgment, creativity and critical thinking to form solutions that
can be executed quickly. Our focus on developing technology, data and analytics to drive efficiency is central to our “underwriting-first” strategy.
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Deliver attractive returns on capital to our stockholders. We intend to deliver attractive underwriting results, overall profitability and returns to our stockholders through
underwriting expertise and disciplined risk management, supported by a conservative investment strategy, legacy-free reserves and prudent approach to capital deployment. We
aim to take advantage of our strong balance sheet to deploy capital prudently and profitably across market cycles. We believe that current market conditions present an attractive
opportunity for growth, and that our underwriting-first approach will allow us to generate profitable and sustainable underwriting results over the long term.

Our Structure

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (“BSHI”) is a Delaware domiciled insurance holding company that offers commercial specialty P&C insurance products in the U.S.,
focusing on casualty, professional liability, and healthcare liability risks, which are primarily written on an E&S basis. We conduct our business operations through three wholly-
owned subsidiaries. BSUI is the Company’s managing general agency, holding a resident insurance license in the State of Texas, and is domiciled in the State of Delaware. BICI is
the Company’s insurance company subsidiary licensed and domiciled as an admitted insurer in the State of Wisconsin. Bowhead Underwriting Services, Inc. (“BUSI”) is the
Company’s services company domiciled in the State of Delaware.

We have a strategic partnership with AmFam that allows us to issue policies under AmFam paper and cede 100% of this business to BICI, in exchange for a Ceding Fee. This
is facilitated through three Managing General Agency Agreements (the “MGA Agreements”) with Homesite Insurance Company, Homesite Insurance Company of Florida, and
Midvale Indemnity Company (together the “AmFam Issuing Carriers”), each of which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AFMIC. BSUI is also party to third-party broker
agreements, allowing the direct payment of premiums from the brokers to BSUI. Through the MGA agreements, BSUI writes premium and provides claim handling services on
behalf of the AmFam Issuing Carriers, and BICI assumes 100% of the premium, net of any inuring third-party reinsurance, through a Quota Share Agreement with AFMIC (the
“AmFam Quota Share Agreement”). AmFam receives a Ceding Fee on net premiums assumed by BICI. BICI is also party to an Insurance Trust Agreement pursuant to which
BICI provides collateral to support the obligations of the AmFam Quota Share Agreement.

AFMIC beneficially owns approximately 14.4% of the Company’s issued and outstanding common stock as of December 31, 2024. In addition, on May 22, 2024, in
connection with our initial public offering (the “IPO”), we issued Warrants to AFMIC for the right to purchase a total of 1,670,721 shares of the Company’s common stock at an
exercise price of $17.00 per share. The Warrants vest 20% per year over the five-year service period and the vested portion of the Warrants may be exercised at any time, in whole
or in part, until the ten-year anniversary of the issuance dates. This mutually beneficial partnership with AmFam has enabled us to grow quickly, but prudently, to take advantage
of favorable market conditions, and allows us to deploy capital efficiently.

Prior to our IPO, BSHI was wholly-owned by Bowhead Insurance Holding LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“BIHL”). BIHL’s limited partners included GPC Fund,
AMFIC, members of Bowhead’s management and other minority investors. Following the IPO, the shares of our common stock held by BIHL were either distributed to BIHL’s
limited partners or sold in a secondary offering of our common stock on October 25, 2024. Following October 25, 2024, BIHL was no longer a holder of our common stock.

Marketing and Distribution

We go to market under the Bowhead brand, leveraging the strong reputation we quickly established within the broker community. Our products are distributed through
carefully selected relationships with leading distribution partners in both the wholesale and retail markets. In our Casualty and Baleen Specialty divisions, we partner exclusively
with wholesale distributors, with the exception of our environmental liability business, which partners with both specialized wholesale and retail distributors, whereas in
Professional Liability and Healthcare Liability, we work with a combination of wholesale and retail distribution partners. In addition, while we generally do not delegate
underwriting and binding authority, we do distribute an insurance product through a program administrator in connection with a risk purchasing group to whom we have issued a
master policy.
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‘We source our distribution relationships based on the quality of their business, reputation and alignment of long-term objectives. We carefully cultivate our broker network,
regularly evaluating both new and existing relationships based on the market opportunities we decide to pursue. Many of our distribution partners have more than one office, and
for these partners, we evaluate each office on a standalone basis. Brokers must demonstrate the ability and willingness to consistently produce the type of high-quality business
that aligns with our underwriting appetite. In return, we deliver mutually beneficial and bespoke solutions to meet the demand of our wholesale and retail distribution partners. We
strive to maintain a core group of brokers that will consider us to be their first and last call.

We believe that we have strong relationships with our distribution partners due to the quality, knowledge and expertise of our management team and underwriters. We believe
that our underwriters have a “following” with their distribution partners and that this “following” creates an attractive volume of submissions fitting our underwriting appetite and
for which our underwriters can provide craft solutions. We are committed to exceeding our partners’ expectations through excellent service, product and expertise.

Underwriting

We have established an underwriting-first culture, where from the top down, underwriting profitability is our “North Star.” Our “craft” form of underwriting is highly
collaborative and customized, while our “flow” underwriting solution, despite being a technology-powered underwriting platform that offers restrictive coverage, involves
underwriting and collaboration upfront before a product is released. Our extensive underwriting expertise and carefully cultivated broker relationships allow us to provide
consistent feedback and quick responses to our distribution partners, which is how we win business. We hire who we believe are best-in-class talent nationwide, with proven track
records of generating underwriting profits within their respective product lines. We take pride in building a strong underwriting culture through a referral-driven recruiting
approach, with many new hires having previously worked with our existing employees. Our underwriting team is led by David Newman, our Chief Underwriting Officer, who,
along with our underwriting division leads, have extensive experience in the P&C industry.

Our underwriting teams are knowledgeable, experienced and have well established relationships with our key distribution partners. These characteristics are critical to
operating successfully in our target markets since many of the risks we write require customized solutions and individual risk underwriting. We have a culture of collaboration and
execution, with a streamlined organizational structure that focuses on flexibility and delivering feedback on price and structure in a timely manner to brokers.

‘We have formal underwriting rules, but also utilize the expertise of our underwriters and capabilities of our platform to produce a consistent approach to pricing and risk
throughout the organization. All underwriters have formal authority for the risks they bind. We provide our underwriters with the tools necessary for them to evaluate and price the
complex risks on which they work; however, our underwriters do not underwrite risks in isolation.

Roundtables also form a key part of our craft underwriting process. Depending upon the risk, roundtables can occur at multiple levels across the organization and often
involve functions outside of our underwriting teams, including actuarial, claims, legal and finance. Not only does this approach optimize the quality of the decision making on the
opportunities presented to our underwriters, but it also leads to a more consistent product for our counterparties. Our culture of collaboration and accountability reduces the
number of underwriting decisions made in isolation. We believe this approach allows us to achieve superior risk selection and pricing, which results in mutually beneficial
relationships with our distribution partners. We believe this approach will generate sustainable best-in-class underwriting performance across market cycles.

We are highly selective in the policies we choose to bind. If we determine that we are not able to profitably write coverage at the price or terms submitted, we provide
appropriate and timely feedback to our distribution partners quickly. This responsiveness is one of the reasons we believe we are often considered a broker’s first call.
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Within our “craft” form of underwriting, on the business that we accept, we underwrite each risk on a case-by-case basis, carefully establishing price and terms that are
adequate for the underlying exposure, with disciplined parameters and strict policy limits. We often customize our policies, and our underwriters use our legal department to draft
all policy forms and any endorsements that modify coverage. We predominantly write non-admitted business in the E&S market and use the flexibility of rate and form to ensure
that the risk and coverage we provide are customized to the unique needs of the market while always focusing on underwriting profitability.

Claims

Our claims handling teams are structured to align with our underwriting divisions and led by our Chief Claims Officer. Each of our claims handling specialists, most of whom
have extensive experience in law firms as litigation attorneys and/or claims handling experience in insurance companies, focuses on specific lines of business where they have
expertise. Our claims management teams have significant experience in the markets on which we focus and are deeply integrated across our underwriting, actuarial and legal
departments, ensuring a consistent approach to all claims matters.

We handle our claims in-house with a focus on high-touch customer service and effective management of the claims resolution process. We aim to settle claims efficiently and
fairly, which we believe is a key competitive differentiator, whereby submitted claims are reviewed by a minimum of two or more members of the claims department. Our claims
department works closely with our underwriting and actuarial teams, keeping them informed of claims trends, providing feedback on emerging areas of loss experience, and
identifying and addressing key issues and adjusting reserves as appropriate.

Our claims system produces real-time information on open claims and regular reporting of detailed claims metrics utilized by senior leadership and the claims team. We
believe that our extensive industry experience, agile culture and technology-assisted claims processes enable us to reach fair and appropriate claim resolutions for our customers.

Our approach is to promptly investigate claims and consider all aspects of each loss, provide our customers with quality claims handling and engagement throughout the
claims process, promptly establish claims reserves and leverage expert legal and other external resources as needed to deliver fair outcomes across our businesses. We do not use
any third-party administrators to handle claims. We believe maintaining full control of the claims-handling process allows us to meet our rigorous quality standards and manage
our losses and LAE effectively, ultimately allowing us to win business and drive underwriting profitability.

Reserves

‘We maintain loss and loss adjustment case reserves for specific claims incurred and reported in addition to reserves for losses incurred but not yet reported (“IBNR”). The
amount that we ultimately pay out for claims may be greater or less than the reserves we hold on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. There is always a risk that posted reserves may
prove to be inadequate or redundant. We monitor case reserves and IBNR by incorporating any new information in case reserve updates and by actuarial analysis of IBNR.
Anticipated inflation is reflected implicitly in the reserving process through analysis of cost trends and the review of historical development. We do not discount our reserves for
losses and loss adjustment expenses to reflect estimated present value.

When a claim is reported to us, it is assigned to a specific claim handler based on the lines of business. The claim handler assigns an initial claim rating that indicates their
view of potential exposure to loss based on available information at that time. Claim ratings are reviewed and updated regularly throughout the life of a claim. A case reserve is
then established to indicate the estimated amount of ultimate loss and loss adjustment exposure to us after an assessment of coverage and damages and any other investigations
conducted, as applicable. The estimate is based on the claim handler’s experience and knowledge of the nature and value of the specific type of claim. Individual case reserves are
periodically adjusted, either increased or decreased, based on subsequent developments associated with each claim.
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‘We establish IBNR reserves in accordance with industry practice to provide for (i) the estimated amount of future loss and loss adjustment payments on incurred claims not
yet reported and (ii) potential development on reported claims. IBNR reserves are estimated based on generally accepted actuarial reserving techniques that take into account our
loss experience, pricing adequacy indications as well as benchmark historical and projected loss experience of comparable lines of business written by other insurance carriers.

Reserves are monitored and updated regularly to reflect any changes in paid or reported claims and case reserves. The indicated results of standard actuarial techniques for
estimating IBNR are compared with held IBNR. The indicated versus booked IBNR estimates are reviewed quarterly with members of senior management. In addition, our loss
reserves are reviewed at the end of each third quarter and at year-end by an independent actuarial consulting firm, which also supports us by providing the year-end written
Statement of Actuarial Opinion as required by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”).

The parameters for the reserve adequacy exercise and monitoring are discussed and informed by the work of the independent actuarial consulting firm. These parameters
include Reporting Development Patterns, Paid Development Patterns, and Initial Expected Loss Ratios, which are used in Paid and Incurred Loss Development, Bornhuetter-
Ferguson Paid and Incurred, Cape Cod, and Expected Loss Ratio techniques for estimating IBNR. Given our short history, reserving parameters are based on industry data and
benchmarks available to and analyzed by the independent actuarial consulting firm, adjusted where appropriate to reflect our claims and underwriting practices and supplemented
by our pricing model data. Over time, we expect to put increasing reliance on parameters based on our own loss data and claims practices.

Separate sets of parameters are established for lines of business. Reserving cohorts are used to group data together with similar expected reporting and payout patterns.
Estimates of IBNR are calculated for lines of business and then consolidated to provide an overall picture for the company. Estimates are calculated on both a gross and a net of
reinsurance basis.

Case and IBNR reserves may be increased or decreased over time as claims move to ultimate settlement, dismissal or closure. Changes in reserves for historical years can
impact earnings via adverse development (increases) or reserve releases (decreases). The reserve estimates contain an inherent level of uncertainty and actual results may vary,
potentially significantly, from the initial estimates.

The following table presents the development of our loss reserves calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals in the United States “U.S. GAAP”
as of December 31 for each year:

Net Ultimate Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Calendar Year Development
Accident Year 2021 2022 2023 2024 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 2023 to 2024
(8 in thousands)

Prior — — — — — — —
2021 $ 34518 $ 32212 $ 32212 § 25,465 $ (2,306) $ — 8 (6,747)
2022 == 114,066 114,066 115,824 = — 1,758
2023 — — 166,282 171,271 — — 4,989
2024 — — — 248,099 — — —

Total Reserve Development $ (2,306) $ — $ —
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Reinsurance

We purchase various forms of reinsurance to manage loss exposures and safeguard our capital. Through reinsurance, we transfer certain exposures to a reinsurer, and in return,
the reinsurer receives a portion of the premium, less a ceding commission paid to us. We strategically use a combination of quota share and excess of loss reinsurance treaties to
retain risk, while providing balance sheet protection from larger losses. We may also place facultative reinsurance on specific risks we deem prudent.

A quota share reinsurance treaty is an agreement where reinsurers assume a percentage of the company’s losses in exchange for a negotiated percentage of premium. An
excess of loss reinsurance treaty is an agreement where reinsurers agree to assume a portion of losses for a specific event in excess of a specified amount in return for a negotiated
premium. Reinsurance needs are determined with principal input from our Chief Underwriting Officer, based on a multitude of factors, including risk appetite, market conditions,
loss history and reinsurance capacity.

We place reinsurance through our insurance company subsidiary, BICI, which reinsures 100% of the premium placed by BSUI with the AmFam Issuing Carriers. In turn, BICI
strategically transfers exposures to third-party reinsurers utilizing different structures depending on the line of business.

We generally offer up to $15 million of limit on our insurance policies and seek not to retain more than $5 million, utilizing reinsurance to achieve that objective. At each
renewal, we consider various factors when determining our reinsurance coverage, including (i) plans to change the underlying insurance coverage we offer, (ii) trends in loss
activity, (iii) the level of our capital and surplus, (iv) changes in our risk appetite and (v) the cost, terms and availability of reinsurance coverage. We may adjust our reinsurance
program, including our levels of retention based on these factors.

As of December 31, 2024, we had the following significant reinsurance programs:

» Forall lines, except Cyber, we use a quota share reinsurance treaty, where 25.0% of the exposure is ceded to reinsurers, and an excess of loss reinsurance treaty, which
cedes 60.1% of losses in excess of $5 million up to $15 million to our reinsurers.

*  Cyber, as a specialized line of business, is placed under a separate quota share structure, where we cede 64.0% of the exposure to reinsurers. There is no separate excess
of loss reinsurance program for our Cyber line of business.

*  We also entered into a quota share treaty, effective March 1, 2024, covering commercial auto exposure in excess of $1 million up to $5 million within our Casualty book
of business.

Our reinsurance treaties are currently subject to caps, which currently range from 250% to 350% of the subject matter ceded premium, and should these caps be exceeded we
would retain any losses in excess of those caps.

Our reinsurance treaties typically have 12- or 18-month terms. While we intend to renew on similar terms as expiring to maintain our desired level of net risk appetite, during
each renewal cycle, we may change our coverage terms or the composition of our reinsurance panel. Currently, the quota share reinsurance treaty for Cyber generally renews on
January 1, 2025 while the remainder of our reinsurance treaties renew on May 1, 2025.

All reinsurance involves credit risk, since we maintain the direct obligation to pay losses incurred by our policyholders up to our policy limits. Accordingly, when selecting
our reinsurers, a potential reinsurer’s financial strength is the paramount consideration. All of our reinsurance business is placed with reinsurers that have an A.M. Best rating of
“A” (Excellent) or better. As of December 31, 2024, we have never had an allowance for uncollectible reinsurance.
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The following table summarizes our top five reinsurers, their A.M. Best financial strength rating and percent of our total reinsurance recoverables as of December 31, 2024:

Reinsurer A.M. Best Rating % of Total
Renaissance Reinsurance U.S. Inc A+ 29.8%
Endurance Assurance Corporation A+ 23.8%
Markel Global Reinsurance Company A 20.8%
Ascot Bermuda Limited A 9.4%
American Family Connect Property and Casualty Insurance Company A 7.5%
All other reinsurers At least A 8.7%
Total 100.0%
Investments

Investment income is an important component of our business model. Most premiums we collect are held in reserves until claims are paid. We conservatively invest these
reserves to supplement our underwriting income between the time of premium collection and a possible claim payment. If an underwriting loss occurs during any given year,
investment income can be used to cover underwriting losses before capital is affected.

We seek to maintain a diversified portfolio of fixed income instruments that prioritize capital preservation, with a secondary focus on generating predictable investment
income. Our asset allocation strategy focuses on high-quality fixed income instruments, with no equity or alternative investment exposure. One of the primary features of our asset
allocation is maintaining sufficient readily available funds to pay claims and expenses. Our portfolio consists entirely of cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and
investment grade fixed income securities.

We actively manage and monitor our investment risk, balancing the goals of capital preservation and income generation with our need to comply with relevant insurance
regulatory frameworks and the capital framework agreements with AmFam. Our board of directors reviews and approves our investment policy and strategy on a regular basis, and
considers investment activities, performance against benchmarks and new investment opportunities as they arise. The portfolio is managed by a third-party investment
management firm, New England Asset Management Inc. (“NEAM?”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway Inc. and a registered investment adviser with the
SEC under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. We believe that investment decisions are best made when not excessively restrictive. Therefore, our investment managers have
full discretion to carry out investment decisions within the limits of our investment policy and applicable guidelines.

As of December 31, 2024, our fixed income portfolio had a weighted average effective duration of approximately 2.2 years and an average credit rating of AA. Actual
maturities may differ for some securities when borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalties.

The securities in our investment portfolio are classified as “available for sale” and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported net of tax as a separate
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is determined based on a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the use of observable inputs over the use
of unobservable inputs and requires the use of observable inputs when available. For those securities with unrealized losses, we intend to hold them until maturity.
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Operating Model and Technology Platform
Operating Model

We have a remote-friendly operating model with employees generally working remotely, supplemented by targeted, in-person collaboration. We formed our company during
COVID-19 mandated lockdowns, which initially required us to be 100% remote. Founding a digital-first specialty insurer in the midst of national stay-at-home mandates
reinforced the importance of finding the appropriate balance between automated processes and human experience. Our management team built our company’s operating platform
and developed its culture from the beginning to function nimbly in a remote environment. This approach has enabled us to recruit talented employees nationwide without regard
for Bowhead-specific office locations.

We believe our unique operating model is a competitive advantage in terms of attracting talent and maintaining our collaborative culture. Unlike other insurance companies
that are trying to bring employees back to the office or that are just now learning to operate in a hybrid model, our remote-friendly operating model is, and has been, an innate part
of our culture. We believe this contributes directly to our success. We believe that our employees value the flexibility our operating model and appreciate knowing that we are not
trying to change this model or require a full-time return to the office. Contrary to many companies that needed to learn a “new normal” during 2020, launching our business in a
remote environment with a team-based culture encouraged our employees to communicate regularly and build virtual working habits that are now deeply ingrained in our daily
practices. We believe that our organization thrives in a remote-friendly environment and our employees’ ability to work collaboratively in a remote environment is unique within
our industry.

Technology Platform

We utilize technology, data and analytics efficiently throughout each stage of the underwriting process. Our modern, cloud-based underwriting platform enables us to leverage
both internally-created and third-party solutions. We developed proprietary underwriting tools, BRATS, for each of the lines we write, which are further supplemented with
customized third-party data. Our investments in technology focus on the development, integration and analysis of data, while our technology tools allow us to understand the
underlying risks for each line of business, enabling us to provide rapid feedback to brokers on structure and price. Our technology platform is a direct result of the best practices
learned from our management’s extensive prior experience at leading insurance companies. We have a new technology platform and we are not burdened by legacy systems and
practices that other insurance companies face. We focus our technology investments on improving our capabilities, not on maintaining or replacing outdated systems.

Our BRATSs are comprehensive tools used across departments during our underwriting process to evaluate each risk. Our key business leaders leverage their respective BRATs
to evaluate submissions and have built line of business-specific capabilities resulting in a custom underwriting process, capturing exposures and drivers of the losses that are
relevant to each submission. Each of our “craft” underwriting divisions has its own unique set of BRATs. Each BRAT stores data in our core operating system for each submission,
regardless of whether we ultimately write the account. The Professional Liability BRAT data is supplemented by third-party vendor data integrated directly into its algorithm. This
effective data management capability has allowed us to build a large data repository of both public and private data despite our brief operating history.

For our core operating platform, including our policy administration, billing and claims systems, we license a cloud-hosted and cloud-architected application from a leading
third-party vendor that has been customized for our business. This turnkey application allows us to integrate additional applications from various third-party vendors directly into
our core information technology platform, enabling capabilities to be customized by line of business, size of account and underlying risk, among others.
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REGULATION
Insurance Regulation

Our insurance businesses are subject to regulation and supervision in each of the United States jurisdictions in which they conduct business. State insurance laws and
regulations generally are designed to protect the interests of policyholders, consumers and claimants rather than stockholders or other investors. The nature and extent of state
regulation varies by jurisdiction, and state insurance regulators generally have broad administrative power relating to, among other matters, setting capital and surplus
requirements, licensing of insurers, insurance producers and adjusters, review and approval of product forms and rates, establishing standards for reserve adequacy, prescribing
statutory accounting methods and the form and content of statutory financial reports, regulating certain transactions with affiliates and prescribing types and amounts of
investments.

Licensing

Our operating subsidiaries, BSUI and BUSI, as well as certain designated employees, must be licensed to act as insurance producers or adjusters, as applicable, by insurance
regulatory authorities in the states where they operate. Such insurance regulatory authorities are vested in most cases with relatively broad discretion as to the granting, denying,
revocation, suspension and renewal of licenses.

BICI is an insurance company licensed and domiciled in the State of Wisconsin and is primarily regulated by the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance of Wisconsin (the
“Wisconsin OCI”). BICI reinsures specialty property and casualty insurance products offered on both an admitted and non-admitted basis, depending on the specific product and
market segment. Admitted product rates and forms are highly regulated, while non-admitted insurance is subject to considerably less regulation with respect to policy rates and
forms. Currently, BICI assumes 100.0% of the premium underwritten by BSUI on behalf of certain AmFam insurance company subsidiaries, which is predominantly written on a
non-admitted basis.

BICI may become licensed to transact insurance in additional jurisdictions in order to write certain lines of business directly, which would subject BICI to regulation in such
jurisdictions, including statutes and regulations governing the review and approval of policy rates and forms.

Insurance Holding Company Regulation

We are subject to the insurance holding company laws of Wisconsin, which require BICI to register with the Wisconsin OCI and furnish information concerning the
operations of companies within the holding company system that may materially affect the operations, management or financial condition of BICI. These statutes also provide that
all transactions among members of a holding company system must be fair and reasonable and, if material or of specified types, such transactions require prior notice and approval
or non-disapproval by the Wisconsin OCI.

Changes of Control

Before a person can acquire control of a U.S. domestic insurer, prior written approval must be obtained from the insurance commissioner of the state where the insurer is
domiciled, or the acquiror must request an exemption from the Form A filing and approval requirements or a determination of non-control (each, an “Exemption Request”) or file a
Disclaimer with the insurance department of such state and obtain approval thereon. Since BICI is domiciled in the state of Wisconsin, the insurance laws and regulations of
Wisconsin would be applicable to any proposed acquisition of control of BICI. Under applicable Wisconsin insurance laws and regulations, no person may acquire control of a
domestic insurer until written approval is obtained from the state insurance commissioner following a public hearing on the proposed acquisition. Such approval would be
contingent upon the state insurance commissioner’s consideration of a number of factors, including, among others, the financial strength of the proposed acquiror, the integrity and
management of the acquiror’s board of directors and executive officers, the acquiror’s plans for the future operations of the domestic insurer and any anti-competitive results that
may arise from the consummation of the acquisition of control.
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Wisconsin law provides that control over a Wisconsin domestic insurer is presumed to exist if any person, directly or indirectly, owns, controls, holds with the power to vote,
or holds proxies representing, ten percent or more of the voting securities of the domestic insurer. This statutory presumption of control may be rebutted by a showing that control
does not exist in fact. The Wisconsin OCI, however, may find that “control” exists in circumstances in which a person owns or controls less than ten percent of the voting
securities of the domestic insurer.

Wisconsin insurance laws and regulations pertaining to changes of control would apply to both the direct and indirect acquisition of ten percent or more of the voting stock of
a Wisconsin-domiciled insurer (or potentially of less than ten percent of the voting stock if there is other indicia of control). Accordingly, the acquisition of ten percent or more of
our common stock would be considered an indirect change of control of BICI and would trigger the applicable change of control filing requirements under Wisconsin insurance
laws and regulations, absent the filing of an Exemption Request or Disclaimer and its acceptance by the Wisconsin OCI. These requirements may discourage potential acquisition
proposals and may delay, deter or prevent a change of control of us, including through transactions that some or all of our stockholders might consider to be desirable.

Restrictions on Paying Dividends

Substantially all of our operations are conducted through our wholly-owned insurance and service company subsidiaries. Consequently, our ability to pay dividends to
stockholders and meet our debt payment obligations is largely dependent on dividends and other distributions from BICI and our other operating companies. BICI’s ability to pay
dividends is restricted under the insurance laws and regulations of its domiciliary state and may only be paid from unassigned surplus. Under the insurance laws of Wisconsin, an
insurer may make an ordinary dividend payment if its surplus as regards to policyholders, following such dividend, is reasonable in relation to its outstanding liabilities, is
adequate to its financial needs and does not exceed the insurer’s unassigned surplus. However, no insurer may pay an extraordinary dividend without the approval or non-
disapproval of the Wisconsin OCI. An extraordinary dividend is defined under Wisconsin law as a dividend whose fair market value, together with other dividends paid within the
preceding 12 months, exceeds the lesser of (i) 10.0% of the insurer’s surplus with regard to policyholders as of the preceding December 31 or (ii) the greater of (A) the insurer’s
net income for the calendar year preceding the date of the dividend, minus realized capital gains for that calendar year, or (B) the aggregate of the insurer’s net income for the three
calendar years preceding the date of the dividend, minus realized capital gains for those calendar years and minus dividends paid within the first two of the preceding three
calendar years. As of December 31, 2024, the maximum amount of dividends BICI could pay without regulatory approval was $16.1 million.

State insurance regulators require insurance companies to maintain specified levels of statutory capital and surplus. BICI is subject to certain surplus and risk-based capital
requirements under a company-specific stipulation and order from the Wisconsin OCI, which became effective on December 18, 2020 in connection with the issuance of BICI’s
certificate of authority by the Wisconsin OCI. Pursuant to the Wisconsin OCI Stipulation and Order, BICI is required to (i) have a compulsory surplus equal to the greater of (A)
$3.0 million or (B) the sum of (x) 50.0% of gross written premiums for medical malpractice insurance (which business is written as part of our Healthcare Liability division) and
(y) 20.0% of gross written premiums for all other covered lines of insurance, (ii) maintain surplus in excess of its required security surplus standard under Wisconsin law and (iii)
maintain a ratio of total adjusted capital to authorized control level risk-based capital of not less than 400%. Upon the earlier of (i) a change in control of BICI that requires the
filing of a Form A or (ii) the fifth anniversary of the effective date of the Wisconsin OCI Stipulation and Order, BICI may submit a written request for the Wisconsin OCI to
consider whether the terms of the Wisconsin OCI Stipulation and Order should be continued or modified. Upon such written request, the Wisconsin OCI will initiate an inquiry to
evaluate whether BICI’s business has maintained sufficient capitalization such that the assurances provided by the Wisconsin OCI Stipulation and Order are no longer required or
whether any terms or conditions of the Wisconsin OCI Stipulation and Order should be modified. The inquiry would be expected to conclude within 120 calendar days. Insurance
regulators have broad powers to prevent reduction of statutory surplus to inadequate levels, and there is no assurance that dividends of the maximum amounts calculated under any
applicable formula would be permitted. State insurance regulatory authorities that have jurisdiction over the payment of dividends by our insurance company subsidiary may in the
future adopt statutory provisions, or impose additional constraints more restrictive than those currently in effect.
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Investment Regulation

BICI is subject to Wisconsin laws that require diversification of our investment portfolios and prescribe limits on the kind, quality and concentration of investments. Failure to
comply with these laws and regulations would cause nonconforming investments to be treated as non-admitted assets for purposes of measuring statutory surplus and, in some
instances, would require us to sell those investments.

State Legislative and Regulatory Activity

From time to time, increased scrutiny has been placed upon the insurance regulatory framework, including licensing of employees, and a number of state legislatures have
considered or enacted legislative measures that alter, and in many cases increase, state authority to regulate insurance companies. In addition to legislative initiatives of this type,
insurance regulators and NAIC, a standard-setting association of state insurance regulators, are continuously involved in a process of reexamining existing laws and regulations
and their application to insurance companies. The NAIC also establishes statutory accounting and reporting standards and drafts model insurance laws and regulations for adoption
by the states.

As part of its solvency modernization efforts, the NAIC adopted the Risk Management and Own Risk and Solvency Assessment Model Act (the “ORSA Model Act”), which
has been enacted in Wisconsin. The ORSA Model Act requires insurance companies to assess the adequacy of their and their group’s risk management and current and future
solvency position. Under the ORSA Model Act, an insurer must undertake an internal risk management review no less often than annually (but also at any time when there are
significant changes to the risk profile of the insurer or its insurance group), in accordance with the NAIC’s ORSA Guidance Manual, and prepare a confidential summary report
(“ORSA Report”) assessing the adequacy of the insurer’s risk management and capital in light of its current and future business plans. The ORSA Report is filed with a company’s
lead state regulator and is available to other domiciliary regulators within the holding company system.

Also, in furtherance of its solvency modernization efforts, the NAIC adopted the Corporate Governance Annual Disclosure Model Act and Model Regulation, which has been
enacted in Wisconsin and requires an insurer to provide an annual disclosure regarding its corporate governance practices to its lead state and/or domestic regulator.

In addition, in December 2020, the NAIC adopted a group capital calculation tool (“GCC”) to provide U.S. regulators with a method to aggregate the available capital and the
minimum capital of each entity in a group in a way that applies to all groups regardless of their structure. In connection with the GCC, the NAIC also adopted changes to the
Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Model Act and Regulation, which have been enacted in Wisconsin, to require, subject to certain exemptions, the ultimate
controlling person of every insurer subject to the holding company registration requirement to file an annual GCC with its lead state. The GCC uses an RBC aggregation
methodology for all entities within an insurance holding company system group, including non-U.S. entities.

Additionally, in response to the growing threat of cyber-attacks in the insurance industry, certain jurisdictions have begun to consider new cybersecurity measures, including
the adoption of cybersecurity regulations which, among other things, would require insurance companies to establish and maintain a cybersecurity program and implement and
maintain cybersecurity policies and procedures. On October 24, 2017, the NAIC adopted its Insurance Data Security Model Law, which has been enacted in Wisconsin, intended
to serve as model legislation for states to enact in order to govern cybersecurity and data protection practices of insurers, insurance agents and other licensed entities registered
under state insurance laws.
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Federal Regulation

Although the federal government generally has not directly regulated the business of insurance except for certain areas of the market, such as insurance for flood, nuclear and
terrorism risks, federal initiatives often affect the insurance industry in a variety of ways. The U.S. federal government’s oversight of the insurance industry was expanded under
the Dodd-Frank Act, which, among other things, established the Federal Insurance Office (the “FIO”). The FIO performs various functions with respect to insurance, including the
submission of reports to Congress that could ultimately lead to changes in the regulation of insurers and reinsurers in the U.S., although the FIO has no express regulatory
authority over insurance companies or other insurance industry participants.

The Dodd-Frank Act also incorporated the Nonadmitted and Reinsurance Reform Act of 2010 (“NRRA”), which became effective on July 21, 2011, and establishes national
uniform standards on how states may regulate and tax surplus lines insurance. In particular, the NRRA gives regulators in the home state of an insured exclusive authority to
regulate and tax surplus lines insurance transactions. In August 2023, the NAIC adopted revisions to its Nonadmitted Insurance Model Act intended to implement the changes to
the regulation of surplus lines insurance resulting from the NRRA.

In addition, a number of federal laws affect and apply to the insurance industry, including various privacy laws and the economic and trade sanctions implemented by the
Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) of the U.S. Department of the Treasury. OFAC maintains and enforces economic sanctions against certain foreign countries and groups
and prohibits U.S. persons from engaging in certain transactions with certain persons or entities. OFAC has imposed civil penalties on persons, including insurance and
reinsurance companies, arising from violations of its economic sanctions program.

Credit for Reinsurance

State insurance laws permit U.S. insurance companies, as ceding insurers, to take financial statement credit for reinsurance that is ceded, so long as the assuming reinsurer
satisfies the state’s credit for reinsurance laws. In general, credit for reinsurance is allowed if the assuming reinsurer is licensed or “accredited” in the state in which the ceding
insurer is domiciled or maintains certain types of qualifying collateral.

The FIO and the Office of the U.S. Trade Representative exercised their authority under the Dodd-Frank Act and entered into a “covered agreement” with the European
Union, as well as a similar “covered agreement” with the United Kingdom, which established standards on collateral requirements for reinsurance, insurance group supervision
and confidentiality. In 2019, the NAIC adopted amendments to its Credit for Reinsurance Model Law to implement the reinsurance collateral provisions of the covered
agreements, eliminating reinsurance collateral requirements for qualifying reinsurers domiciled in jurisdictions subject to an in-force covered agreement. The amended Credit for
Reinsurance Model Law, which has been adopted in all U.S. States, including Wisconsin, also extends the zero reinsurance collateral provisions in the covered agreements to
qualified reinsurers that have been approved as a “certified reinsurer” or “reciprocal jurisdiction reinsurer” and to qualified reinsurers that are domiciled in a U.S. jurisdiction that
is accredited by the NAIC or in a non-U.S. jurisdiction that has not entered into a covered agreement with the U.S. but which is designated as a “reciprocal jurisdiction” by the
NAIC. The NAIC list of reciprocal jurisdictions includes Bermuda, Japan and Switzerland.

Periodic Financial and Market Conduct Examinations

The Wisconsin OCIL, BICI’s domiciliary state insurance regulator, is authorized to conduct on-site visits and examinations of the affairs of BICI, including its financial
condition, its relationships and transactions with affiliates and its dealings with policyholders, every three to five years, and may conduct special or targeted examinations to
address particular concerns or issues at any time. Insurance regulators of other states in which we do business in the future also may conduct examinations. The results of these
examinations can give rise to regulatory orders requiring remedial, injunctive or other corrective action. Insurance regulatory authorities have broad administrative powers to
restrict or revoke licenses to transact business and to levy fines and monetary penalties against insurers and insurance agents and brokers found to be in violation of applicable
laws and regulations.
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Trade Practices

The manner in which insurance companies and insurance agents and brokers conduct the business of insurance is regulated by state statutes in an effort to prohibit practices
that constitute unfair methods of competition or unfair or deceptive acts or practices. Prohibited practices include, but are not limited to, disseminating false information or
advertising, unfair discrimination, rebating and false statements. We set business conduct policies and provide training to make our employee-producers aware of these
prohibitions, and we require them to conduct their activities in compliance with these statutes.

Unfair Claims Practices

Generally, insurance companies, adjusting companies and individual claims adjusters are prohibited by state statutes from engaging in unfair claims practices on a flagrant
basis or with such frequency to indicate a general business practice. Unfair claims practices include, but are not limited to, misrepresenting pertinent facts or insurance policy
provisions; failing to acknowledge and act reasonably promptly upon communications with respect to claims arising under insurance policies; and attempting to settle a claim for
less than the amount to which a reasonable person would have believed such person was entitled. We set business conduct policies and provide training to make our employee-
producers aware of these prohibitions, and we require them to conduct their activities in compliance with these statutes.

Quarterly and Annual Financial Reporting

Our insurance company subsidiary is required to file quarterly and annual financial reports with state insurance regulators using SAP rather than U.S. GAAP. In keeping with
the intent to assure policyholder protection, SAP emphasizes solvency considerations. For a summary of the significant differences for our insurance company subsidiary between
SAP and U.S. GAAP, see Note 19, “Insurance — Statutory Information,” to our condensed consolidated financial statements included in this prospectus.

Risk-Based Capital

Risk-based capital (“RBC”) laws are designed to assess the minimum amount of capital that an insurance company needs to support its overall business operations and to
ensure that it has an acceptably low expectation of becoming financially impaired. State insurance regulators use RBC to set capital requirements, considering the size and degree
of risk taken by the insurer and taking into account various risk factors including asset risk, credit risk, underwriting risk and interest rate risk. As the ratio of an insurer’s total
adjusted capital and surplus decreases relative to its risk-based capital, the RBC laws provide for increasing levels of regulatory intervention culminating with mandatory control
of the operations of the insurer by the domiciliary insurance department at the so-called mandatory control level.

Wisconsin has largely adopted the model legislation promulgated by the NAIC pertaining to RBC, and requires annual reporting by Wisconsin-domiciled insurers to confirm
that the minimum amount of RBC necessary for an insurer to support its overall business operations has been met. Wisconsin-domiciled insurers falling below a calculated
threshold may be subject to varying degrees of regulatory action, including supervision, rehabilitation or liquidation by the Wisconsin OCI. Furthermore, BICI is required to
maintain a ratio of total adjusted capital to authorized control level risk-based capital of not less than 400.0% under the Wisconsin OCI Stipulation and Order. Failure to maintain
our risk-based capital at the required levels could adversely affect the ability of BICI to maintain the regulatory authority necessary to conduct our business. See “Risk Factors—
We are subject to extensive regulation, which may adversely affect our ability to achieve our business objectives. In addition, if we fail to comply with these regulations, we may
be subject to penalties, including fines, suspensions, revoking licenses, orders to cease and desist operations, and criminal prosecution, which may adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations.”
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IRIS Ratios

The NAIC IRIS is part of a collection of analytical tools designed to provide state insurance regulators with an integrated approach to screening and analyzing the financial
condition of insurance companies operating in their respective states. IRIS is intended to assist state insurance regulators in targeting resources to those insurers in greatest need of
regulatory attention. IRIS consists of two phases: statistical and analytical. In the statistical phase, the NAIC database generates key financial ratio results based on financial
information obtained from insurers’ annual statutory statements. The analytical phase is a review of the annual statements, financial ratios and other automated solvency tools. The
primary goal of the analytical phase is to identify companies that appear to require immediate regulatory attention. A ratio result falling outside the usual range of IRIS ratios is not
considered a failing result; rather, unusual values are viewed as part of the regulatory early monitoring system. Furthermore, in some years, it may not be unusual for financially
sound companies to have several ratios with results outside the usual ranges. An insurance company may fall out of the usual range for one or more ratios because of specific
transactions that are in themselves immaterial.

Human Capital

As of December 31, 2024, we employed 249 employees. Our employees are not subject to any collective bargaining agreements, and we are not aware of any current efforts to
implement such an agreement.

Our employees are our most valuable assets. We embrace and encourage our employees’ differences in backgrounds, knowledge, life experiences and capabilities that we
believe collectively play a significant role in our culture, reputation and achievements. We strive to cultivate an exceptional workforce to perpetuate our ownership culture and
continue to achieve superior business results. Our goal is to attract, develop and retain the best talent, while promoting a fast-paced, results-driven team-centric environment. Our
recruitment efforts focus on hiring high-quality, talented people wherever they live throughout the country. We believe that our talent-first approach to recruitment, irrespective of
geographical location, is a competitive advantage that enables us to build cost effective teams while providing a high quality of life for our employees.

We offer and maintain a competitive benefits package designed to support the well-being of our employees, including, but not limited to, medical, dental and vision insurance;
a 401(k) plan; paid time off; family leave; tuition reimbursement; and employee assistance programs. Our compensation is structured to align employee incentives with the long-
term success, vision and direction of our organization. We also emphasize the training and development of our employees to help maximize their personal and professional growth
with opportunities to further their education and careers.

We have a policy of entering into agreements with non-compete and/or non-solicitation provisions with certain key management personnel to protect our confidential
information and customer goodwill as well as to minimize the risk of disruption to our business in the event of a key employee’s departure.

Available Information

The SEC maintains website at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information about the Company. In addition, our website,
ir.bowheadspecialty.com, contains corporate governance information, including our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, and the charters of
the Audit Committee and the Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of our Board of Directors. The information on, or that can be accessed through,
our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is not part of this report.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

A description of the risks and uncertainties associated with our business is set for below. You should carefully consider the following information about these risks, together
with the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including our financial statements and the notes thereto, and “Management s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations may be materially
adversely affected. In such case, the trading price of our common stock could decline and you may lose all or part of your investment. Additional risks and

18



Table of Contents

uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may impair our business operations.
Risk Factors Summary

This summary provides an overview of the risks we face and should not be considered a substitute for the more fulsome risk factors discussed immediately following this
summary.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

*  Our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected if we do not accurately assess our underwriting risk.

+  Competition for business in our industry is intense.

* Inability to maintain our strategic relationship with AmFam would materially adversely affect our business.

*  Adecline in AmFam’s financial strength rating or financial size category may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

*  Because our business depends on insurance retail agents, brokers and wholesalers, we are exposed to certain risks arising out of our reliance on these distribution
channels that could adversely affect our results.

*  Werely on a select group of brokers, and such relationships may not continue.

*  We may be unable to continue purchasing third-party reinsurance in amounts we desire on commercially acceptable terms or on terms that adequately protect us, and this
inability may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

*  Our losses and loss expense reserves may be inadequate to cover our actual losses, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

+  Given the inherent uncertainty of risk assessment and underwriting tools and algorithms, the usefulness of such tools to evaluate risk is subject to a high degree of
uncertainty that could result in actual losses that are materially different than our estimates. A deviation from our loss estimates may adversely impact, perhaps
significantly, our financial results.

*  We rely on third-party data, and inaccuracies in such data could adversely impact our ability to estimate losses and manage risks.

*  Unexpected changes in the interpretation of our coverage or provisions, including loss limitations and exclusions, in our policies could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

*  Our reinsurers may not reimburse us for claims on a timely basis, or at all, which may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

*  While the P&C industry is generally currently experiencing a hard market, the insurance business is historically cyclical in nature, which may affect our financial
performance and cause our operating results to vary from quarter to quarter and may not be indicative of future performance.

Risks Related to Laws and Regulation
*  We are subject to extensive regulation, which may adversely affect our ability to achieve our business objectives. In addition, if we fail to comply with these regulations,

we may be subject to penalties, including fines, suspensions, revoking licenses, orders to cease and desist operations and criminal prosecution, which may adversely
affect our financial condition and results of operations.
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*  We may become subject to additional government or market regulation, which may have a material adverse impact on our business.
»  Changes in law, including relating to certain perils, could adversely affect our business.
*  Applicable insurance laws may make it difficult to effect a change of control.

Risks Related to Our Operations

*  We could suffer security breaches, loss of data, cyberattacks and other information technology failures, and are subject to laws and regulations concerning data privacy
and security that are continually evolving. Actual or suspected information technology failures or failure to comply with applicable law could disrupt our operations,
damage our reputation and adversely affect our business, operations and financial results.

*  Operational risk exposures, such as human or systems failures (including from third-party vendor arrangements), are inherent in our business and may result in losses.
*  We may change our underwriting guidelines or our strategy without your approval.

*  Any future acquisitions, strategic investments or new platforms could expose us to further risks or turn out to be unsuccessful.

»  The effects of litigation on our business are uncertain and could have an adverse effect on our business.

*  Loss of key vendor relationships or failure of a vendor to protect our data or confidential and proprietary information could affect our operations.

*  Our limited operating history may make it difficult to evaluate our current business and future prospects.

Risks Related to Liquidity and Access to Capital

*  We could be forced to sell investments to meet our liquidity requirements.

*  Because we are a holding company and substantially all or a substantial portion of our operations are conducted by our insurance and service company subsidiaries, our
ability to achieve liquidity at the holding company, including the ability to pay dividends and service our debt obligations, depends on our ability to obtain cash dividends
or other permitted payments from our insurance and service company subsidiaries.

*  We may require additional capital in the future, which may not be available or may only be available on unfavorable terms.

*  Our failure to comply with the terms of our credit facility, including as a result of events beyond our control, could result in an event of default that could affect our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

*  Our ability to incur a substantial level of indebtedness may reduce our financial flexibility, affect our ability to operate our business, and divert cash flow from operations
for debt service.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

*  Our costs have increased significantly as a result of operating as a public company, and our management is required to devote substantial time to complying with public
company regulations.

*  We qualify as an emerging growth company, and any decision on our part to comply with reduced reporting and disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth
companies could make our common stock less attractive to investors.
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*  GPC Fund and AFMIC exercise substantial influence over us, may engage in businesses that compete with us, and your ability to influence matters requiring stockholder
approval may be limited.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
Our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected if we do not accurately assess our underwriting risk.

Our underwriting success depends on our ability to accurately assess the risks associated with the business we write and retain. We rely on the experience of our underwriting
staff in assessing those risks. If we misunderstand the nature or extent of the risks, we may fail to establish appropriate premium rates or terms and conditions which could
adversely affect our financial results. In addition, our employees, including members of management and underwriters, make decisions and choices in the ordinary course of
business that involve exposing us to risk.

Competition for business in our industry is intense.

We face competition from other specialty insurance companies, standard insurance companies, managing general agencies (“MGAs”) and in some instances, decisions by
potential insureds to self-insure if premiums are too high. Competition in the insurance industry is based on many factors, including price of coverage, general reputation and
perceived financial strength of the company, relationships with distribution partners, terms and conditions of products offered, ratings assigned by independent rating agencies,
speed of claims payment and reputation, and the experience and reputation of the members of our underwriting team in the particular lines of insurance we seek to underwrite. In
recent years, the insurance industry has undergone some consolidation, which may further increase competition. The cost, capital and insurance synergies and combined
underwriting leverage resulting from consolidation may mean a larger global insurer is able to compete more effectively and also may be more attractive than us to brokers and
agents looking to place business. Larger insurers also may have lower operating costs and an ability to absorb greater risk while maintaining their financial strength ratings,
thereby allowing them to price their products more competitively. If such competitive pressures reduce rates or negatively affect terms and conditions considerably, we may reduce
our future underwriting activities in those lines thus resulting in reduced premiums and a potential reduction in expected earnings. Competitors may also have a longer operating
history and more market recognition than we do in certain lines of business.

The rapid evolution of artificial intelligence (“AI”) and technology in general may alter the competitive landscape. While we expect to continue to leverage technology, data,
and analytics efficiently, it is possible that competitors will leverage Al and technology solutions more effectively which may adversely impact our competitive position.
Competitors could enter the insurance market and further accelerate these trends. Our competitive position could be adversely impacted if we are unable to deploy, in a cost
effective and competitive manner, technology or if our competitors collect and use data which we do not have the ability or access to utilize. A number of new, proposed or
potential industry or legislative developments could further increase competition in our industry. Additionally, the possibility of federal regulatory reform of the insurance industry
could increase competition from standard carriers.

‘We may not be able to continue to compete successfully in the insurance markets. Increased competition in these markets could result in a change in the supply and demand
for insurance and affect our ability to price our products at risk-adequate rates, retain existing business or underwrite new business on favorable terms. If increased competition
limits our ability to transact business, our operating results could be adversely affected.

Inability to maintain our strategic relationship with AmFam would materially adversely affect our business.

As of December 31, 2024, AmFam owns approximately 14.4% of our common stock. We leverage AmFam’s legal entities, ratings and licenses through the MGA Agreements
and the Quota Share Agreement. Through our MGA Agreements, BSUI underwrites premiums on behalf of the AmFam Issuing Carriers. Through the Quota Share Agreement, as
of December 31, 2024, AmFam cedes 100.0% of this risk, along with the premiums to BICI and receives a ceding fee that is 2.0% on net premiums assumed. Separately, another
AmFam subsidiary also negotiates reinsurance terms for its participation in our outward reinsurance program. Through our MGA Agreements, we also provide underwriting and
claims handling services from BSUI to the AmFam Issuing Carriers. In essence, we
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originate business on the paper of AmFam through BSUI writing policies issued by AmFam under the name of AmFam and reinsure 100.0% of the insurance business we originate
to BICI, since we do not currently have the ratings to write policies under our own name and on our own paper. As a result, we rely on our strategic partnership with AmFam and
any inability to maintain our strategic relationship with AmFam would materially adversely affect our business. These contractual arrangements may terminate or be terminated
under certain circumstances and there can be no assurance that this strategic relationship will continue in the future, including on the same or similar terms, and if not, that we
would be able to find a suitable replacement or another strategic partnership on favorable terms if at all. In the event that the MGA Agreements were terminated and we were not
able to find another carrier with similar financial strength ratings with which we could partner, our ability to write new and renewal business would be significantly impacted as
the amount of business we could write directly on BICI paper without BICI having its own standalone financial strength rating from A.M. Best would be de minimis. See “—We
may require additional capital in the future, which may not be available or may only be available on unfavorable terms.”

A decline in AmFam’s financial strength rating or financial size category may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Participants in the insurance industry use ratings from independent ratings agencies, such as A.M. Best, as an important means of assessing the financial strength and quality
of insurers. In setting its ratings, A.M. Best performs quantitative and qualitative analyses of a company’s balance sheet strength, operating performance and business profile. A.M.
Best financial strength ratings range from “A++" (Superior) to “F” for insurance companies that have been publicly placed in liquidation.

We do not currently have a standalone A.M. Best rating for BICI. However, our strategic partner, AmFam and the AmFam Issuing Carriers, have an “A” (Excellent) financial
strength rating and a XV financial size category from A.M. Best as of December 31, 2024. A downgrade or withdrawal of AmFam’s financial strength rating or reduction in its
financial size category could result in any of the following consequences, among others:

»  causing current and future distribution partners and insureds to choose other competitors; or
» severely limiting or preventing the writing of new and renewal insurance contracts.

A.M. Best’s analysis includes comparisons to peers and industry standards as well as assessments of operating plans, philosophy and management. A.M. Best periodically
reviews AmFam’s financial strength rating and may revise it upward or downward at its discretion based primarily on its analyses of AmFam’s balance sheet strength, operating
performance and business profile.

In addition, in view of the earnings and capital pressures experienced by many financial institutions, including insurance companies, it is possible that rating organizations will
heighten the level of scrutiny that they apply to such institutions, increase the frequency and scope of their credit reviews, request additional information from the companies that
they rate, or increase the capital and other requirements employed in the rating organizations’ models for maintenance of certain ratings levels.

We anticipate that we will continue to leverage our strategic relationship with AmFam for lines of business that require an “A” financial strength rating from A.M. Best and
any downgrade or withdrawal of AmFam’s rating could have a material adverse effect on our business. A.M. Best assigns ratings that are intended to provide an independent
opinion of an insurance company’s ability to meet its obligations to policyholders and is not an evaluation directed to investors and is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
stock or any other securities an insurance group may issue.

Because our business depends on insurance retail agents, brokers and wholesalers, we are exposed to certain risks arising out of our reliance on these distribution
channels that could adversely affect our results.

Substantially all of our products are ultimately distributed through independent retail agents and brokers who have the principal relationships with policyholders. Retail agents
and brokers generally own the “renewal rights,” and thus our business model depends on our relationships with, and the success of, the retail agents and brokers with
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whom we do business. Further, we also depend on the relationships our wholesalers maintain with the agents and brokers from whom they source their business.

Our relationship with our retail agents, brokers and wholesalers may be discontinued at any time, subject to the terms of the respective producer agreements and applicable
regulatory requirements. Even if the relationships do continue, they may not be on terms that are profitable for us. For example, as insurance distribution firms continue to
consolidate, their ability to influence commission rates may increase as may the concentration of business we have with a particular broker. Consolidation of distributors may also
increase the likelihood that distributors will try to renegotiate the terms of existing selling agreements to terms less favorable to us. Further, certain premiums from policyholders,
where the business is produced by brokers, are collected directly by the brokers and remitted to us. In certain jurisdictions, when the insured pays its policy premiums to its broker
for payment on behalf of our insurance company subsidiary, the premiums may be considered to have been paid under applicable insurance laws and regulations. Accordingly, the
insured would no longer be liable to us for those amounts, whether or not we have actually received the premium from that broker. Consequently, we assume a degree of credit risk
associated with the brokers with which we work. Although the failure by any of our brokers to remit premiums to us has not been material to date, there may be instances where
our brokers collect premiums but do not remit them to us and we may be required under applicable law to provide the coverage set forth in the policy despite the related premiums
not being paid to us. Similarly, if we are limited in our ability to cancel policies for non-payment, our underwriting profits may decline and our financial condition and results of
operations could be materially and adversely affected. Also, if insurance distribution firm consolidation continues at its current pace or increases in the future, our sales channels
could be materially affected in a number of ways, including loss of market access or market share in certain geographic areas. Specifically, we could be negatively affected due to
loss of talent as the people most knowledgeable about our products and with whom we have developed strong working relationships exit the business following an acquisition or
increases in our commission costs as larger distributors acquire more negotiating leverage over fees. Any such disruption that materially affects our sales channel could have a
negative impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

We periodically review the agencies, brokers and wholesalers with whom we do business to identify those that do not meet our profitability standards, are not aligned with our
business objectives or do not comply with applicable laws and regulations. Following these periodic reviews, we may restrict such distributors’ access to certain types of products
or terminate our relationship with them, subject to applicable contractual and regulatory requirements that limit our ability to terminate agents or require us to renew policies. Even
through the utilization of these measures, we may not achieve the desired results.

Because we rely on these distributors as our sales channel and for some additional services that we receive from these distributors, any deterioration in the relationships with
our distributors or failure to provide competitive compensation could lead our distributors to place more premium with other carriers and less premium with us. In addition, we
could be adversely affected if the distributors with which we do business exceed their granted authority, fail to transfer collected premium to us, breach the obligations that they
owe to us or fail to perform such additional services. Although we routinely monitor our distribution relationships, such actions could expose us to liability.

As the speed of digitization accelerates, we are subject to risks associated with both our distributors and their ability to keep pace. In an increasingly digital world, distributors
who cannot provide a digital or technology-driven experience risk losing customers who demand such an experience, and such customers may choose to do business with more
technology-driven distributors.

We rely on a select group of brokers, and such relationships may not continue.

We distribute the majority of our products through a select group of brokers. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, 68.3%, or $475.0 million, of our gross written
premiums were distributed through four of our approximately 65 brokers.

Our relationship with any of these brokers may be discontinued at any time, subject to the terms of the respective producer agreements and applicable regulatory
requirements. Even if the relationships do continue, they may not be on terms that are profitable for us. Consolidation could impact relationships with, and fees paid to, some
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agents and brokers. If brokers merge with or acquire each other, there could be a resulting failure or inability of brokers to market our products successfully or the loss of a
substantial portion of the business sourced by one or more of our key brokers. The termination of a relationship with one or more significant brokers could result in lower gross
written premiums and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or business prospects.

We may be unable to continue purchasing third-party reinsurance in amounts we desire on commercially acceptable terms or on terms that adequately protect us, and this
inability may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We strategically purchase reinsurance from third parties which enhances our business by protecting capital from severity events (either large single event losses or
catastrophes) and reducing volatility in our earnings. Reinsurance involves transferring, or ceding, a portion of our risk exposure on policies that we write to another insurer, the
reinsurer, in exchange for a cost. If we are unable to renew our expiring contracts, enter into new reinsurance arrangements on acceptable terms or expand our coverage, our loss
exposure could increase, which would increase our potential losses related to loss events. If one of our reinsurers changes its strategic plan and is no longer actively writing new
business on a going forward basis, it may become more difficult to obtain new reinsurance arrangements on favorable terms. If we are unwilling to bear an increase in loss
exposure, we may need to reduce the level of our underwriting commitments, which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

There are situations in which reinsurers may exclude certain coverages from, or alter terms in, the reinsurance contracts we enter into with them. As a result, we, like other
insurance companies, could write insurance policies which to some extent do not have the benefit of reinsurance protection. These gaps in reinsurance protection expose us to
greater risk and greater potential losses.

We may also write risks that do not fall within the coverage provided by our reinsurance contracts, or we may purchase types of reinsurance that inadequately cover our risks,
and in such an event, we may be exposed to greater risk and greater potential losses.

Our losses and loss expense reserves may be inadequate to cover our actual losses, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

Our success depends on our ability to assess the risks related to the businesses and people that we insure accurately. We establish losses and loss adjustment expense reserves
for the best estimate of the ultimate payment of all claims that have been incurred, or could be incurred in the future, and the related costs of adjusting those claims, as of the date
of our financial statements. Reserves do not represent an exact calculation of liability. Rather, reserves represent an estimate of what we expect the ultimate settlement and
administration of claims will cost us based on information available at that time, and our ultimate liability may be greater or less than our estimate.

As part of the reserving process, we use similar processes for assessing the risks related to our business written on an admitted basis and on a non-admitted basis and thus this
is generally not a variable that affects our estimates. In each case, we both review our historical data, which is limited given our short operating history, and industry data that is
available to us from actuarial consultants and other publicly available sources, as well as consider the impact of such factors as:

* claims inflation, which is the sustained increase in cost of raw materials, labor, medical services and other components of claims cost;
+ claims development patterns by line of business, as well as frequency and severity trends;

»  pricing for our products;

* legislative activity;

» social and economic patterns; and

+ litigation, judicial and regulatory trends.
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These variables are affected by both internal and external events that could increase our exposure to losses, and we continually monitor our loss reserves using new
information on reported claims and a variety of statistical techniques and modeling simulations. Most or all of these factors are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a
prospective basis. It is possible that we may make underwriting decisions based on incorrect or incomplete information. If inadequate or inaccurate information is provided to us,
we may misunderstand the nature or extent of the activities or facilities and the corresponding extent of the risks that we insure. Further, this process assumes that past experience,
adjusted for the effects of current developments, anticipated trends and market conditions, is an appropriate basis for predicting future events. There is, however, no precise
method for evaluating the impact of any specific factor on the adequacy of loss reserves and actual results may deviate, perhaps substantially, from our reserve estimates. For
instance, the following uncertainties may have an impact on the adequacy of our reserves:

*  When a claim is received, it may take considerable time to appreciate fully the extent of the covered loss suffered by the insured and, consequently, estimates of loss
associated with specific claims can increase over time. Consequently, estimates of loss associated with specified claims can change as new information emerges, which
could cause the reserves for the claim to become inadequate.

*  New theories of liability are enforced retroactively from time to time by courts. See “—Unexpected changes in the interpretation of our coverage or provisions, including
loss limitations and exclusions, in our policies could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.”

*  Volatility in the financial markets, economic events and other external factors may result in an increase in the number of claims and/or severity of the claims reported. In
addition, elevated inflationary conditions, among other things, cause loss costs to increase. See “—Adverse economic factors, including recession, inflation, periods of
high unemployment or lower economic activity could result in the sale of fewer policies than expected or an increase in frequency of claims and premium defaults, and
even the falsification of claims, or a combination of these effects, which, in turn, could affect our growth and profitability.”

» If claims were to become more frequent, even if we had no liability for those claims, the cost of evaluating such potential claims could escalate beyond the amount of the
loss adjustment expense reserves we have established. As we enter into new lines of business, or as a result of new theories of claims, we may encounter an increase in
claims frequency and greater claims handling costs than we had anticipated.

If any of our reserves should prove to be inadequate, we will be required to increase our reserves resulting in a reduction in our net income and total mezzanine equity and
stockholders’ equity in the period in which the deficiency is identified. Future loss experience substantially in excess of established reserves could also have a material adverse
effect on our future earnings and liquidity.

Given the inherent uncertainty of risk assessment and underwriting tools and algorithms, the usefulness of such tools to evaluate risk is subject to a high degree of
uncertainty that could result in actual losses that are materially different than our estimates. A deviation from our loss estimates may adversely impact, perhaps significantly,
our financial results.

Our approach to risk management relies on subjective variables that entail significant uncertainties. In addition, we rely on historical data and scenarios in managing risks in
our investment portfolio. The estimates, tools, data and algorithms that we use to estimate losses and manage risks may not produce accurate predictions and consequently, we
could incur losses both in the risks we underwrite and to the value of our investment portfolio.

We use proprietary underwriting tools, which we refer to as BRATS, for the lines in which we write business, which are further supplemented with customized third-party data.
Our key business leaders leverage their respective BRATSs to evaluate submissions and, over time, have built line of business-specific capabilities, capturing exposures and drivers
of the losses that are relevant to each submission. Each of our three “craft” underwriting divisions has their own unique set of BRATs. Each BRAT stores data in our core operating
system for each submission, regardless of whether we ultimately write the account. The Professional Liability BRAT data is supplemented by third-party vendor data integrated
directly into its algorithms. We use these BRATS across departments during our underwriting process to evaluate each risk. However, given the inherent uncertainty of
underwriting tools and
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algorithms and the application of such techniques, these tools, algorithms and databases may not accurately address a variety of matters which may impact certain of our
coverages. These tools may be inadequate representations of the underlying subject matter, including as a result of inaccurate inputs or evaluations of data (resulting from data
error, human error or otherwise). Consequently, actual losses from loss events, whether from individual claims or in the aggregate, may differ materially from modeled
expectations. If, based upon these tools, models or other factors, we misprice our products or underestimate the frequency and/or severity of loss events, our profitability, financial
condition, or liquidity may be adversely affected.

Small changes in assumptions, which depend heavily on our judgment and foresight, can have a significant impact on the outputs of BRATSs and other tools we use. These
assumptions address a number of factors that impact loss potential; and these factors vary considerably across lines of business and specific BRATs. Examples include, but are not
limited to: business class, industry classifications or areas of practice or operations; company financial condition; stock price volatility; insured investment strategies; company
policies and procedures; distribution and volatility of expected claim amounts; future trends in claim severity and frequency; expected development of historical paid and reported
claims; and regulatory and judicial environment associated with insured location or venue. Furthermore, there are risks which are either poorly represented or not represented at all
by our BRATS or other tools and algorithms. These uncertainties can include, but are not limited to, the following:

» the tools do not address all the possible hazard characteristics;
» the tools may not accurately represent loss potential to insurance or reinsurance contract coverage limits, terms and conditions; and
» the tools may not accurately reflect economic, financial, judicial, political, or regulatory impact on insurance claim payments.

The outputs from the BRATSs and other tools we use, together with other qualitative and quantitative assessments, are used in our underwriting process to evaluate risk. Our
methodology for estimating losses may differ from methods used by other companies and external parties given the various assumptions and judgments required.

As aresult of these factors and contingencies, our reliance on assumptions, tools and data we use is subject to a high degree of uncertainty that could result in actual losses
that are materially different from our estimates and our financial results could be adversely affected.

We rely on third-party data, and inaccuracies in such data could adversely impact our ability to estimate losses and manage risks.

Due to our limited operating history, we have generated limited amounts of our own data and instead must rely on data from third parties. We use data from third parties in our
BRATSs and other underwriting tools as part of our underwriting process to evaluate risks and estimate losses. We rely on these third parties to ensure that the data they provide is
accurate. Inaccurate data could affect our ability to effectively estimate losses, resulting in actual losses that are materially different from our estimates, which could have an
adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Unexpected changes in the interpretation of our coverage or provisions, including loss limitations and exclusions, in our policies could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

Loss limitations or exclusions in our policies may not be enforceable in the manner we intend. Changes in legal, judicial, social and other external conditions beyond our
control can cause unexpected and unintended issues related to claims and coverage. For example, there may be policy provisions for which no judicial precedent interpreting the
policy language exists. For matters of first impression, judicial interpretations can vary widely depending on jurisdictional and judicial factors, and often take several years to work
through subsequent appellate channels to reach final judgment on the interpretation of such language. Additionally, it is possible that legislative or regulatory bodies may target a
specific exclusion or limitation of coverage rendering the provision unenforceable or to be interpreted in a manner inconsistent with the intent of the insurer. In addition, court
decisions could read policy exclusions narrowly so as to expand coverage, thereby requiring insurers to create and write new exclusions. For example, a January 2022 ruling from
a court in New Jersey, which was upheld by the appellate court, denied the applicability of war exclusions with respect to nation-state-led cyber attacks and permitted a large
global healthcare company to recover under certain of its insurance policies for a ransomware attack. Such actions could result in higher than anticipated losses and loss
adjustment expenses, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

These issues may adversely affect our business by either broadening coverage beyond our underwriting intent or by increasing the frequency or severity of claims. In some
instances, these changes may not become apparent until some time after we have issued insurance contracts that are affected by the changes. As a result, the full extent of liability
under our insurance contracts may not be known for many years after a contract is issued.

Outward reinsurance is a key part of our strategy, subjecting us to the credit risk of our reinsurers and may not be available, affordable or adequate to protect against
losses.

Outward reinsurance is a key part of our strategy, and our outward reinsurance protection may not be sufficient for all eventualities, which could expose us to greater risk and
greater potential loss, which could in turn have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. In particular, if a number of large
losses occur in any one year, there is a chance that we could exhaust our outward reinsurance. In this event, it is not certain that further reinsurance coverage would be available on
acceptable terms, or at all, for the remainder of that year or for future years which could materially increase the risks and losses we retain. Additionally, changes in reinsurer’s risk
appetite may have an impact on the availability of reinsurance on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. We are unable to predict how reinsurer’s risk appetite may fluctuate in
the future.

Collectability of reinsurance depends on the solvency of reinsurers and their willingness to make payments under the terms of reinsurance agreements. In particular, we can be
exposed to non-coterminous wording risk under such agreements, including interpretations by our reinsurers that they may withhold payment for losses. As such, the terms and
conditions of the reinsurance purchased by us may not provide precise coverage for the losses we incur on the underlying insurance or reinsurance which we have sold. While all
of our reinsurers are currently highly rated, their ratings could be downgraded in the future. Finally, a material deterioration in the capital levels of our reinsurance counterparties
may reduce the amount of statutory capital relief provided by our reinsurance arrangements, which could result in our failure to meet our own statutory capital requirements. A
reinsurer’s insolvency or inability or unwillingness to make payments under the terms of a reinsurance arrangement could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

Our reinsurers may not reimburse us for claims on a timely basis, or at all, which may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The reinsurance contracts into which we enter to help manage our risks require us to pay premiums to the reinsurance carriers who will in turn reimburse us for a portion of
covered policy claims. In many cases, a reinsurer will be called upon to reimburse us for policy claims many years after we paid insurance premiums to the insurer. Although
reinsurance makes the reinsurer liable to us to the extent the risk is transferred or ceded to the reinsurer, it

27



Table of Contents

does not relieve us (the ceding insurer) of our primary liability to our policyholders. Our current reinsurance program is designed to limit our financial risk. However, our
reinsurers may not pay claims we incur on a timely basis, or they may not pay some or all of these claims. For example, reinsurers may default in their financial obligations to us
as the result of insolvency, lack of liquidity, operational failure, political and/or regulatory prohibitions, fraud, asserted defenses based on agreement wordings or the principle of
utmost good faith, asserted deficiencies in the documentation of agreements, or other reasons. In addition, if reinsurers consolidate, such reinsurers’ willingness to pay claims in
the same timely manner as prior to such consolidation may change. Any disputes with reinsurers regarding coverage under reinsurance contracts could be time consuming, costly
and uncertain of success. These risks could cause us to incur increased net losses, and, therefore, adversely affect our financial condition. As of December 31, 2024, we had $255.1
million of aggregate reinsurance recoverables; 100% of these reinsurance recoverables were derived from reinsurers currently with an “A” (Excellent) financial strength rating
from A.M. Best, or better.

We may act based on inaccurate or incomplete information regarding the accounts we underwrite.

We rely on information provided by insureds or their representatives when underwriting insurance policies. While we may make inquiries to validate or supplement the
information provided, we may make underwriting decisions based on incorrect or incomplete information. It is possible that we will misunderstand the nature or extent of the
activities or facilities and the corresponding extent of the risks that we insure because of our reliance on inadequate or inaccurate information.

Our failure to accurately and timely pay claims could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

We must accurately and timely evaluate and pay claims that are made under our policies. Many factors affect our ability to pay claims accurately and timely, including the
training and experience of our claims representatives, the effectiveness of our management, and our ability to develop or select and implement appropriate procedures and systems
to support our claims functions and other factors. Our failure to pay claims accurately and timely could lead to regulatory and administrative actions or material litigation,
including bad faith claims, undermine our reputation in the marketplace and materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Excessive risk taking could negatively affect our financial condition and business.

As an insurance enterprise, we are in the business of binding certain risks. The employees who conduct our business, including executive officers and other members of
management, underwriters and other employees, do so in part by making decisions and choices that involve exposing us to risk. These include decisions, such as setting
underwriting guidelines and standards, product design and pricing, determining which business opportunities to pursue and other decisions. We endeavor, in the design and
implementation of our compensation programs and practices, to avoid giving our employees incentives to take excessive risks. Employees may, however, take such risks
regardless of the structure of our compensation programs and practices. Similarly, although we employ controls and procedures designed to monitor employees’ business decisions
and prevent them from taking excessive risks, these controls and procedures may not be effective. If our employees take excessive risks, the impact of those risks could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and business.

In addition, while we generally do not delegate underwriting and binding authority, we do distribute an insurance product through a program administrator in connection with
a risk purchasing group to whom we have issued a master policy. See “Business—Marketing and Distribution” for additional information. While this program administrator is
contractually obligated to follow our underwriting guidelines, it can issue individual certificates of insurance to policyholders without receiving our approval for each individual
risk. If this program administrator takes excessive risks and fails to comply with our underwriting guidelines and the terms of its appointment, we could be bound on a particular
risk or number of risks that were not anticipated when we developed the insurance product or estimated our potential losses and loss adjustment expenses. Such actions and
excessive risk taking by the program administrator could adversely affect our results of operations.
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If actual renewals of our existing contracts do not meet expectations, our gross written premiums in future years and our future results of operations could be materially
adversely affected.

In our financial forecasting process, we make assumptions about the rates of renewal of our existing contracts. The insurance and reinsurance industries have historically been
cyclical businesses with intense competition, often based on price. If actual renewals do not meet expectations or if we choose not to write renewals because of pricing conditions
or terms, our gross written premiums in future years and our future operations could be materially adversely affected.

Cyber threats are an evolving risk area affecting not only the specific cyber insurance market but also the liability coverage we provide which may adversely affect us.

We have introduced processes to manage our potential liabilities as a result of specific cyber coverage and other coverage we provide to our policyholders. However, given
that cyber is an area where the threat landscape is uncertain and continuing to evolve, there is a risk that increases in the frequency and effectiveness of cyberattacks on our
policyholders could adversely affect (possibly to a material extent) our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. This risk also depends on the measures
the individual policyholders use to protect themselves to keep pace with the emerging threat, as well as the development and issuance of policy terms and conditions which are
reactive to the evolving threat landscape.

Changes in accounting practices and future pronouncements may materially affect our reported financial results and business.

Various authoritative accounting or regulatory entities, including the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and the SEC may amend, expand and/or eliminate the
financial accounting or reporting standards that govern the preparation of our consolidated financial statements or could reverse their previous interpretations or positions on how
various financial accounting and/or reporting standards should be applied. Various FASB and SEC proposals are pending and such proposals are subject to change. Developments
in accounting practices may require us to incur considerable additional expenses to comply, particularly if we are required to prepare information relating to prior periods for
comparative purposes or to apply the new requirements retroactively. The impact of changes in current accounting practices and future pronouncements cannot be predicted but
may affect the calculation of net income, total mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity and other relevant financial statement line items.

BICI is required to comply with the Statutory Accounting Principles (“SAP”). SAP and various components of SAP are subject to constant review by the NAIC and its task
forces and committees, as well as state insurance departments, in an effort to address emerging issues and otherwise improve financial reporting. Various proposals are pending
before committees and task forces of the NAIC, some of which, if enacted and adopted on a state level, could have negative effects on insurance industry participants. The NAIC
continuously examines existing laws and regulations. We cannot predict whether or in what form such reforms will be enacted and, if so, whether the enacted reforms will
positively or negatively affect us.

In addition, the NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures manual provides that state insurance departments may permit insurance companies domiciled therein to depart
from SAP by granting them permitted accounting practices. We cannot predict whether or when the insurance departments of the states of domicile of our competitors may permit
them to utilize advantageous accounting practices that depart from SAP, the use of which is not permitted by the Wisconsin OCI, the insurance regulator of the state of domicile of
BICI. We can give no assurance that future changes to SAP or components of SAP or the grant of permitted accounting practices to its competitors will not have a negative impact
on us.

We may not be able to effectively start up or integrate new product opportunities.

Our ability to grow our business depends, in part, on our development, implementation or acquisition of new insurance products that are profitable and fit within our risk
appetite and business model. New product launches such as environmental coverages through our Casualty division or our Baleen Specialty division, as well as resources to
integrate business acquisitions, are subject to many obstacles, including ensuring we have sufficient
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business and systems processes, determining appropriate pricing, obtaining reinsurance, assessing opportunity costs and regulatory burdens and planning for internal infrastructure
needs. If we cannot accurately assess and overcome these obstacles or we improperly implement new insurance products, our ability to grow profitably will be impaired.

Adverse economic factors, including recession, inflation, periods of high unemployment or lower economic activity could result in the sale of fewer policies than expected
or an increase in the frequency of claims and premium defaults, and even the falsification of claims, or a combination of these effects, which, in turn, could affect our growth
and profitability.

Factors, such as business revenue, economic conditions, the volatility and strength of the capital markets, trade disputes, including the imposition of new or increased tariffs,
and inflation can affect the business and economic environment. These same factors affect our ability to generate revenue and profits. In an economic downturn that is
characterized by higher unemployment, declining spending and reduced corporate revenue, the demand for insurance products is generally adversely affected, which directly
affects our premium levels and profitability. Negative economic factors may also affect our ability to receive the appropriate rate for the risk we insure with our policyholders and
may adversely affect the number of policies we can write, and our opportunities to underwrite profitable business. In an economic downturn, our customers may have less need for
insurance coverage, cancel existing insurance policies, modify their coverage or not renew the policies they hold with us. Existing policyholders may exaggerate or even falsify
claims to obtain higher claims payments. In addition, if certain segments of the economy, such as the construction segments, were to significantly change, it could adversely affect
our results. These outcomes would reduce our underwriting profit to the extent these factors are not reflected in the rates we charge. Given our limited operating history, we have
not experienced the inflationary impacts on our claims or investments that many other insurance companies may have experienced with respect to historical losses or investment
portfolios with longer histories. However, given the recent inflationary pressures, we seek to set our rates at a level which we believe will reflect the anticipated impacts of
inflation. In addition, certain lines of business, including our Excess Projects and Primary Projects lines of business within our Casualty division, have seen fewer projects
commence as a result of recent inflationary pressures. The impact of inflation is generally felt most in policies with longer durations and where the claims take a longer time to
settle. Policies written on an occurrence form do see claims being notified under policies that were written years ago; the delay between the policy period and the notification of
claims exposes us to the impact of inflation. Another way we are affected is by the length of time between the claim being notified and the claim being paid. A multi-year
construction project with a period built in to report construction defects may be more exposed to inflation than a Cyber ransomware attack where the claim notice may be made
almost immediately and the claim may be settled in months. As a general matter, casualty claims take longer to develop than claims for property insurance, which we do not
currently write, and as a result, the impacts of inflation on casualty claims is generally greater than on property claims.

While the P&C industry is generally currently experiencing a hard market, the insurance business is historically cyclical in nature, which may affect our financial
performance and cause our operating results to vary from quarter to quarter and may not be indicative of future performance.

Historically, insurance carriers have experienced significant fluctuations in operating results due to competition, frequency and severity of catastrophic events, levels of
capacity, adverse litigation trends, regulatory constraints, general economic conditions and other factors. The supply of insurance is related to prevailing prices, the level of insured
losses and the level of capital available to the industry that, in turn, may fluctuate in response to changes in rates of return on investments being earned in the insurance industry.
As aresult, the insurance business historically has been a cyclical industry characterized by periods of intense price competition due to excessive underwriting capacity (soft
market cycle) as well as periods when shortages of capacity increased premium levels (hard market cycle). Demand for insurance depends on numerous factors, including the
frequency and severity of catastrophic events, levels of capacity, the introduction of new capital providers and general economic conditions. All of these factors fluctuate and may
contribute to price declines generally in the insurance industry.

Although an individual insurance company’s financial performance depends on its own specific business characteristics, the profitability of most P&C companies tends to
follow this cyclical market pattern with higher gross written premium growth and improved profitability during hard market cycles. Further, this cyclical market pattern can be
more pronounced in the E&S market than in the standard insurance market. When the standard
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insurance market hardens, the E&S market typically hardens, and growth in the E&S market can be significantly more rapid than growth in the standard insurance market.
Similarly, when conditions begin to soften, many customers that were previously driven into the E&S market may return to the admitted market, exacerbating the effects of rate
decreases on our financial results.

While the P&C industry is currently in an overall hard market cycle and it has been reported that the P&C market has been hard for the past several years, our business lines
may not be affected equally. We believe current conditions have more strongly affected our Casualty division, compared to our Healthcare Liability division which is experiencing
more mixed conditions across its business lines and our Professional Liability division which has seen some softening of rates, particularly in risk management and public
directors and officers line of business including financial institutions, after a couple years of significant rate increases.

We cannot predict the timing or duration of changes in the market cycle because the cyclicality is due in large part to the actions of our competitors and general economic
factors. As a result, our operating results are subject to fluctuation due to a number of factors, including the general economic conditions in the markets where we operate, the
frequency of occurrence or severity of catastrophe or other insured events, fluctuating interest rates, claims exceeding our loss reserves, competition in our industry, deviations
from expected premium retention rates of our existing policies and contracts, adverse investment performance and the cost of reinsurance coverage.

Performance of our investment portfolio is subject to a variety of investment risks that may adversely affect our financial results.

Our results of operations depend, in part, on the performance of our investment portfolio. We seek to maintain a diversified portfolio of fixed income investments that is
managed by a third-party investment management firm, NEAM, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway Inc., in accordance with our investment policy and
strategy that is reviewed and approved by our board of directors on a regular basis. However, our investments are subject to general economic conditions, volatility and market
risks as well as risks inherent to specific securities. Our primary market risk exposures are to changes in interest rates and credit spreads. See “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.”

Our investment portfolio consists almost entirely of cash, cash equivalents and investment-grade fixed-income securities. Although interest rates have slightly decreased
recently, they have increased significantly since 2021.As rate increases cease or decline, a lower interest rate environment could place pressure on our net investment income,
particularly as it relates to these securities and short-term investments, which, in turn, may adversely affect our results of operations. Conversely, increases in interest rates could
cause the values of our fixed income securities portfolios to decline, with the magnitude of the decline depending on the duration of securities included in our portfolio and the
amount by which interest rates increase. Some fixed income securities have call or prepayment options, which create possible reinvestment risk in declining rate environments.
Other fixed income securities, such as mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities, carry prepayment risk, or, in a rising interest rate environment, may not prepay as quickly as
expected.

All of our fixed maturity securities are subject to credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that certain investments may default or become impaired due to deterioration in the financial
condition of one or more issuers of the securities we hold, or due to deterioration in the financial condition of an insurer that guarantees an issuer’s payments on such investments.
Downgrades in the credit ratings of fixed maturity securities (where rated) could also have a significant negative effect on the market valuation of such securities.

The above market and credit risks could reduce our net investment income and result in realized investment losses. Our investment portfolio is subject to increased valuation
uncertainties when investment markets are illiquid. The valuation of investments is more subjective when markets are illiquid, thereby increasing the risk that the estimated fair
value (i.e., the carrying amount) of the securities we hold in our portfolio do not reflect prices at which actual transactions would occur.
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Risks for all types of securities are managed through the application of our investment policy, which establishes investment parameters that include, but are not limited to,
allocation of investment in certain types of securities, duration targets and minimum levels of credit quality, which we believe are within applicable guidelines established by the
NAIC and comply with Wisconsin insurance laws and regulations governing investments.

Although we seek to preserve our capital, we cannot be certain that our investment objectives will be achieved, and results may vary substantially over time. In addition,
although we seek to employ investment strategies that are not correlated with our insurance and reinsurance exposures, losses in our investment portfolio may occur at the same
time as underwriting losses and, therefore, exacerbate the adverse effect of the losses on us.

Pandemics, geopolitical and social events, severe weather conditions, including the effects of climate change and catastrophes, as well as man-made event events may
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our business is exposed to the risk of pandemics, outbreaks, public health crises and geopolitical and social events, including cyber warfare, and their related effects.
Notwithstanding policy terms and conditions intended to preclude certain coverage for virus-related claims, court decisions and governmental actions may challenge the validity of
any exclusions or our interpretation of how such terms and conditions operate. Courts have already challenged the applicability of war exclusions with respect to nation-state-led
cyber attacks. If pandemics, outbreaks or geopolitical and other events occur or re-occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows may be materially
adversely affected.

In addition, although we do not currently write property insurance, our insureds are exposed to the risk of severe weather conditions, earthquakes and man-made catastrophes.
Catastrophes can be caused by various events, including natural events such as severe winter weather, tornadoes, windstorms, earthquakes, hailstorms, severe thunderstorms and
fires, or man-made events such as explosions, war, terrorist attacks and riots. Over the past several years, changing weather patterns and climatic conditions, such as global
warming, have added to the unpredictability and frequency of natural disasters in certain parts of the world, including the markets in which we operate. Climate change may
increase the frequency and severity of extreme weather events. This effect has led to conditions in the ocean and atmosphere, including warmer-than-average sea-surface
temperatures and low wind shear that increase hurricane activity. The occurrence of a natural disaster could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations. Additionally, any increased frequency and severity of such weather events, including hurricanes, may have unanticipated impacts on our insureds and therefore
could have a material adverse effect on our ability to predict, quantify, reinsure and manage risk and may materially increase our losses resulting from such events.

Risks Related to Laws and Regulation

We are subject to extensive regulation, which may adversely affect our ability to achieve our business objectives. In addition, if we fail to comply with these regulations,
we may be subject to penalties, including fines, suspensions, revoking licenses, orders to cease and desist operations and criminal prosecution, which may adversely affect our
financial condition and results of operations.

Regulatory authorities in the states or countries in which our operating subsidiaries conduct business may require individual or company licensing to act as producers, brokers,
agents, third-party administrators, managing general agents, reinsurance intermediaries, or adjusters. Insurance is required to be written through licensed agents and brokers. Under
the laws of most states in the United States, regulatory authorities have relatively broad discretion with respect to granting, renewing and revoking producers’, brokers’ and agents’
licenses to transact business in such state. The operating terms may vary according to the licensing requirements of the particular state, which may require that a firm operate in the
state through a local corporation. Our subsidiaries must comply with laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which they do business. In states in which we operate on a non-
admitted basis, surplus lines brokers generally are required to certify that a certain number of licensed admitted insurers had been offered and declined to write a particular risk
prior to placing that risk with us or that the coverage is otherwise unavailable from an admitted carrier.
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Our insurance company subsidiary, BICI, is subject to extensive regulation in Wisconsin, its state of domicile, and to a lesser degree, any other states in which it may operate.
Most insurance regulations are designed to protect the interests of insurance policyholders, as opposed to the interests of investors or stockholders. These regulations generally are
administered by a department of insurance in each state and relate to, among other things, capital and surplus requirements, investment and underwriting limitations, affiliate
transactions, dividend limitations, changes in control, solvency and a variety of other financial and non-financial aspects of our business. Significant changes in these laws and
regulations, or how insurance departments interpret and enforce such laws and regulations, could further limit our discretion or make it more expensive to conduct our business.
State insurance regulators also conduct periodic examinations of the affairs of insurance and reinsurance companies and require the filing of annual and other reports relating to
financial condition, holding company issues and other matters. These regulatory requirements may impose timing and expense constraints that could adversely affect our ability to
achieve some or all of our business objectives.

We are subject to the insurance holding company laws of Wisconsin, which require BICI to register with the Wisconsin OCI and furnish information concerning the
operations of companies within the holding company system that may materially affect the operations, management or financial condition of BICI. These statutes also provide that
all transactions among members of a holding company system must be fair and reasonable and, if material or of specified types, such transactions require prior notice and approval
or non-disapproval by the Wisconsin OCI. These prior notification and approval requirements may result in business delays and additional business expenses. If we fail to comply
with such requirements or fail to comply with other applicable insurance regulations in Wisconsin, we may be subject to fines and penalties imposed by the Wisconsin OCI.

In addition, individual states may impose different requirements on an insurance company’s ability to cancel a policy which may extend the period during which we are
exposed to risk for a policy or individual states may have differing interpretations of contractual language or require specific wordings which may also expose us to additional risk.
Individual states may also prohibit certain types of insurance which could limit the lines of business we may be able to write and adversely affect our ability to achieve some or all
of our business objectives.

State insurance regulators also have broad discretion to suspend, deny or revoke licenses for various reasons, including the violation of regulations. In some instances, where
there is uncertainty as to applicability, we follow practices based on our interpretations of regulations or practices that we believe generally to be followed by the industry. These
practices may turn out to be different from the interpretations of regulatory authorities. If we do not have the requisite licenses and approvals or do not comply with applicable
regulatory requirements, state insurance regulators could preclude or temporarily suspend us from carrying on some or all of our activities in their state or could otherwise penalize
us. This could adversely affect our ability to operate our business. Further, changes in the level of regulation of the insurance industry or changes in laws or regulations themselves
or interpretations by regulatory authorities could interfere with our operations and require us to bear additional costs of compliance, which could adversely affect our ability to
operate our business.

State insurance regulators require insurance companies to maintain specified levels of statutory capital and surplus. Insurance regulators have broad powers to prevent
reduction of statutory surplus to inadequate levels. BICI is subject to risk-based capital requirements and other minimum capital and surplus restrictions imposed under Wisconsin
law. Wisconsin has largely adopted the model legislation promulgated by the NAIC pertaining to risk-based capital. These requirements establish the minimum amount of risk-
based capital necessary for a company to support its overall business operations. It identifies P&C insurers that may be inadequately capitalized by looking at certain inherent risks
of each insurer’s assets and liabilities and its mix of net written premium. Insurers falling below a calculated threshold may be subject to varying degrees of regulatory action,
including supervision, rehabilitation or liquidation. In addition to these requirements under Wisconsin law, BICI is also subject to certain surplus and risk-based capital
requirements under a company-specific stipulation and order from the Wisconsin OCI (the “Wisconsin OCI Stipulation and Order”). Pursuant to the Wisconsin OCI Stipulation
and Order, BICI is required to (i) have a compulsory surplus equal to the greater of (A) $3.0 million or (B) the sum of (x) 50.0% of gross written premiums for medical
malpractice insurance (which business is written as part of our Healthcare Liability division) and (y) 20.0% of gross written premiums for all other covered lines of insurance, (ii)
maintain surplus in excess of its required security surplus standard under Wisconsin law and (iii) maintain a ratio of total adjusted capital to authorized control level risk-based
capital of not less than 400.0%. See “Regulation—Restrictions
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on Paying Dividends” for additional information. Failure to maintain surplus and risk-based capital at the required levels could adversely affect the ability of BICI to maintain the
regulatory authority necessary to conduct our business. In addition, state surplus lines laws, or laws pertaining to non-admitted insurance business, require that surplus lines
brokers comply with diligent search/exempt commercial purchaser laws and affidavit/document filing requirements, as well as requiring the collection and paying of any taxes,
stamping fees, assessment fees and other applicable charges on such business. E&S businesses, such as the Company, are often subject to special licensing, surplus lines tax and/or
due diligence requirements by the home state of the insured. Fines for failing to comply with these surplus lines requirements, specifically for failing to comply with the surplus
lines licensing or due diligence requirements, vary by state but can range to several million dollars.

In addition, the NAIC has developed the IRIS, which is part of a collection of analytical tools designed to provide state insurance regulators with an integrated approach to
screening and analyzing the financial condition of insurance companies operating in their respective states. IRIS is intended to assist state insurance regulators in targeting
resources to those insurers in greatest need of regulatory attention. IRIS consists of two phases: statistical and analytical. In the statistical phase, the NAIC database generates key
financial ratio results based on financial information obtained from insurers’ annual statutory statements. The analytical phase is a review of the annual statements, financial ratios
and other automated solvency tools. The primary goal of the analytical phase is to identify companies that appear to require immediate regulatory attention. A ratio result falling
outside the usual range of IRIS ratios is not considered a failing result; rather, unusual values are viewed as part of the regulatory early monitoring system. Insurance regulators
will generally begin to investigate, monitor or make inquiries of an insurance company if four or more of the company’s ratios fall outside the usual ranges. Although these
inquiries can take many forms, regulators may require the insurance company to provide additional written explanation as to the causes of the particular ratios being outside of the
usual range, the actions being taken by management to produce results that will be within the usual range in future years and what, if any, actions have been taken by the insurance
regulator of the insurers’ state of domicile. Regulators are not required to take action if an IRIS ratio is outside of the usual range, but depending upon the nature and scope of the
particular insurance company’s exception (for example, if a particular ratio indicates an insurance company has insufficient capital) regulators may act to reduce the amount of
insurance the company can write or revoke the insurer’s certificate of authority and may even place the company under supervision.

We may become subject to additional government or market regulation, which may have a material adverse impact on our business.

Our business could be adversely affected by changes in state laws, including those relating to asset and reserve valuation requirements, surplus requirements, limitations on
investments and dividends, enterprise risk and risk-based capital requirements, the use of new technology (i.e. artificial intelligence), and, at the federal level, by laws and
regulations that may affect certain aspects of the insurance industry, including proposals for preemptive federal regulation. The U.S. federal government generally has not directly
regulated the insurance industry except for certain areas of the market, such as insurance for flood, nuclear and terrorism risks. However, the federal government has undertaken
initiatives or considered legislation in several areas that may affect the insurance industry, including tort reform, corporate governance and the taxation of reinsurance companies.
Further, Dodd-Frank gives the Federal Reserve supervisory authority over certain U.S. financial services companies, including insurance companies, if they are designated as
'systemically important' by a two-thirds vote of a Financial Stability Oversight Council. Although we do not currently believe that we are systemically important, as defined in
Dodd-Frank, Dodd-Frank or additional federal or state regulation potentially adopted in the future could impose significant burdens on us, impact how we conduct our business
and govern our subsidiaries, increase compliance costs, increase the requisite levels of capital needed to operate our subsidiaries, duplicate state regulation, and/or result in a
competitive disadvantage.

We are unable to predict whether any future legislation will be enacted or future regulations adopted, or the effect any such developments may have on our business, financial
condition, or profitability.

34



Table of Contents

Changes in law, including relating to certain perils, could adversely affect our business.

A change in law, including relating to certain perils for which we write insurance or reinsurance, may have a significant impact on our ability to respond to certain events,
including the manner and time frame for processing claims, the development of claim severity or the interpretation of the underlying policies. For example, plaintiff attorneys have
been lobbying states to pass statutes prohibiting insurers from issuing defense within limits policies, particularly in the medical malpractice space, and Nevada has enacted a
statute to that effect. If such a statute were to pass in a jurisdiction in which we operate, that would impede our ability to accurately price such policies. In addition, the statute of
limitations for certain types of claims have been extended in certain states, such as New York through the Adult Survivors Act, and this could retroactively extend the period for
which an insurance company has exposure. Changes in law and practice, including relating to certain perils for which we write insurance or reinsurance, may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Applicable insurance laws may make it difficult to effect a change of control.

Under applicable U.S. state insurance laws and regulations (including the laws of the state of Wisconsin), before a person can acquire control of a U.S. domestic insurer, prior
written approval must be obtained from the insurance commissioner of the state where the insurer is domiciled, or the acquiror must request an Exemption Request or file a
disclaimer of affiliation and/or control (a “Disclaimer”) with the insurance department of such state and obtain approval thereon. Such approval would be contingent upon the state
insurance commissioner’s consideration of a number of factors, including among others, the financial strength of the proposed acquiror, the integrity and management of the
acquiror’s board of directors and executive officers, the acquiror’s plans for the future operations of the domestic insurer, and any anti-competitive results that may arise from the
consummation of the acquisition of control. Wisconsin insurance laws and regulations pertaining to changes of control would apply to both the direct and indirect acquisition of
ten percent or more of the voting stock of a Wisconsin-domiciled insurer (or of less than ten percent of the voting stock if there is other indicia of control). Accordingly, the
acquisition of ten percent or more of our common stock would be considered an indirect change of control of BICI and would trigger the applicable change of control filing
requirements under Wisconsin insurance laws and regulations, absent the filing of an Exemption Request or Disclaimer and its acceptance by the Wisconsin OCI. These
requirements may discourage potential acquisition proposals and may delay, deter or prevent a change of control of us, including through transactions that some or all of our
stockholders might consider to be desirable.

Risks Related to Our Operations

We could be adversely affected by the loss of one or more key personnel or by an inability to attract and retain qualified personnel, including failure to develop a
succession plan for Stephen Sills, our founder and Chief Executive Officer, or other members of our senior management team.

We depend on our ability to attract and retain experienced and seasoned personnel who are knowledgeable about our business. Our senior management team, including our
founder and Chief Executive Officer, Stephen Sills, plays an important role in our strategic direction, product development, broker partnership, corporate culture and our continued
success as an organization. While we generally do not enter into employment agreements with our executive officers and other key personnel, we have entered into an employment
agreement with Stephen Sills, however, Stephen Sills may terminate his agreement after the third anniversary of our initial public offering on at least 90 days’ notice. The loss of
Stephen Sills or other members of our senior management team could materially adversely impact our business.

We could be adversely affected if we fail to adequately plan for the succession of our senior leaders and key executives. Our current succession plans and employment
arrangements with certain key executives do not guarantee their services will continue to be available to us.

The pool of talent from which we actively recruit is limited and may fluctuate based on market dynamics specific to our industry and independent of overall economic
conditions. As such, higher demand for employees having the desired skills and expertise could lead to increased compensation expectations for existing and prospective
personnel, making it difficult for us to retain and recruit key personnel and maintain labor costs at
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desired levels. To protect our confidential information and customer goodwill as well as to minimize the risk of disruption to our business in the event of a departure, our key
employees, including our executive officers, are subject to non-compete and non-solicitation provisions that generally apply during, and extend for six to twelve months following
the termination of, their employment; although, not all jurisdictions permit such non-compete agreements, and regardless of the jurisdiction, our key personnel could still pursue
employment opportunities with other parties, including, with any of our competitors and there are no assurances that our non-compete agreements with any such key personnel
would be enforceable in a cost effective manner, if at all. Should any of our key personnel terminate their employment with us, or if we are unable to retain and attract talented
personnel, we may be unable to maintain our current competitive position in the specialized markets in which we operate, which could adversely affect our results of operations.

We could suffer security breaches, loss of data, cyberattacks and other information technology failures, and are subject to laws and regulations concerning data privacy
and security that are continually evolving. Actual or suspected information technology failures or failure to comply with applicable law could disrupt our operations, damage
our reputation and adversely affect our business, operations and financial results.

As a company with a remote-friendly operating model, our business is highly dependent on our information technology and telecommunications systems, including our
underwriting systems. We rely on these systems to interact with brokers and insureds, to underwrite business, to prepare policies and process premiums, to perform actuarial and
other modeling functions, to process claims and make claims payments and to prepare internal and external financial statements. We also rely on our information and
telecommunications systems for employees to interact with each other within the company, as most employees work on a remote basis a majority of their time as opposed to in
physical offices. Some of these systems may include or rely on third-party systems provided by third party service providers and/or not located on our premises or under our
control.

We and our service providers face numerous and evolving cybersecurity risks that threaten the confidentiality, integrity and availability of systems and confidential
information, including vulnerabilities that could be exploited by threat actors in commercial software that is integrated into our (or our suppliers’ or service providers’) IT systems,
products or services. The risk of a data security breach or a disruption has generally increased in frequency, intensity and sophistication. Techniques used to compromise or
sabotage systems change frequently, may originate from less regulated and remote areas of the world and be difficult to detect and generally are not recognized until launched
against a target. Events such as natural catastrophes, terrorist attacks, industrial accidents, computer viruses, ransomware, a security breach by an unauthorized person, employee
error, malfeasance, faulty password management or other irregularity and other cyber-attacks may cause our systems to fail or be inaccessible for extended periods of time. We
have implemented management, operational, and technical security controls designed to identify, protect, detect, respond to and recover from breaches of security, such as business
contingency plans and other reasonable plans to protect our systems, whether housed internally or through third-party cloud services. In addition, while we generally monitor
vendor risk, including the security and stability of our critical vendors, we may fail to properly assess and understand the risks and costs involved in the third-party relationships.
However, we cannot guarantee that these measures will be effective and sustained or repeated system failures or service denials could severely limit our ability to write and
process new and renewal business, provide customer service, pay claims in a timely manner or otherwise operate in the ordinary course of business. Even if the vulnerabilities that
may lead to the foregoing are identified, we may be unable to adequately investigate or remediate due to attackers using tools and techniques that are designed to circumvent
controls, avoid detection and remove or obfuscate forensic evidence.

As have many companies, we, and our third-party service providers, have been impacted by breaches in the past and will likely continue to experience cybersecurity incidents
of varying degrees. Any such event may result in operational disruptions as well as unauthorized access to, the disclosure of, or loss of our proprietary information or our
customers’ data and information, which in turn may result in legal claims, regulatory scrutiny and liability, reputational damage, the incurrence of costs to eliminate or mitigate
further exposure, an increase in our annual cybersecurity insurance premiums, the loss of customers or affiliated advisors, or other damage to our business. In addition, the trend
toward general public notification of such incidents could exacerbate the harm to our business, financial condition and results of operations. Even if we successfully protect our
technology infrastructure and the confidentiality of sensitive data, we could suffer harm to our business and reputation if attempted security breaches are publicized. We cannot be
certain that advances in criminal capabilities, discovery of new vulnerabilities,
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attempts to exploit vulnerabilities in our systems, data thefts, physical system or network break-ins, inappropriate access, or other developments will not compromise or breach the
technology or other security measures protecting the networks and systems used in connection with our business.

In addition, as part of our normal business activities, we handle information related to individuals including, but not limited to, employees, claimants, individual third-party
brokers or agents and individual vendors. As such, we are subject to various federal, state and local laws, regulations and industry standards. The regulatory environment
surrounding information security and privacy is increasingly demanding, with frequent imposition of new and changing requirements that are subject to differing interpretations. In
the United States, there are numerous federal and state data privacy and security laws, rules and regulations governing the collection, use, storage, sharing, transmission and other
processing of personal information, including federal and state data privacy laws, data breach notification laws and consumer protection laws.

Any failure or perceived failure by us to comply with laws, regulations, policies or regulatory guidance relating to privacy or data security may result in governmental
investigations and enforcement actions, litigation, fines and penalties or adverse publicity, and could cause our customers and consumers to lose trust in us, which could have an
adverse effect on our reputation and business.

Operational risk exposures, such as human or systems failures (including from third-party vendor arrangements), are inherent in our business and may result in losses.

Operational exposures and losses can result from, among other things, errors, failure to document transactions properly or to obtain proper internal authorization, failure to
comply with regulatory requirements, information technology failures, bad faith delayed claims payment, fraud and external events, such as political unrest, state emergency or
industrial actions which could result in operational outage. Any such outage could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

We also rely on third parties for information technology and application systems and infrastructure. Such information technology and application systems and infrastructure
are an important part of our underwriting process and our ability to compete successfully. We also license certain of our key systems and data from third parties and cannot be
certain that we will have continuous access to such third-party systems and data, or those of comparable service providers, or that our information technology or application
systems and infrastructure will operate as intended. Further, the third parties’ programs and systems may be subject to defects, failures, material updates, or interruptions, including
those caused by worms, viruses or power failures.

Failures in any of these systems could result in mistakes made in the confirmation or settlement of transactions, or in transactions not being properly booked, evaluated, priced
or accounted for or delays in the payment of claims. Any such eventuality could cause us to suffer, among other things, financial loss, disruption of business, liability to third
parties, regulatory intervention and reputational damage, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, or prospects.

We may change our underwriting guidelines or our strategy without your approval.

Our management has the authority to change our underwriting guidelines or our strategy without notice to our stockholders and without stockholder approval. As a result, we
may make fundamental changes to our operations without stockholder approval, which could result in our pursuing a strategy or implementing underwriting guidelines that may be
materially different from the strategy or underwriting guidelines described in the section entitled “Business” or elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We may not be able to manage our growth effectively.

We intend to grow our business in the future, which could require additional capital, systems development and skilled personnel. However, we must be able to meet our
capital needs, expand our systems and our internal controls effectively, allocate our human resources optimally, identify, hire, train and develop qualified employees and
effectively incorporate the components of any business we may acquire in our effort to achieve growth. The failure
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to manage our growth effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Any future acquisitions, strategic investments or new platforms could expose us to further risks or turn out to be unsuccessful.

From time to time, we may pursue growth through acquisitions and strategic investments in businesses or new underwriting or marketing platforms. The negotiation of
potential acquisitions or strategic investments as well as the integration of an acquired business, personnel or underwriting or marketing platforms could result in a substantial
diversion of management resources and the emergence of other risks, such as potential losses from unanticipated litigation, a higher level of claims than is reflected in reserves,
loss of key personnel in acquired businesses or an inability to generate sufficient revenue to offset acquisition costs.

Our ability to manage our growth through acquisitions, strategic investments or new or alternative platforms, such as our Baleen Specialty division, will depend, in part, on
our success in addressing such risks. While we are not currently contemplating any such acquisitions or strategic investments, our nimble approach to capital management based
on opportunities presented and sought out means that we may opportunistically from time to time pursue such acquisitions, new platforms or strategic investment strategies. Any
failure by us to implement our acquisitions, new platforms or strategic investment strategies effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects.

The effects of litigation on our business are uncertain and could have an adverse effect on our business.

As is typical in our industry, we continually face risks associated with litigation of various types, including disputes relating to insurance claims under our policies, disputes
with our reinsurers, as well as other general commercial and corporate litigation. Litigation and other proceedings may also include complaints from or litigation by customers or
reinsurers related to alleged breaches of contract or otherwise. Although we are not currently involved in any out-of-the-ordinary litigation with our customers, reinsurers or our
current or former employees, other members of the insurance industry are the target of class action lawsuits and other types of litigation, including employment-related litigation,
some of which involve claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts, and the outcomes of which are unpredictable. This litigation is based on a variety of issues, including
insurance and claim settlement practices. If we were to be involved in litigation and it was determined adversely, it could require us to pay significant damage amounts or to
change aspects of our operations, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial results. We are also subject to various contingencies. For example, we may
owe certain employment taxes, penalties and interests related to 2021, 2022, 2023, and certain employment taxes for 2024 for an employee domiciled in the United Kingdom.
‘While we have accrued certain amounts representing our best estimate of taxes, interests and penalties owed, such accruals may be insufficient and we may be subject to additional
charges. Even claims without merit can be time-consuming and costly to defend and may divert management’s attention and resources away from our business and adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Additionally, routine lawsuits over claims that are not individually material could in the future become material if
aggregated with a substantial number of similar lawsuits. In addition to increasing costs, a significant volume of customer complaints or litigation could adversely affect our brand
and reputation, regardless of whether such allegations are valid or whether we are liable. Accordingly, we cannot predict with any certainty whether we will be involved in such
litigation in the future or what impact such litigation would have on our business.

Loss of key vendor relationships or failure of a vendor to protect our data or confidential and proprietary information could affect our operations.

We rely on services and products provided by many vendors in the United States and abroad. These include, for example, vendors of computer hardware and software and
vendors and/or outsourcing of services such as human resource benefits management services and investment management services. In the event that any vendor suffers a
bankruptcy or otherwise becomes unable to continue to provide products or services, or fails to protect our confidential, proprietary, or other information, we may suffer
operational impairments and financial losses. In addition, while we generally monitor vendor risk, including the security and stability of our critical vendors, we may
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fail to properly assess and understand the risks and costs involved in the third-party relationships, and our financial condition and results of operations could be materially and
adversely affected.

‘We anticipate that we will continue to rely on third-party software in the future. Although we believe that there are commercially reasonable alternatives to the third-party
software we currently license, this may not always be the case, or it may be difficult or costly to replace. In addition, integration of new third-party software may require
significant work and require substantial investment of our time and resources. Our use of additional or alternative third-party software would require us to enter into license
agreements with third parties, which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms or at all. Many of the risks associated with the use of third-party software cannot be
eliminated, and these risks could negatively affect our business.

We may fail or be unable to protect our intellectual property rights, which could adversely affect our brand and business.

Our success and ability to compete depend in part on our intellectual property, which includes our rights in our brand and our proprietary technology used in certain of our
product lines. We primarily rely on trademarks, copyrights and trade secret laws, as well as contractual restrictions in our confidentiality and license agreements with our
employees, customers, service providers, partners and other third parties with which we have a relationship, to protect our intellectual property rights. However, the steps we take
to protect our intellectual property may be inadequate. Our efforts to enforce our intellectual property rights may be met with defenses, counterclaims and countersuits attacking
the validity and enforceability and scope of our intellectual property rights. Our failure to secure, protect and enforce our intellectual property rights could adversely affect our
brand and adversely impact our business. These agreements may not adequately secure our intellectual property rights and may be breached, and we may not have adequate
remedies for such breach. While we use reasonable efforts to protect our trade secrets, our employees, customers, service providers and other third parties with which we have a
relationship may unintentionally or willfully disclose our proprietary information to competitors.

Our limited operating history may make it difficult to evaluate our current business and future prospects.

We founded our business in September 2020. Our limited operating history may make it difficult for you to evaluate our current business and our future prospects. We have
encountered and will continue to encounter risks and difficulties frequently experienced by growing companies in rapidly changing industries, including increasing and unforeseen
expenses as we continue to grow our business. If we do not manage these risks successfully, our business may be harmed. Further, we may be subject to claims by third parties
alleging that we are infringing, misappropriating or otherwise violating their intellectual property rights. Any litigation or claims, whether or not valid, could result in substantial
costs, negative publicity and diversion of resources and management attention.

Risks Related to Liquidity and Access to Capital
We could be forced to sell investments to meet our liquidity requirements.

We invest the premiums we receive from our insureds until they are needed to pay policyholder claims. Consequently, we seek to manage the duration of our investment
portfolio based on the duration of our losses and loss adjustment expense reserves to provide sufficient liquidity and avoid having to liquidate investments to fund claims. Risks
such as inadequate losses and loss adjustment expense reserves, unfavorable trends in litigation, or mismanagement of the investment portfolio’s duration or other liquidity needs
could potentially result in the need to sell investments to fund these liabilities. We may not be able to sell our investments at favorable prices or at all. Sales could result in
significant realized losses depending on the conditions of the general market, interest rates and credit issues with individual securities.
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Because we are a holding company and sub. lly all or a ial portion of our operations are conducted by our insurance and service company subsidiaries, our
ability to achieve liquidity at the holding company, including the ability to pay dividends and service our debt obligations, depends on our ability to obtain cash dividends or
other permitted payments from our insurance and service company subsidiaries.

The continued operation and growth of our business will require substantial capital. Accordingly, we do not intend to declare and pay cash dividends on shares of our common
stock in the foreseeable future. See “Dividend Policy.” Because we are a holding company with no substantial business operations of our own, our ability to pay dividends to
stockholders and meet our debt payment obligations is largely dependent on dividends and other distributions from BICI and our other operating companies. BICI’s ability to pay
dividends is restricted under the insurance laws and regulations of its domiciliary state and may only be paid from unassigned surplus. Under the insurance laws of Wisconsin, an
insurer may make an ordinary dividend payment if its surplus as regards to policyholders, following such dividend, is reasonable in relation to its outstanding liabilities, is
adequate to its financial needs, and does not exceed the insurer’s unassigned surplus. See “Regulation—Restrictions on Paying Dividends” for additional information. State
insurance regulators require insurance companies to maintain specified levels of statutory capital and surplus. Insurance regulators have broad powers to prevent reduction of
statutory surplus to inadequate levels, and there is no assurance that dividends of the maximum amounts calculated under any applicable formula would be permitted. Moreover,
state insurance regulatory authorities that have jurisdiction over the payment of dividends by our insurance company subsidiary may in the future adopt statutory provisions, or
impose additional constraints on BICI, more restrictive than those currently in effect.

Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital
requirements, general business conditions, legal, tax and regulatory limitations, contractual restrictions and other factors that our board of directors considers relevant.
Consequently, in order for investors to realize any future gains on their investment, they may need to sell all or part of their holdings of our common stock after price appreciation,
which may never occur.

We may require additional capital in the future, which may not be available or may only be available on unfavorable terms.

Our future capital requirements depend on many factors, including our ability to write new business successfully and to establish premium rates and reserves at levels
sufficient to cover losses. To the extent that the cash flows provided by our operating activities and investing activities are insufficient to fund future operating requirements and
cover claim losses, we may need to raise additional funds through financings or curtail our growth. Many factors will affect the amount and timing of our capital needs, including
our growth rate and profitability, our claims experience, the availability of reinsurance, market disruptions and other unforeseeable developments. If we need to raise additional
capital, equity or debt financing may not be available at all or may be available only on terms that are not favorable to us. In the case of equity financings, dilution to our
stockholders could result. In the case of debt financings, we may be subject to covenants that restrict our ability to freely operate our business. In any case, such securities may
have rights, preferences and privileges that are senior to those of the shares of common stock offered hereby. In addition, because BICI is considered an affiliate of AFMIC under
Wisconsin insurance regulations and BICI’s business is currently comprised solely of business assumed from AFMIC, BICI’s regulatory capital requirements are lower. BICI’s
regulatory capital requirements under Wisconsin’s insurance regulations would be higher if BICI’s business was assumed from an insurance company that was not an affiliate of
BICI or was written directly with our policyholders. If BICI were to no longer qualify as an affiliate of AFMIC, additional capital would be required in order for BICI to meet its
regulatory capital requirements under Wisconsin insurance regulations. If we cannot obtain adequate capital on favorable terms or at all, we may not have sufficient funds to
implement our operating plans and our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected.
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Our failure to comply with the terms of our credit facility, including as a result of events beyond our control, could result in an event of default that could affect our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The Company has a Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with certain lenders and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, swingline lender and issuing
bank. The Credit Agreement provides for a senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) in the aggregate principal amount of $75 million, which includes a 5 million
sub-facility for letters of credit. If there were an event of default under the Facility, the lenders under the Facility could cause all amounts outstanding with respect to that debt to
be due and payable immediately. Our assets or cash flow may not be sufficient to fully repay borrowing under the Facility if accelerated upon an event of default. Furthermore, if
we are unable to repay, refinance, or restructure our Facility, the lenders under the Facility could proceed against the collateral granted to them to secure such indebtedness, which

could force us into bankruptcy or liquidation. As a result, any default by us on our debt could have a materially adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

Our ability to incur a substantial level of indebtedness may reduce our financial flexibility, affect our ability to operate our business, and divert cash flow from operations
for debt service.

As of December 31, 2024, we had no outstanding indebtedness, and $75.0 million of undrawn availability, under the Facility.

‘We may incur substantial indebtedness under the Facility or other debt instruments in the future, and, if we do so, the risks related to our level of indebtedness could increase.
Our future borrowings will require interest payments and will need to be repaid or refinanced, which could require us to divert funds identified for other purposes to debt service
and could create additional cash demands or impair our liquidity position and add financial risk. We may also sell additional debt or equity securities to help repay or refinance our
borrowings. We do not know whether we would be able to take any of these actions on a timely basis, on terms satisfactory to us or at all.

Our future level of indebtedness could affect our operations in several ways, including but not limited to the following:
* increase our vulnerability to changes in general economic, industry, and competitive conditions;

require us to dedicate a portion of our cash flow to make payments on our indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund other corporate
purposes;

place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that are less leveraged and therefore potentially more able to take advantage of opportunities that our
level of indebtedness would prevent us from pursuing; and

*  impair our ability to obtain additional financing in the future.

Borrowings under the Facility bear interest at variable rates based on prevailing conditions in the financial markets, and changes to such variable market rates may affect both
the amount of cash we must pay for interest as well as our reported interest expense. Assuming the Facility were to be fully drawn, a 100-basis point increase to the applicable
variable rate of interest would increase the amount of interest expense by $0.75 million per annum. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flows to pay the interest expense on
our debt, future working capital, borrowings, or equity financing may not be available from which to pay or refinance such debt.

In addition, if any of the financial institutions that provide loan commitments to us were to fail, our liquidity could be adversely impacted and we may not be able to obtain

financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, and other purposes. In such event, our ability to operate and compete effectively, and our ability to execute on our
growth strategies, could be adversely affected, which in turn would have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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The Facility contains restrictions on our ability to operate our business and to pursue our business strategies.

The Facility restricts, subject to certain exceptions, among other things, our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to:
* incur additional indebtedness and guarantee indebtedness;

*  prepay, redeem, or repurchase certain debt;

* create or incur liens;

* make investments and loans;

* pay dividends or make other distributions, in respect of, or repurchase or redeem, capital stock;

*  engage in mergers, consolidations, or sales of all or substantially all of our assets;

» sell or otherwise dispose of assets;

+ amend, modify, waive, or supplement certain subordinated indebtedness to the extent such amendments would be materially adverse to the interests of the lenders; and
+  engage in certain transactions with affiliates.

Any future financing arrangements entered into by us or any of our subsidiaries may contain similar restrictions or maintenance covenants. As a result of these covenants and
restrictions, we and our subsidiaries are, and will be, limited in how we conduct our business, and we may be unable to raise additional debt or equity financing to compete
effectively or to take advantage of new business opportunities. The terms of any future indebtedness we or our subsidiaries may incur could include more restrictive covenants. We
cannot guarantee that we will be able to maintain compliance with these covenants in the future and, if we fail to do so, that we will be able to obtain waivers from the lenders
and/or amend the covenants.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

Our costs have increased significantly as a result of operating as a public company, and our management is required to devote substantial time to complying with public
company regulations.

As a public company, we have incurred and expect to continue to incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company. We are
subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), which requires, among other things, that we file with the SEC annual, quarterly
and current reports with respect to our business and financial condition and therefore we need to have the ability to prepare financial statements that comply with all SEC reporting
requirements on a timely basis. In addition, we are or will be subject to other reporting and corporate governance requirements, including certain requirements of and certain
provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder, which impose significant compliance obligations upon us. In particular, we must perform
system and process evaluation and testing of our internal control over financial reporting to allow management and, to the extent that we are no longer an “emerging growth
company” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”), our independent registered public accounting firm to report on the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Our compliance with Section 404 requires that we incur substantial accounting
expense and expend significant management efforts.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the Dodd-Frank Act, as well as related rules subsequently implemented by the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”), have
increased regulation of, and imposed enhanced disclosure and corporate governance requirements on, public companies. Our efforts to comply with these evolving laws,
regulations and standards will increase our operating costs and divert management’s time and attention from revenue-generating activities. Further, if these laws, regulations and
rules were to change substantially in the future, we might be unable to meet new requirements.
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These obligations place significant additional demands on our finance and accounting staff and on our financial accounting and information systems. We may need to hire
additional accounting and financial staff with appropriate public company reporting experience and technical accounting knowledge. Other expenses associated with being a
public company include increases in auditing, accounting and legal fees and expenses; investor relations expenses; increased directors’ fees and director and officer liability
insurance costs; registrar and transfer agent fees and listing fees; as well as other expenses. As a public company, we are required, among other things, to:

»  prepare and file periodic reports and distribute other stockholder communications, in compliance with the federal securities laws and requirements of the NYSE;
*  define and expand the roles and the duties of our board of directors and its committees;
*  institute more comprehensive compliance and investor relations functions; and

+ evaluate and maintain our system of internal control over financial reporting, and report on management’s assessment thereof, in compliance with rules and regulations of
the SEC and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

We may not be successful in implementing these requirements and implementing them could materially adversely affect our business. These increased costs will decrease our
net income and may require us to reduce costs in other areas of our business or increase the prices of our products or services. For example, we expect these rules and regulations
to make it more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance and we may be required to incur substantial costs to maintain the same or
similar coverage. We cannot predict or estimate the amount or timing of additional costs we may incur to respond to these requirements. The impact of these requirements could
also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our board of directors or board committees or as executive officers.

In addition, if we fail to implement the required controls with respect to our internal accounting and audit functions, our ability to report our results of operations on a timely
and accurate basis could be impaired. If we do not implement the required controls in a timely manner or with adequate compliance, we may be subject to sanctions or
investigation by regulatory authorities, such as the SEC or the NYSE. Any such action could harm our reputation and the confidence of investors in, and clients of, our Company
and could negatively affect our business and cause the price of our shares of common stock to decline.

We are required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. If we are unable to achieve and
maintain effective internal controls, our operating results and financial condition could be harmed and the market price of our common stock may be negatively affected.

As a public company with SEC reporting obligations, we are required to document and test our internal control procedures to satisfy the requirements of Section 404(a) of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which requires annual assessments by management of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting beginning with the annual report for
our fiscal year ending December 31, 2025. We are an emerging growth company, and thus we are exempt from the auditor attestation requirement of Section 404(b) of Sarbanes-
Oxley until such time as we no longer qualify as an emerging growth company. See “—We qualify as an emerging growth company, and any decision on our part to comply with
reduced reporting and disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth companies could make our common stock less attractive to investors.” For further discussion of
these exemptions. Regardless of whether we qualify as an emerging growth company, we will still need to implement substantial internal control systems and procedures in order
to satisfy the reporting requirements under the Exchange Act and applicable requirements.

We cannot assure you that there will not be material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting in the future. Any failure to maintain internal control over
financial reporting could severely inhibit our ability to accurately report our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. If we are unable to conclude that our internal
control over financial reporting is effective, or if our independent registered public accounting firm determines that we have a material weakness in our internal control over
financial reporting, investors may lose
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confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, the market price of our common stock could decline, and we could be subject to sanctions or investigations
by the NYSE, the SEC or other regulatory authorities. Failure to remedy any material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, or to implement or maintain other
effective control systems required of public companies, could also restrict our future access to the capital markets.

We qualify as an emerging growth company, and any decision on our part to comply with reduced reporting and disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth
companies could make our common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” and, for as long as we continue to be an emerging growth company, we currently intend to take advantage of exemptions from various
reporting requirements applicable to other public companies but not to “emerging growth companies,” including, but not limited to, not being required to have our independent
registered public accounting firm audit our internal control over financial reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation in our registration statements, periodic reports and proxy statements and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on
executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. We will cease to be an emerging growth company upon the earliest
of: (i) the last day of the fiscal year in which we have total annual gross revenues of $1.235 billion or more; (ii) the last day of our fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the
date of the completion of our initial public offering; (iii) the date on which we have issued more than $1.0 billion in nonconvertible debt during the previous three years; and (iv)
the date on which we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer under the rules of the SEC.

We cannot predict whether investors will find our common stock less attractive if we choose to rely on these exemptions while we are an emerging growth company. If some
investors find our common stock less attractive as a result of any choices to reduce future disclosure, there may be a less active trading market for our common stock and the price
of our common stock may be more volatile.

Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can also delay adopting new or revised accounting standards until such time as those standards apply to private companies.
We have elected to avail ourselves of this extended transition period and, as a result, we will not be required to adopt new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on
which adoption of such standards is required for other public companies.

You cannot be certain that an active trading market will continue or a specific share price will be established.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol “BOW.” We cannot predict whether an active and liquid trading market will continue for our common stock. If in
the future an active and liquid trading market does not continue, you may have difficulty selling your shares of common stock at an attractive price, or at all. The market price for
our common stock is likely to be volatile.

Our operating results and stock price may be volatile, or may decline regardless of our operating performance, and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Our quarterly operating results are likely to fluctuate in the future. In addition, securities markets worldwide have experienced, and are likely to continue to experience,
significant price and volume fluctuations. This market volatility, as well as general economic, market, or political conditions, could subject the market price of our shares to wide
price fluctuations regardless of our operating performance. You should consider an investment in our common stock to be risky, and you should invest in our common stock only if
you can withstand a significant loss and wide fluctuation in the market value of your investment. The market price of our common stock could be subject to significant fluctuations
in response to the factors described in this “Risk Factors” section and other factors, many of which are beyond our control. Among the factors that could affect our stock price are:

*  market conditions in the broader stock market;

* actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly financial and operating results;
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* introduction of new products or services by us or our competitors;

*  issuance of new or changed securities analysts’ reports or recommendations;

»  results of operations that vary from expectations of securities analysts and investors;

»  short sales, hedging and other derivative transactions in our common stock;

+ guidance, if any, that we provide to the public, any changes in this guidance or our failure to meet this guidance;

»  strategic actions by us or our competitors;

* announcement by us, our competitors or our acquisition targets;

» sales, or anticipated sales, of large blocks of our stock, including by our directors, executive officers and principal stockholders;
» additions or departures in our board of directors, senior management or other key personnel;

» regulatory, legal or political developments;

*  public response to press releases or other public announcements by us, AmFam, or third parties, including our filings with the SEC;
+ litigation and governmental investigations;

* changing economic conditions;

» changes in accounting principles;

* any indebtedness we may incur or securities we may issue in the future;

*  exposure to capital and credit market risks that adversely affect our investment portfolio or our capital resources;

«  changes in our credit ratings; and

»  other events or factors, including those from natural disasters, war, or actors of terrorism or responses to these events.

The securities markets have from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating
performance of particular companies. As a result of these factors, investors in our common stock may not be able to resell their shares at or above the initial offering price. These
broad market fluctuations, as well as general market, economic and political conditions, such as recessions, loss of investor confidence or interest rate changes, may negatively
affect the market price of our common stock.

In addition, the stock markets, including the NYSE, have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to affect the market prices of
equity securities of many companies. If any of the foregoing occurs, it could cause our stock price to fall and may expose us to securities class action litigation that, even if
unsuccessful, could be costly to defend, divert management’s attention and resources, or harm our business.

Substantial future sales of shares of our common stock by existing stockholders, or the perception that those sales may occur, could cause the market price of our
common stock to decline.

As of December 31, 2024, we have an aggregate of approximately 32,662,683 shares of our common stock outstanding. Of these outstanding shares, all of the shares sold in
our IPO and subsequent secondary offering that closed on October 25, 2024 (the “Secondary Offering”) are freely tradable without restriction or further registration under the
Securities Act, unless such shares are held by our directors, executive officers, or any of our affiliates, as
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that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”). As of December 31, 2024, all of our remaining shares of common stock outstanding are “restricted
securities” within the meaning of Rule 144. Restricted securities may not be sold in the public market unless the sale is registered under the Securities Act or an exemption from
registration is available. In connection with our IPO we entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with GPC Fund, AFMIC and our Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to which
GPC Fund, AFMIC and their permitted transferees may require us to register the offer and sale of all or a portion of their shares of our common stock under the Securities Act,
subject to certain customary conditions and exclusions. Sales of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that these sales could occur, could cause the market
price of our common stock to decline and may make it more difficult for us to sell equity or equity-linked securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem necessary or
appropriate.

In connection with each of our IPO and Secondary Offering, our executive officers and directors and certain stockholders, including GPC Fund and AMFIC each agreed to
enter into “lock-up” agreements with the underwriters and thereby were subject to a lock-up periods for each offering, meaning that they and their permitted transferees were not
permitted to sell any shares of our common stock during the agreed upon lock-up periods. These lock-up periods have since expired. Possible sales of our shares previously subject
to those lock-ups in the market now that these agreements have expired could exert significant downward pressure on our stock price.

The Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2024 Plan”) permits us to issue, among other things, stock options, restricted stock units and
restricted stock to eligible employees (including our named executive officers), directors and advisors, as determined by the compensation, nominating and corporate governance
committee of the board of directors. We have filed a registration statement under the Securities Act to cover the issuance of shares upon the exercise of awards granted, and of
shares granted, under the 2024 Plan. As a result, any shares issued under the 2024 Plan will be freely tradable in the public market. If equity securities are granted under the 2024
Plan and it is perceived that they will be sold in the public market, then the price of our common stock could decline.

Also, in the future, we may issue our securities in connection with investments or acquisitions. The amount of shares of our common stock issued in connection with an
investment or acquisition could constitute a material portion of our then outstanding shares of our common stock.

Because we have no current plans to pay cash dividends on our common stock, you may not receive any return on investment unless you sell your shares of common
stock for a price greater than that which you paid for it.

‘We have no current plans to pay cash dividends on our common stock. The declaration, amount and payment of any future dividends will be at the sole discretion of our board
of directors, and will depend on, among other things, general and economic conditions, our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business
conditions, legal, tax and regulatory limitations, contractual restrictions and other factors that our board of directors considers relevant. In addition, our ability to pay dividends on
our capital stock is limited by the terms of the Credit Agreement and may be further restricted under the terms of any future debt or preferred securities or future credit facility. See
“Dividend Policy.”

As a result, you may not receive any return on an investment in our common stock unless you sell our common stock for a price greater than your purchase price.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our stock price and trading volume could
decline.

The trading market for our common stock depends, in part, on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our business and our industry. If
one or more of the analysts who covers us downgrades our common stock or publishes inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our stock price would likely decline.
If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, demand for our common stock could decrease, which could cause our stock price
and trading volume to decline.
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Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documents could delay a change in management and limit our share price.

Certain provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws may have an anti-takeover effect and may delay, defer, or
prevent a merger, acquisition, tender offer, takeover attempt, or other change of control transaction that a stockholder might consider in its best interest, including those attempts
that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares held by our stockholders. These provisions will provide for, among other things:

» aclassified board of directors, subject to a seven-year sunset, as a result of which our board of directors will initially be divided into three classes, with each class serving
for staggered three-year terms;

+ the ability of our board of directors to issue one or more series of preferred stock;

+ advance notice requirements for nominations of directors by stockholders and for stockholders to include matters to be considered at our annual meetings;
» certain limitations on convening special stockholder meetings;

» the removal of directors only for cause; and

+ the required approval of at least 66”% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together
as a single class, to adopt, amend, or repeal certain provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation.

Further, we have opted out of Section 203 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”), but our amended and restated certificate of incorporation
will provide that engaging in any of a broad range of business combinations with any “interested” stockholder (generally defined as any stockholder with 15.0% or more of our
outstanding voting stock and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by such stockholder) for a period of three years following the time on which the
stockholder became an “interested” stockholder is prohibited, subject to certain exceptions (except with respect to GPC Fund and AmFam and any of their respective affiliates and
any of their respective direct or indirect transferees of our common stock).

These anti-takeover provisions could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if the third party’s offer may be considered beneficial by many of our
stockholders. These provisions also may have the effect of preventing changes in our board of directors and may make it more difficult to accomplish transactions that
stockholders may otherwise deem to be in their best interests. As a result, our stockholders may be limited in their ability to obtain a premium for their shares.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or if such court does not have jurisdiction, another
state or the federal courts (as appropriate) located within the State of Delaware) will be the sole and exclusive forum for certain stockholder litigation matters, which could
limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers, employees, or stockholders.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that unless we consent to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware
(or if such court does not have jurisdiction, another state or the federal courts (as appropriate) located within the State of Delaware) shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be
the sole and exclusive forum for any (i) derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Company; (ii) action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any
current or former director, officer, or other employee, or stockholder of the Company to the Company or our stockholders; (iii) action asserting a claim against the Company or any
current or former director or officer of the Company arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL, or our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and
restated bylaws or as to which the DGCL confers jurisdiction on the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware; or (iv) action asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs
doctrine of the State of Delaware. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation further provides that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative
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forum, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the federal district courts of the United States of America will be the exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a
cause of action arising under the federal securities laws of the United States, including any claims under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act. However, Section 22 of the
Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all suits brought to enforce a duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and
regulations thereunder and, accordingly, we cannot be certain that a court would enforce such provision.

Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of our capital stock shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the forum provisions in
our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, except our stockholders will not be deemed to have waived (and cannot waive) compliance with the federal securities laws
and the rules and regulations thereunder. This choice of forum provision may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes
with us or any of our current or former directors, officers, other employees, or stockholders which may discourage lawsuits with respect to such claims. Alternatively, if a court
were to find the choice of forum provision contained in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation to be inapplicable or unenforceable in an action, we may incur
additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions, which could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We are no longer a “controlled company” within the meaning of the NYSE rules. However, we may continue to rely on exemptions from certain corporate governance
requirements during a one-year transition period.

Prior to our IPO, BSHI was 100% owned by BIHL. From the IPO until October 25, 2024, BSHI was a “controlled company” within the meaning of Section 303A of the New
York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual. Following our Secondary Offering, we are no longer a “controlled company”, and will therefore be required to comply with all of
the applicable corporate governance requirements of the NYSE, within the various grace periods provided by Section 303A. As a result, we were required to have at least one
independent director on our Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee upon the closing of the Secondary Offering, a majority of independent directors on
our Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee within 90 days from October 25, 2024, and a fully independent Compensation, Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee and a majority independent board of directors within one year of October 25, 2024. Accordingly, on October 30, 2024, Dr. Ava Schnidman was elected to
the board of directors and further appointed to serve on our Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee on the day of her election to the board. We will also
be required to perform an annual performance evaluation of the Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. We are currently taking advantage of the
“controlled company” exemption and do not have a fully independent Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee or a board of directors composed of a
majority of independent directors. Accordingly, during the transition period, you will not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that are subject to all of
the corporate governance requirements of the NYSE. Furthermore, a change in our board of directors and committee membership may result in a change in our operation
philosophies and deviations from our current corporate strategy.

GPC Fund and AFMIC exercise substantial influence over us, may engage in businesses that compete with us, and your ability to influence matters requiring stockholder
approval may be limited.

As of December 31, 2024, GPC Fund and AFMIC own, in the aggregate, approximately 48.0% of our outstanding common stock. So long as GPC Fund and AFMIC own a
significant amount of our outstanding common stock, GPC Fund and AFMIC may exert significant voting influence over us and our corporate decisions, including any matter
requiring stockholder approval regardless of whether others believe that the matter is in our best interests. For example, GPC Fund and AmFam may exert significant influence
over the vote in any election of directors and any amendment of our certificate of incorporation. In addition, in connection with our IPO, we entered into the Board Nominee
Agreement and the Investor Matters Agreement, which grant GPC Fund and AFMIC respectively rights to nominate individuals to our board of directors.

GPC Fund and AmFam are not restricted from, and may, engage in, invest in or operate businesses that directly compete with ours.
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GPC Fund or AmFam may act in a manner that advances their best interests and not necessarily those of our stockholders, by, among other things:
* delaying, preventing, or deterring a change in control of us;

* entrenching our management or our board of directors; or

+ influencing us to enter into transactions or agreements that are not in the best interests of all stockholders.

The concentration of ownership could deprive stockholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common stock as part of a sale of our company and may
ultimately affect the market price of our common stock.

The track record of our executives may not be indicative of our future growth, profitability and performance.

Stephen Sills has had success starting and running publicly traded companies. However, there is no assurance that his track record will continue and that we will experience
growth, profitability or results similar to any of their prior companies.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY

Risk Management and Strategy

The Company employs a comprehensive, cross-departmental approach designed to continuously identify, assess, and mitigate potential cybersecurity risks. Our cybersecurity
risk management program involves collaboration between our employees, the Information Technology (“IT”) team, and the Information Security (“InfoSec”) team, which is led by
our Chief Information Security Officer (“CISO”). The Company’s cybersecurity policies, standards, and processes are integrated into the Company’s overall risk management
program, and we regularly consider cybersecurity risks in the context of material risks to the Company.

Our cybersecurity risk management program categorizes cybersecurity risks into five distinct areas: identify, protect, detect, respond, and recover, as defined by the National
Institute of Standards and Technology Cybersecurity Framework. We regularly assess the evolving cybersecurity threat landscape, employing a layered cybersecurity strategy that
emphasizes prevention, detection, and mitigation through a variety of technical and operational measures. As part of our cybersecurity risk management program, our information
security program is tailored to address identified risks, while aligning with pertinent business requirements.

Cybersecurity is a shared responsibility across the Company, and all our employees are subject to periodic email phishing simulation campaigns and mandatory quarterly
cybersecurity training to enhance awareness and readiness against potential common cyber threats. Certain roles require additional role-based, specialized cybersecurity training,
such as tabletop exercises to ensure proactive preparation and effective coordination in the event of a security incident. We conduct tabletop exercises annually or as needed to
review our incident response plan, as well as to identify and prioritize opportunities for improvement within our cybersecurity program and associated security controls. To help
protect our data and information systems, we maintain Company-wide cybersecurity policies and procedures regarding encryption standards, antivirus protection, remote access,
multifactor authentication, confidential information, and internet, social media, email, and wireless device usage. Our IT and InfoSec teams review and update such policies and
procedures to adapt to the evolving cybersecurity threat landscape, industry best practices, and regulatory updates. Our CISO conducts thorough reviews of these updates on an
annual basis or as needed to help ensure their continued relevance and effectiveness in safeguarding the Company’s assets and business interests.
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‘We continually seek to update our cybersecurity posture, encompassing end-user awareness training, layered defenses, critical asset identification and protection, enhanced
monitoring and alerting. We engage with third-party experts to evaluate the efficacy of our security measures which includes network penetration testing. We also regularly
evaluate cybersecurity risks associated with our use of third-party service providers, conducting an annual review of hosted applications and assessing their cybersecurity
readiness. In addition, we annually obtain Service Organization Control (“SOC”) reports on the suitability and operating effectiveness of the service providers’ controls, known as
a SOC 1 Type 2 Report. The report is prepared by an independent service auditor. We review such reports to confirm the existence of effective security controls over unauthorized
access at third party service providers.

To date, there have been no cybersecurity events in the past that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s business strategy, results
of operations, or financial condition. Although we believe our defenses against cyber-intrusions are sufficient, we continue to update our prevention programs to help respond to
sophisticated and rapidly evolving threats that may try to circumvent our security measures.

Governance

Our Board, with the assistance of our Audit Committee, oversees our cybersecurity efforts performed by senior management, which is responsible for the identification and
assessment of materials risk from cybersecurity incidents. In particular, our CISO is responsible for leading the management and assessment of material cybersecurity threats, and
works closely with our head of IT, head of IT Operations and General Counsel. Our CISO has over 20 years of industry experience, including serving in similar roles leading and
overseeing cybersecurity programs at other public companies and managing information systems and protecting computer networks against cyber intrusions. Also, our IT
Operations team meets regularly with the InfoSec and the head of Internal Audit.

Our Board and our Audit Committee receive reports on the Company’s cyber security program, including an assessment of that our cybersecurity risk management program,
annually or as needed. In addition, the Board and Audit Committee receive reports on the cybersecurity program, including any material cybersecurity risks, periodically or as
needed.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Although our business is run largely remotely, we lease offices located in New York, New York, and Chicago, Illinois. We do not own any real property. We believe that our
existing facilities are sufficient for our current needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are subject to routine legal proceedings in the normal course of operating our insurance business. We are not currently a party to any such claims, lawsuits or proceedings,
the outcome of which, if determined adversely to us, we believe would, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or
financial condition.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
PART 11
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information and Holders of our Common Stock

On May 23, 2024, our common stock began trading on the NYSE under the symbol “BOW?. Prior to that time, there was no public market for our common stock.
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As of February 25, 2025, there were approximately 62 holders of record of our common stock. Because most of our shares of common stock are held by brokers and other
institutions on behalf of our stockholders, this number is not representative of our total stockholders.

Dividends

Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon results of operations, financial condition, restrictions
imposed by applicable law and other factors our Board of Directors deems relevant.

Since the growth and continued operation of our business will require capital, we do not intend to declare and pay cash dividends on shares of our common stock in the
foreseeable future.

As a holding company, substantially all of our operations are conducted through our wholly-owned insurance and service company subsidiaries. Our ability to pay dividends
to stockholders is largely dependent on dividends and other distributions from BICI and our other operating companies. State insurance regulators require insurance companies to
maintain specified levels of statutory capital and surplus and restrict dividend payments. BICI’s ability to pay dividends is restricted under the insurance laws and regulations of
the Wisconsin OCIL.

Stock Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return of an investment in (1) our common stock, (2) the cumulative total returns to the Russell
2000 Index and (3) the cumulative total returns to the Standard & Poor's Composite 1500 Property & Casualty Insurance Index for the period from May 23, 2024 (the date our
common stock began trading on the NYSE) through December 31, 2024.

The graph assumes an initial investment of $100. Such returns are based on historical results and are not indicative of future performance.
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—e— Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
—m— Russell 2000 Index
—a— S&P Composite 1500 P&C Insurance Index
May 23, 2024 December 31, 2024
Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. $ 100.00 $ 149.24
Russell 2000 Index $ 100.00 $ 108.87
S&P Composite 1500 P&C Insurance Index $ 100.00 $ 111.98
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Issuer Repurchase of Equity Securities

The table below provides information regarding the number of common stock repurchased in the quarter ended December 31, 2024:

Period

Total number of shares

Total number of shares purchased as part
of publicly announced programs

Maximum number (or approximate dollar
value) of shares that may yet be purchased
under the program

October 1-31, 2024
November 1-30, 2024
December 1-31, 2024

Total

purchased Average price paid per share
140 $ 28.23
— 8
—_ 3 _
140

(1)  Represents shares repurchased from employees to satisfy personal withholding tax liabilities that arise on the vesting of restricted stock units.

ITEM 6. [RESERVED]
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year ended December 31, 2023 compared to year ended December 31, 2022

For a discussion of our year ended December 31, 2023 results and a comparison between the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, see “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our Form S-1 Registration Statement, filed with the SEC on October 21, 2024.

Overview

We were founded in September 2020, backed by capital provided by GPC Fund, a private equity fund managed by Gallatin Point, and our strategic partner, AmFam, to take
advantage of favorable pricing environments, and to address a growing and unmet demand from brokers and policyholders for specialized insurance solutions and quality service
in complex lines of business. Our principal objective is to create and sustain superior returns for our stockholders by generating consistent, underwriting profits across our product
offerings and through all market cycles, while prudently managing capital.

We offer commercial specialty P&C insurance products to policyholders that vary in size, industry and complexity, focusing on casualty, professional liability, and healthcare
liability risks. We provide “craft” underwriting solutions, which require deep underwriting and claims expertise in order to produce attractive financial results. In May 2024, we
supplemented our “craft” solution with our “flow” underwriting operation, which is a streamlined, tech-enabled low touch form of underwriting, focused on small, niche and hard-
to-place risks. Our policies are primarily written on a non-admitted, or E&S basis, which is free of rate and policy form restrictions, and provides the flexibility to rapidly adjust to
emerging market opportunities. We distribute our products through carefully selected relationships with leading distribution partners in both the wholesale and retail markets.

The policies we write are issued on AmFam paper under their own name through BSUI, our managing general agency, in exchange for a Ceding Fee, and reinsured 100% to
BICI, our wholly-owned insurance company subsidiary. This mutually beneficial partnership with AmFam has enabled us to grow quickly, but prudently, to take advantage of
favorable market conditions, and allows us to deploy capital efficiently.

We built a nimble, remote-friendly organization that is able to attract best-in-class talent nationwide, who are committed to operational excellence and superior service. We are
led by a highly experienced and respected underwriting team with a disciplined approach to underwriting and decades of individual, successful underwriting experience. We are
supported by a collaborative culture that spans all functions of our business, which allows us to provide a consistent, positive experience for all our partners. We believe that our
current market opportunity, differentiated expertise, relationships, culture and leadership team position us well to continue to grow our business profitably.

Components of Our Results of Operations
Gross written premiums

Gross written premiums are the amounts received, or to be received, for insurance policies written or assumed by us during a specific period of time without reduction for
policy acquisition costs, reinsurance costs or other deductions. The volume of our gross written premiums in any given period is generally influenced by new business
submissions, binding of new business submissions into policies, renewals of existing policies and average size and premium rate of bound policies.

Ceded written premiums

Ceded written premiums are the amount of gross written premiums ceded to reinsurers. We enter into reinsurance contracts to limit our exposure to potential losses. The
volume of our ceded written premiums is impacted by the level of our gross written premiums and any decision we make to increase or decrease retention levels and policy limits.
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Net written premiums
Net written premiums are gross written premiums less ceded written premiums.
Net earned premiums

Net earned premiums represent the earned portion of our net written premiums. Our insurance policies generally have a term of one year but occasionally could be as long as
seven years, and premiums are earned pro rata over the term of the policy.

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses represent the costs incurred for insured losses, which include losses under a claims made or occurrence policy, paid or unpaid,
expenses for settling claims, such as attorneys’ fees, investigation, appraisal, adjustment, defense costs and a portion of operating expenses allocated to claim resolution, net of any
losses ceded to reinsurers. Net losses and loss adjustment expenses also include a provision for claims that have occurred but have not yet been reported to the insurer. These
expenses are a function of the amount and type of insurance contracts the Company writes and the loss experience associated with the underlying coverage. In general, our net
losses and loss adjustment expenses are affected by:

» the occurrence, frequency and severity of claims associated with the particular types of insurance contracts that we write;
* the mix of business written by us;

+  changes in the legal or regulatory environment related to the business we write;

+ trends in legal defense costs;

* inflation in the cost of claims, including inflation related to wages, medical costs, and building materials, as well as inflation related to the increase in the severity of
claims above general economic inflation (i.e., social inflation); and

+ the reinsurance agreements we have in place at the time of a loss.

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses are based on actual losses and expenses, as well as an actuarial analysis of the estimated losses, including losses incurred during the
period and changes in estimates from prior periods. Net losses and loss adjustment expenses may be paid out over a period of years.

Net acquisition costs

Net acquisition costs are principally comprised of commissions we pay to our brokers, a ceding fee we pay to AmFam on net premiums assumed and premium-related taxes,
which are net of ceding commissions we receive on business ceded through our reinsurance agreements. Net acquisition costs are deferred and amortized ratably over the terms of
the related agreements.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses represent the general and administrative expenses of our operations including employee compensation and benefits, technology costs, office rent and
professional service fees such as legal, accounting and actuarial services.

Net investment income

We earn interest income on our portfolio of invested assets, which are comprised of fixed maturity securities, short-term investments and cash and cash equivalents.
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Net realized investment losses

Net realized investment losses are a function of the difference between the amortized cost of securities sold and the proceeds received by the Company upon the sale of a
security. Unrealized investment gains (losses) on fixed maturity securities are recorded within accumulated other comprehensive loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Other insurance-related income
Other insurance-related income represent fees associated with the issuance of policies and revenue we receive for providing insurance-related services.
Non-operating expenses

Non-operating expenses represent expenses related to various transactions that we consider to be unique and non-recurring in nature, including expenses related to our IPO
and Secondary Offering.

Warrant expense
Warrant expense represents compensation cost for warrants issued to AmFam for the right to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock.
Credit facility interest expenses and fees

Credit facility interest expenses and fees represent certain costs associated with the Credit Agreement (as defined below), which provides for a senior secured revolving credit
facility.

Foreign exchange losses (gains)

Foreign exchange losses (gains) represent the remeasurement of a non-U.S. dollar operating expense to U.S. dollars due to the fluctuations in the exchange rate. The change in
the liability due to the fluctuations in the exchange rate are included within the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss) at the end of each period.

Income tax expense

Currently, income tax expense primarily relates to federal income taxes. The amount of income tax expense or benefit recorded in future periods will depend on the
jurisdictions in which we operate and the tax laws and regulations in effect.

Key Operating and Financial Metrics
We discuss certain key metrics, described below, which provide useful information about our business and the operational factors underlying our financial performance.
Loss ratio, expressed as a percentage, is the ratio of net losses and loss adjustment expenses to net earned premiums.
Expense ratio, expressed as a percentage, is the ratio of net acquisition costs and operating expenses, less other- insurance related income, to net earned premiums.
Combined ratio, expressed as a percentage, is the sum of loss ratio and expense ratio.
Return on equity is net income as a percentage of average beginning and ending mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity.

Underwriting income is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as income before income taxes excluding the impact of net investment income, net realized investment
losses, other insurance-related income, non-operating expenses, warrant expense, credit facility interest expenses and fees, foreign exchange losses (gains), and certain strategic
initiatives. See “—Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliation of underwriting
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income to income before income taxes, which is the most directly comparable financial metric prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Adjusted net income is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as net income excluding the impact of net realized investment losses, non-operating expenses, foreign
exchange losses (gains), and certain strategic initiatives. See “—Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliation of adjusted net income to net income,
which is the most directly comparable financial metric prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Adjusted return on equity is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as adjusted net income as a percentage of average beginning and ending mezzanine equity and
stockholders’ equity. See “—Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliation of adjusted return on equity to return on equity, which is the most directly
comparable financial metric prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Diluted adjusted earnings per share is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as adjusted net income divided by the weighted average common shares outstanding for the
period, reflecting the dilution that may occur if equity based awards are converted into common stock equivalents as calculated using the treasury stock method. See “—
Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliation of diluted adjusted earnings per share to diluted earnings per share, which is the most directly comparable
financial metric prepared in accordance with U.S.
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Results of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2024 compared to year ended December 31, 2023

The following table summarizes our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Gross written premiums
Ceded written premiums

Net written premiums

Revenues
Net earned premiums
Net investment income
Net realized investment losses
Other insurance-related income

Total revenues

Expenses

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

Net acquisition costs
Operating expenses
Non-operating expenses

Warrant expense

Credit facility interest expenses and fees

Foreign exchange losses (gains)

Total expenses

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

Key Operating and Financial Metrics:
Underwriting income(!
Adjusted net income
Loss ratio
Expense ratio
Combined ratio
Return on equity
Adjusted return on equity®)
Diluted earnings per share

Diluted adjusted earnings per share(!)

NM - Percentage change is not meaningful.

Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
(8 in thousands, except percentages and per share data)
695,717 $ 507,688 $ 188,029 37.0 %
(244,295) (173,016) (71,279) 412 %
451,422  $ 334,672 $ 116,750 349 %
385,111  $ 263,902 $ 121,209 459 %
40,121 19,371 20,750 107.1 %
(16) — (16) NM
444 125 319 2552 %
425,660 283,398 142,262 50.2 %
248,099 166,282 81,817 492 %
32,397 20,935 11,462 54.8 %
89,112 63,456 25,656 40.4 %
2,807 630 2,177 345.6 %
1,917 — 1,917 NM
725 — 725 NM
68 (20) 88 (440.0) %
375,125 251,283 123,842 493 %
50,535 32,115 18,420 574 %
(12,292) (7,068) (5,224) 73.9 %
38,243 $ 25,047 $ 13,196 52.7 %
18,236 § 14,035 § 4,201 29.9 %
42,686 26,152 16,534 63.2 %
64.4 % 63.0 %
314 % 31.9%
95.8 % 94.9 %
13.6 % 18.2%
15.2 % 19.0 %
129 $ 1.04
144 $ 1.09

(1) Non-GAAP financial measure. See “—Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliation of the non-GAAP financial measure in accordance with the most comparable U.S. GAAP measure.
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Premiums

The following table presents gross written premiums by underwriting division for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Years Ended December 31,
2024 % of Total 2023 % of Total $ Change % Change
(8 in thousands, except percentages)
Casualty $ 431,817 62.1 % $ 271,455 547 % $ 154,362 55.6 %
Professional Liability 160,651 23.1 % 145,251 28.6 % 15,400 10.6 %
Healthcare Liability 101,619 14.6 % 84,982 16.7 % 16,637 19.6 %
Baleen Specialty 1,630 02 % — — % 1,630 NM
Gross written premiums $ 695,717 100.0 % $ 507,688 100.0 % $ 188,029 37.0 %

Gross written premiums increased $188.0 million, or 37.0%, to $695.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 from $507.7 million for year ended December 31, 2023.
The increase was driven by renewals, new business and continued growth in our platform across all four divisions. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, E&S
business made up 75.8% and 79.2% of gross written premiums, respectively, while admitted business made up 24.2% and 20.8%, respectively. The 3.4 point decrease in the

proportion of E&S business written was driven by the Casualty division, where an admitted product was required on specialty business written.

Net written premiums increased $116.7 million, or 34.9%, to $451.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 from $334.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2023. The increase was primarily due to the growth in gross written premiums for the year ended December 31, 2024, partially offset by the increase in ceded written premium
primarily due to the volume of written premiums subject to the ceded quota share reinsurance treaties within our Casualty underwriting division and the Cyber line of business

within our Professional Liability division.

Net earned premiums increased $121.2 million, or 45.9%, to $385.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 from $263.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2023. The increase was primarily due to the earning of increased gross written premiums offset by the earning of increased ceded written premiums under our ceded reinsurance

treaties.
Loss ratio

The following table summarizes the components of our loss ratio for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023
Net Losses and Loss Net Losses and Loss
Adjustment Expenses % of Net Earned Premiums Adjustment Expenses % of Net Earned Premiums
(8 in th ds, except perc )
Current accident year $ 248,099 64.4 % $ 166,282 63.0 %
Prior accident year reserve development — — % — — %
Total $ 248,099 644 % $ 166,282 63.0 %

Our loss ratio was 64.4% for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to 63.0% for the year end December 31, 2023, or an increase of 1.4 points. The increase was due to
the mix changes in our portfolio, where Casualty, which has higher current accident year industry loss ratios, comprised a larger proportion of the Company’s gross written

premiums—62.1% in 2024 compared to 54.7% in 2023. There was no prior accident year reserve development in our loss ratio for the year.
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In the fourth quarter of 2024, as part of our annual independent actuarial reserve review, we reallocated prior accident year loss reserves by division, primarily from
Professional Liability to Casualty, to align more closely with industry loss ratios. The increase in our loss ratio and reallocation of prior accident year loss reserves are primarily
based on inputs from industry data due to Bowhead’s limited loss experience. See Note 6, “Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses” in our Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Expense ratio
The following table summarizes the components of our expense ratio for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023

Expenses % of Net Earned Premiums Expenses % of Net Earned Premiums

(8 in thousands, except percentages)

Net acquisition costs $ 32,397 84 % $ 20,935 79 %
Operating expenses 89,112 23.1 % 63,456 24.0 %
Less: Other insurance-related income (444) 0.1)% (125) — %

Total expense ratio $ 121,065 314% $ 84,266 31.9 %

Our expense ratio was 31.4% for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to 31.9% for the year ended December 31, 2023, a decrease of 0.5 points. The decrease was
driven by the 0.9 point decrease in our operating expenses ratio, which was partially offset by the 0.5 point increase in net acquisition costs ratio. The decrease in our operating
expenses ratio was due to the continued scaling of our business, where net earned premiums grew at a higher rate than our expenses, as well as the prudent management of our
expenses. The increase in our net acquisition costs ratio was driven by the increase in broker commissions due to mix changes in our portfolio, where Casualty, which has higher
broker commissions, comprised a larger proportion of the Company’s gross written premiums, and the reduction in ceding commission rates in our 2024 ceded reinsurance
treaties. Gross acquisition costs as a percentage of gross earned premiums was 15.7% for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to 15.0% for the year ended December 31,
2023, and ceded earned commissions as a percentage of ceded earned premium was 29.0% for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to 29.4% for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

Combined ratio

The combined ratio was 95.8% for the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to 94.9% for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 0.9 point increase was due to the 1.4
point increase in the loss ratio, partially offset by the 0.5 point decrease in the expense ratio.
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Return on equity

Return on equity was 13.6% for the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to 18.2% for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 4.6 point decrease was primarily driven
by the $178.4 million increase in mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity, mainly due to the $131.0 million of net proceeds received from the IPO and $38.2 million of net
income generated during the year, and a $7.3 million reduction in after tax net income as a result of the costs related to the IPO and Secondary Offering. Costs incurred as a result
of the IPO and Secondary Offering included non-deferrable and non-recurring costs directly attributable to the IPO and Secondary Offering, which are disclosed as non-operating
expenses within the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss), and additional expenses that were incurred as a result of IPO, which included the
acceleration of remaining stock-based compensation costs associated with the Class P interests, expenses associated with the issuances of RSUs, PSUs and warrants, and deferred
financing costs associated with the establishment of our Facility.

Investing results

Net investment income increased $20.8 million, or 107.1%, to $40.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 from $19.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2023.
The increase was due to the growth in our investment portfolio, stemming from net cash provided by operating activities and net proceeds we received from the IPO, and higher
yields on invested assets.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense was $12.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to $7.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. Our effective tax rate
was 24.3% for the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to 22.0% for the year ended December 31, 2023. The effective tax rate may vary slightly from the statutory tax rate
due to state taxes and certain tax adjustments for permanent differences.

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Underwriting income

We define underwriting income as income before income taxes excluding the impact of net investment income, net realized investment losses, other insurance-related income,
non-operating expenses, warrant expense, credit facility interest expenses and fees, foreign exchange losses (gains), and certain strategic initiatives. Underwriting income
represents the pre-tax profitability of the Company's underwriting operations and allows us to evaluate our underwriting performance without regard to net investment income. We
use this metric as we believe it gives our management and other users of our financial information useful insight into our underlying business performance. Underwriting income
should not be viewed as a substitute for income before income taxes calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and other companies may define underwriting income differently.
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Underwriting income for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 reconciles to income before income taxes as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023
(8 in thousands)
Income before income taxes $ 50,535 $ 32,115
Adjustments:
Net investment income (40,121) (19,371)
Net realized investment losses 16 —
Other insurance-related income (444) (125)
Non-operating expenses 2,807 630
Warrant expense 1,917 —
Credit facility interest expenses and fees 725 —
Foreign exchange losses (gains) 68 (20)
Strategic initiatives(" 2,733 806
$ 18,236 $ 14,035

Underwriting income

(1) Strategic initiatives for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 represent costs incurred to set up our Baleen Specialty division, which is recorded in operating expenses within the Consolidated Statements of
Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss). The costs incurred primarily represent expenses to implement the new platform and processes supporting the Baleen Specialty division.

Adjusted net income

We define adjusted net income as net income excluding the impact of net realized investment losses, non-operating expenses, foreign exchange losses (gains), and certain
strategic initiatives. Adjusted net income excludes the impact of certain items that may not be indicative of underlying business trends, operating results, or future outlook, net of
tax impact. We calculate the tax impact only on adjustments that would be included in calculating our income tax expense using the estimated tax rate at which we received a
deduction for these adjustments. We use adjusted net income as an internal performance measure in the management of our operations because we believe it gives our management
and other users of our financial information useful insight into our results of operations and our underlying business performance. Adjusted net income should not be viewed as a
substitute for net income calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and other companies may define adjusted net income differently.
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Adjusted net income for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 reconciles to net income as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023
Before income taxes After income taxes Before income taxes After income taxes
(8 in thousands)

Income as reported $ 50,535 $ 38,243 § 32,115 $ 25,047
Adjustments:

Net realized investment losses 16 16 — —

Non-operating expenses 2,807 2,807 630 630

Foreign exchange losses (gains) 68 68 (20) (20)

Strategic initiatives(" 2,733 2,733 806 806

Tax impact (1,181) — (311)
Adjusted net income $ 56,159 $ 42,686 $ 33,531 $ 26,152

(1) Strategic initiatives for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 represent costs incurred to set up our Baleen Specialty division, which is recorded in operating expenses within the Consolidated Statements of
Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss). The costs incurred primarily represent expenses to implement the new platform and processes supporting the Baleen Specialty division.

Adjusted return on equity

We define adjusted return on equity as adjusted net income as a percentage of average beginning and ending mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity. We use adjusted
return on equity as an internal performance measure in the management of our operations because we believe it gives our management and other users of our financial information
useful insight into our results of operations and our underlying business performance. Adjusted return on equity should not be viewed as a substitute for return on equity calculated
in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and other companies may define adjusted return on equity differently.

Adjusted return on equity for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 reconciles to return on equity as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023
(8 in thousands, except percentages)
Numerator: Adjusted net income" $ 42,686 $ 26,152
Denominator: Average mezzanine equity and stockholders' equity 281,259 137,726
Adjusted return on equity 15.2 % 19.0 %

Diluted adjusted earnings per share

We define diluted adjusted earnings per share adjusted net income divided by the weighted average common shares outstanding for the period, reflecting the dilution that may
occur if equity based awards are converted into common stock equivalents as calculated using the treasury stock method. We use diluted adjusted earnings per share as an internal
performance measure in the management of our operations because we believe it gives our management and other users of our financial information useful insight into our results
of operations and our underlying business performance. Diluted adjusted earnings per share should not be viewed as a substitute for diluted earnings per share calculated in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, and other companies may define diluted adjusted earnings per shares differently
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Diluted adjusted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 reconciles to diluted earnings per share as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023
(8 in thousands, except share and per share data)
Numerator: Adjusted net income $ 42,686 $ 26,152
Denominator: Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 29,677,196 24,000,000
Diluted adjusted earnings per share $ 144 § 1.09

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Funds

BSHI is organized as a Delaware holding company with our operations primarily conducted by our wholly- owned insurance company subsidiary, BICI, domiciled in the State
of Wisconsin, BSUI, our wholly-owned managing general agency, and Bowhead Underwriting Services, Inc. (“BUSI”), our wholly-owned services company subsidiary.

Prior to the IPO, BSHI received capital contributions from BIHL. Following our Secondary Offering on October 25, 2024, since BIHL is no longer a holder of our common
stock, BSHI may receive cash through (i) drawing on the Facility (as defined below) that we entered into on April 22, 2024, (ii) issuance of equity and debt securities, (iii)
payments from our subsidiaries pursuant to our consolidated tax allocation agreement and other transactions and (iv) dividends from our insurance company subsidiary. We also
may use the proceeds from these sources to contribute funds to our insurance company subsidiary in order to support premium growth, pay dividends and taxes and for other
business purposes.

We file a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return with our subsidiaries, and under our tax allocation agreement, each participant is charged or refunded taxes according to
the amount that the participant would have paid or received had it filed on a separate return basis with the Internal Revenue Service.

Our insurance company subsidiary, BICI, is licensed and domiciled in the State of Wisconsin. Under Wisconsin law, BICI is required to maintain specified levels of statutory
capital and surplus and is restricted by law as to the amount of dividends it can pay without the approval of regulatory authorities. BICI is restricted from paying dividends by the
lesser of: (i) 10% of statutory capital and surplus as of the preceding December 31, or; (ii) the greater of: (A) statutory net income for the calendar year preceding the date of the
dividend distribution, minus realized capital gains for that year, or (B) aggregate of net income for the three months preceding the date of the dividend or distribution, minus
realized capital gains for those calendar years and minus dividends paid or credited and distributions made within the first two of the preceding three calendar years. As of
December 31, 2024, the maximum dividend that BICI could pay without the approval of regulatory authorities was $16.1 million. Insurance regulators have broad powers to
prevent the reduction of statutory surplus to inadequate levels, and there is no assurance that dividends of the maximum amounts calculated under any applicable formula would be
permitted. State insurance regulatory authorities that have jurisdiction over the payment of dividends by our insurance company subsidiary may in the future adopt statutory
provisions more restrictive than those currently in effect.

As of December 31, 2024, our holding company had $21.0 million in cash and investments. We believe we have sufficient liquidity available at our holding company and
subsidiaries to meet our operating cash needs and obligations for at least the next 12 months.
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Revolving Credit Facility

On April 22, 2024, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement with certain lenders and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, swingline lender and issuing
bank. The Credit Agreement provides for a Facility in the aggregate principal amount of $75 million, which includes a $5 million sub-facility for letters of credit. All obligations
under the Facility and obligations in respect of certain cash management services and swap agreements with the lenders and their affiliates are (i) unconditionally guaranteed by
certain of the Company’s subsidiaries and (ii) secured by a first-priority perfected lien in substantially all of the Company’s and the subsidiaries guarantors’ assets. The Credit
Agreement contains certain customary covenants, including financial maintenance covenants. The Company was in compliance with all of the Facility’s covenants as of December
31, 2024. The Facility matures on the earlier of April 22, 2027, or 91 days prior to the MGA Agreement termination date where no MGA Agreement replacement is found. The
Company may request that the lenders extend the maturity date by an additional year, provided that the request is made no earlier than 90 days and no later than 55 days prior to
the first or second anniversary of the effective date of the Facility.

As of December 31, 2024, we did not have any borrowings outstanding under the Facility.
Cash Flows

Our most significant source of cash is from premiums received, which, for most policies, we receive at the beginning of the coverage period, net of the related commission for
the policies. Our most significant cash outflows include claims that arise when a policyholder incurs an insured loss. Because the payment of claims occurs after the receipt of the
premium, often years later, we invest the cash in various investment securities that generally earn interest. We also use cash to pay ceded reinsurance premiums, net of ceding
commissions received, and for payment of ongoing operating expenses, such as employee compensation and benefits, technology costs, office rent and professional service fees.

The timing of our cash flows from operating activities can vary among periods due to the timing by which payments are made or received. Some of our payments and
receipts, including loss settlements and subsequent reinsurance receipts, can be significant, and as a result their timing can influence cash flows from operating activities in any
given period. We believe that cash receipts from premiums and proceeds from net investment income are sufficient to cover cash outflows in the foreseeable future.

Our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023
(8 in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 294,287 $ 236,225
Net cash used in investing activities (325,883) (274,765)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 133,886 77,656
Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 102,290 $ 39,117

The increase in cash provided by operating activities in the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the year ended December 31, 2023 was primarily due to the growth in
our business operations compared to the timing of claim payments and subsequent reinsurance recoveries, which occur later than cash collections on premiums.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, net cash used in investing activities of $325.9 million was due to the growth in our business operations. For the year ended
December 31, 2024, funds from operations and net proceeds from the IPO, together with proceeds received from the sale and maturity on fixed maturity securities of $281.2
million and short-term investments of $9.0 million, were used to purchase fixed maturity securities of $603.0 million and short-term investments of $9.9 million. Net cash used in
investing activities also includes purchases of property and equipment of $3.1 million.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, net cash used in investing activities was $274.8 million. For the year ended December 31, 2023, funds from operations, together with
proceeds received from the sale and maturity on fixed maturity securities of $36.8 million and short-term investments of $59.5 million, were used to purchase fixed maturity
securities of $345.8 million and short-term investments of $21.4 million. Net cash used in investing activities also includes purchases of property and equipment of $3.8 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, net cash provided by financing activities of $133.9 million was primarily due to the $131.0 million of net proceeds we received from
the TPO. For the year ended December 31, 2023, net cash provided by financing activities of $77.7 million was due to capital contributions from BIHL.

Reinsurance

We purchase various forms of reinsurance to manage loss exposures and safeguard our capital. Through reinsurance, we transfer certain exposures to a reinsurer, and in return,
the reinsurer receives a portion of the premium, less a ceding commission paid to us. We strategically use a combination of quota share and excess of loss reinsurance treaties to
retain risk, while providing balance sheet protection from larger losses. We may also place facultative reinsurance on specific risks we deem prudent.

A quota share reinsurance treaty is an agreement where reinsurers assume a percentage of the company’s losses in exchange for a negotiated percentage of premium. An
excess of loss reinsurance treaty is an agreement where reinsurers agree to assume a portion of losses for a specific event in excess of a specified amount in return for a negotiated
premium. Reinsurance needs are determined with principal input from our Chief Underwriting Officer, based on a multitude of factors, including risk appetite, market conditions,
loss history and reinsurance capacity.

‘We place reinsurance through our insurance company subsidiary, BICI, which reinsures 100% of the premium placed by BSUI with the AmFam Issuing Carriers. In turn, BICI
strategically transfers exposures to third-party reinsurers utilizing different structures depending on the line of business.

We generally offer up to $15 million of limit on our insurance policies and seek not to retain more than $5 million, utilizing reinsurance to achieve that objective. At each
renewal, we consider various factors when determining our reinsurance coverage, including (i) plans to change the underlying insurance coverage we offer, (ii) trends in loss
activity, (iii) the level of our capital and surplus, (iv) changes in our risk appetite and (v) the cost, terms and availability of reinsurance coverage. We may adjust our reinsurance
program, including our levels of retention based on these factors.

As of December 31, 2024, we had the following significant reinsurance programs:

+  For all lines, except Cyber, we use a quota share reinsurance treaty, where 25.0% of the exposure is ceded to reinsurers, and an excess of loss reinsurance treaty, which
cedes 60.1% of losses in excess of $5 million up to $15 million to our reinsurers.

*  Cyber, as a specialized line of business, is placed under a separate quota share structure, where we cede 64.0% of the exposure to reinsurers. There is no separate excess
of loss reinsurance program for our Cyber line of business.

*  We also entered into a quota share treaty, effective March 1, 2024, covering commercial auto exposure in excess of $1 million up to $5 million within our Casualty book
of business.

Our reinsurance treaties are currently subject to caps, which currently range from 250% to 350% of the subject matter ceded premium, and should these caps be exceeded we
would retain any losses in excess of those caps.

Our reinsurance treaties typically have 12- or 18-month terms. While we intend to renew on similar terms as expiring to maintain our desired level of net risk appetite, during

each renewal cycle, we may change our coverage terms or the composition of our reinsurance panel. Currently, the quota share reinsurance treaty for Cyber generally renews on
January 1, 2025 while the remainder of our reinsurance treaties renew on May 1, 2025.
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All reinsurance involves credit risk, since we maintain the direct obligation to pay losses incurred by our policyholders up to our policy limits. Accordingly, when selecting
our reinsurers, a potential reinsurer’s financial strength is the paramount consideration. All of our reinsurance business is placed with reinsurers that have an A.M. Best rating of
“A” (Excellent) or better. As of December 31, 2024, we have never had an allowance for uncollectible reinsurance.

The following table summarizes our top five reinsurers, their A.M. Best financial strength rating and percent of our total reinsurance recoverables as of December 31, 2024:

Reinsurer A.M. Best Rating % of Total
Renaissance Reinsurance U.S. Inc A+ 29.8%
Endurance Assurance Corporation A+ 23.8%
Markel Global Reinsurance Company A 20.8%
Ascot Bermuda Limited A 9.4%
American Family Connect Property and Casualty Insurance Company A 7.5%
All other reinsurers At least A 8.7%
Total 100.0%

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

‘We have entered into software service agreements that have purchase obligations depending on the amount of premiums written. The fixed and determinable portion of these
purchase obligations were approximately $1.7 million for the years 2025 - 2028 as of December 31, 2024. The obligations may increase depending on the amount of premium
written by the Company over the respective years.

We have entered into a sublease agreement for our office in New York and a lease agreement for our office in Chicago. On December 1, 2024, the company exercised its
option to extend the Chicago lease, which will expire on August 31, 2028, with a renewal option to extend. These leases are classified as operating leases. These leases expire in
December 2027 and August 2028, respectively. Although each operating lease agreement contains an option to extend the length of the respective lease term, the Company is not
reasonably certain it will exercise these options. As of December 31, 2024, the discounted operating lease liability was $4.3 million.

Financial Condition
Mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity

As of December 31, 2024, total mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity was $370.4 million compared to $192.1 million as of December 31, 2023. The $178.4 million
increase was primarily due to the $131.0 million of net proceeds received from the IPO and $38.2 million of net income generated during the year.

Dividend declarations
We did not declare any dividends during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.
Investment portfolio

We seek to maintain a diversified portfolio of fixed income instruments that prioritize capital preservation, with a secondary focus on generating predictable investment
income. Our asset allocation strategy focuses on high-quality fixed income instruments, with no equity or alternative investment exposure. One of the primary features of our asset
allocation is maintaining sufficient readily available funds to pay claims and expenses. Our portfolio consists entirely of cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and
investment grade fixed income securities.
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We actively manage and monitor our investment risk, balancing the goals of capital preservation and income generation with our need to comply with relevant insurance
regulatory frameworks and the capital framework agreements with AmFam. Our board of directors reviews and approves our investment policy and strategy on a regular basis, and
considers investment activities, performance against benchmarks and new investment opportunities as they arise.

As of December 31, 2024, the majority of our investment portfolio, or $880.0 million, was comprised of fixed maturity securities that are classified as available-for-sale and
carried at fair value with unrealized gains (losses) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss within our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Also included in our investment
portfolio were $10.0 million of short-term investments. Our fixed maturity securities, including cash equivalents, had a weighted average effective duration of 2.2 years and an
average rating of “AA” at December 31, 2024. Our fixed income investment portfolio had a book yield of 4.6% and a market yield of 4.9% as of December 31, 2024, compared to

4.3% and 5.2%, respectively, as of December 31, 2023.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the amortized cost and estimated fair value of our fixed maturity and short-term investments were as follows:

As of December 31, 2024

Amortized Cost

Fair Value

% of Total Fair Value

($in th ds, except perc
Fixed maturity securities
U.S. government and government agency 204,205 $ 204,412 23.0 %
State and municipal 73,289 67,784 7.6 %
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 83,029 82,438 9.3 %
Residential mortgage-backed securities 197,589 192,103 21.6 %
Asset-backed securities 121,155 120,577 13.5 %
Corporate 214,878 212,675 239 %
Total fixed maturity securities 894,145 § 879,989 98.9 %
Short-term investments 9,961 9,997 1.1 %
Total investments 904,106 $ 889,986 100.0 %
As of December 31, 2023 Amortized Cost Fair Value % of Total Fair Value
(8 in th ds, except perc
Fixed maturity securities
U.S. government and government agency 252,294 $ 252,541 44.8 %
State and municipal 55,984 50,720 9.0 %
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 26,573 25,436 4.5 %
Residential mortgage-backed securities 79,032 74,702 133 %
Asset-backed securities 42,964 42,033 7.5 %
Corporate 112,166 109,192 19.4 %
Total fixed maturity securities 569,013 $ 554,624 98.4 %
Short-term investments 8,830 8,824 1.6 %
Total investments 577,843 $ 563,448 100.0 %
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The table below summarizes the credit quality of our fixed maturity securities as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023
Fair Value % of Total Fair Value Fair Value % of Total Fair Value
(8 in thousands, except percentages)

Rating

AAA 247,433 281 % $ 101,648 18.3 %

AA 385,358 43.8 % 338,369 61.0 %

A 178,775 20.3 % 76,849 13.9 %

BBB 68,423 7.8 % 37,758 6.8 %
Total 879,989 100.0% $ 554,624 100.0 %

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the amortized cost and estimated fair value of our available-for-sale investments in fixed maturity securities summarized by contractual

maturity were as follows:

As of December 31, 2024

Amortized Cost

Fair Value

% of Total Fair Value

Fixed maturity securities:
Due in one year or less
Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years

Due after ten years

Commercial mortgage-backed securities
Residential mortgage-backed securities

Asset-backed securities

Total

As of December 31, 2023

(8 in thousands, except percentages)

206,764 $ 206,721 235 %
208,179 205,012 233 %
45,230 43,199 49 %
32,199 29,939 34 %
492,372 484,871 55.1 %
83,029 82,438 9.4 %
197,589 192,103 21.8 %
121,155 120,577 13.7 %
894,145 § 879,989 100.0 %
Amortized Cost Fair Value % of Total Fair Value

Fixed maturity securities:
Due in one year or less
Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years

Due after ten years

Commercial mortgage-backed securities
Residential mortgage-backed securities
Asset-backed securities

Total

(8 in thousands, except percentages)

254,656 $ 254,443 459 %
122,274 118,585 21.4 %
27,145 25,265 4.6 %
16,369 14,160 2.6 %
420,444 412,453 74.4 %
26,573 25,436 4.6 %
79,032 74,702 13.5 %
42,964 42,033 7.6 %
569,013 $ 554,624 100.0 %

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties,
and the lenders may have the right to put the securities back to the borrower.
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Restricted Assets

We are required to maintain assets in trust accounts to support the obligations of the AmFam Quota Share Agreement. The assets held in trust include fixed maturity securities,
short-term investments and cash and cash equivalents, as collateral for transactions with AmFam. The Company is entitled to interest income earned on these restricted assets,
which is included in net investment income in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

The fair value of our restricted assets were as follows:

As of December 31, 2024 2023
(8 in thousands)
Restricted investments $ 494,828 $ 284,822
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 124,582 1,698
Total restricted assets $ 619,411 $ 286,520

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
We identified the following accounting estimates as critical to the understanding of our financial position and results of operations:
» reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses;
e reinsurance recoverable;
» fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities; and
*  deferred income tax.

Critical accounting estimates are defined as those estimates that are both important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and require us to
exercise significant judgment. We use significant judgment concerning future results and developments in applying these critical accounting estimates and in preparing our
consolidated financial statements. These judgments and estimates affect our reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of our material
contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ materially from the estimates and assumptions used in preparing the consolidated financial statements. We evaluate our
estimates regularly using information that we believe to be relevant. For a detailed discussion of our accounting policies, see Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies,” in our
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses represents our estimated ultimate cost of all reported and unreported losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred and unpaid
at the balance sheet date. We do not discount our reserves for losses to reflect estimated present value. We estimate the reserves using individual case-basis valuations of reported
claims and various actuarial procedures. Those estimates are based on our historical information, industry and peer group information and our estimates of future trends in variable
factors such as loss severity, loss frequency and other factors such as inflation. We regularly review our estimates and adjust them as necessary as experience develops or as new
information becomes known to us. Additionally, during the loss settlement period, it often becomes necessary to refine and adjust the estimates of liability on a claim either
upward or downward. Even after such adjustments, the ultimate liability may exceed or be less than the revised estimates. Accordingly, the ultimate settlement of losses and loss
adjustment expenses may vary significantly from the estimate included in our consolidated financial statements.

We categorize our reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses into two types: case reserves and reserves for IBNR.
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Case reserves are established for individual claims that have been reported to us. We are notified of losses by our insureds, their agents or our brokers. Based on the
information provided, we establish case reserves by estimating the ultimate losses from the claim, including defense costs associated with the ultimate settlement of the claim. Our
claims department personnel use their knowledge of the specific claim along with advice from internal and external experts, including underwriters and legal counsel, to estimate
the expected ultimate losses.

With the assistance of an independent actuarial firm, we estimate the cost of losses and loss adjustment expenses related to IBNR based on an analysis of several commonly
accepted actuarial loss projection methodologies. The IBNR that we book represents management’s best estimate.

The following tables summarize our gross and net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Year Ended December 31, 2024

Gross % of Total Net % of Total
(8 in thousands, except percentages)
Case reserves $ 71,420 94 % $ 47,378 9.3 %
IBNR 685,439 90.6 % 462,566 90.7 %
Total reserves $ 756,859 100.0 % $ 509,944 100.0 %

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Gross % of Total Net % of Total
(8 in thousands, except percentages)
Case reserves $ 22,616 52 % $ 18,063 6.1 %
IBNR 408,570 94.8 % 276,850 93.9 %
Total reserves $ 431,186 100.0% $ 294,913 100.0 %

The process of estimating the reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses requires a high degree of judgment and is subject to several variables. In establishing the
quarterly actuarial recommendation for the reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses, consideration is given to several actuarial methods. A first step is to select an initial
expected ultimate loss and allocated loss adjustment expense (“ALAE”) ratio for each reserving group. This is done with assistance from our actuarial consultants. Consideration
is given to inputs from our underwriting and claims departments, internal pricing data and industry benchmarks provided by our actuarial consultants. The actuarial methods
utilize, to varying degrees, the initial expected loss ratio, analysis of industry and internal claims reporting and payment patterns, paid and reported experience, industry loss
experience and changes in market conditions, policy forms, exclusions and exposures. The actuarial methods used to estimate loss and loss adjustment expense reserves are:

*  Reported and/or Paid Loss Development Methods — Ultimate losses are estimated based on historical or industry loss reporting (or payout) patterns applied to current
reported (or paid) loss and ALAE. Reported losses are the sum of paid and case losses. When there is insufficient historical data, industry development patterns are used.

*  Reported and/or Paid Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method — Ultimate losses are estimated as the sum of cumulative reported (or paid) losses and estimated IBNR (or unpaid)
losses. IBNR (or unpaid) losses are estimated based on historical or industry reporting (or payout) development patterns and the initial expected ultimate loss and ALAE
ratio.

*  Reported and/or Paid Cape Cod Method — Ultimate losses are estimated as the sum of cumulative reported (or paid) losses and estimated IBNR (or unpaid) losses. IBNR
(or unpaid) losses are estimated based on historical or industry reporting (or payout) development patterns and a loss + ALAE ratio based on adjusted experience to date.
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Since our loss experience is less mature, we are primarily relying on a weighting between the initial expected loss and ALAE ratio and the indications resulting from the
Reported Bornhuetter-Ferguson and Cape Cod Methods.

Our reserves are driven by several important factors, including litigation and regulatory trends, legislative activity, climate change, social and economic patterns, and claims
inflation assumptions. Our reserve estimates reflect current inflation in legal claims’ settlements and assume we will not be subject to losses from significant new legal liability
theories. Our reserve estimates assume that there will not be significant changes in the regulatory and legislative environment. The impact of potential changes in the regulatory or
legislative environment is difficult to quantify in the absence of specific, significant new regulation or legislation. In the event of significant new regulation or legislation, we will
attempt to quantify its impact on our business, but no assurance can be given that our attempt to quantify such inputs will be accurate or successful.

Although we believe that our reserve estimates are reasonable, it is possible that our actual loss experience may not conform to our assumptions. Specifically, our actual
ultimate loss ratio could differ from our initial expected loss ratio, or our actual reporting and payment patterns could differ from our expected reporting and payment patterns,
which are based on our own data and industry data. Accordingly, the ultimate settlement of losses and the related loss adjustment expenses may vary significantly from the
estimates included in our financial statements. We regularly review our estimates and adjust them as necessary as experience develops or as new information becomes known to
us. Such adjustments are included in the results of current operations.

The table below quantifies the impact of potential reserve deviations from our carried reserve as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. We applied a sensitivity factor to net
reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses by underwriting division below. We believe that potential changes such as these would not have a material impact on our
liquidity.

Potential Impact as of December 31, 2024

Net Reserves for

Unpaid Losses and
Loss Adjustment Mezzanine Equity and Mezzanine Equity and
Underwriting Division Expenses 7.5% Higher Pre-tax Income Stockholders’ Equity® 7.5% Lower Pre-tax Income Stockholders’ Equity®
(8 in thousands)

Casualty $ 311,115 $ 334449 § (23,334) $ (18,434) $ 287,781 $ 23334 $ 18,434
Professional Liability 119,741 128,722 (8,981) (7,095) 110,760 8,981 7,095
Healthcare Liability 78,925 84,844 (5,919) (4,676) 73,006 5,919 4,676
Baleen Specialty 163 175 (12) (10) 151 12 10

Potential Impact as of December 31, 2023

Net Reserves for
Unpaid Losses and

Loss Adjustment Mezzanine Equity and Mezzanine Equity and
Underwriting Division Expenses 7.5% Higher Pre-tax Income Stockholders’ Equity® 7.5% Lower Pre-tax Income Stockholders’ Equity”

(8 in thousands)
Casualty $ 160,708 $ 172,761  $ (12,053) $ 9,522) $ 148,655 $ 12,053 § 9,522
Professional Liability 85,739 92,169 (6,430) (5,080) 79,309 6,430 5,080
Healthcare Liability 48,466 52,101 (3,635) (2,872) 44,831 3,635 2,872

(1)  The U.S. corporate income tax rate of 21% is used to estimate the potential impact to mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity.
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The amount by which estimated losses differ from those originally reported for a period is known as “development.” Development is unfavorable when the losses ultimately
settle for more than the amount reserved or subsequent estimates indicate a basis for reserve increases on unresolved claims. Development is favorable when losses ultimately
settle for less than the amount reserved or subsequent estimates indicate a basis for reducing loss reserves on unresolved claims. We reflect favorable or unfavorable development
of loss reserves in the results of operations in the period the estimates are changed.

Reinsurance recoverable

We purchase various forms of reinsurance to manage loss exposures and safeguard our capital. Our reinsurance is primarily contracted under quota-share reinsurance treaties
and excess of loss treaties. We may also place facultative reinsurance on specific risks we deem prudent.

A quota share reinsurance treaty is an agreement where reinsurers assume a percentage of the company’s losses in exchange for a negotiated percentage of premium. An
excess of loss reinsurance treaty is an agreement where reinsurers agree to assume a portion of losses for a specific event in excess of a specified amount in return for a negotiated
premium. The negotiated premium is based on the assessment of the amount of risk being ceded to the reinsurer because the reinsurer does not share proportionately in the ceding
company's losses.

The recognition of reinsurance recoverables requires two key estimates as follows:

*  The first estimate is the amount of loss reserves to be ceded to our reinsurers. This amount consists of our case reserves and IBNR. See “Reserves for losses and loss
adjustment expenses” under “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” above and Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies” in our Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion.

*  The second estimate is the amount of the reinsurance recoverable balance we believe will ultimately not be collected from reinsurers. We are selective in choosing
reinsurers, buying reinsurance from reinsurers with an A.M. Best rating of “A” (Excellent) or better. The amount we ultimately collect may differ from our estimate due
to the ability and willingness of reinsurers to pay claims, which may be negatively impacted by factors such as insolvency, contractual disputes over contract language or
coverage and/or other reasons. In addition, economic conditions and/or operational performance of a particular reinsurer may deteriorate, and this could also affect the
ability and willingness of a reinsurer to meet their contractual obligations

As of December 31, 2024, we believe 100% of our recoverables are collectible and, therefore, the total provision for current expected credit losses recorded against
recoverables is not material.

Fair value measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. Fair value is determined based on a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the use of observable inputs over the use of unobservable inputs and requires the use of observable
inputs when available. The Company utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels, as follows:

= Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in inactive
markets for identical assets or liabilities, or other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable through market-corroborated inputs, such as interest rates, yield curves,
prepayment speeds, default rates, or loss severities.

= Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, and that reflect the Company’s best
estimate of what hypothetical market participants would use to determine a transaction price for the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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See Note 4, “Fair Value Measurements”, in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion regarding our
fair value disclosures.

Deferred income taxes

We record deferred income taxes as assets or liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets to reflect the net tax effect of the temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured by applying enacted tax rates in
effect for the years in which such differences are expected to reverse. Our deferred tax assets result from temporary differences primarily attributable to unearned premium
reserves, unrealized losses on investments and loss reserves. Our deferred tax liabilities result primarily from deferred policy acquisition costs. We review the need for a valuation
allowance related to our deferred tax assets each quarter. We reduce our deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance when we determine that it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The assessment of whether or not a valuation allowance is needed requires us to use significant judgment. See Note 13,
“Income Taxes” in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion regarding our deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies,” in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion
regarding our recent accounting pronouncements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of economic losses due to adverse changes in the estimated fair value of a financial instrument as the result of changes in interest rates, equity prices,
foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices. The primary component of market risk affecting us is interest rate risk associated with our investments in fixed maturity
securities. We do not have material exposure to equity prices, foreign currency exchange rate risk or commodity risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in interest rates. Fluctuations in interest rates have a direct effect on the market valuation
of our fixed maturity securities. When market interest rates rise, the fair value of our securities decreases. Conversely, as interest rates fall, the fair value of our securities increases.
Changes in interest rates will have an immediate effect on comprehensive income (loss) and mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity, but will not ordinarily have an immediate
effect on net income. We manage this interest rate risk by investing in securities with varied maturity dates.

We had fixed maturity securities, short-term investments and cash and cash equivalents with a fair value of $1,024.2 million at December 31, 2024 and $567.3 million at
December 31, 2023 that were subject to interest rate risk. The table below illustrates the sensitivity of the fair value of our fixed maturity securities, short-term investments and
cash and cash equivalents to selected hypothetical changes in interest rates as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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As of December 31, 2024 As of December 31, 2023
Estimated Change in Estimated % Increase Estimated Change in Estimated % Increase
Estimated Fair Value Fair Value (Decrease) in Fair Value Estimated Fair Value Fair Value (Decrease) in Fair Value
(8 in th Is, except perc )
200 basis point increase $ 981,213 $ (43,018) “42)% $ 545278 $ (22,070) (3.99%
100 basis point increase 1,002,312 (21,919) 2.0)% 556,058 (11,290) (2.0)%
No change 1,024,230 — —% 567,348 — — %
100 basis point decrease 1,046,354 22,123 22% 578,978 11,631 21%
200 basis point decrease 1,067,453 43,223 42 % 590,836 23,488 4.1 %

Actual results may differ from the hypothetical change in market rates assumed in this disclosure. This sensitivity analysis does not reflect the results of any action that we
may take to mitigate such hypothetical losses in fair value.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential loss resulting from adverse changes in an issuer’s ability to repay its debt obligations. We have exposure to credit risk as a holder of fixed maturity
securities. Our investment policy is designed to primarily invest in debt instruments of high credit quality issuers and to manage the amount of credit exposure with limits on
particular ratings categories, limits for any one issuer and limits for sectors and regions. We monitor our investment portfolio to ensure that credit risk does not exceed prudent
levels. The majority of our investment portfolio is invested in high credit quality, investment grade fixed maturity securities. As of December 31, 2024, our fixed maturity portfolio
has an average rating by at least one nationally recognized rating organization of “AA ,” with approximately 93.3% rated “A” or better. We purchase fixed maturity securities
based on our assessment of the credit quality of the underlying assets without regard to insurance.

In addition, we are subject to credit risk as we cede a portion of our risks to reinsurers. Although our reinsurers are obligated to reimburse us to the extent we cede risk to
them, we are ultimately liable to our policyholders on all risks we have ceded. As a result, reinsurance contracts do not limit our ultimate obligations to pay claims covered under
the insurance policies we issue and we might not collect amounts recoverable from our reinsurers. We address this credit risk by selecting reinsurers that have an A.M. Best rating
of “A” (Excellent) or better at the time we enter into the agreement and by performing, along with our reinsurance broker, periodic credit reviews of our reinsurers. As of
December 31, 2024, 100% of our reinsurance recoverables were either derived from reinsurers rated “A” (Excellent) by A.M. Best, or better.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2024
and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity and of cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, including the related notes and financial statement schedules listed in the accompanying
index (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements"). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2024 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or
fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are
required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud,
and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 27, 2025

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2022.
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Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2024 2023
(8 in thousands, except share data)
Assets
Investments
Fixed maturity securities, available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost of $894,145 and $569,013, respectively) $ 879,989 § 554,624
Short-term investments, at amortized cost, which approximates fair value 9,997 8,824
Total investments 889,986 563,448
Cash and cash equivalents 97,476 118,070
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 124,582 1,698
Accrued investment income 7,520 4,660
Premium balances receivable 63,672 38,817
Reinsurance recoverable 255,072 139,389
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 152,567 116,732
Deferred policy acquisition costs 27,625 19,407
Property and equipment, net 6,845 7,601
Income taxes receivable 586 1,107
Deferred tax assets, net 20,340 14,229
Other assets 7,971 2,701
Total assets $ 1,654,242  $ 1,027,859
Liabilities
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 756,859 $ 431,186
Unearned premiums 446,850 344,704
Reinsurance balances payable 51,856 40,440
Income taxes payable 1,571 42
Accrued expenses 18,010 14,900
Other liabilities 8,654 4,510
Total liabilities 1,283,800 835,782

Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)

Mezzanine equity

Performance stock units 265 —

Stockholders' equity
Common stock 327 240

(30.01 par value; 400,000,000 shares authorized, 32,662,683 and 24,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and December 31,
2023, respectively)

Additional paid-in capital 318,095 178,543
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (11,154) (11,372)
Retained earnings 62,909 24,666
Total stockholders' equity 370,177 192,077
Total mezzanine equity and stockholders' equity 370,442 192,077
Total liabilities, mezzanine equity and stockholders' equity $ 1,654,242 $ 1,027,859

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

(8 in thousands, except share and per share data)

Revenues
Gross written premiums $ 695,717 $ 507,688 $ 356,948
Ceded written premiums (244,295) (173,016) (111,834)
Net written premiums 451,422 334,672 245,114
Change in net unearned premiums (66,311) (70,770) (62,251)
Net earned premiums 385,111 263,902 182,863
Net investment income 40,121 19,371 4,725
Net realized investment losses (16) — —
Other insurance-related income 444 125 14
Total revenues 425,660 283,398 187,602
Expenses
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 248,099 166,282 111,761
Net acquisition costs 32,397 20,935 15,194
Operating expenses 89,112 63,456 45,986
Non-operating expenses 2,807 630 =
Warrant expense 1,917 — —
Credit facility interest expenses and fees 725 — —
Foreign exchange losses (gains) 68 (20) —
Total expenses 375,125 251,283 172,941
Income before income taxes 50,535 32,115 14,661
Income tax expense (12,292) (7,068) (3,405)
Net income $ 38,243 $ 25,047 $ 11,256

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Change in unrealized loss on investments (net of income tax (expense) of $(58), $(1,413) and
$4,247, respectively) 218 5,317 (15,975)

Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 38,461 $ 30,364 $ 4,719)

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 131 § 1.04 $ 0.47
Diluted $ 129 $ 1.04 $ 0.47

‘Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 29,261,209 24,000,000 24,000,000
Diluted 29,677,196 24,000,000 24,000,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Balance, January 1, 2022

Net income

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Capital contribution from parent
Capital distribution to parent
Share-based compensation expense
Balance, December 31, 2022

Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Capital contribution from parent
Capital distribution to parent
Stock-based compensation expense
Balance, December 31, 2023

Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Capital contribution from parent

Capital distribution to parent

Issuance of common stock under stock-based

compensation plan
Stock-based compensation expense
Warrant expense

Proceeds from initial public offering, net

Balance, December 31, 2024

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Mezzanine Equity and Stockholders’ Equity

Total Mezzanine

Common Stock Accumulated Other Equity and
Additional Paid-in Comprehensive Retained (Deficit) Stockholders'
Number of Shares Amount Mezzanine Equity Capital Loss Earnings Equity
(8 in thousands, except share data)
24,000,000 $ 240 $ — $ 100,836 $ (714) $ (11,637) $ 88,725
— — — — — 11,256 11,256
— — — — (15,975) — (15,975)
— — — 24,000 — — 24,000
— — — (25,000) — — (25,000)
— — — 368 — — 368
24,000,000 $ 240 $ — $ 100,204 $ (16,689) $ 381) $ 83,374
— — — — — 25,047 25,047
— — — — 5,317 — 5,317
— — — 77,656 — — 77,656
— — — 683 — — 683
24,000,000 $ 240 $ — $ 178,543 $ (11,372) $ 24,666 $ 192,077
— — — — — 38,243 38,243
— — — — 218 — 218
— — — 2,839 — — 2,839
3,860 — — 64 — — 64
— — 265 3,837 — — 4,102
— — — 1,917 — — 1,917
8,658,823 87 o 130,896 o = 130,983
32,662,683 $ 327 $ 265 $ 318,095 $ (11,154) $ 62,909 $ 370,442

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Net realized investment losses

Amortization of premium/discounts on fixed maturity securities

Stock-based compensation
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash lease expense
Deferred income taxes
Warrant expense
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued investment income
Premium balances receivable
Reinsurance recoverable
Prepaid reinsurance premiums
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Income taxes receivable
Other assets
Reserve for losses and loss expenses
Unearned premium
Reinsurance balances payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Purchases of:
Fixed maturity securities
Short-term investments
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of:
Fixed maturity securities
Short-term investments
Purchase of property and equipment, net
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Capital contribution from parent
Capital distribution to parent
Proceeds from share issuance related to equity awards
Proceeds from initial public offering, net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period

Reconciliation of restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Income taxes paid
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Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
(8 in thousands)

38243 § 25,047 $ 11,256
16 — —
(3,508) (2,848) (70)
4,102 683 368
3,868 2,268 727
1,043 577 640
(6,168) (4,362) (2,972)
1,917 — —
(2,860) (3,429) (933)
(24,855) (9,330) (1,945)
(115,683) (75,858) (49,586)
(35,835) (42,191) (27,618)
(8,218) (5,735) (5,763)
521 (1,107) —
(6,314) (1,437) 1,053
325,673 224,135 159,100
102,146 112,961 89,869
11,416 16,753 5,148
3,110 2,871 2,260
1,529 (1,475) 1,089
4,144 (1,298) 979)
294,287 236,225 181,644
(603,028) (345,843) (152,629)
(9,907) (21,406) (45,665)
281,184 36,809 14,808
8,980 59,494 —
(3,112) (3,819) (3,972)
(325,883) (274,765) (187,458)
2,839 77,656 24,000
— — (25,000)

64 — —
130,983 — —
133,886 77,656 (1,000)
102,290 39,117 (6,814)
119,768 80,651 87,465
222,058 $ 119,768 $ 80,651
97,476 $ 118,070 64,659
124,582 1,698 15,992
222,058 §$ 119,768 80,651
16411 § 14,011 5,291

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Operations

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (“BSHI” and, together with its subsidiaries, “the Company”), is a Delaware domiciled insurance holding company that provides commercial
specialty property and casualty insurance products in the U.S., focusing on casualty, professional liability and healthcare liability risks, which are primarily written on a non-
admitted (or excess and surplus (“E&S”)) basis. On March 19, 2024, the Company amended the certificate of incorporation of Bowhead Holdings Inc. to change the name of the
Company to Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.

BSHI conducts its business operations through three wholly-owned subsidiaries. Bowhead Specialty Underwriters, Inc. (“BSUI”) is BSHI’s managing general agency, holding
a resident insurance license in the State of Texas, and is domiciled in the State of Delaware. Bowhead Insurance Company, Inc. (“BICI”) is BSHI’s insurance company subsidiary
licensed and domiciled as an admitted insurer in the State of Wisconsin. Bowhead Underwriting Services, Inc. (“BUSI”) is the Company’s services company domiciled in the State
of Delaware.

BSUI is party to three Managing General Agency Agreements (“MGA Agreements”) with Homesite Insurance Company, Homesite Insurance Company of Florida, and
Midvale Indemnity Company (together the “AmFam Issuing Carriers”), each of which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of American Family Mutual Insurance Company, S.1.,
(“AFMIC” and together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, “AmFam”). AmFam beneficially owns approximately 14.4% of BSHI’s issued and outstanding common stock as of
December 31, 2024. BSUI is also party to third-party broker agreements, allowing the direct payment of premiums from the brokers to BSUIL. Through these MGA agreements,
BSUI writes premium and provides claim handling services on behalf of the AmFam Issuing Carriers, and BICI assumes 100% of the premium, net of any inuring third-party
reinsurance, through a Quota Share Agreement with AFMIC (the “AmFam Quota Share Agreement”). AmFam receives a ceding fee on net premiums assumed by BICI (“Ceding
Fee”). BICI is also party to an Insurance Trust Agreement pursuant to which BICI provides collateral to support the obligations of the AmFam Quota Share Agreement.

Stock Split

On May 9, 2024, the Company effected a 240 thousand-for-1 forward split of issued and outstanding shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share. As a result of the
forward stock split, one hundred (100) shares of common stock issued and outstanding was increased to 24 million shares of issued and outstanding common stock, without any
change in the par value per share. All share, per share and related information presented in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes have been retroactively
adjusted, where applicable, to reflect the impact of the forward stock split.

Initial Public Offering

On May 28, 2024, the Company completed an upsized initial public offering (the “IPO”) with the sale of 8,658,823 shares of common stock at a price to the public of $17.00
per share, including 1,129,411 shares sold upon the exercise in full of the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares. After underwriter discounts, commissions and
offering expenses, net proceeds to the Company from the IPO were approximately $131.0 million.

Prior to our IPO, BSHI was wholly-owned by Bowhead Insurance Holding LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“BIHL”). BIHL’s limited partners included GPC Partners
Investments (SPV III) LP (“GPC Fund”), a private equity fund managed by Gallatin Point Capital LLC (“Gallatin Point”), AMFIC, members of Bowhead’s management and other
minority investors. Following the IPO, the shares of our common stock held by BIHL were either distributed to BIHL’s limited partners or sold in the secondary offering of
common stock on October 25, 2024. Following October 25, 2024, BIHL was no longer a holder of our common stock and on December 3, 2024, BIHL was dissolved.

The Company is organized as a single operating and reportable segment through which it offers a variety of commercial specialty insurance products to a number of markets.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies
a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S.
GAAP”) and include all accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.

b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Changes in circumstances could cause actual results to differ materially from those estimates. Significant estimates in
the Company’s consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to, reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses, reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expenses, fair value of investments, and income taxes.

Management bases its estimates and assumptions on historical experience and other factors, including the current economic environment and on various other judgments that
it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management periodically reviews its estimates and assumptions and makes adjustments thereto when facts and circumstances
dictate. Changes in accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are recognized prospectively in the consolidated financial statements.

¢) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes premiums as written at the inception of the policy, which are earned on a pro-rata basis over the policy term. Unearned premium represents the
portion of written premiums that relates to unexpired terms of in-force insurance policies. Premium balances receivable include amounts receivable from agents and brokers that
are both currently due and amounts not yet due.

d) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash held in bank accounts and cash held in short-term securities. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value.

Restricted cash is substantially all comprised of funds set aside in accordance with the Insurance Trust Agreement between BICI and AmFam. The carrying value of the
Company’s restricted cash approximates fair value.

e) Investments

The Company classifies investments in fixed maturity securities as available for sale, and as such they are carried at estimated fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded as
unrealized gains (losses) in accumulated other comprehensive loss. The fair value of fixed maturity securities is generally determined from quotations received from nationally
recognized pricing services or when such prices are not available, by reference to other sources (including observed trading levels, pricing curves or matrices).

Short-term investments consist of treasury bills and treasury notes with maturities greater than three months but less than one year at the date of purchase and are valued at
amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Realized investment gains (losses) represent the difference between the amortized cost of securities sold and the proceeds realized upon sale, which are recorded at the trade
date. Gains or losses on fixed maturity securities are determined on a specific identification basis.

Net investment income includes interest income as well as the amortization of market premiums and discounts, net of investment management and custody fees.
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See Note 3 for additional information on investments.
f) Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. Fair value is determined based on a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the use of observable inputs over the use of unobservable inputs and requires the use of observable
inputs when available. The Company utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels, as follows:

= Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in inactive
markets for identical assets or liabilities, or other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable through market-corroborated inputs, such as interest rates, yield curves,
prepayment speeds, default rates, or loss severities.

= Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, and that reflect the Company’s best
estimate of what hypothetical market participants would use to determine a transaction price for the asset or liability at the measurement date.

See Note 4 for additional information on fair value disclosures.
g) Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs associated with the successful acquisition of new and renewed insurance and reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized ratably over the terms of the
related contracts. Ceding commissions received on ceded reinsurance contracts are netted against acquisition costs and are recognized ratably over the life of the assumed
underlying contract. Deferred policy acquisition costs are comprised primarily of broker commissions and Ceding Fees due to AmFam, which are presented net of unearned ceding
commissions. Deferred policy acquisition costs are reviewed to determine if they are recoverable from unearned premium and, if not, are charged to expense. Anticipated
investment income is considered in determining if a premium deficiency exists. The recoverability of deferred policy acquisition costs is evaluated separately by underwriting
division.

See Note 5 for additional information on deferred policy acquisition costs.
h) Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company’s reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses are comprised of case reserves and incurred but not reported liabilities (“IBNR”). When a claim is reported, a
case reserve is established for the estimated ultimate payment based upon known information about the claim. As more information about the claim becomes available over time,
case reserves are adjusted as appropriate. Such adjustments are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss) in the period in which they
are determined. Reserves are also established on an aggregate basis to provide for IBNR liabilities and expected loss reserve development on reported claims.

Loss reserves included in the Company’s financial statements represent management’s best estimates based upon an actuarially derived point estimate and other
considerations. The Company uses a variety of actuarial techniques and methods to derive an actuarial point estimate. These methods may include expected loss ratio, paid loss
development, incurred loss development, paid and incurred Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods, Cape Cod, and frequency and severity methods. In circumstances where one actuarial
method is considered more credible than the others, that method is used to set the point estimate. The actuarial point estimate may also be based on a judgmental weighting of
estimates produced from each of the methods considered. Industry loss experience is used to supplement the Company’s own data in selecting a priori loss ratios and loss
development assumptions, where the Company’s own data is limited. The actuarial data is analyzed by line of business and coverage, as appropriate.
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See Note 6 for additional information on reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses.
i) Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company’s insurance company subsidiary, BICI, cedes a portion of its premium to third-party reinsurers through pro rata and excess of
loss reinsurance agreements on a treaty or facultative basis. These arrangements reduce the effect of individual or aggregate losses to the Company. Premiums are disclosed in the
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss) net of ceded premiums. Reinsurance premiums, commissions, and ceded unearned premiums on reinsured
business are accounted for on a basis consistent with that used in accounting for the original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts. The Company receives
ceding commissions in accordance with certain reinsurance treaties. The ceding commissions are capitalized and amortized as a reduction of underwriting acquisition expenses.
The unearned portion of premiums ceded to reinsurers is reported as prepaid reinsurance premiums and earned ratably over the underlying assumed policy term.

The estimated amounts of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses are reported as reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses. Ceded reinsurance
contracts do not relieve the Company of its primary obligations to its policyholders. To the extent a reinsurer does not meet its obligations under reinsurance agreements, the
Company remains liable for such obligations.

j) Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net, is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets which ranges from 3 to 10 years. For certain leasehold improvements, depreciation is calculated over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets or the lease term. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Upon disposition, the asset cost and related depreciation are removed from the
accounts and the resulting gain or loss is included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance with ASC 350-40, Internal Use Software. Capitalization of costs begins when two criteria are met: (1)
the preliminary project stage is completed, and (2) it is probable that the software will be completed and used for its intended function. Capitalization ceases when the software is
substantially complete and ready for its intended use, including the completion of all significant testing. Capitalized software costs are included in property and equipment, net on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We evaluate the useful life of capitalized software on an annual basis and test for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances occur
that could impact the recoverability of these assets. Costs related to preliminary project activities and post-implementation operating activities are expensed as incurred. The
capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset, which is 3 to 4 years.

See Note 16 for additional information on property and equipment.
k) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets with finite lives are tested for impairment whenever recognized events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of these assets may not be
recoverable. If indicators of impairment are present, fair value is calculated using estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the use of those assets. An impairment
loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of a long-lived asset or asset group is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset or asset
group is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. That assessment
is based on the carrying amount of the asset or asset group at the date it is tested for recoverability. An impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of
a long-lived asset or asset group exceeds its fair value.
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1) Leases

The Company has lease agreements for two corporate office spaces for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. These lease arrangements are accounted for in
accordance with ASC 842, Leases, (“ASC 842”). At adoption, the Company elected the practical expedient to combine lease and non-lease components, as well as the short-term
lease exception. The Company determines at inception whether an arrangement is or contains a lease. For any arrangements that meet the definition of a lease, we first assess the
lease classification criteria to determine whether the lease is a finance or operating lease.

On the lease commencement date, for operating leases that have a lease term of more than 12 months, the Company recognizes a lease liability within other liabilities and a
right-of-use (“ROU) asset within other assets in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The liability is initially measured and recognized at the present value of the lease
payments at the lease commencement date. The discount rate used to measure the lease liability is the rate implicit in the lease or, if the rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable, the incremental borrowing rate. The ROU asset is equal to the lease liability, adjusted for any initial direct costs and any lease payments made to the lessor at or
before lease commencement.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the Company recognizes lease expense on a straight-line basis over the non-cancelable lease term and renewal periods that are considered
reasonably assured at the inception of the lease. ROU assets are periodically subject to impairment tests, similar to the manner in which long-lived assets are tested for impairment
in accordance with ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment.

See Note 17 for additional information on leases.
m) Foreign Exchange

The Company accounts for foreign exchange (gains) losses arising from the remeasurement of a non-U.S. dollar operating expense liability to U.S. dollars. The change in the
liability due to the fluctuations in the exchange rate are included within the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss) at the end of each period.

n) Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income and net unrealized investment losses on available for sale fixed maturity investments, net of tax.
0) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to be
applied in the years in which temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The Company reduces deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance to the extent
management concludes it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realized.

The Company analyzes its tax filing positions in all of the U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as for all
open tax years in these jurisdictions. The Company evaluates tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of preparing an entity’s tax returns to determine whether it is
“more-likely-than-not” that each tax position will be sustained by the applicable tax authority. There are no material tax positions taken or expected to be taken that would
significantly increase or decrease unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months. Interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recorded within operating
expenses within the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss). None of the Company’s federal or state tax income tax returns are currently under
examination by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or state authorities.

See Note 13 for additional information on income taxes.

85



Table of Contents

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

p) Stock-Based Compensation
Class P Interests

BIHL issued Class P Interests to certain employees in connection with the Company’s pre-IPO employee compensation structure. Each Class P Interest is structured as a profit
interest award and entitles the employees to profits after the partners of BIHL receive a return of their initial investment. The Class P Interests are accounted for as equity under
accounting standards codification (“ASC”) 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation (“ASC 718”). The fair value of the compensation cost incurred under these awards is
measured at the date of grant based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as operating expenses within the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive
Income (Loss), using a graded method over the requisite service period. The Company recognizes any award forfeitures when they occur.

2024 Plan

On May 22, 2024, the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved and adopted the 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2024 Plan”), which provides for the grant of
stock options (including incentive stock options (“ISOs”) and nonqualified stock options), stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units (“RSUs”), other stock-
based awards, stock bonuses, cash awards and substitute awards.

Under the 2024 Plan, the Company granted RSUs to the Company’s employees and certain Board directors, and performance stock units (“PSUs”) to its chief executive
officer (the “CEO”).

Restricted Stock Units

The RSUs are subject to a service condition and are accounted for as equity under ASC 718. The RSUs are valued based on the fair value of the underlying award, which is
Bowhead’s common stock, at the date of grant. The Company recognizes the compensation cost for the RSUs on a straight-line basis over the awards’ vesting period as operating
expenses within the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss). The Company recognizes any award forfeitures when they occur.

Performance Stock Units

The PSUs are subject to both a service and a market condition, and may be settled in cash upon the occurrence of an event that is outside of the Company’s control. The PSUs
are accounted for as mezzanine equity on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets under ASC 718 until the vesting date. The PSUs are measured at fair value based on a
Monte Carlo simulation model. The Company recognizes the compensation cost for PSUs on a straight-line basis over the award’s vesting period as operating expenses within the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss). If the market condition is not achieved, previously recognized compensation expense is not
reversed. The Company recognizes any award forfeitures when they occur.

Warrants

On May 22, 2024, the Board approved the issuance of warrants to AFMIC, a related party of the Company, to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock. The warrants
are subject to a service condition and are accounted for as equity under ASC 718. The fair value of the warrants are based on Black-Scholes-Merton pricing models. The Company
recognizes compensation cost for the warrants on a quarterly basis over the awards’ vesting period as warrant expense within the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income
and Comprehensive Income (Loss). The Company recognizes any award forfeitures when they occur.

See Note 10 for additional information on stock-based compensation.
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q) Deferred Financing Fees

Costs associated with the establishment of a senior secured revolving credit facility have been deferred and are amortized using the straight-line method over the terms of
such instruments. Unamortized deferred financing fees are presented within other assets on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets, and amortization expenses related to such
costs are included in credit facility interest expenses and fees in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

See Note 8 for additional information on deferred financing fees.
r) Benefit Plans

Pursuant to the terms of the defined contribution Safe Harbor 401(k) Retirement and Savings Plan (“the Plan”), 100% of employee contributions to the Plan are matched on
the first 4.0% of salary up to the IRS compensation limit. Company contributions are expensed in the year for which the benefit is earned. All participants are allowed to direct the
lesser of 100% of compensation into a pre-tax deferral plan and a Roth 401(k) account, or the maximum permitted by law.

See Note 15 for additional information on benefit plans.
s) Concentrations of Credit Risk

The creditworthiness of a counterparty is evaluated by the Company, taking into account credit ratings assigned by independent agencies. The credit approval process involves
an assessment of factors, including, among others, the counterparty, country, and industry credit exposure limits. Collateral may be required, at the discretion of the Company, on
certain transactions based on the creditworthiness of the counterparty. The areas where significant concentrations of credit risk may exist include cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash and investments, premium balances receivable, and reinsurance recoverable.

t) Allowance for Credit Losses

The Company’s reinsurance recoverable and premium balances receivable are subject to credit losses. The Company routinely monitors changes in the credit quality and
concentration risks of the reinsurance counterparties and the insurance brokers and updates the allowance for credit losses accordingly. For the respective periods ending
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, based on the Company's analysis, the allowance for credit loss is determined to be immaterial.

Investments in fixed maturity securities, all of which are classified as available for sale, are held at fair value, net of an allowance for credit losses, and any decline in fair
value that is believed to arise from factors other than credit is recorded as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Mezzanine Equity and Stockholders' Equity. The Company did not record any allowance for credit losses on its available for sale securities as of December 31, 2024,
or December 31, 2023, respectively.

u) Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share follows the basic
earnings per share calculation, except the denominator is increased to reflect the dilution that may occur if equity based awards are converted into common stock equivalents, as
calculated using the treasury stock method. Anti-dilutive equity based awards, which are awards that would increase earnings per share upon conversion under the treasury stock
method, are excluded in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

See Note 11 for the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.
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v) Other Insurance-Related Income

Other insurance-related income includes fees associated with the issuance of policies, which are earned on the effective date of the underlying policy, and revenue we
receive for providing insurance-related services, which are earned on a pro-rata basis over the service period.

w) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company is an emerging growth company, as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth
companies can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards issued subsequent to the enactment of the JOBS Act, until such time as those standards apply to private
companies. The Company is provided an option to adopt new or revised accounting guidance as an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act either (1) within the same
periods as those otherwise applicable to public business entities, or (2) within the same time periods as private companies, including early adoption when permissible.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326)

On June 16, 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2016-13, “Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326)” to provide more useful
information about the expected credit losses on financial instruments. The update requires a financial asset measured at amortized cost to be presented at the net amount expected
to be collected by means of an allowance for credit losses that runs through net income. Credit losses relating to available for sale fixed maturity securities must also be recorded
through an allowance for credit losses, which is limited to the amount by which fair value is below amortized cost. The measurement of credit losses on available for sale
securities is similar under previous U.S. GAAP, but the update requires the use of the allowance account through which amounts can be reversed, rather than through an
irreversible write-down. The FASB has issued additional ASUs on Topic 326 that do not change the core principle of the guidance in ASU 2016-13 but clarify certain aspects of it.

The Company adopted ASU 2016-13 on January 1, 2023, using the modified-retrospective approach. The adoption of this ASU resulted in the recognition of an allowance for
credit loss related to the Company’s reinsurance recoverable and premium balances receivable. Because the Company enters into contracts with reinsurers that have A.M. Best
ratings of “A” (Excellent) or better and has a history of collecting premium balances receivable, the effect of adoption was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

ASU 2023-07, Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures (Topic 280)

On January 1, 2024, the Company adopted ASU 2023-07, “Improvements to Reportable Segments Disclosures” retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial
statements. ASU 2023-07 expands public entities’ segment disclosures by requiring disclosure of significant segment expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM?”) and included within each reported measure of segment profit or loss, an amount and description of its composition for other segment items, and interim
disclosures of a reportable segment’s profit or loss and assets. All disclosure requirements under ASU 2023-07 are also required for public entities with a single reportable
segment.

The adoption of ASU 2023-07 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements or disclosures, as the Company’s reportable segments and
related disclosures already aligned with the new requirements. The Company will continue to evaluate and implement any necessary changes to comply with this guidance.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted
ASU 2023-09, Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (Topic 740)

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, “Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures” (Topic 740). ASU 2023-09 requires public companies, on an annual basis, to
provide enhanced rate reconciliation disclosures, including disclosures of specific categories and additional information that meet a quantitative threshold. This update also
requires public companies to provide additional disclosures regarding income taxes paid, including jurisdictional details. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2024. The Company is evaluating the effect of the amendments on its consolidated financial statements and does not expect a material impact on its financial
position or results of operations.

ASU 2024-03, Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income—Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220-40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income—Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220-40):
Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses. ASU 2024-03 enhances the transparency of expense information by requiring public business entities to disclose specific types of
expenses included in the expense captions presented on the face of the income statement as well as disclosures about selling expenses. The amendments are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2026. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on its financial statement disclosures.

There are no other prospective accounting standards which, upon their effective date, would have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
3. Investments

The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair value of the Company’s fixed maturity securities, all of which are classified as available for sale:

Gross Unrealized
As of December 31, 2024 Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(8 in thousands)

Fixed maturity securities

U.S. government and government agency $ 204,205 $ 315§ (108) $ 204,412
State and municipal 73,289 — (5,505) 67,784
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 83,029 349 (940) 82,438
Residential mortgage-backed securities 197,589 649 (6,135) 192,103
Asset-backed securities 121,155 259 (837) 120,577
Corporate 214,878 238 (2,441) 212,675
Total $ 894,145 $ 1,810 $ (15,966) $ 879,989

Gross Unrealized
As of December 31, 2023 Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(8 in thousands)

Fixed maturity securities

U.S. government and government agency 252,294 579 $ (332) § 252,541
State and municipal 55,984 — (5,264) 50,720
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 26,573 29 (1,166) 25,436
Residential mortgage-backed securities 79,032 680 (5,010) 74,702
Asset-backed securities 42,964 32 (963) 42,033
Corporate 112,166 80 (3,054) 109,192
Total 569,013 1,400 $ (15,789) $ 554,624

a) Contractual Maturity of Fixed Maturity Securities

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2024 and 2023, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Actual maturities may differ from
contractual maturities because certain issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations.

As of December 31, 2024

Amortized Cost Fair Value

Fixed maturity securities

(8 in thousands)

Due in one year or less $ 206,764 $ 206,721
Due after one year through five years 208,179 205,012
Due after five years through ten years 45,230 43,199
Due after ten years 32,199 29,939
492,372 484,871

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 83,029 82,438
Residential mortgage-backed securities 197,589 192,103
Asset-backed securities 121,155 120,577
Total $ 894,145 $ 879,989




As of December 31, 2023 Amortized Cost Fair Value
(8 in thousands)
Fixed maturity securities
Due in one year or less $ 254,656 $ 254,443
Due after one year through five years 122,274 118,585
Due after five years through ten years 27,145 25,265
Due after ten years 16,369 14,160
420,444 412,453
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 26,573 25,436
Residential mortgage-backed securities 79,032 74,702
Asset-backed securities 42,964 42,033
Total $ 569,013 $ 554,624
b) Net Investment Income
The components of net investment income were derived from the following sources:
Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
(8 in thousands)
U.S. government and government agency 14,514 § 4,673 $ 255
State and municipal 1,832 1,550 1,052
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 2,584 1,381 479
Residential mortgage-backed securities 6,517 962 661
Asset-backed securities 3,043 3,708 730
Corporate 5,768 3,448 1,128
Short-term investments 480 943 371
Cash and cash equivalents 6,193 3,190 313
Gross investment income 40,931 19,855 4,989
Investment expenses (810) (484) (264)
Net investment income 40,121 § 19,371 § 4,725

¢) Net Realized Investment Gains or Losses

There were $16.2 thousand net realized losses from the sale of investments for the year ended December 31, 2024 and nil in 2023 and 2022.

d) Restricted Assets

The Company is required to maintain assets as collateral in trust accounts to support the obligations of the AmFam Quota Share Agreement. The assets held in trust include
fixed maturity securities, short-term investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents. The Company is entitled to interest income earned on these restricted assets, which is
included in net investment income in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

The following table summarizes the value of the Company’s restricted assets disclosed in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

As of December 31, 2024 2023
(8 in thousands)
U.S. government and government agency $ 97,130 $ 142,297
State and municipal 33,842 19,585
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 50,504 9,333
Residential mortgage-backed securities 115,323 35,313
Asset-backed securities 63,197 23,798
Corporate 124,836 49,632
Restricted fixed maturity securities 484,832 279,958
Restricted short-term investments 9,997 4,864
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 124,582 1,698
Restricted assets $ 619,411 $ 286,520

e) Gross Unrealized Losses

The following table summarizes available for sale securities in an unrealized loss position, the fair value and gross unrealized loss by length of time the security has been in a

continual unrealized loss position:



Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized
As of December 31, 2024 Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

(8 in thousands)

Fixed maturity securities

U.S. government and government agency ~ $ 55237 $ (108) $ — — 8 55,237 $ (108)
State and municipal 22,011 (566) 45,773 (4,939) 67,784 (5,505)
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 16,579 (112) 13,087 (828) 29,666 (940)
Residential mortgage-backed securities 100,817 (1,244) 29,879 (4,891) 130,696 (6,135)
Asset-backed securities 42,543 (472) 9,420 (365) 51,963 (837)
Corporate 118,237 (811) 43,125 (1,630) 161,362 (2,441)
Total $ 355,424 $ 3,313) $ 141,284 $ (12,653) $ 496,708 $ (15,966)
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized
As of December 31, 2023 Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(8 in thousands)
Fixed maturity securities
U.S. government and government agency $ 48,598 $ ©9) $ 10,970 $ (263) $ 59,568 $ (332)
State and municipal 2,992 (14) 47,728 (5,250) 50,720 (5,264)
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 2,485 (53) 18,423 (1,113) 20,908 (1,166)
Residential mortgage-backed securities 17,536 (609) 31,502 (4,401) 49,038 (5,010)
Asset-backed securities 16,253 (71) 18,491 (892) 34,744 (963)
Corporate 24,976 (173) 62,733 (2,881) 87,709 (3,054)
Total $ 112,840 $ “989) $ 189,847 $ (14,800) $ 302,687 $ (15,789)

All of the securities in an unrealized loss position are rated investment grade. For fixed maturity securities that management does not intend to sell or are required to sell, there
is no portion of the decline in value that is considered to be due to credit factors that would be recognized in earnings. Declines in value are considered to be due to non-credit
factors and are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss).

The Company has evaluated its fixed maturity securities in an unrealized loss position and concluded that the unrealized losses are due primarily to temporary market and
sector-related factors rather than to issuer-specific factors. None of these securities are delinquent or in default under financial covenants. Based on the assessment of these issuers,
the Company expects them to continue to meet their contractual payment obligations as they become due.
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4. Fair Value Measurements

The Company’s investments in fixed maturity securities, all of which are classified as available for sale, are carried at fair value. All of the Company’s fixed maturity
securities investments were priced by independent pricing services. The prices provided by the independent pricing services are estimated based on observable market data in
active markets utilizing pricing models and processes, which may include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark
securities, bids, offers, sector groupings, matrix pricing and reference data. Under certain circumstances, if a vendor price is unavailable, a price may be obtained from a broker.
The pricing services may prioritize inputs differently on any given day for any security based on market conditions, and not all inputs are available for each security evaluation on
any given day. The pricing services used by the Company have indicated that they will only produce an estimate of fair value if objectively verifiable information is available. The
determination of whether markets are active or inactive is based upon the volume and level of activity for a particular asset class.

The fair values of short-term investments approximate their carrying values due to their short-term maturity.
The following table presents the Company’s investments measured at fair value by level:

As of December 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(8 in thousands)
Fixed maturity securities

U.S. government and government agency $ 204,412 $ — 8 — 8 204,412
State and municipal — 67,784 — 67,784
Commercial mortgage-backed securities — 82,438 — 82,438
Residential mortgage-backed securities — 192,103 — 192,103
Asset-backed securities — 120,577 — 120,577
Corporate — 212,675 — 212,675
Total fixed maturity securities 204,412 675,577 — 879,989
Short-term investments 9,997 — — 9,997
Total investments $ 214,409 $ 675,577 $ — 889,986

As of December 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(8 in thousands)
Fixed maturity securities

U.S. government and government agency $ 251,332 § 1,209 § — 8 252,541
State and municipal — 50,720 — 50,720
Commercial mortgage-backed securities — 25,436 — 25,436
Residential mortgage-backed securities — 74,702 — 74,702
Asset-backed securities — 42,033 — 42,033
Corporate — 109,192 — 109,192
Total fixed maturity securities 251,332 303,292 — 554,624
Short-term investments 3,960 4,864 — 8,824
Total investments $ 255,292 $ 308,156 $ — 8 563,448
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Acquisition costs deferred and amortized to net income for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are summarized as follows:

As of December 31,

2024 2023 2022
(8 in thousands)
Deferred policy acquisition costs, beginning of year $ 19,407 13,672 7,909
Additions to deferred balance:
Broker commission 98,191 67,243 47,731
Ceding fee 9,848 7,546 5,191
Others 3,386 2,167 1,738
Ceding commission (70,810) (50,286) (33,703)
Total net additions 40,615 26,670 20,957
Amortization of net policy acquisition costs (32,397) (20,935) (15,194)
Deferred policy acquisition costs, end of year $ 27,625 19,407 13,672
Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
(8 in thousands)
Net policy acquisition costs
Broker commission $ 81,396 51,580 34,721
Ceding fee 8,643 5,847 3,952
Others 2,831 1,938 1,475
Ceding commission (60,473) (38,430) (24,954)
Amortization of net policy acquisition costs $ 32,397 § 20,935 § 15,194
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6. Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses
a) Reserve Roll Forward

The table below provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending reserve balances for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022:

As of and Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022

(8 in thousands)
Gross reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses, beginning of year $ 431,186 $ 207,051 $ 47,952
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses, beginning of year 136,273 63,381 13,945
Net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, beginning of year $ 294,913 $ 143,670 $ 34,007

Net incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses related to:

Current accident year 248,099 166,282 114,067
Prior accident years — — (2,306)
248,099 166,282 111,761
Net paid losses and loss adjustment expenses related to:

Current accident year 9,081 1,814 1,030
Prior accident years 23,987 13,225 1,068
33,068 15,039 2,098

Net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, end of year $ 509,944 $ 294913 $ 143,670
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses, end of year 246,915 136,273 63,381
Gross reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses, end of year $ 756,859 $ 431,186 $ 207,051

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no prior accident year reserve development, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2022, prior
accident year losses developed favorably by $2.3 million.

In the fourth quarter of 2024, as part of our annual independent actuarial reserve review, we reallocated prior accident year reserves by division, primarily from Professional
Liability to Casualty, to align more closely with industry loss ratios. The increase in our loss ratio and reallocation of prior accident year reserves are primarily based on inputs
from industry data due to Bowhead’s limited loss experience.

b) Net Incurred and Paid Claims Development by Accident Year

The Company measures claim frequency information on an individual claim count basis. Any claim that is reported to the Company is included in the count unless it is
subsequently settled without liability to the Company.

The following tables disclose by underwriting division, the development of net losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred and paid claims by accident year, IBNR,
cumulative number of reported claims and average annual percentage payout of incurred claims by age.
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The first loss development table within each underwriting division section presents cumulative net losses and loss adjustment expenses. The sum of the current accident year
row ties to net losses and loss adjustment expenses disclosed in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss). The second loss development table
within each underwriting division section presents cumulative net losses and loss adjustment expenses that have been paid to date. The difference between cumulative net losses
and loss adjustment expenses in the first table and cumulative net losses and loss adjustment expenses paid to date represent the Company’s net reserves for unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expenses. Note 6 ¢) reconciles net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses included in these loss development tables to reserves for losses and loss
adjustment expenses reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Casualty
Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred
For the Years Ended December 31, As of December 31, 2024
Cumulative Number
Accident Year 2021 (Unaudited) 2022 (Unaudited) 2023 (Unaudited) 2024 IBNR of Reported Claims
(8 in thousands)
2021 $ 14,248 $ 13,640 $ 16,003 $ 16,066 $ 12,951 25
2022 55,606 58,427 62,535 45,902 122
2023 93,028 97,808 84,919 249
2024 156,132 148,224 425
Total incurred $ 332,541
Cumulative Net Paid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expenses
For the Years Ended December 31,
Accident Year 2021 (Unaudited) 2022 (Unaudited) 2023 (Unaudited) 2024
(8 in thousands)
2021 $ 16 $ 220 $ 352§ 3,032
2022 256 6,072 8,260
2023 326 6,033
2024 4,101
Total paid $ 21,426
Net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 311,115
Average Annual Percentage Payout of Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred by
Age (Unaudited)
Years 1 2 3 4
Casualty 0.9% 5.5% 2.2% 16.7%
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Professional Liability
Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred
For the Years Ended December 31, As of December 31, 2024
Cumulative Number
Accident Year 2021 (Unaudited) 2022 (Unaudited) 2023 (Unaudited) 2024 IBNR of Reported Claims
(8 in thousands)
2021 $ 10,152 $ 15,484 $ 13,368 $ 7,056 $ 6,293 68
2022 39,442 37,129 32,392 14,193 164
2023 43,765 45,316 32,231 737
2024 55,322 49,155 1,387
Total incurred $ 140,086
Cumulative Net Paid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expenses
For the Years Ended December 31,
Accident Year 2021 (Unaudited) 2022 (Unaudited) 2023 (Unaudited) 2024
(8 in thousands)
2021 $ 213§ 518 $ 643 $ 710
2022 419 6,846 9,467
2023 1,034 6,300
2024 3,868
Total paid $ 20,345
Net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 119,741

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred by

Age (Unaudited)
Years 2 3
Professional Liability 3.4% 11.9% 4.9% 0.9%
Healthcare Liability
Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred
For the Years Ended December 31, As of December 31, 2024

2021 2022 Cumulative Number

Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2023 (Unaudited) 2024 IBNR of Reported Claims
(8 in thousands)
2021 $ 10,117  § 3,088 $ 2,841 $ 2,343 § 1,477 9
2022 19,019 18,511 20,897 11,197 105
2023 29,489 28,147 22,397 196
2024 36,248 33,464 467
Total incurred $ 87,635
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Cumulative Net Paid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expenses
For the Years Ended December 31,

2021 2022
Accident Year (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 2023 (Unaudited) 2024
(8 in thousands)

2021 $ 282 $ 841 $ 854 $ 863
2022 355 1,067 5,778
2023 454 1,191
2024 878

Total paid $ 8,710
Net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 78,925

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred by Age

(Unaudited)
Years 1 2 3 4
Healthcare Liability 4.4 % 10.0 % 11.5 % 0.4 %
Baleen Specialty
Net Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses Incurred
For the Year Ended December
31, As of December 31, 2024
Cumulative Number of
Accident Year 2024 IBNR Reported Claims
(8 in thousands)
2024 397 § 163 —
Total incurred 397
Cumulative Net Paid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expenses
Accident Year For the Years Ended December 31,
2024
2024 $ 234
Total paid 234
Net reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 163

Years

Average Annual Percentage Payout of Net Losses and Loss
Adjustment Expenses Incurred by Age

1

Baleen Specialty

59.2 %
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¢) Reconciliation of Net Incurred and Paid Claims Development to Consolidated Balance Sheets

The following table reconciles total reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance, included in the loss development tables to reserves for losses and loss

adjustment expenses reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

December 31, 2024

Net Reserves for Unpaid

Line of Business Losses and Loss Expenses

Reinsurance Recoverable on
Unpaid Losses

Gross Reserves for Losses
and Loss Expenses

(8 in thousands)

Casualty $ 311,115 $ 132,977 $ 444,092

Professional Liability 119,741 74,879 194,620

Healthcare Liability 78,925 39,008 117,933

Baleen Specialty 163 51 214

Total $ 509,944 $ 246,915 $ 756,859
December 31, 2023

Net Reserves for Unpaid

Line of Business Losses and Loss Expenses

Reinsurance Recoverable on
Unpaid Losses

Gross Reserves for Losses
and Loss Expenses

(8 in thousands)
Casualty $ 160,708 $ 63,710 $ 224,418
Professional Liability 85,739 47,197 132,936
Healthcare Liability 48,466 25,366 73,832
Total $ 294913 §$ 136,273  $ 431,186

7. Premiums and Reinsurance Related Information

The following table summarizes the effects of reinsurance on the Company’s written and earned premiums and losses and loss adjustment expenses:

Year Ended December 31, 2024

Losses and Loss Adjustment

Written Premiums Earned Premiums Expenses
($ in thousands)
Assumed $ 695,717  $ 593,571 § 371,349
Ceded (244,295) (208,460) (123,250)
Net $ 451,422 $ 385,111 § 248,099

Losses and Loss Adjustment

Year Ended December 31, 2023 Written Premiums Earned Premiums Expenses
(8 in thousands)
Assumed $ 507,688 § 394,727 $ 242,306
Ceded (173,016) (130,825) (76,024)
Net $ 334,672 $ 263,902 § 166,282
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Losses and Loss Adjustment

Year Ended December 31, 2022 Written Premiums Earned Premiums Expenses
(8 in thousands)
Assumed $ 356,948 $ 267,078 $ 161,350
Ceded (111,834) (84,215) (49,589)
Net $ 245,114 $ 182,863 $ 111,761

All assumed amounts are assumed through the AmFam Quota Share Agreement as described in Note 12.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 Bowhead ceded $28.0 million, $18.0 million and $2.7 million of written premium, $21.7 million, $9.0 million and
$1.1 million of earned premium and $13.5 million, $5.3 million and $0.6 million of losses and loss adjustment expenses to a subsidiary of AmFam, respectively.

The following table summarizes reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses:

2024 2023
(8 in thousands)

As of December 31,

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 246,915 $ 136,273
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses and loss adjustment expenses 8,157 3,116
$ 255,072 $ 139,389

Reinsurance recoverable

The following table summarizes the Company’s top five reinsurers, their A.M. Best financial strength rating and percent of total reinsurance recoverable as of December 31,
2024 and 2023:

Reinsurer A.M. Best Rating 2024 2023

Renaissance Reinsurance U.S. Inc A+ 29.8% 29.8%
Endurance Assurance Corporation A+ 23.8% 24.4%
Markel Global Reinsurance Company A 20.8% 24.5%
Ascot Bermuda Limited A 9.4% 7.3%
American Family Connect Property and Casualty Insurance Company A 7.5% 4.2%
Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S. A+ 4.2% 8.5%
All other reinsurers At least A 4.5% 1.3%

100.0% 100.0%

Total

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, $19.2 million and $5.9 million, respectively, of the Company’s reinsurance recoverable balance is with a subsidiary of
AmFam.

8. Revolving Credit

On April 22, 2024, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with certain lenders and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent,
swingline lender and issuing bank. The Credit Agreement provides for a senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) in the aggregate principal amount of $75 million,
which includes a $5 million sub-facility for letters of credit. All obligations under the Facility and obligations in respect of certain cash management services and swap agreements
with the lenders and their affiliates are (i) unconditionally guaranteed by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries and (ii) secured by a first-priority perfected lien in substantially all
of the Company’s and the subsidiaries guarantors’ assets. The Credit Agreement contains certain customary covenants, including financial maintenance covenants. The Company
was in compliance with all of the Facility’s covenants as of December 31, 2024. The Facility matures on the earlier of April 22, 2027, or 91 days prior to the MGA Agreement
termination date where no MGA Agreement replacement is found. The Company may request that the lenders extend the maturity date by an additional year, provided that the

request is
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made no earlier than 90 days and no later than 55 days prior to the first or second anniversary of the effective date of the Facility.

Interest on the Facility is based on a floating rate indexed to either (i) adjusted term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) plus an applicable rate, (ii) the greater of (a)
the prime rate, (b) the Federal Reserve Bank of New York rate plus 0.5% per annum and (c) the adjusted term SOFR rate for a one-month interest period plus 1% per annum, plus
an applicable rate, or (iii) the adjusted daily simple SOFR plus an applicable rate. As of December 31, 2024, the Company did not have any borrowings outstanding under the
Facility.

The Company had unamortized deferred financing fees related to the Facility of $1.4 million as of December 31, 2024, and recognized amortization expenses for deferred
financing fees of $0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2024.

9. Stockholders’ Equity
Capital Stock

The Company’s authorized capital stock consists of 400,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share and 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value
$0.01 per share.

BIHL Contribution

During the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, BIHL contributed additional paid-in capital of $4.5 million, $77.7 million, and $24.0 million, respectively, to the
Company without issuing additional shares. In 2022, upon the determination that the Company’s capital was in excess of Wisconsin regulatory capital requirements, the Company
returned $25.0 million of capital to BIHL.

Public Offerings

On May 23, 2024, the Company completed an upsized IPO with the sale and issuance of 8,658,823 shares of its common stock at a price of $17.00 per share. The Company
received net proceeds from the offering of $131.0 million.

10. Stock-Based Compensation
Class P Interests

On October 14, 2020, BIHL established and authorized for issuance 40,750,000 Class P Interests for certain key employees of the Company. In December 2023 and January
2024, BIHL authorized for issuance an additional 4,766,315 and 553,048 Class P Interests, respectively, for a total of 46,069,363 Class P Interests authorized for issuance. Each
grant is subject to vesting and repurchase provisions, as well as other conditions.

Each Class P Interest is structured as a profit interest award and entitles the employees to profits after the partners of BIHL receive a return of their initial investments.
Pursuant to the BIHL Partnership Agreement, since the Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BIHL, the profits of the Company ultimately flow through to BIHL. The Class P
Interests are entitled to receive distributions upon BIHL meeting certain performance and market-based conditions over a five-year period. The general partners of BIHL can
determine if distributions will be made in the form of assets, including shares of the Company, common stock held by BIHL, or cash. The Class P Interests vest using a graded
method over five years commencing on the date of grant.
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On June 30, 2024, in preparation for the dissolution of BIHL, the general partner of BIHL approved the valuation and the acceleration of unvested Class P Interests, which
prior to the dissolution of BIHL are exchanged for shares of the Company’s common stock held by BIHL with no further vesting conditions. Accordingly, on June 30, 2024, the
Company accelerated the remaining unrecognized compensation cost associated with the Class P Interests of $1.3 million through operating expenses within the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss). On September 9, 2024, in contemplation of the dissolution of BIHL, the general partner of BIHL approved
the full vesting of unvested Class P Interests, and the holders of outstanding Class P Interests subsequently received a distribution of shares of the Company’s common stock held
by BIHL with no further vesting conditions. See Note 1 for additional information on the dissolution of BIHL.

The following is a summary of activity related to the unvested Class P Interests:

2024
Weighted Average Grant
Units Date Fair Value

Granted and unvested at December 31, 2023 21,215,809 $ 0.11
Granted — —
Vested (21,215,809) (0.11)
Forfeited — —
Granted and unvested at December 31, 2024 — $ =

The Company estimates the fair value of the Class P Interest using a Monte Carlo simulation method, which calculates many potential outcomes for an award and determines
fair value based on the most likely outcome.

As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, total unrecognized compensation expense was nil, $1.5 million and $0.9 million, respectively, and the weighted average period
over which the expense is expected to be recognized is approximately nil, 1.9 and 1.5 years, respectively.

2024 Plan

On May 22, 2024, the Board approved and adopted the 2024 Plan, which provides for the grant of stock options (including ISOs and nonqualified stock options), stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, RSUs, other stock-based awards, stock bonuses, cash awards and substitute awards.

A total of 3,152,941 shares of common stock were initially authorized and reserved for issuance under the 2024 Plan. The reserve increases on January 1 of each year, starting
in 2025, by an amount equal to the lesser of: (a) 2.0% of the fully-diluted shares on the preceding December 31, and (b) a smaller amount as determined by the Board.

On May 22, 2024, the Board approved the grant of RSUs to the Company’s employees and certain Board directors, and PSUs to its CEO. As of December 31, 2024, 892,826
shares of common stock were granted under the 2024 Plan.

Restricted Stock Units

On May 22, 2024, the Board approved the grant of 762,115 RSUs with a grant-date fair value of $17.00 per share. Additional RSUs were granted after May 22, 2024 based on
the grant-date fair value of Bowhead’s common stock. The RSUs issued to employees and a one-time issuance to one of the Company’s directors have a four-year vesting period.
These RSUs vest 20% per year for the first three years following issuance and 40% at the end of the fourth year, and are contingent upon the employee’s continuous employment
or the director’s continuous service as a director with the Company throughout the vesting period. In addition, the RSUs issued to directors of the Company under the Company’s
non-employee director compensation policy are contingent upon the director’s continuous service as a director through the vesting date, which is the earliest of: (a) the one-year
anniversary of the grant date, (b) the date of the regular annual meeting of the Company’s stockholders held following the grant date, or (c) the date of the consummation of a
change in control.
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The following table provides a summary of RSU activities during the year ended December 31, 2024:

Granted and unvested at December 31, 2023
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

Granted and unvested at December 31, 2024

The Company recognizes the compensation cost for the RSUs on a straight-line basis over the awards’ vesting period.

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Weighted Average Grant-
Number of RSUs Date Fair Value
— 3 —
775,413 17.18
(4,000) 17.00
(7,998) 17.00
763,415 $ 17.19

The Company recognized compensation costs associated with the RSUs of $2.3 million, for the year ended December 31, 2024. Since the RSUs were authorized for issuance

in 2024, there were no compensation costs associated with the RSUs for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

As of December 31, 2024, total unrecognized compensation cost for the RSUs were $10.9 million, and the weighted average period over which the cost is expected to be

recognized is approximately 3.3 years.

Performance Stock Units

On May 22, 2024, the Board approved the grant of 129,411 PSUs to the Company’s CEO. The grant-date fair value of the PSUs, which was valued based on a Monte Carlo
simulation model, was 10.04 per share. The PSUs include both a service and a market condition, and may be settled in cash upon the occurrence of an event that is outside of the
Company’s control. The vesting of the PSUs are contingent upon the CEO’s continuous employment and service to the Company through May 22, 2027. The number of PSUs
earned, which range from 0 - 125% of the PSUs granted, are based on the achievement of certain compounded annual growth rate milestones of BSHI’s common stock compared

its IPO price of $17.00 per share for any 20 business day period between the second and third anniversaries of the grant date.

Since the PSUs are required to be settled in cash upon the occurrence of an event that is outside of the Company’s control, the PSUs are accounted for as mezzanine equity on

the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets until the vesting date.

The following table provides a summary of PSU activity during the year ended December 31, 2024:

Granted and unvested at December 31, 2023
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

Granted and unvested at December 31, 2024
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The following table summarizes the significant inputs used in the Monte Carlo simulation model to determine the grant-date fair value of the PSUs awarded:

Inputs
Expected term (in years) 3.0
Expected volatility 27.0%
Expected dividend yield —%
Risk-free interest rate 4.6%

The Company recognizes the compensation cost for PSUs on a straight-line basis over the award’s vesting period.

The Company recognized compensation costs associated with the PSUs of $0.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2024. Since the PSUs were authorized for issuance in
2024, there were no compensation costs associated with the PSUs for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

As of December 31, 2024, total unrecognized compensation cost for the PSUs was $1.0 million and the weighted average period over which the cost is expected to be
recognized is approximately 2.4 years.

Warrants

On May 22, 2024, the Board approved the issuance of warrants to AmFam to purchase 1,614,250 shares of the Company’s common stock (the warrants associated with such
shares the “Initial Warrants”) and, upon the exercise of the underwriters overallotment option, on May 28, 2024, the Company issued to AmFam warrants to purchase 56,471
additional shares of the Company’s common stock (the warrants associated with such additional shares, individually, the “Overallotment Warrants” and together with the Initial
Warrants, the “Warrants”).

The Warrants, which are subject to a five-year service condition, are accounted for as stock-based compensation under ASC 718. The grant-date fair value of the Initial
Warrants and Overallotment Warrants were $9.13 per share and $17.50 per share, respectively. The Warrants vest 20% per year over the five-year service period and have a stated
and weighted average exercise price of $17.00 per share. The vested portion of the Warrants may be exercised at any time, in whole or in part, until the ten-year anniversary of the
issuance dates.

As of December 31, 2024, none of the Warrants have vested or have been exercised.

The following table summarizes the significant inputs used in the Black-Scholes-Merton pricing models to determine the grant-date fair value of the Warrants issued:

Initial Warrants Overallotment Warrants
Expected term (in years) 10.0 10.0
Expected volatility 34.0% 34.0%
Expected dividend yield —% —%
Risk-free interest rate 4.4% 4.5%

The Company recognizes compensation cost for the Warrants on a quarterly basis over the awards’ vesting period.

The Company recognized compensation costs associated with the Warrants of $1.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2024. Since the Warrants were authorized for
issuance in 2024, there were no compensation costs associated with the Warrants for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. As of December 31, 2024, total unrecognized
compensation cost for the Warrants were $13.8 million.
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11. Earnings Per Share

The following table provides the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
(8 in thousands, except share and per share data)
Numerator
Net income $ 38,243 § 25,047 $ 11,256
Denominator
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 29,261,209 24,000,000 24,000,000
Effect of dilutive awards)
Restricted stock units 219,417 — —
Performance stock units 68,791 — —
‘Warrants 127,779 — —
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 29,677,196 24,000,000 24,000,000

Earnings per share

Basic $ 131 § 1.04 $ 0.47

Diluted $ 129 § 1.04 § 0.47

M As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, there were nil anti-dilutive awards for all periods that were excluded from the calculation of diluted weighted-average shares outstanding.

12. Related Party Transactions

Prior to the IPO, BSHI received capital contributions from BIHL up to the amount committed by BIHL’s limited partners, Gallatin Point, AMFIC, members of Bowhead’s
management and other minority investors. Effective December 3, 2024, BIHL was dissolved. See Note 1 for additional information on the dissolution of BIHL. As of
December 31, 2024, BIHL contributed $183.3 million into the Company, of which $4.5 million, $77.7 million and $24.0 million were contributed in 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

BICI is party to the AmFam Quota Share Agreement, which has been effective since 2020. Under the quota share agreement, BICI assumes 100% of all Casualty, Professional
Liability, Healthcare Liability, and Baleen Specialty risks, net of inuring third-party reinsurance, written on behalf of AmFam by BSUI. AmFam receives a Ceding Fee on net
premiums assumed by BICI. BICI is required to set aside assets in a trust to secure a portion of its reinsurance recoverable obligation under the agreement.

Under the MGA Agreements, BSUI is permitted to issue insurance policies on behalf of the AmFam Issuing Carriers and is also responsible for providing accounting, claims
handling and other necessary services to the AmFam Issuing Carriers to support its respective regulatory, statutory and other compliance requirements. BSUI is entitled to
commission in exchange for these services, which is adjusted to equal actual costs for each month in accordance with the terms of the MGA Agreements.

In 2024, 2023 and 2022, BICI entered into a ceded quota share reinsurance treaty and a ceded excess of loss reinsurance agreement with reinsurers, in which a separate
subsidiary of AmFam participated. In addition, BICI also entered into ceded cyber professional lines quota share reinsurance treaties with reinsurers, in which a subsidiary of
AmFam also participated.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 Bowhead incurred $8.6 million, $5.8 million and $4.0 million of Ceding Fees under the AmFam Quota Share
Agreement, respectively, and ceded $28.0 million, $18.0 million and $2.7 million of written premiums to AmFam under the ceded reinsurance treaties described above,
respectively.
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13. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to be
applied in the years in which temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The Company reduces deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance to the extent
management concludes it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realized.

The Company analyzes its tax filing positions in all of the U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as for all
open tax years in these jurisdictions. The Company evaluates tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of preparing an entity’s tax returns to determine whether it is
“more-likely-than-not” that each tax position will be sustained by the applicable tax authority. There are no tax positions taken or expected to be taken that would significantly
increase or decrease unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months. Interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recorded within income tax expense
within the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). None of the Company’s federal or state tax income tax returns are currently under
examination by the IRS or state authorities.

For the tax years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, BSHI, BSUI, BICI and BUSI filed a consolidated federal income tax return.
The income tax provision is as follows:

Years Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
(8 in thousands)

Deferred income tax benefit
Federal $ 6,169) $ (4,362) $ (2,972)

Total deferred income tax benefit (6,169) (4,362) (2,972)

Current income tax expense

Federal 17,652 11,182 6,194
State 809 248 183
Total current income tax expense 18,461 11,430 6,377
Income tax expense $ 12,292 § 7,068 $ 3,405
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The effective tax rate on income from continuing operations was higher than the prevailing statutory federal income tax rate. Among the most significant book-to-tax

adjustments were the following:

Years Ended December 31, 2023 2022
($ in thousands)
Tax expense (benefit) at statutory tax rate of 21.0% $ 10,612 6,744 3,079
Tax effect of significant reconciling items:
Permanent differences 842 128 181
State tax, net of federal tax 639 196 145
Other 199 —
Impact of change in enacted federal tax rate = —
Valuation allowance — —
Income tax expense $ 12,292 7,068 3,405

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes, and the
amount used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s net deferred income taxes are as follows:

As of December 31,

2024

2023

Deferred tax assets
Unearned premium disallowance
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses
Unrealized losses on investments
Share-based compensation
Amortization of startup costs
Depreciable assets
Accrued benefits
Accrued expenses
Other
Capital loss carryforward

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Accrued bond discount
Unrealized investment gains
Other
Depreciation

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets

(8 in thousands)

12,418 9,578
9,298 5,377
2,982 3,023

890 338
817 291
337 —
320 281
116 87
64 34
9 3

27,251 19,012
5,801 4,075
1,092 489

17 —

1 —

— 219
6,911 4,783
20,340 14,229

The Company is required to establish a valuation allowance for any gross deferred tax assets that are unlikely to reduce taxes payable in future years. For tax years 2024 and
2023, the Company has determined no valuation allowance is required based on positive current taxable income and future earnings projections.
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As of December 31, 2024, the Company has zero federal net operating loss carryforwards. As of December 31, 2024, the company has capital loss carryforwards of less than
$0.1 million, a portion of which will start to expire in 2026 and zero charitable contribution carryforwards.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, no liability for unrecognized tax benefits was recorded; therefore, no interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits were
recognized. In addition, the Company does not expect that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change significantly within the next 12 months. The Company’s federal
and state tax returns remain subject to tax examinations for the years beginning in December 31, 2021 and forward.

14. Commitments and Contingencies
a) Concentrations of Credit Risk

The creditworthiness of a counterparty is evaluated by the Company, taking into account credit ratings assigned by independent agencies. The credit approval process involves
an assessment of factors, including, among others, the counterparty, country, and industry credit exposure limits. Collateral may be required, at the discretion of the Company, on
certain transactions based on the creditworthiness of the counterparty. The areas where significant concentrations of credit risk may exist include cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash and investments, premium balances receivable, and reinsurance recoverable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash and Investments

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash with high credit quality financial institutions. Cash deposits are in excess of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant credit
risk on its cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash.

The Company’s available for sale investment portfolio is managed in accordance with guidelines that have been tailored to meet specific investment strategies, including
standards of diversification, which limit the allowable holdings of any single issue. There were no investments, other than cash and cash equivalents and investments in U.S.
government and government agency securities, in excess of 10% of the Company’s mezzanine equity and stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Premium Balances Receivable

The Company underwrites a significant amount of its business through brokers and a credit risk exists should any of these brokers be unable to fulfill their contractual
obligations relating to the payments of premium balances owed to the Company.

The following table summarizes the brokers that make up more than 10% of the Company’s gross written premium for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022:

Brokers 2024 2023 2022

AmWINS Group, Inc. 23.6% 15.3% 12.5%
Ryan Specialty Group Holdings, Inc. 22.5% 26.3% 27.9%
Marsh & McLennan Companies 13.4% 14.6% 15.5%
CRC Insurance Services, Inc. 8.8% 9.7% 11.3%

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded an allowance for uncollectible premiums of nil in each respective period.
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Reinsurance Recoverable

The Company is exposed to the credit risk associated with reinsurance recoverable to the extent that any of its reinsurers fail to meet their obligations under reinsurance
contracts. The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers on a regular basis and monitors concentrations of credit risk with reinsurers. The Company assesses
reinsurers based on the assigned credit and financial strength ratings from internationally recognized rating agencies.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, 100% of the Company’s reinsurers are rated “A” (Excellent) or better by A.M. Best. At December 31, 2024, the three largest balances by
reinsurer accounted for 29.8%, 23.8%, and 20.8% of the Company’s reinsurance recoverable balance and at December 31, 2023, the three largest balances by reinsurer accounted
for 29.8%, 24.5% and 24.4% of the Company’s reinsurance recoverable balance. Refer to Note 7 Premiums and Reinsurance Related Information for further information.

b) Purchase Obligations

The Company has entered into certain agreements within which the Company is committed to purchase services, primarily related to software service contracts. The fixed and
determinable portion of such purchase obligations was approximately $1.7 million due for the years 2025 - 2028 at December 31, 2024. The obligations will increase depending
on the amount of premium written by the Company over the respective years.

¢) Litigation

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to disputes, litigation and arbitration arising from its insurance and reinsurance operations. These matters are
generally related to insurance and reinsurance claims and are considered in the establishment of reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses. In addition, the Company may
also become involved in legal actions which seek extra-contractual damages, punitive damages or penalties, including claims alleging bad faith in handling of insurance claims.
The Company expects its ultimate liability with respect to such matters will not be material to its financial condition. However, adverse outcomes on such matters are possible,
from time to time, and could be material to the Company’s results of operations in any particular financial reporting period.

d) Other

The Company has incurred certain employment taxes, penalties and interests related to the employment taxes for an employee domiciled in the United Kingdom since 2021.
The Company accrued approximately $1.5 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, which represents its best estimate of taxes, interest, and penalties owed.

15. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has established the Plan in accordance with Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Expenses related to the Plan were $1.4 million, $1.1 million and
$0.8 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

16. Property and Equipment, net

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, property and equipment, net consists of:

As of December 31, 2024 2023
(8 in thousands)
Computer software $ 13,104 $ 9,993
Leasehold improvements 30 503
Furniture and equipment 38 126
Property and equipment, cost 13,172 10,621
Accumulated depreciation (6,327) (3,020)
Property and equipment, net $ 6,845 § 7,601
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For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 depreciation expense was $3.9 million, $2.3 million and $0.7 million, respectively, of which $3.7 million,
$2.1 million and $0.6 million, respectively, related to the amortization of capitalized software.

17. Leases

The Company and its subsidiaries have a right to use two distinct office spaces in New York and Chicago under separate lease agreements. On December 1, 2024, the
company exercised its option to extend the Chicago lease, which will expire on August 31, 2028, with a renewal option to extend. The leases are classified as operating leases. The
Company was not party to any finance lease arrangements as of and during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. The ROU asset and lease liability balances as of
December 31, 2024 were $4.0 million and $4.3 million, respectively and the ROU asset and lease liability balances as of December 31, 2023 were $0.5 million and $0.7 million,
respectively.

The terms of the operating leases range from three to four years, from the dates the Company gained access to the spaces, through to the stated termination dates, which expire
in December 2027 and August 2028, respectively. Although each operating lease agreement contains an option to extend the length of the respective lease term, the Company is
not reasonably certain it will exercise these options. Due to this uncertainty, in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company has excluded the periods covered by each
renewal option from the lease terms.

The Chicago operating lease agreement contains rent escalation features that are reflected in the Company’s lease liability balances. Since the discount rates implicit in the
leases are not readily available, the Company used an incremental borrowing rate to discount the remaining lease payments in measuring our lease liability. The Company also did
not incur any initial direct costs or make prepayments in connection with these lease arrangements; as such, these amounts are not reflected in the ROU asset.

Lease expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 was $1.2 million, $0.6 million and $0.6 million, respectively. Lease expense is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term in operating expenses within the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss). The Company has immaterial
variable lease costs and no short-term leases for the year ended The following table summarizes the Company’s future minimum lease payment obligations under non-cancelable
operating leases as of December 31, 2024:

As of December 31, 2024
(8 in thousands)

Contractual maturities:

2025 1,497
2026 1,426
2027 1,558
2028 162
Later years —

Total undiscounted future minimum lease payments 4,643
Less: Discount impact (337)
Total discounted operating lease liability $ 4,306

The weighted average remaining lease term and weighted average discount rate for the Company’s operating leases as of December 31, 2024 were 3.1 years and 5.0%,
respectively.

Cash paid for operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 was $1.3 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively. With the exception of the
extension of the Chicago lease noted above, there were no non-cash additions from new and remeasured leases that resulted in an increase to the ROU asset and lease liability.
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18. Segment, Geographic, and Product Line Information

The Company is a specialty insurance group that generates revenues by underwriting and offering a variety of specialty insurance products to domestic markets through four
distinct underwriting divisions. The CODM is the individual responsible for allocating resources to and assessing the financial performance of segments of the entity. The CODM
of the Company, the Chief Executive Officer, assesses the financial health and performance of the Company and makes resource allocation decisions on a consolidated basis;
accordingly, the Company has a single operating and reportable segment.

The accounting policies of the segment are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The CODM assesses performance for the segment
and decides how to allocate resources based on net income that is also reported on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income (Loss) as consolidated net
income. The measure of segment assets is reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as total consolidated assets. Net income is used to monitor budget versus actual results. The
CODM uses net income in competitive analysis by benchmarking to the Company’s competitors. The competitive analysis along with the monitoring of budgeted versus actual
results are used in assessing performance of the segment. The CODM uses the same level of detail as presented on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive
Income (Loss) to evaluate segment revenue, net income, and significant segment expenses.

The following table presents revenues by underwriting division for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022:

Underwriting Division 2024 2023 2022
(8 in thousands)
Casualty $ 292,905 $ 192,062 $ 136,672
Professional Liability 90,266 87,588 69,532
Healthcare Liability 67,029 55,022 38,910
Baleen Specialty 1,222 — —
Net written premiums $ 451,422 $ 334,672 $ 245,114

The Company’s operations and assets are located entirely within the United States, and all of its revenues are attributed to United States-based policyholders. The Company
does not have intra-entity sales or transfers.

The Company has no single major customer representing 10% or more of its total revenues during fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022.
19. Insurance — Statutory Information

The Company’s insurance company subsidiary, BICI, received its Certificate of Authority from the Wisconsin Office of the Commissioner of Insurance, which authorized
BICI to transact business effective December 18, 2020. BICI is restricted by Wisconsin law as to the amount of dividends it can pay without the approval of regulatory authorities.
BICI is restricted from paying dividends by the lesser of: (1) 10.0% of statutory capital and surplus as of the preceding December 31, or; (2) the greater of: (a) statutory net income
for the calendar year preceding the date of the dividend distribution, minus realized capital gains for that year, or (b) aggregate of net income for the three calendar years preceding
the date of the dividend or distribution, minus realized capital gains for those calendar years and minus dividends paid or credited and distributions made within the first two of the
preceding three calendar years. At December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 the maximum dividend that BICI could pay without the approval of regulatory authorities was $16.1
million, $2.9 million, and $0.0 million respectively.
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BICI’s net income and statutory capital and surplus, as determined in accordance with Statutory Accounting Principles (“SAP”) established by the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”), are as follows:

2024 2023 2022
(8 in thousands)
Net income $ 28,193 $ 16,106 $ 2,914
Statutory capital and surplus 341,244 191,463 108,764

The significant variances between SAP and GAAP are that for statutory purposes acquisition costs are charged to income as incurred, bonds are carried at amortized cost,
deferred federal and state income taxes are subject to limitations, and certain assets designated as non-admitted assets are disallowed.

The NAIC has risk-based capital (“RBC”) requirements that require insurance companies to calculate and report information under a risk-based formula, which measures
statutory capital and surplus needs based on a regulatory definition of risk in a company’s mix of products and its balance sheet. This guidance is used to calculate two capital
measurements: Total Adjusted Capital and RBC Authorized Control Level. Total Adjusted Capital is equal to the Company’s statutory capital and surplus excluding capital and
surplus derived from the use of permitted practices that differ from statutory accounting practices. RBC Authorized Control Level is the capital level used by regulatory authorities
to determine whether remedial action is required. Generally, no remedial action is required if Total Adjusted Capital is 200% or more of the RBC Authorized Control Level. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, BICI’s capital and surplus exceeds its Authorized Control Level.

20. Subsequent Events

Management of BSHI has evaluated all events occurring after December 31, 2024 through the issuance of these consolidated financial statements and determined that there
are no events requiring recognition or disclosure.

109



Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.

Schedule II — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

Assets
Investments
Fixed maturity securities, available for sale, at fair value
Investment in subsidiaries

Total investments

Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Deferred tax assets, net
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)

Mezzanine equity

Performance stock units

Stockholders' equity
Common stock

Balance Sheets (Parent Company)

December 31,

2024 2023

(8 in thousands, except share data)

(80.01 par value; 400,000,000 shares authorized, 32,662,683 and 24,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and December 31,

2023, respectively)
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings

Total stockholders' equity

Total mezzanine equity and stockholders' equity

Total liabilities, mezzanine equity and stockholders' equity

$ 20,073 $ R
348,229 192,07
368,302 192,07
899
205 -
439 |
1,506 -
$ 371,351 § 192,07
$ 518 § -
110 i
281 -
909 A
265 -
327 24
318,095 178,54
(11,154) (11,37
62,909 24,66
370,177 192,07
370,442 192,07
$ 371,351 $ 192,07
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Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022

(8 in thousands, except share and per share data)
Revenues
Gross written premiums $ — — 3 —

Ceded written premiums — — _

Net written premiums — — _

Change in net unearned premiums — — _

Net earned premiums — — —

Net investment income 3,178 — —
Net realized investment gains — — _

Other insurance-related income — — _

Total revenues 3,178 — —

Expenses
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses — — _
Net acquisition costs — _ _

Operating expenses 507 — —
Warrant expense 1,917 — —
Credit facility interest expense and fees 725 — —
Total expenses 3,149 — —
Income before income taxes 29 — —
Income tax expense 62 — —
Income before net income of subsidiaries 33) — —
Net income of subsidiaries 38,276 25,047 11,256
Net income $ 38243 $ 25,047 $ 11,256

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments — — —

Other comprehensive income (loss) before other comprehensive loss of subsidiaries 63 — —
Other comprehensive income (loss) of subsidiaries 155 5,317 (15,975)
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 38,461 $ 30,364 S 4,719)
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December 31,
2024 2023 2022

(8 in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 38,243  § 25,047 $ 11,2¢

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Amortization of premiums/discounts on fixed maturities (108) — -
Stock-based compensation 339 — S
Deferred income taxes (456) — -
Warrant expense 1,917 — -
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued investment income (205) — -
Other assets (1,506) — -
Accrued expenses 110 — -
Income taxes payable 519 — -
Other liabilities 281 — -
Equity in net income of subsidiaries (38,276) (25,047) (11,2¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 858 — -

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of:

Fixed maturity securities (128,367) — -
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of:

Fixed maturity securities 1,797 — -
Investment in subsidiaries (7,275) % (77,655) $ (24,0C
Distribution from investment in subsidiary = = 25,0

Net cash used in (provided by) investing activities (133,845) (77,655) 1,00

Cash flows from financing activities:

Contribution from parent 2,839 77,655 24,0(
Distribution to parent — — (25,0(
Proceeds from share issuance related to equity awards 64 — -
Proceeds from share initial public offering, net 130,982 — -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 133,885 77,655 (1,00¢
Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 898 $ — $
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period 1 1
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period $ 899 § 1 9

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Deemed contribution related to share-based compensation to investment in subsidiary (3,763) (682) (36¢
Deemed contribution related to share-based compensation from parent 1,642 682 36
Deemed contribution related to fixed maturity securities to subsidiary (106,685) — -
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Casualty

Professional Liability

Healthcare Liability

Baleen Specialty
Total

Casualty
Professional Liability
Healthcare Liability

Total

Casualty
Professional Liability
Healthcare Liability

Total

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.

Schedule IV - Reinsurance

December 31, 2024

Premiums Ceded to Other

Premiums Assumed from

Percentage of Amount

Companies Other Companies Net Amount Assumed to Net
(8 in thousands, except percentages)
$ (138,912) 431,817 $ 292,905 147.4
(70,385) 160,651 § 90,266 178.0
(34,590) 101,619 § 67,029 151.6
(408) 1,630 § 1,222 133.4
$ (244,295) 695,717 $ 451,422 154.1
December 31, 2023
Premiums Ceded to Other Premiums Assumed from Percentage of Amount
Companies Other Companies Net Amount Assumed to Net
(8 in thousands, except percentages)
$ (85,393) 277,455 $ 192,062 144.5
(57,663) 145,251 87,588 165.8
(29,960) 84,982 § 55,022 154.5
$ (173,016) 507,688 $ 334,672 151.7
December 31, 2022
Premiums Ceded to Other Premiums Assumed from Percentage of Amount
Companies Other Companies Net Amount Assumed to Net
(8 in th ds, except perc )
$ (55,920) 192,592 § 136,672 140.9
(35,835) 105,367 69,532 151.5
(20,079) 58,989 38,910 151.6
$ (111,834) 356,948 245,114 145.6
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

‘We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required financial
disclosure.

The effectiveness of any system of controls and procedures is subject to certain limitations, and, as a result, there can be no assurance that our controls and procedures will
detect all errors or fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control
system will be attained.

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our CEO and CFO, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based upon
this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of our financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and that
our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, using the framework in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Based on this assessment, management concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2024.

Since we are an emerging growth company, this Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of our company’s registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting.
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Changes in internal control over financial reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended
December 31, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Securities Trading Plans of Directors and Executive Officers

Transactions in our securities by our directors and executive officers are required to be made in accordance with our Insider Trading Policy (the “Insider Trading Policy”),
which, among other things, requires that the transactions be in accordance with applicable U.S. federal securities laws that prohibit trading while in possession of material
nonpublic information. Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act provides an affirmative defense that enables prearranged transactions in securities in a manner that avoids concerns
about initiating transactions at a future date while possibly in possession of material nonpublic information. Our Insider Trading Policy permits our directors and officers to enter
into trading plans designed to comply with Rule 10b5-1.

During the fourth quarter of 2024, none of our directors or officers adopted, modified or terminated a Rule 10b5-1 trading plan or adopted, modified or terminated a non-Rule
10b5-1 trading arrangement (as defined in Item 408(c) of Regulation S-K).

Change in Control Severance Plan

On February 21, 2025, the Board approved and adopted the Bowhead Specialty Holding Inc. Change in Control Severance Plan (the “Severance Plan”), pursuant to which
select employees of the Company (including each of its executive officers, but excluding the Chief Executive Officer of the Company), may become eligible to receive the
following severance payments and benefits upon a qualifying termination within twenty-four months following the date of a change in control (each of qualifying termination and
change in control as defined in the Severance Plan): (i) a cash payment payable in a lump sum equal to the sum of (x) one and one-half times the participant’s base salary and (y)
pro-rata target annual bonus, and (ii) an additional cash payment payable in a lump sum equal to the product of twelve multiplied by the cost incurred by the Company for
providing group health, dental and vision benefits to the participant and the participant’s eligible dependents in the month immediately prior to the month in which the qualifying
termination date occurred.

The provision of payments and benefits described above is conditioned upon the participant’s execution and non-revocation of a release of claims in favor of the Company.
The Severance Plan provides that if a participant receives any amount, whether under the Severance Plan or otherwise, that is subject to the excise tax imposed pursuant to Section
4999 of the Internal Revenue Code, the amount of the payments to be made to the participant will be reduced to the extent necessary to avoid imposition of the excise tax, but only
if the net amount of the reduced payments exceeds the net amount that the participant would receive following imposition of the excise tax and all income and related taxes.

The foregoing description of the Severance Plan does not purport to be complete and is qualified in the entirety by reference to the Severance Plan, which is filed as Exhibit
10.17 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

Not applicable.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement for our 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we expect to file
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Proxy Statement”), including under the captions “Proposal 1 -
Election of Directors,” “Information About our Executive Officers” and “General Information About the Board of Directors.”.

‘We maintain a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all our employees, officers, contractors, and directors, including our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, and principal accounting officer, or persons performing similar functions. The full text of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is posted on our website at
ir.bowheadspecialty.com under “Governance - Governance Documents.” We intend to disclose on our website any future amendments of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
or waivers that exempt any principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, persons performing similar functions, or our directors from
provisions in the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

We have adopted an Insider Trading Policy governing the purchase, sale and other dispositions of our securities by our directors, officers, employees and other individuals
associated with us that we believe is reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rules and regulations and listing standards applicable to us. It is also
our policy to comply with applicable securities laws when engaging in transactions in our own securities. A copy of our Insider Trading Policy is filed as Exhibit 19.1 to this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement, including under the captions “Executive Compensation,” “Director Compensation”
and “General Information About the Board of Directors.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNER AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement, including under the captions “Equity Compensation Plan Information” and
“Principal Stockholders.”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement, including under the captions “General Information About the Board of Directors”
and “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions.”

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
Our independent registered public accounting firm is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chicago, Illinois. Auditor Firm ID: 238

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement, including under the caption “Fees Billed by the Principal Accountant.”
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Exhibits

Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024),

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC
on August 8, 2024)

4.1%* Description of Capital Stock

4.2 Investor Matters Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2024, between Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. and American Family Mutual Insurance Company, S.I. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024)

4.3 Board Nominee Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2024, between Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. and GPC Partners Investments (SPV III) LP (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024),

4.4 Common Stock Purchase Warrant, dated as of May 23, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on
August 8, 2024)

4.5 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 28, 2024, between Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. and the investors party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024)

10.1F Amended and Restated Managing General Agency Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2024 between Midvale Indemnity Company and Bowhead Specialty Underwriters, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024),

10.2% Second Amended and Restated Managing General Agency Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2024, between Homesite Insurance Company of Florida and Bowhead Specialty
Underwriters, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024)

10.31 Amended and Restated Managing General Agency Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2024, between Homesite Insurance Company and Bowhead Specialty Underwriters, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024)

10.4+ Amended and Restated Quota Share Reinsurance Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2024, between American Family Mutual Insurance Company, S.I. and Bowhead Insurance
Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024)

10.5% Amended and Restated Insurance Trust Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2024, among Bowhead Insurance Company, Inc., American Family Mutual Insurance Company, S.I. and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024)

10.6+ Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Registration Statement on S-1/A filed with the SEC
on May 13, 2024)

10.7+ Form of Employee Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18
to the Company’s Registration Statement on S-1/A filed with the SEC on May 13, 2024)

10.8%+ 2025 Form of Employee Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Under the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan

10.9+ Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on S-1/A filed with the SEC on May 13, 2024)

10.10+ Employment Agreement between Stephen Sills and Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc., dated as of May 22, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2024)

10.11%+ Contract of Employment between Globalization Partners Limited and David John Newman dated 29 March 2024
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit31-amendedandrestat.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit31-amendedandrestat.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit32-amendedandrestat.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit32-amendedandrestat.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit41-descriptionofcap.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit41-descriptionofcap.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit101-investormatters.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit101-investormatters.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit102boardnomineeagre.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit102boardnomineeagre.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit103-commonstockpurc.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit103-commonstockpurc.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit104-registrationrig.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit104-registrationrig.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit105-amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit105-amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit1018amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit1018amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit1018amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit1018amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit1018amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit1018amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit1018amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit1018amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit1018amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit106-amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit106-amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit107-amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit107-amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit108-amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit108-amendedandresta.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024022759/exhibit1017-sx1a2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024022759/exhibit1017-sx1a2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024022759/exhibit1018-sx1a2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024022759/exhibit1018-sx1a2.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit108-2025formofemplo.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit108-2025formofemplo.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit108-2025formofemplo.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024022759/exhibit1019-sx1a2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024022759/exhibit1019-sx1a2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit109-employmentagree.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024036134/exhibit109-employmentagree.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit1011-contractofempl.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit1011-contractofempl.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit1011-contractofempl.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit1011-contractofempl.htm
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Number Description

10.12 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. and each of its directors and officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on S-1/A filed with the SEC on May 13, 2024)

10.13 Credit Agreement, dated as of April 22, 2024, among Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc., the lenders from time to time party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent, swingline lender and issuing bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Registration Statement on S-1/A filed with the SEC on May,
3,2024)

10.14 Services Agreement, dated as of October 7, 2020, among Bowhead Insurance Holdings LP, Bowhead Specialty Underwriters, Inc., Bowhead Underwriting Services, Inc. and
Bowhead Insurance Company,_Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Registration Statement S-1/A filed with the SEC on May 3, 2024)

10.15 Joinder to the Services Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2024, among Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc., Bowhead Insurance Holdings LP, Bowhead Specialty Under-writers, Inc.,
Bowhead Underwriting Services, Inc. and Bowhead Insurance Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Registration Statement S-1/A filed with
the SEC on May 3, 2024),

10.16 Amendment to the Services Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2024, among Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. Bowhead Insurance Holdings LP, Bowhead Specialty Under-writers,
Inc., Bowhead Underwriting Services, Inc. and Bowhead Insurance Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Registration Statement S-1/A filed
with the SEC on May 3, 2024)

10.17%+% Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. Change in Control Severance Plan

14.1* Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

19.1* Insider Trading Policy,

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on S-1 filed with the SEC on April 12, 2024)

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1% Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2% Certification of principal financial officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1% Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2% Certification of principal financial officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

97.1 Clawback Policy

101* Interactive data files (formatted as Inline XBRL)

104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

+ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.

T Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2)(ii) or 601(b)(10)(iv) of Regulation S-K, as applicable.
*  Filed or furnished herewith.

(b) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules not listed above have been omitted because the information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

Not applicable.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024022759/exhibit1021-sx1a2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024022759/exhibit1021-sx1a2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1025-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1025-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1025-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1014-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1014-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1015-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1015-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1015-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1016-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1016-sx1a.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024020365/exhibit1016-sx1a.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit1017-bowheadspecial.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit1017-bowheadspecial.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit141-bowheadspecialt.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit141-bowheadspecialt.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit141-bowheadspecialt.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit141-bowheadspecialt.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit141-bowheadspecialt.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit141-bowheadspecialt.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit191-insidertradingp.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/2002473/000162828024016055/exhibit211-sx1.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit231-consentofpricew.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit311-302certificatio.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit312-302certificatio.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit321-section906certi.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit321-section906certi.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/bowheadspecialty/sec/0002002473-25-000008/for_pdf/exhibit322-section906certi.htm
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Exhibit 4.1

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

9 99 <.

The following is a description sets forth certain material terms of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.’s (the “Company,” “we,” “us” and
“our”) capital stock. The following description is intended as a summary, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation (our “Charter”’) and amended and restated bylaws (our “Bylaws”), each of which are filed as exhibits to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, and the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”).

Authorized Capital Stock

Our authorized capital stock consists of 400,000,000 shares of our common stock, $0.01 par value per share; and 100,000,000 shares of preferred
stock, par value $0.01 per share. No shares of preferred stock or are outstanding as of the date of the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Unless our board of directors determines otherwise, all shares of our capital stock will be issued in uncertificated form.

Common Stock

Each holder of our common stock is entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders. The holders of our
common stock are entitled to receive dividends as may be declared from time to time by our board of directors out of legally available funds. In
the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our common stock will be entitled to share ratably in the net assets legally
available for distribution to stockholders after the payment of all of our debts and other liabilities. Holders of our common stock have no
preemptive, conversion or subscription rights, and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to our common stock.

The rights, powers, preferences and privileges of holders of our common stock will be subject to those of the holders of any shares of our
preferred stock we may authorize and issue in the future.

Shares of our common stock are registered under Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the trading symbol “BOW.”

Preferred Stock

Our Charter authorizes our board of directors to establish one or more series of preferred stock (including convertible preferred stock). Unless
required by law or by the NYSE rules, the authorized shares of preferred stock are available for issuance without further action by you. Our board
of directors will be able to determine, with respect to any series of preferred stock, the terms and rights of that series, including:

+ the designation of the series;

» the number of shares of the series, which our board of directors may, except where otherwise provided in the preferred stock designation,
increase (but not above the total



number of authorized shares of the class) or decrease (but not below the number of shares then outstanding);
* whether dividends, if any, will be cumulative or non-cumulative and the dividend rate of the series;
» the dates at which dividends, if any, will be payable;
» the redemption rights and price or prices, if any, for shares of the series;
+ the terms and amounts of any sinking fund provided for the purchase or redemption of shares of the series;

« the amounts payable on shares of the series in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the affairs
of the Company;

» whether the shares of the series will be convertible into shares of any other class or series, or any other security, of the Company or any
other corporation and, if so, the specification of the other class or series or other security, the conversion price or prices or rate or rates, any
rate adjustments, the date or dates as of which the shares will be convertible and all other terms and conditions upon which the conversion
may be made;

* restrictions on the issuance of shares of the same series or of any other class or series; and
+ the voting rights, if any, of the holders of the series.

We are able to issue a series of preferred stock that could, depending on the terms of the series, impede or discourage an acquisition attempt or
other transaction that some, or a majority, of the holders of our common stock might believe to be in their best interests or in which the holders of
our common stock might receive a premium for their common stock over the market price of the common stock.

Dividends

The DGCL permits a corporation to declare and pay dividends out of “surplus” or, if there is no “surplus,” out of its net profits for the
fiscal year in which the dividend is declared and/or the preceding fiscal year. “Surplus” is defined as the excess of the net assets of the corporation
over the amount determined to be the capital of the corporation by our board of directors. The capital of the corporation is typically calculated to
be (and cannot be less than) the aggregate par value of all issued shares of capital stock. Net assets equal the fair value of the total assets minus
total liabilities. The DGCL also provides that dividends may not be paid out of net profits if, after the payment of the dividend, capital is less than
the capital represented by the outstanding stock of all classes having a preference upon the distribution of assets.

Declaration and payment of any dividend will be subject to the discretion of our board of directors. The time and amount of dividends will
be subject to applicable laws and will depend on our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business conditions,
legal, tax and regulatory limitations, contractual restrictions, including restrictions



under indebtedness we may incur, and other factors that our board of directors considers relevant.
Anti-Takeover Effects of Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws and Certain Provisions of Delaware Law

Our Charter, our Bylaws and the DGCL, which are summarized in the following paragraphs, contain provisions that could discourage
potential acquisition proposals and could delay or prevent a change in control. These provisions are intended to enhance the likelihood of
continuity and stability in the composition of our board of directors and in the policies formulated by our board of directors and to discourage
certain types of transactions that may involve an actual or threatened change of control. These provisions are designed to reduce our vulnerability
to an unsolicited acquisition proposal. The provisions also are intended to discourage certain tactics that may be used in proxy fights. However,
such provisions could have the effect of discouraging others from making tender offers for our shares and, as a consequence, they also may inhibit
fluctuations in the market price of our shares of common stock that could result from actual or rumored takeover attempts. Such provisions also
may have the effect of preventing changes in our management or delaying or preventing a transaction that might benefit you or other minority
stockholders.

Authorized but Unissued Capital Stock

Delaware law does not require stockholder approval for any issuance of authorized shares. However, the listing requirements of the NYSE,
which would apply if and so long as our common stock remains listed on the NYSE, require stockholder approval of certain issuances equal to or
exceeding 20% of the then-outstanding voting power or then-outstanding number of shares of common stock. These additional shares may be used
for a variety of corporate purposes, including future public offerings to raise additional capital or to facilitate acquisitions.

Our board of directors may issue shares of preferred stock on terms calculated to discourage, delay or prevent a change of control of the
Company or the removal of our management. Moreover, our authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock will be available for future
issuances without stockholder approval and could be utilized for a variety of corporate purposes, including future offerings to raise additional
capital, acquisitions or employee benefit plans.

Our Classified Board of Directors

Our Charter provides that our board of directors is be divided into three classes of directors, with the classes to be as nearly equal in
number as possible, and with the directors serving three-year terms. As a result, approximately one-third of our board of directors is elected each
year. The classification of directors has the effect of making it more difficult for stockholders to change the composition of our board of directors.
Our Charter and Bylaws provide that, subject to any rights of holders of preferred stock to elect additional directors under specified circumstances,
the number of directors will be fixed from time to time exclusively



pursuant to a resolution adopted by our board of directors. The classified board provisions are subject to a 7-year sunset.

Our charter, a board nominee agreement with GPC Fund and an investor matters agreement with AFMIC, grant GPC Fund and AFMIC
respectively, rights to nominate individuals to our board of directors, provided certain ownership requirements are met.

Business Combinations

We opt out of Section 203 of the DGCL, and the restrictions and limitations set forth therein. However, our Charter contains provisions
that are similar to Section 203 of the DGCL. Specifically, our Charter provides that, subject to certain exceptions, we are not able to engage in a
“business combination” with any “interested stockholder” for three years following the time that the person became an interested stockholder,
unless the interested stockholder attained such status with the approval of our board of directors, or, upon becoming an interested stockholder,
owned at least 85% of the voting power of the outstanding stock or unless the business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. A
“business combination” includes, among other things, a merger or consolidation involving us and the “interested stockholder” and the sale of more
than 10% of our assets. In general, an “interested stockholder” is any entity or person beneficially owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting
stock and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by such entity or person.

However, in our case, GPC Partners Investments (SPV III) LP (“GPC Fund”) and American Family Mutual Insurance Company, SI
(“AFMIC”) and any of their respective affiliates and any of their respective direct or indirect transferees of our common stock will not be deemed
to be “interested stockholders” for the purposes of our Charter regardless of the percentage of our outstanding voting stock owned by them, and,
accordingly will not be subject to such restrictions.

Removal of Directors; Vacancies

Under the DGCL, unless otherwise provided in Charter, directors serving on a classified board may be removed by the stockholders only
for cause. Our Charter provides that directors may only be removed for cause. In addition, Charter and our Bylaws also provide that, subject to the
provisions of the Board Nominee Agreement with GPC Fund, the Investor Matters Agreement with AFMIC and the rights granted to one or more
series of preferred stock then outstanding, any newly created directorship on our board of directors that results from an increase in the number of
directors and any vacancy occurring on our board of directors may only be filled by a majority of the directors then in office, even if less than a
quorum, or by a sole remaining director (and not by the stockholders).

No Cumulative Voting

Under Delaware law, the right to vote cumulatively does not exist unless the certificate of incorporation specifically authorizes cumulative
voting. Our Charter does not authorize cumulative voting. Therefore, stockholders holding a majority in voting power of the shares of



our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors are able to elect all of our directors.
Special Stockholders Meetings

Our Charter provides that special meetings of our stockholders may be called at any time only by or at the direction of our board of
directors or the chair of our board of directors. Our Bylaws prohibit conducting any business at a special meeting other than as specified in the
notice for such meeting. These provisions may have the effect of deferring, delaying or discouraging hostile takeovers, or changes in control or
management of the Company.

Requirements for Advance Notification of Director Nominations and Stockholder Proposals

Our Bylaws establish advance notice procedures with respect to stockholder proposals and the nomination of candidates for election as
directors, other than nominations made by or at the direction of our board of directors or a committee of our board of directors. In order for any
matter to be “properly brought” before a meeting, a stockholder has to comply with advance notice requirements and provide us with certain
information. Generally, to be timely, a stockholder’s notice must be received at our principal executive offices not less than 90 days nor more than
120 days prior to the first anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of stockholders. Our Bylaws also specify requirements as
to the form and content of a stockholder’s notice. Our Bylaws allow the chair of the meeting at a meeting of the stockholders to adopt rules and
regulations for the conduct of meetings which may have the effect of precluding the conduct of certain business at a meeting if the rules and
regulations are not followed. These provisions may defer, delay or discourage a potential acquiror from conducting a solicitation of proxies to
elect the acquiror’s own slate of directors or otherwise attempting to influence or obtain control of the Company.

Stockholder Action by Written Consent

Pursuant to Section 228 of the DGCL, any action required to be taken at any annual or special meeting of the stockholders may be taken
without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, is signed by the
holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a
meeting at which all shares of our stock entitled to vote thereon were present and voted, unless our Charter provides otherwise. Our Charter
provides that stockholder action can be taken only at an annual or special meeting of stockholders and cannot be taken by written consent in lieu
of a meeting.

Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws

The DGCL provides generally that the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares entitled to vote on any matter is required to amend a
corporation’s certificate of incorporation or bylaws, unless a corporation’s certificate of incorporation or bylaws, as the case may be, requires a
greater percentage. Our Bylaws may be amended or repealed by a majority vote of our board of directors or by the affirmative vote of the holders
of at least 662/3% of the votes which all our



stockholders would be entitled to cast in any annual election of directors. In addition, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 662/3% of the
votes which all our stockholders would be entitled to cast in any election of directors will be required to amend or repeal or to adopt any
provisions inconsistent with any of the provisions of our Charter described above.

Dissenters’ Rights of Appraisal and Payment

Under the DGCL, with certain exceptions, our stockholders have appraisal rights in connection with a merger or consolidation of us.
Pursuant to the DGCL, stockholders who properly request and perfect appraisal rights in connection with such merger or consolidation have the
right to receive payment of the fair value of their shares as determined by the Delaware Court of Chancery.

Stockholders’ Derivative Actions

Under the DGCL, any of our stockholders may bring an action in our name to procure a judgment in our favor, also known as a derivative
action; provided that the stockholder bringing the action is a holder of our shares at the time of the transaction to which the action relates or such
stockholder’s stock thereafter devolved by operation of law.

Exclusive Forum

Our Charter provides, subject to limited exceptions, that unless we consent to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery
of the State of Delaware (or if such court does not have jurisdiction another state or the federal courts (as appropriate) located within the State of
Delaware) shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for any (i) derivative action or proceeding brought on
behalf of the Company, (ii) action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any current or former director, officer or other employee
or stockholder of the Company to the Company, our stockholders, (iii) action asserting a claim against the Company or any director or officer of
the Company arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL or our Charter or our Bylaws or as to which the DGCL confers jurisdiction on the
Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, or (iv) action asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine of the State of Delaware.

Our Charter further provides that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, to the fullest extent permitted by
law, the federal district courts of the United States of America will be the exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of
action arising under the federal securities laws of the United States, including any claims under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”) and the Exchange Act. However, Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over
all suits brought to enforce a duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations thereunder and, accordingly, we cannot be
certain that a court would enforce such provision. It is possible that a court could find our forum selection provisions to be inapplicable or
unenforceable and, accordingly, we could be required to litigate claims in multiple jurisdictions, incur additional costs or otherwise not receive the
benefits that we expect our forum selection provisions to provide.



Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of capital stock of the Company shall be deemed to have
notice of and consented to the forum provisions in our Charter. Our exclusive forum provision shall not relieve the Company of its duties to
comply with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder, and our stockholders will not be deemed to have waived our
compliance with these laws, rules and regulations.

Corporate Opportunities; Conflicts of Interest

Our Charter provides that we renounce any interest or expectancy in, or in being offered an opportunity to participate in, any business
opportunity of GPC Fund and AMFIC and their respective members, managers, partners, shareholders, officers, directors, employees, agents,
representatives and affiliates (the “Initial Investor Group™) or any director that is not our employee. We will not renounce any interest in any
corporate opportunity offered to any director or officer if such opportunity is expressly offered to such person solely in his or her capacity as our
director or officer.

Our Charter provides that the Initial Investor Group has no duty to refrain from (i) engaging in a corporate opportunity in the same or
similar lines of business in which we or our affiliates now engage or propose to engage or (ii) otherwise competing with us or our affiliates. In the
event that the Initial Investor Group acquires knowledge of a potential transaction or other business opportunity that may be a corporate
opportunity, such person has no duty to communicate or offer such transaction or business opportunity to us or our affiliates and they may take any
such opportunity for themselves or offer it to another person or entity unless such knowledge was acquired solely in such person’s capacity as our
director or officer.

Limitations on Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors

The DGCL authorizes corporations to limit or eliminate the personal liability of directors and officers to corporations and their
stockholders for monetary damages for breaches of fiduciary duties, subject to certain exceptions. Our Charter includes a provision that eliminates
the personal liability of directors and officers for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duty as a director or officer, except to the extent
such exemption from liability or limitation thereof is not permitted under the DGCL. The effect of these provisions is to eliminate the rights of us
and our stockholders, through stockholders’ derivative suits on our behalf, to recover monetary damages from a director for breach of fiduciary
duty as a director, including breaches resulting from grossly negligent behavior. This provision does not limit or eliminate the liability of any
officer in any action by or in the right of the Company, including any derivative claims. Exculpation under this provision does not apply to any
director or officer if the director or officer has breached the duty of loyalty to the corporation and its stockholders, acted in bad faith, knowingly or
intentionally violated the law, authorized illegal dividends or redemptions, or derived an improper benefit from his or her actions as a director or
officer.

Our Charter provides that we must generally indemnify, and advance expenses to, our directors and officers to the fullest extent authorized
by the DGCL. We also are expressly authorized to carry directors’ and officers’ liability insurance providing indemnification for our directors,
officers and certain employees for some liabilities. We have also entered into



indemnification agreements with our directors, which agreements require us to indemnify these individuals to the fullest extent permitted under
Delaware law against liabilities that may arise by reason of their service to us, and to advance expenses incurred as a result of any proceeding
against them as to which they could be indemnified. We believe that these indemnification and advancement provisions, and insurance are useful
to attract and retain qualified directors and officers.

The limitation of liability, indemnification and advancement provisions in our Charter may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit
against directors for breach of their fiduciary duty. These provisions also may have the effect of reducing the likelihood of derivative litigation
against directors and officers, even though such an action, if successful, might otherwise benefit us and our stockholders. In addition, our
stockholders may be adversely affected to the extent we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and officers pursuant to
these indemnification provisions.

Registration Rights

IN connection with our initial public offering, we entered into a registration rights agreement with AFMIC, GPC Fund and our Chief
Executive Officer (the “Registration Rights Agreement”). The Registration Rights Agreement provides that AFMIC, GPC Fund and their
permitted transferees can require us to register under the Securities Act all or any portion of the shares held by AFMIC, GPC Fund and our Chief
Executive Officer and their permitted transferees, subject to customary requirements and limitations. AFMIC, GPC Fund and our Chief Executive
Officer and their permitted transferees also have piggyback registration rights, such that AFMIC, GPC Fund and our Chief Executive Officer and
their permitted transferees may include their respective shares in certain future registrations of our equity securities. The demand registration
rights and piggyback registration rights contained in the Registration Rights Aagreement are each subject to market cut-back exceptions.

The Registration Rights Agreement sets forth customary registration procedures, including an agreement by us to make our management
reasonably available to participate in road show presentations in connection with any underwritten offerings. We also agreed to indemnify AFMIC,
GPC Fund and our Chief Executive Officer and their permitted transferees with respect to liabilities resulting from untrue statements or omissions
in any registration statement used in any such registration, other than untrue statements or omissions resulting from information furnished to us for
use in a registration statement by AFMIC, GPC Fund, our Chief Executive Officer or any of their permitted transferees.



Exhibit 10.8

BOWHEAD SPECIALTY HOLDINGS INC.
2024 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (this “Award Agreement”), dated as of February 21, 2025 (the “Date of Grant”), is made by and
between Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and (the “Participant”). Capitalized terms used
but not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan (as may be
amended from time to time, the “Plan”).

Section 1. Grant of Restricted Stock Units. The Company hereby grants to the Participant an award of [ 1 (_ ) restricted stock units
(the “RSUs”), under and subject to the terms and conditions of this Award Agreement and the Plan which is incorporated herein by reference and
made a part hereof for all purposes. Each RSU shall represent the right to receive one (1) share of Common Stock.

Section 2. Vesting of RSUs.

(a) The RSUs shall vest over four years in annual installments with 20% of the RSUs vesting on each of the first second
and third anniversary of the Date of Grant and 40% vesting on the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant (each, a “Vesting Date”); provided, that
the Participant remains in continuous employment or service with the Company and its Affiliates through the applicable Vesting Date.

(b) Except as set forth in Section 2(c) or Section 2(d) below, if the Participant’s employment or service with the
Company and its Affiliates is terminated for any reason prior to the Vesting Date, then (i) all rights of the Participant with respect to RSUs that
have not vested as of the date of termination shall immediately terminate, (ii) any such unvested RSUs shall be forfeited without payment of any
consideration, and (iii) neither the Participant nor any of the Participant’s successors, heirs, assigns, or personal representatives shall thereafter
have any further rights or interests in such unvested RSUs.

(©) Notwithstanding any provision of Section 2(a) or Section 2(b) above, or Section 13 of the Plan to the contrary, in the
event that a Change in Control occurs (and the RSUs are assumed or substituted in connection therewith), and the Participant’s employment,
tenure or service is terminated by the Company, its successor or an Affiliate thereof without Cause or by the Participant for Good Reason on or
following the effective date of the Change in Control, then all rights of the Participant with respect to RSUs that have not vested as of the date of
such termination shall immediately accelerate and vest and any such restrictions shall lapse. For purposes of this Section 2(c), “Good Reason”
shall have the meaning set forth in any employment agreement between the Participant and the Company or its Subsidiaries or, in the absence of
any such agreement or in the absence of a similar term in any such agreement, such term, shall mean the occurrence of any of the following
events, without the express written consent of the Participant, unless such events are fully corrected in all material respects by the Company within
thirty (30) days following written notification by the Participant to the Company of the occurrence of one of the following reasons: (i) material
diminution in the Participant’s base salary except for across-the-board salary reductions based on the Company’s financial performance similarly
affecting all or substantially all senior management employees of the Company; (ii) material diminution in the Participant’s duties, authorities or
responsibilities (other than temporarily while physically or mentally incapacitated or as required by applicable law); or (iii) relocation of the
Participant’s primary work location by more than fifty (50) miles



from its then current location. The Participant will provide the Company with a written notice detailing the specific circumstances alleged to
constitute Good Reason within thirty (30) days after the first occurrence of such circumstances, and actually terminate employment within thirty
(30) days following the expiration of the Company’s thirty (30)-day cure period described above. Otherwise, any claim of such circumstances as
“Good Reason” shall be deemed irrevocably waived by the Participant.

(d) Notwithstanding any provision of Section 2(a) or Section 2(b) to the contrary, if the Participant’s employment or
service with the Company and its Affiliates is terminated by reason of (i) death, then all rights of the Participant with respect to RSUs that have
not vested as of the date of termination shall immediately accelerate and vest and any such restrictions shall lapse or (ii) Incapacity (other than by
reason of death, which is addressed in the foregoing clause (i)) following a Change in Control, then all rights of the Participant with respect to
RSUs that have not vested as of the date of such termination shall immediately accelerate and vest and any such restrictions shall lapse.

Section 3. Settlement. The shares of Common Stock underlying any RSUs that become vested in accordance with Section 2 shall be
delivered to the Participant as soon as practicable after the applicable date upon which such RSUs vest, but in no event later than March 15 of the
year following the year in which such RSUs vest (as applicable, the “Settlement Date™).

Section 4. Voting and Other Rights. The Participant shall have no rights of a stockholder with respect to the RSUs (including the right
to vote and the right to receive distributions or dividends) unless and until shares of Common Stock are issued in respect thereof following the
applicable date upon which the RSUs vest.

Section 5. Award Agreement Subject to Plan. This Award Agreement is made pursuant to all of the provisions of the Plan, which is
incorporated herein by this reference, and is intended, and shall be interpreted in a manner, to comply therewith. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Award Agreement and the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern. The Participant hereby
acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan. The Participant hereby acknowledges that all decisions, determinations and interpretations of the
Administrator in respect of the Plan, this Award Agreement and the RSUs shall be final and conclusive.

Section 6. Restrictive Covenants. Participant acknowledges and recognizes the highly competitive nature of the businesses of the
Company and its Affiliates and accordingly agrees as a condition to receipt of this Award, to be bound and abide by the provisions of any
restrictive covenants provided in any agreement by and between the Company or any of its Affiliates and the Participant, including the Restrictive
Covenant Agreement as may be amended from time to time (the “Restrictive Covenants”). If Participant breaches any such Restrictive Covenants
owed to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any other agreement, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion: (i) any unvested
portion of the Award held by the Participant shall be immediately rescinded and (ii) the Participant shall automatically forfeit any rights that the
Participant may have with respect to the RSUs as of the date of such determination. The foregoing remedies set forth in this Section 6 shall not be
the Company’s exclusive remedies. The Company reserves all other rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity.




Section 7. Compliance with Recoupment, Ownership and Other Policies or Agreements. As a condition to receiving this Award, the
Participant agrees that the Participant will abide by all provisions of any equity retention policy, compensation recovery policy, stock ownership
guidelines and/or other similar policies maintained by the Company, each as in effect from time to time and to the extent applicable to Participant
from time to time. In addition, the Participant shall be subject to such compensation recovery, recoupment, forfeiture, or other similar provisions
as may apply at any time to the Participant under applicable law.

Section 8. No Rights to Continuation of Employment. Nothing in the Plan or this Award Agreement shall confer upon the Participant
any right to continue in the employ or service of the Company or any Affiliate thereof or shall interfere with or restrict the right of the Company or
its Affiliates to terminate the Participant’s employment or service at any time for any reason.

Section 9. Tax Withholding. The Company shall be entitled to require a cash payment by or on behalf of the Participant in respect of
any sums required or permitted by federal, state or local tax law to be withheld with respect to the RSUs; provided, that, notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Participant shall be permitted, at his or her election, to satisfy the applicable tax obligations with respect to any RSUs by cashless
exercise or net share settlement, pursuant to which the Company shall withhold from the number of shares of Common Stock that would otherwise
be issued upon settlement of the RSUs the largest whole number of shares of Common Stock with a Fair Market Value equal to the applicable tax
obligations.

Section 10.  Section 4094 Compliance. The intent of the parties is that the payments and benefits under this Award Agreement comply
with Section 409A of the Code, to the extent subject thereto, and accordingly, to the maximum extent permitted, this Award Agreement shall be
interpreted and administered to be in compliance therewith. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Participant shall not be
considered to have terminated employment with the Company for purposes of any payments under this Award Agreement which are subject to
Section 409A of the Code until the Participant would be considered to have incurred a “separation from service” from the Company within the
meaning of Section 409A of the Code. Each amount to be paid or benefit to be provided under this Award Agreement shall be construed as a
separate identified payment for purposes of Section 409A of the Code. Without limiting the foregoing and notwithstanding anything contained
herein to the contrary, to the extent required in order to avoid accelerated taxation and/or tax penalties under Section 409A of the Code, amounts
that would otherwise be payable and benefits that would otherwise be provided pursuant to this Award Agreement or any other arrangement
between the Participant and the Company during the six-month period immediately following the Participant’s separation from service shall
instead be paid on the first business day after the date that is six months following the Participant’s separation from service (or, if earlier, the
Participant’s date of death). The Company makes no representation that any or all of the payments described in this Award Agreement will be
exempt from or comply with Section 409A of the Code and makes no undertaking to preclude Section 409A of the Code from applying to any
such payment. The Participant shall be solely responsible for the payment of any taxes and penalties incurred under Section 409A of the Code.

Section 11.  Governing Law. This Award Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Delaware, without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of law of such state.

Section 12.  RSU Agreement Binding on Successors. The terms of this Award Agreement shall be binding upon the Participant and upon
the Participant’s heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, transferees, assignees and successors in interest, and upon the Company
and its successors and assignees, subject to the terms of the Plan.



Section 13.  No Assignment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Award Agreement, neither this Award Agreement nor any
rights granted herein shall be assignable by the Participant.

Section 14.  Necessary Acts. The Participant hereby agrees to perform all acts, and to execute and deliver any documents that may be
reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions of this Award Agreement, including, but not limited to, all acts and documents related to
compliance with federal and/or state securities and/or tax laws.

Section 15.  No Part of Other Plans. The benefits provided under this Award Agreement or the Plan shall not be deemed to be a part of
or considered in the calculation of any other benefit provided by the Company or its Subsidiaries or Affiliates to the Participant.

Section 16.  Severability. Should any provision of this Award Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
unenforceable, or enforceable only if modified, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Award Agreement, the balance of
which shall continue to be binding upon the parties hereto with any such modification (if any) to become a part hereof and treated as though
contained in this original Award Agreement. Moreover, if one or more of the provisions contained in this Award Agreement shall for any reason be
held to be excessively broad as to scope, activity, subject or otherwise so as to be unenforceable, in lieu of severing such unenforceable provision,
such provision or provisions shall be construed by the appropriate judicial body by limiting or reducing it or them, so as to be enforceable to the
maximum extent compatible with the applicable law as it shall then appear, and such determination by such judicial body shall not affect the
enforceability of such provisions or provisions in any other jurisdiction.

Section 17.  Entire Agreement. This Award Agreement and the Plan contain the entire agreement and understanding among the parties as
to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any other agreements or representations, oral or otherwise, express or implied, with respect to the
subject matter hereof; provided, that any confidentiality, invention assignment and/or restrictive covenant agreements by and between the
Participant and the Company or any of its Subsidiaries shall not be superseded but shall continue in accordance with their terms.

Section 18.  Headings. Headings are used solely for the convenience of the parties and shall not be deemed to be a limitation upon or
descriptive of the contents of any such Section.

Section 19. Amendment. No amendment or modification hereof shall be valid unless it shall be in writing and signed by all parties
hereto.

Section 20.  Counterparts, Electronic Signature. This Award Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. The Participant’s electronic
signature of this Award Agreement shall have the same validity and effect as a signature affixed by the Participant’s hand.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

BOWHEAD SPECIALTY HOLDINGS INC.

By:
Print Name:__
Title:

PARTICIPANT

By:
Print Name:__




Exhibit 10.11

CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT

This statement provides details of the terms and conditions of employment with Globalization Partners Limited ("G-P")
(the "Company") and David John Newman ("you" or "your").

In this statement the terms "Group Companies" means the Company and any holding company or any parent company
or any subsidiary or subsidiary undertaking of the Company or such companies, as such terms are defined in s 1159, s
1162 (together with Schedule 7 and the definition of "parent company" in s 1173), s 1161 and Schedule 6 of the
Companies Act 2006, and "Group Company" means any of them.

In this statement the terms "the Client" means Bowhead Specialty Underwriters, Inc..

1. COMMENCEMENT OF EMPLOYMENT

1.1 Your employment with the Company commences on April 1, 2024 (the "Commencement Date") and shall
continue, subject to the remaining terms of this Agreement, until terminated by either party giving the other notice
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

1.2 Your employment from October 20, 2020, is recognised for the purposes of this contract and continuation of
service with the Company.

1.3 Your employment under this Agreement is conditional upon you having produced original documentary evidence of
your entitlement to live and work in the UK, and the Company having obtained and being satisfied with the results
of such written and/or oral references and such other background screening as the Company shall determine.

1.4 You warrant that you are entitled to work for the Company in the United Kingdom and will notify the Company
immediately if you cease to be so entitled at any time during your employment.

1.5You warrant that:

1.5.1you are not bound by the terms of any agreement with any previous employer or other party which restricts
in any way your employment with the Company or providing services to the Client;

1.5.2 you will not disclose or make use of any information in violation of any agreements with or rights of any such
previous employer or other party; and



1.6

1.5.3 you will not bring to the premises of the Company or the Client any copies or other tangible embodiments of
non-public information belonging to or obtained from any previous employer or other party.

If you are in breach of any of the warranties or fail to satisfy any of the conditions set out in this clause then the
Company shall be entitled to terminate your employment summarily.

2, JOB TITLE AND PLACE OF WORK

2.1

22

Your job title is Head of Underwriting and your duties will include all work reasonably incidental thereto. As well as
normal duties falling within this title, you may, on occasion, be required to undertake other duties which are
consistent with your capabilities.

You have been hired specifically to manage a relationship with the Client and will take instructions and feedback
directly from the Client to fulfil your job duties, role and responsibilities. You will report directly to Head of HR at the
Client, or to any successor of that position, and/or to any other position as may be designated by the Client.

2.3During the employment you shall:

24

2.3.1devote the whole of your working time, attention and abilities to the business of the Company and/or the
Client or any other company for which you are required to work from time to time;

2.3.2faithfully and diligently exercise such powers and perform such duties for the Company and/or the Client as
may from time to time be assigned by the Company and/or the Client;

2.3.3 comply with all reasonable and lawful directions given by the Company and/or the Client;

2.3.4 use your utmost endeavours to promote, protect, develop, and extend the business of the Company and the
Client; and

2.3.5 comply with your common law, statutory, regulatory, and fiduciary duties.

Your normal place of employment will be working from your home office. However, you also agree to work at any
Client place of business in the UK on a temporary or permanent basis as the Company or the Client may
reasonably require. You agree to travel on any business of the Company or Client as may be required for the
proper performance of your duties. You shall not be required to work outside of the United Kingdom for any
consecutive period in excess of one month.



3. REMUNERATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Your basic salary is £ 395,625.25 per year and will be paid in equal monthly instalments by direct transfer on or
around the last working day of each month to your personal bank or building society account. You will be notified
in writing each pay day of the net and gross amounts paid, including details of any additional payments and
deductions for tax, National Insurance contributions etc.

You will be notified in writing of any changes to your basic salary. The award of and amount of any salary increase
will be at the absolute discretion of the Company.

You will be eligible to earn an annual bonus of up to 100 % of your base salary subject to such conditions
(including but not limited to, conditions for and timing of payment) as the Company and/or Client may in its
absolute discretion determine from time to time. The terms or details regarding the bonus will be provided to you
within two months of the effective date of this Agreement. The Company and/or Client reserves the right to amend
the terms of any bonus plan at its absolute discretion. The decision with regard to the receipt and amount of any
bonus is entirely at the sole and final discretion of the Company and/or Client. If the Company and/or Client
decides in any period to pay a bonus, you cannot derive any right there from to any future bonus in accordance
with a plan or otherwise.

The terms of your employment shall not be affected in any way by your participation or entitiement to participate in
any long-term incentive plan or share option scheme. Such schemes and/or plans shall not form part of the terms
of your employment (express or implied). In calculating any payment, compensation or damages on the
termination of your employment for whatever reason (whether lawful or unlawful) which might otherwise be
payable to you, no account shall be taken of your participation in any such schemes and/or plans or any impact
upon participation such termination may have.

The Company is entitled to deduct from your salary or any other payment due to you from the Company or the
Client, including any payment due to you on termination of your employment, any sums properly due from you to
the Company or the Client. Such sums include, without limitation, repayment of any loans or advances (including
advances on expenses), repayment of any overpaid holiday pay, repayment of sign-on bonuses, salary or
benefits, and the cost of any damage to or loss of the Company's or Client's property caused by you.

4. PENSION SCHEME
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With effect from the date of the commencement of your employment you will be contractually enrolled in the
Company's Workplace Pension Scheme, currently with Aviva (the



4.2

"Company Scheme"). Full details of the Company Scheme are available from the Company.

Unless you opt out, the Company will make a pension contribution equal to 4% of your basic salary and will
require you to make a contribution equal to 5% of your basic salary to the Company Scheme during each year of
your employment. Your contributions shall be deducted from your basic salary each month. The Company intends
to comply with the employer pension duties in accordance with Part 1 of the Pensions Act 2008 and as a result
these contributions may be subject to increase from time to time. You will be advised of any such increase in
advance.

5. BENEFITS

5.1

You shall, during employment, be eligible to participate in such benefit plans that the Company may establish and
makes available to you from time to time, provided that you are and remain eligible under the plan documents,
rules, terms and conditions governing those plans.

5.2 Your participation in any such benefit plan will be subject to:

5.3

5.4

5.2.1 the terms of the relevant benefit plan as amended from time to time;
5.2.2the rules or policies of the relevant benefit plan provider, as amended from time to time;
5.2.3 acceptance by the relevant benefit plan provider; and

5.2.4 you satisfying the normal underwriting requirements of the relevant benefit plan provider (which may involve
a medical and/or a medical questionnaire) and the premium being at a rate which the Company considers
reasonable.

The Company's obligation under this clause is limited to paying premiums to the relevant benefits provider. If the
benefit provider refuses to accept a claim under the relevant benefit plan the Company shall have no obligation or
responsibility to challenge that decision or to compensate you. The Company, in its absolute discretion, reserves
the right to discontinue, vary or amend any of the benefit plans (including the provider and/or level of cover
provided under any benefit plan) at any time on reasonable notice to you.

You agree that the Company shall be under no obligation to continue this Agreement and your employment so that
you continue to receive benefits or to enable you to receive benefits under this Agreement or otherwise (including
in relation to any insurance benefit). In particular, you agree that the Company may terminate your employment
notwithstanding any rights which you may have to participate in and/or obtain benefits under any permanent
health insurance scheme which the Company may choose to operate from time to time.



You agree that you shall have no entitlement to compensation or otherwise from the Company and/or any Group
Member of the Company for the loss of any such entitlements and/or benefits.

6. HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME PAYMENTS

6.1

Your working hours shall be from 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday to Friday plus such additional hours as are required
for the proper and efficient performance of your duties. No payments are made for any hours worked over and
above the normal working day.

6.2 By your signature to this statement, you:

6.2.1 consent to opt out of the limit on weekly working hours contained in Regulation 4 of The Working Time
Regulations 1998. You and the Company agree that your consent, for the purposes of this clause, shall
continue indefinitely provided that you may withdraw such consent at any time by giving the Company three
months' notice of your wish to do so; and

6.2.2 confirm that during the employment you will not undertake any other work for any employer without the
written consent of the Company.

7. HOLIDAYS AND HOLIDAY PAY

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

You shall be entitled to 20 paid holiday per year (not including the normal public holidays) to be taken at times
convenient to the Client and authorised in advance by either the Company or the Client. The Company's holiday
year runs from 1 January to 31 December. Holiday accrues pro rata in each month.

If your employment commences or terminates part way through a holiday year, your holiday entitlement during
that holiday year will be calculated pro rata basis rounded up to the nearest full day.

A maximum of 5 days of holiday may be carried over to the following holiday year provided they are taken by
March 31 in that following year.

You will have no entitlement to payment in lieu of accrued but untaken holiday except on the termination of
employment. The amount of such payment in lieu shall be 1/260 of your salary for each untaken day of entitlement

If on the termination of employment you have already taken holiday in excess of your accrued but untaken
entitlement, the Company shall be entitled to recover from you by way of deduction from any payments due to you
or otherwise one day's pay for each excess day calculated at 1/260 of your basic annual salary.



7.6

If either party has served notice to terminate the employment, the Company may require you to take any accrued
but unused holiday entitlement during the notice period. Any accrued but unused holiday entitlement shall be
deemed to be taken during any period of Garden Leave.

8. SICKNESS ABSENCE & PAYMENTS

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

If you are unable to attend work due to sickness or injury you must notify your manager as early as possible on the
first day of absence and preferably before the start of your manager's day. You should state why you are unable to
work and how long you expect to be unable to work. You should keep your line manager regularly informed of your
condition and the likely date of your return to work.

Any period of absence of up to 5 days may be self-certified and any period of absence of more than 5 days must
be supported by doctor's certificate. A failure to comply with these requirements may result in you losing your
entitlement to Statutory Sick Pay ("SSP") and any applicable enhanced payments and could lead to disciplinary
action being taken against you.

You consent to undergo a medical examination by a doctor nominated by the Company at the Company's request
and expense. You agree that any report produced in connection with any such examination may be disclosed to
the Company and/or the Client and the Company and/or the Client may discuss the contents of any such report
with the relevant doctor.

You will be entitled to statutory sick pay ("SSP") in accordance with the prevailing rules of the statutory sick pay
scheme. Any further payments will be discretionary, non-contractual and may be discontinued at any time. Any
further payments will be subject to compliance with the rules of any sick pay policy or absence policy which may
be in place from time to time and subject to your compliance with the Company's sickness absence notification
requirements.

The rights of the Company to terminate your employment apply even where such termination would or might
cause you to forfeit any entitlement to sick pay, permanent health cover or insurance, or other benefits.

If a period of absence is or appears to have been caused by negligence or other action by a third party in respect
of which you may be able to recover compensation, you must immediately notify your manager and provide such
further information and cooperation in relation to any legal proceedings as the Company may reasonably require.
Any enhanced sick pay or other payments the Company makes to you in respect of that period except SSP shall
be repayable on demand, provided that the amount to be repaid shall not exceed



any compensation you recover for loss of earnings less any costs you incur in connection with such recovery.

9. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Your employment may be terminated by you or the Company by providing one months' notice in writing. After you
have 2 years of continuous service with the Company you will be entitled to receive and will be required to give an
additional one week's written notice of termination of employment for each completed year of continuous service
up to a maximum of 12 weeks' notice after 12 years of continuous service.

A notice given to a party under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be delivered (i) by hand, (ii) by post to
the party at the address given for that party in this Agreement, (iii) to the work or (in the case of a notice given to
the Employee) the personal email address of that party, or (iv) as otherwise notified in writing to the other party.

A notice given by email shall be deemed to take effect one hour after it is sent, a notice sent by first class post
shall be deemed to take effect on the next working day and notice sent by courier upon delivery at the address in
question.

The Company may, in its absolute discretion, terminate your employment at any time and with immediate effect by
notifying you that it is exercising its right under this clause and that it will pay you a sum equal to the basic salary
you would have received during your notice period (or, if notice has already been given, during the remainder of
the notice period) less income tax and National Insurance contributions ("Payment in Lieu"). You shall have no
right to receive a Payment in Lieu unless the Company has exercised its discretion to make the same. The
Payment in Lieu shall not include any payment in respect of:

9.4.1 any bonus or commission payments that might otherwise have been paid to you during the period for which
the Payment in Lieu is made;

9.4.2 benefits which you would have been entitled to receive during the period for which the Payment in Lieu is
made;

9.4.3 any holiday entitlement that would have accrued to you during the period for which the Payment in Lieu is
made.

You shall have no right to receive a Payment in Lieu if the Company would otherwise have been entitled to
terminate your employment under this Agreement without notice. In that case the Company shall also be entitled
to recover from you any Payment in Lieu already made.



10. TERMINATION WITHOUT NOTICE

10.1 Notwithstanding the termination provisions set out above, the Company may terminate your employment under
this Agreement with immediate effect without notice and with no liability to make any further payment to you (other
than in respect of amounts accrued at date of termination) if in the reasonable opinion of the Company you:

10.1.1 are guilty of gross misconduct; or

10.1.2 commit any serious or repeated breach or non-observance of any of the provisions of this Agreement or
refuse to comply with any reasonable and lawful directions of the Company or the Client; or

10.1.3 are grossly negligent or grossly incompetent in the performance of your duties; or

10.1.4 are declared bankrupt or makes any arrangement with or for the benefit of your creditors or has a county
court administration order made under the County Court Act 1984; or

10.1.5 are convicted of any criminal offence (other than an offence under any road traffic legislation in the United
Kingdom or elsewhere for which a fine or non-custodial penalty is imposed); or

10.1.6 commit any material breach of the Company's or Client's policies or procedures; or
10.1.7 are no longer eligible to work in the United Kingdom; or

10.1.8 are guilty of any fraud or dishonesty or acts in any manner which brings or is likely to bring you or the
Company or the Client into disrepute or is materially adverse to the interests of the Company or the Client.
The rights of the Company under this clause are without prejudice to any other rights that it might have at
law to terminate your employment or to accept any breach of this Agreement by you as having brought the
Agreement to an end. Any delay by the Company in exercising it rights to terminate shall not constitute a
waiver thereof.

11.GARDEN LEAVE

11.1 The Company may, at its absolute discretion, place you for the whole or any part or parts of your notice period
(whether notice is given by the Company or by you, or if you purport to terminate the employment in breach of
contract) on garden leave ("Garden Leave").

11.2 During any period of Garden Leave:



11.2.1 the Company or the Client shall be under no obligation to provide any work to you and may revoke any
powers you hold on behalf the Company or the Client;

11.2.2 the Company or the Client may require you to carry out alternative duties or to only perform such specific
duties as are expressly assigned to you, at such location (including your home) as it may reasonably decide;

11.2.3 the Company or the Client may appoint another person to carry out your normal duties;

11.2.4 you shall continue to receive your basic salary but shall not be entitled to receive any applicable non-
contractual bonus or other incentive in respect of the period of Garden Leave;

11.2.5 you shall remain an employee of the Company and bound by the terms of this Agreement (including any
implied duties of good faith and fidelity);

11.2.6 you shall be contactable during each working day (except during any periods taken as holiday in the usual
way);

11.2.7 the Company or the Client may exclude you from any premises of the Company or the Client, require you
to return any Company or Client property and remove your access from some or all of the Company's or the
Client's information systems; and

11.2.8 the Company may require you not to contact or deal with (or attempt to contact or deal with) any officer,
employee, consultant, client or other business contact of the Company or Client as it may reasonably
determine.

12. GRIEVANCE & DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES

12.1 Your attention is drawn to the disciplinary and grievance procedures applicable to your employment, copies of

which are available from the Company. These procedures do not form part of your contract of employment.

13.HEALTH & SAFETY

13.1 Your attention is drawn to the health and safety policy applicable to your employment, a copy of which is available

from the Company. You have a statutory duty to observe all health and safety rules and to take all reasonable care
to promote the health and safety of yourself, other employees and visitors.



14. CONFIDENTIALITY

14.1

14.2

14.3

You must not at any time during your employment (except so far as may be necessary for the proper performance
of your duties) or after the termination of your employment use for any purpose other than the Company's or
Client's business or disclose to any person or body any Confidential Information obtained during your employment.
For the purposes of this Agreement "Confidential Information™ means any trade secrets or other information
which is confidential, commercially sensitive, and is not in the public domain (other than by your actions) relating
or belonging to the Company and/or any Group Company and/or Client including but not limited to:

14.1.1 information relating to the business methods, corporate plans, management systems, finances, new
business opportunities, research and development projects, marketing or sales of any past, present or future
product or service;

14.1.2 secret formulae, processes, inventions, designs, know-how discoveries, technical specifications and other
technical information relating to the business or the creation, production or supply of any past, present or
future product or service of the Company and/or any Group Company and/or the Client;

14.1.3 lists or details of customers, potential customers or suppliers or the arrangements made with any
customer or supplier; and

14.1.4 any information in respect of which the Client, the Company and/or any Group Company owes an
obligation of confidentiality to any third party.

You must return to the Company or the Client forthwith on termination of your employment, or at any time during
your employment upon request by the Company or the Client, any Confidential Information which is in your
possession or under your control in any format (whether prepared by you or any other person and whether stored
electronically, on paper, online or otherwise), including and information in any format which contains, reflects or is
derived or generated from Confidential Information. You must not retain any copy or extract of such information in
any format.

In addition, the Client may require you to sign non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements prior to rendering
services. If the Client requires you to sign a non-disclosure or confidentiality agreement, this contract of
employment is conditional upon you signing such non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements. To the extent that
you have any questions regarding the implications of signing such agreements, you agree to notify the Company
prior to signing.



15.O0UTSIDE INTERESTS AND DEALINGS

15.1 You may not, during your employment including any period of Garden Leave, without having disclosed full details
to the Company and the Client and obtained the prior written consent of the Company and the Client, be directly or
indirectly engaged, concerned or interested in any capacity in any other actual or prospective business,
organisation, occupation or profession other than the business of the Company or the Client. This restriction
applies whether or not the other activity is of a similar nature to or competes in any material respect with any of the
businesses of the Company or the Client.

15.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent you from holding an investment by way of shares or other securities in any
entity listed or dealt on a recognised stock exchange (a "Permitted Investment") provided always that during the
term of the employment the Permitted Investment shall not constitute more than 3% of the issued share capital of
the entity concerned.

16.INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS AND INVENTIONS

16.1 The parties foresee that you, on your own or with others, may make, discover, conceive, reduce to practice or
develop inventions or create other intellectual property in the course of your duties for the Company or the Client.
As used in this Agreement, the term &"Inventions" means and includes, without limitations, all software programs,
source or object codes, algorithms, improvements, mask works, discoveries, financial models, works of
authorship, trade secrets, designs, formulas, ideas, processes, techniques, know-how and data, whether or not
patentable, made or discovered or conceived or reduced to practice or developed by you, either alone or jointly
with others, during the term of your employment with the Company.

16.2 All copyright, design right (registered or unregistered), trademark, database rights, technical information and other
intellectual property rights in all Inventions, works and materials made, originated, developed, written or prepared
by you (whether alone or with others) during your employment and in any way affecting or relating to the business
of the Company and/or the Client, or capable of being used or adapted for use in or in connection with such
business (collectively "Intellectual Property Rights") shall belong to the Company and/or the Client, respectively.
You shall immediately disclose to the Company and/or Client the full details of any Intellectual Property Rights.
You hereby assign, by way of future assignment, all such Intellectual Property Rights as mentioned above to the
Company and/or the Client, respectively, to hold absolutely unto itself, together with the right to apply for
registration (where registrable) and enforce all such rights anywhere in the world. You also unconditionally and
irrevocably agree to waive any and all moral rights you may have as an author, designer or inventor of any such
works or materials under sections 77 to 85 inclusive of the copyright designs and patents act 1988 in favour of the
Company and/or the Client, respectively, in relation to any works and materials in which



the Intellectual Property Rights referred to above are vested in the Company and/or the Client.

16.3 You recognise and accept that the Company or the Client may edit, copy, add to, take from, adapt and/or translate

such works and materials as it sees fit in exercising the rights assigned herein.

16.4 You agree that you will at the Company's or the Client's request and expense, execute such further documents or

deeds and do all things necessary or reasonably required (including without limitation filing a patent application
naming the Company or the Client, respectively, as the sole proprietor) to confirm and substantiate the rights of
the Company or the Client and vest the Intellectual Property Rights in the Company or the Client under this
section and despite the termination of this agreement for any reason, and until properly vested will hold any such
Intellectual Property Rights on trust for the Company and/or the Client. You agree that you will not knowingly do or
omit to do anything which will or may have the result of invalidating any such protection aforesaid or any
application for such protection.

16.5 You agree that you will not at any time make use of or exploit the Company's or the Client's property, trademarks,

service marks, documents or materials in which the Company or the Client owns the copyright or the design rights
for any purpose which has not been authorised by the Company or the Client. You agree that you will not
knowingly do or omit to do anything which will or may have the result of invalidating any such protection aforesaid
or any application for such protection.

17.COMPANY AND CLIENT PROPERTY

17.1 All notes and memoranda concerning the business of the Company and/or the Client or any of their suppliers,

agents, distributors, clients or customers which are received or made by you in the course of your employment will
be the property of the Company or the Client, respectively.

17.2 At any time during your employment or following its termination (for whatever reason), unless directed otherwise

by the Company and/or the Client, you agree to:

17.2.1 return to the Company (or, as appropriate, the Client) all documents and copies (whether written, printed,
electronic, recorded or otherwise and wherever located), including all Confidential Information made,
compiled or acquired by you during the employment or relating to the business or affairs of the Company
and/or Client or their business contacts including (but not limited to) client/customer lists, correspondence
and documents (including copies), which you have in your possession or which is under your control;



17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

17.8

17.2.2 return to the Company (or, as appropriate, the Client) all property belonging to or leased by the Company
or the Client, including (but not limited to) keys, mobile telephones, computers, mobile devices, security
passes, identity badges and books; and

17.2.3 irretrievably delete from any computer or other equipment not belonging to or leased by the Company or
the Client in your possession or under your control any information relating to the business or affairs of the
Company or the Client including (but not limited to) any Confidential Information and Copies including such
data and any software which is licensed to any Group Company and such systems and data storage service
provided by third parties (to the extent technically practicable).

The duration of the restrictions in this clause shall be reduced by any period of Garden Leave where you are
required not to carry out any work on behalf of the Company or the Client.

You understand that the restrictions set forth in this section are intended to protect the Company's and the Client's
interest in its or their proprietary information and established customer relationships and goodwill and agree that
such restrictions are reasonable and appropriate for this purpose.

If any restriction in this clause is found to be void or ineffective but would be valid if part of the wording of such
restriction were deleted, such restriction shall apply with such deletion (including but not limited to a single word or
words) as may be necessary to make it valid or effective.

You enter into each of the restrictions in this clause for the benefit of the Company and as trustee for each Group
Company. You will, at the request and expense of the Company and the Client, enter into a separate agreement
with the Client in which you agree to be bound by restrictions corresponding to those restrictions in this clause in
relation to the Client.

The restrictions of this section shall not preclude you making passive investments of:

17.7.1 up to no more than 3% of the outstanding stock of any public company or;

17.7.2 investments in private enterprises through professionally managed investment funds over which you have
no control or input, so long as, in each case, you do not provide any services to or act as a director, officer,

agent or consultant to such company or enterprise.

The above is without prejudice to the rights of the Company or the Client which arise by operation of law.



18.DATA PROTECTION

18.1 You acknowledge that you have received a copy of G-P's Privacy Notice for Human Resources data as part of
your onboarding, that you have therefore been notified about how your personal information will be collected and
processed, and that you have been provided an opportunity to opt out of certain types of processing, where
applicable.

19.COLLECTIVE AGREEMENTS
19.1 There are no collective agreements affecting your employment.
20.THIRD PARTIES

20.1 Unless expressly stated otherwise in these terms and conditions, no provision of these terms and conditions may
be enforced by any third party pursuant to the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 other than by a Group
Company.

21.EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

21.1 The Company is an equal opportunities employer. No breaches of the discrimination legislation on the part of any
of its employees will be tolerated.

22.EXPENSES

22.1 The Company will reimburse you for all reasonable expenses which have been properly incurred by you in the
performance of your duties. You must provide appropriate receipts or other evidence of expenditure to support any
claim for reimbursement of expenses and submit your claim in a timely fashion in accordance with, and as
prescribed by, Company and Client policy.

23.ENTIRE AGREEMENT

23.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between you and the Company and it supersedes and
extinguishes all previous discussions, correspondence, negotiations, drafts, agreements, promises, assurances,
warranties, representations and understandings between you and the Company, whether written or oral, relating to
its subject matter.

24 VARIATIONS

24.1 The Company reserves the right to make reasonable changes to any of your terms and conditions of employment.



24 .2 All changes will be notified to you in writing. You will be notified of minor changes by way of a general notice to all
employees. Unless otherwise set out in the notice, any changes shall take effect from the date of the notice in
which they are set out.

24.3 The Company reserves the right to transfer your employment to any Group Company on terms which (considered
in their entirety) are no less favourable to any material extent than the terms of this agreement.

25.LAW

25.1 Your contract of employment with the Company shall be governed by and construed in all respects in accordance
with the laws of England and Wales. You and the Company each irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive
jurisdiction of the English Courts.



s/ Steffi Zschammer

HR Manager

For and on behalf of Globalization Partners Limited

29 March 2024



| accept the terms and conditions of my employment with the Company as set out in this Agreement.
/s/ David John Newman

David John Newman

29 March 2024
Dated



Exhibit 10.17

BOWHEAD SPECIALTY HOLDINGS INC.
CHANGE IN CONTROL SEVERANCE PLAN

The Company hereby adopts the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. Severance Plan for the benefit of certain Eligible Employees on the terms
and conditions hereinafter stated. The Plan and Summary Plan Description, as set forth herein, is intended to, among other things, help retain qualified full- and
part-time regular employees, maintain a stable work environment and provide economic security to Participants in the event of certain terminations of
employment. The Plan, as a “severance pay arrangement” within the meaning of Section 3(2)(B)(i) of ERISA, is intended to be excepted from the definitions of
“employee pension benefit plan” and “pension plan” set forth under Section 3(2) of ERISA, and is intended to meet the descriptive requirements of a plan
constituting a “severance pay plan” within the meaning of regulations published by the Secretary of Labor at Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations §2510.3-
2(b).

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. As hereinafter used:

1.1 “Accrued Compensation” means: (i) Base Salary accrued by the Participant through, but not paid to the Participant as of, the
Termination Date; (ii) any annual incentive bonus earned by the Participant for a prior year but not paid to the Participant as of the Qualifying Termination
Date; and (iii) any vested employee benefits to which the Participant is entitled as of the Qualifying Termination Date under any employee benefit plan of the
Company (including for any Eligible Employee located in the U.K, accrued holiday pay).

1.2 “Additional Cash Payment” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(b).

1.3 “Administrator” shall mean the Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company or a designee thereof.

14 “Base Salary” means the Participant’s annual base salary as in effect immediately prior to the Qualifying Termination Date or, if higher,
as in effect immediately prior to the occurrence of an event or circumstance constituting Good Reason.

1.5 “Cause” shall have the meaning set forth in the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as may be amended
from time to time.

1.6 “Change in Control” shall have the meaning set forth in the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. 2024 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as may be
amended from time to time.

1.7 “Change in Control Severance Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(a).
1.8 “COBRA” means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended.
1.9 “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

1.10  “Company” shall mean Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc., a Delaware corporation, and, except as the context otherwise requires, its
wholly-owned subsidiaries and any



successor by merger, acquisition, consolidation or otherwise that assumes the obligations of the Company under the Plan.
1.11  “Disability” shall have the meaning set forth in the long-term disability plan of the Company applicable to the Participant.
1.12  “Effective Date” shall mean February 21, 2025.

1.13  “Eligible Employee” shall mean (i) each full- and part-time regular employee of the Company; provided, that the term “Eligible
Employee” shall exclude the Chief Executive Officer of the Company; and (ii) any other individuals employed or engaged on behalf of the Company; provided,
that, in each case, the Administrator shall not designate, and the term “Eligible Employee” shall not include, any person who is party to any agreement or
arrangement with the Company where such agreement provides a severance benefit.

1.14  “ERISA” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the underlying Department of Labor
regulations.

1.15  “Excise Tax” means any excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Code.

1.16  “Good Reason” has the meaning set forth in any employment or other agreement between the Participant and the Company or its
Subsidiaries (or a PEO, if applicable) or, in the absence of any such agreement or in the absence of a similar term in any such agreement, such term, shall mean
the occurrence of any of the following events, without the express written consent of the Participant, unless such events are fully corrected in all material
respects by the Company (or a PEO, if applicable) within thirty (30) days following written notification by the Participant to the Company of the occurrence of
one of the following reasons: (i) material diminution in the Participant’s base salary except for across-the-board salary reductions based on the Company’s
financial performance similarly affecting all or substantially all senior management employees of the Company; (ii) material diminution in the Participant’s
duties, authorities or responsibilities (other than temporarily while physically or mentally incapacitated or as required by applicable law); or (iii) relocation of
the Participant’s primary work location by more than fifty (50) miles from its then current location. The Participant will provide the Company with a written
notice detailing the specific circumstances alleged to constitute Good Reason within thirty (30) days after the first occurrence of such circumstances, and
actually terminate employment within thirty (30) days following the expiration of the Company’s thirty (30)-day cure period described above. Otherwise, any
claim of such circumstances as “Good Reason” shall be deemed irrevocably waived by the Participant.

1.17  “Notice Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2.

1.18  “Participant” means each Eligible Employee who (i) is designated by the Administrator on or after the Effective Date as a Participant,
(i) and is so designated on Exhibit A, and (iii) has executed and returned to the Company the acknowledgment attached hereto as Exhibit B.

1.19  “PEQ” shall mean a professional employer organization which employs an Eligible Employee on behalf of the Company.

1.20  “Plan” shall mean, collectively, this Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. Severance Plan and Summary Plan Description, as set forth
herein, as it may be amended from time to time.



1.21  “Pro-Rata Target Annual Bonus” shall mean a pro rata portion of the Participant’s Target Annual Bonus (calculated based on the
number of days in the plan year the Participant is employed prior to and including the Qualifying Termination Date).

1.22  “Protected Period” shall mean the period commencing on the date of a Change in Control and ending on the twenty-four (24) month
anniversary of the date of the Change in Control.

1.23  “Qualifying Termination” shall mean at any time during the Protected Period, the termination of a Participant’s employment either by
the Company (or a PEO, if applicable) without Cause or by the Participant for Good Reason.

1.24  “Qualifying Termination Date” shall mean the date on which a Qualifying Termination occurs.
1.25  “Release and Separation Agreement” shall mean (i) in relation to Participants based in the United States, the Release and Separation

Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C and (ii) in relation to Participants based outside of the United States, a settlement agreement in
a form to be provided by the Company under which such Participant waives all statutory and contractual claims against the Company (or a PEO, if applicable).

1.26  “Target Annual Bonus” means the Participant’s target annual incentive bonus pursuant to any annual bonus or incentive plan
maintained by the Company (or a PEO, if applicable) in respect of the fiscal year in which the Qualifying Termination Date occurs (without regard to any
reduction in such fiscal year that would give rise to a circumstance constituting Good Reason) or, if higher, immediately prior to the fiscal year in which occurs
the first event or circumstance constituting Good Reason; provided, that if the Participant is not eligible to receive a specified target annual incentive bonus
following a Change in Control, then Target Annual Bonus shall mean such target annual incentive bonus in effect as of immediately prior to the date of the
Change in Control.

1.27  “Termination Date” shall mean the date on which a Participant’s employment with the Company terminates for any reason.
1.28  “Total Payments” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1.

1.29  “WARN Act” shall mean the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act of 1988 or any similar state or local law that requires
advanced notice to employees in the event of a closing or layoff.

SECTION 2. SEVERANCE BENEFITS

1. Severance Following Qualifying Termination.
(a) Severance Amount. If a Participant incurs a Qualifying Termination during the Protected Period, and subject to the execution

and nonrevocation of the Release and Separation Agreement, the Company shall provide such Participant with an amount equal to the sum of (x) one and one-
half (1.5) times the Participant’s Base Salary and (y) Pro-Rata Target Annual Bonus (the “Change in Control Severance Amount”). Subject to Section 5.12, such
Change in Control Severance Amount shall be paid in a lump-sum as soon as administratively practicable following the effectiveness of the Release and
Separation Agreement and, in any event, no later than sixty (60) days immediately following the Qualifying Termination Date.



(b) Additional Cash Payment. If a Participant who is based in the United States incurs a Qualifying Termination, and subject to the
execution and nonrevocation of the Release and Separation Agreement and in lieu of monthly-subsidized COBRA or other welfare benefits, the Company shall
provide each such Participant with an amount equal to the product of twelve (12) multiplied by the cost incurred by the Company for providing group health,
dental, and vision benefits to the Participant and the Participant’s eligible dependents in the month immediately prior to the month in which the Qualifying
Termination Date occurred (the “Additional Cash Payment”). Subject to Section 5.12, the Additional Cash Payment shall be paid in a lump-sum as soon as
administratively practicable following the effectiveness of the Release Agreement and, in any event, no later than sixty (60) days immediately following the
Qualifying Termination Date.

(c) Accrued Compensation. The Company shall pay the Accrued Compensation to each Participant who incurs a Termination in a
lump-sum payment as soon as practicable, but in any event before the earlier to occur of (y) the payment date required by applicable law and (z) thirty (30) days
immediately following the Termination Date.

2. Coordination of Benefits. Notwithstanding anything set forth herein to the contrary, to the extent that any severance payable under a
plan or agreement covering a Participant as of the date such Participant becomes eligible to participate in this Plan constitutes deferred compensation under
Section 409A of the Code, then to the extent required to avoid accelerated taxation and/or tax penalties under Section 409A of the Code, the portion of the
benefits payable hereunder equal to such other amount shall instead be provided in the form set forth in such other plan or agreement. Further, to the extent, if
any, that provisions of this Plan affect the time or form of payment of any amount or award which constitutes deferred compensation under Section 409A of the
Code, then to the extent required to avoid accelerated taxation and/or tax penalties under Section 409A of the Code, if a Change in Control does not constitute a
change in control event within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code, the time and form (but not the amount) of payment or settlement shall be the time and
form that would have been applicable in absence of a Change in Control.

3. WARN Act. If the Company has provided a Participant with advanced notice, pursuant to the WARN Act, of a separation from
employment with the Company, and the Company releases the Participant from the performance of active duties between the date of such advanced notice and
the Termination Date, then the Company may, in its sole discretion, reduce the sum of the Participant’s Plan benefits under this Section 2 by the amount of
compensation paid by the Company from the first day of the Participant’s release from the performance of active duties through the Termination Date.

4. Other Compensation or Benefits Unaffected. Each Participant shall remain entitled to any benefits to which he or she would otherwise
be entitled under the terms and conditions of the Company’s tax-qualified retirement plans, non-qualified deferred compensation plans, equity- and equity-
based plans and annual incentive plans, and nothing contained in the Plan is intended to waive or relinquish a Participant’s vested rights in such benefits. Except
as set forth in this Section 2, a Participant shall not be eligible for any other compensation or benefits, due to termination of employment, pursuant to any other
plan, policy, practice, contract or agreement. By agreeing to participate in this Plan and/or accepting any compensation or benefits hereunder, each Participant
expressly relinquishes and/or disavows any claim or right to any compensation or benefits due to termination of employment not expressly set forth herein.

5. Conditions. Unless otherwise required by law, no Participant who incurs a Qualifying Termination shall be eligible to receive any
payments or other benefits under the Plan unless the Participant first executes and does not revoke the Release and Separation Agreement (and related advisor’s
certificate, if applicable). A Participant must sign and return the Release and Separation Agreement no later than the date specified in that agreement.

SECTION 3.  PLAN ADMINISTRATION.

3.1 The Administrator shall have the exclusive right, power and authority, in the Administrator’s sole and absolute discretion, to administer
and interpret the Plan and other Plan



documents. The Administrator shall have all powers reasonably necessary to carry out the Administrator’s responsibilities under the Plan including, but not
limited to, the sole and absolute discretionary authority to: (i) administer the Plan in accordance with its terms and to interpret Plan policies and procedures;
(i) resolve and clarify inconsistencies, ambiguities and omissions in the Plan document and among and between the Plan document and other related
documents; (iii) take all actions and make all decisions regarding questions of coverage, eligibility and entitlement to benefits, and benefit amounts; and
(iv) process and approve or deny all claims for benefits. The decision of the Administrator on any disputed question arising under the Plan, including, but not
limited to, questions of construction, interpretation and administration shall be final, conclusive and binding on all persons having an interest in or under the
Plan.

3.2 The Administrator may delegate any of the Administrator’s duties hereunder to such person or persons from time to time as it may
designate.

3.3  The Administrator is empowered, on behalf of the Plan, to engage accountants, legal counsel and such other personnel as it deems
necessary or advisable to assist it in the performance of the Administrator’s duties under the Plan. The functions of any such persons engaged by the
Administrator shall be limited to the specified services and duties for which they are engaged, and such persons shall have no other duties, obligations or
responsibilities under the Plan. Such persons shall exercise no discretionary authority or discretionary control respecting the management of the Plan. All
reasonable expenses thereof shall be borne by the Company.

SECTION 4. PLAN MODIFICATION OR TERMINATION.

1. The Plan may be amended or terminated by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company at any time;
provided, however, that unless replaced with severance benefits that are more favorable to the Participant or unless the amendment would otherwise increase
benefits, the Plan may not be amended or terminated upon or during the Protected Period.

SECTION 5.  GENERAL PROVISIONS.

Transfer and Assignment. Except as otherwise provided herein or by law, no right or interest of any Participant under the Plan shall be
assignable or transferable in whole or in part, either directly or by operation of law or otherwise, including without limitation by execution, levy, garnishment,
attachment, pledge or in any manner; no attempted assignment or transfer thereof shall be effective; and no right or interest of any Participant under the Plan
shall be liable for, or subject to, any obligation or liability of such Participant. When a payment is due under this Plan to a Participant who is unable to care for
his or her affairs, payment may be made directly to his or her legal guardian or personal representative, upon proof or establishment of same.

2. Notice Periods. If the Company (or a PEO, if applicable) is obligated by law or by contract to pay severance pay, a termination
indemnity or the like, or if the Company (or a PEO, if applicable) is obligated by law to provide advance notice of separation (“Notice Period”), then any
severance pay hereunder shall be reduced by the amount of any such severance pay, termination indemnity, or the like, as applicable, and by the amount of any
payment in lieu of notice, or payment of base salary made during any period of garden leave received during any Notice Period.

) 3. Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted pursuant to the terms hereof shall have been duly given when
delivered or mailed by United States Mail, first class, postage prepaid (or equivalent first class postage in jurisdictions outside the United States), addressed to
the intended recipient at his, her or its last known address.

4, At-Will Employment. Neither the establishment of the Plan, nor any modification thereof, nor the creation of any fund, trust or account,
nor the payment of any benefits shall




be construed as giving any Participant, or any person whomsoever, the right to be retained in the service of the Company (or a PEO, if applicable), and all
Participants shall remain subject to discharge to the same extent as if the Plan had never been adopted.

5. Severability. If any provision of this Plan shall be held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any
other provisions hereof, and this Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such provisions had not been included.

6. Successors. This Plan shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of
the parties, including each Participant, present and future, and any successor to the Company. If a Participant shall die after severance benefits have become
payable under Section 2 above, and while any amount would still be payable to such Participant hereunder if the Participant had continued to live, all such
amounts, unless otherwise provided herein, shall be paid in accordance with the terms of this Plan to the executor, personal representative or administrators of
the Participant’s estate.

7. Headings and Subheadings. The headings and captions herein are provided for reference and convenience only, shall not be considered
part of the Plan, and shall not be employed in the construction of the Plan.

8. Unfunded Obligations. The Plan shall not be required to be funded. Regardless of whether the Plan is funded, no Participant shall have
any right to, or interest in, any assets of any company which may be applied by the Company to the payment of benefits or other rights under this Plan.

Governing Law. This Plan shall be construed and enforced according to the laws of the State of Delaware to the extent not preempted
by federal law, which shall otherwise control.

10. Withholding. All benefits hereunder shall be reduced by applicable withholding and shall be subject to applicable tax reporting, as
determined by the Administrator.

11. Restrictive Covenants. Following a Participant’s Termination Date, such Participant shall continue to be subject to any confidentiality
or other restrictive covenant to which the Participant is a party.

12. 409A. It is intended that the Plan constitute a “separation pay plan,” as defined in Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code
(“Section 409A”), and that each of the separately identified payments hereunder constitutes separate payments for purposes of Section 409A. Accordingly, to
the maximum extent permitted, the payments under this Plan shall be interpreted and administered in a manner such that they do not constitute deferred
compensation within the meaning of Section 409A. No Severance Amount shall be paid later than the last day of the second taxable year of the Participant
following the taxable year of the Participant in which the Participant’s Severance occurs. Without limiting the foregoing and notwithstanding anything
contained herein to the contrary, to the extent required in order to avoid an accelerated or additional tax under Section 409A, amounts that would otherwise be
payable and benefits that would otherwise be provided pursuant to this Plan during the six (6) month period immediately following the Participant’s separation
from service shall instead be paid on the first business day after the date that is six (6) months following the Participant’s separation from service (or, if earlier,
the Participant’s date of death). To the extent required to avoid an accelerated or additional tax under Section 409A, amounts reimbursable to the Participant
shall be paid to the Participant on or before the last day of the year following the year in which the expense was incurred and the amount of expenses eligible
for reimbursement (and in kind benefits provided to the Participant) during one year may not affect amounts reimbursable or provided in any subsequent year.
In no event may a Participant, directly or indirectly, designate the calendar year of a payment, and in the event the period for executing the Release and
Separation Agreement overlaps two calendar years, severance benefits shall be paid in the second year to the extent required in order to avoid an accelerated or
additional tax under Section 409A. The Company makes no representation that any or all of the payments described in this Plan shall be exempt from or comply
with Section 409A and makes no undertaking to preclude Section 409A from




applying to any such payment; the Participant shall be solely responsible for the payment of any taxes and penalties incurred under Section 409A.
SECTION 6.  SECTION 280G

1. Treatment of Payments. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary, in the event that any payment or benefit
received or to be received by the participant (including any payment or benefit received in connection with a Change in Control or the termination of the
participant’s employment, whether pursuant to the terms of the Plan or any other plan, arrangement or agreement) (all such payments and benefits, including the
severance benefits payable hereunder, being hereinafter referred to as the “Total Payments™) would be subject (in whole or part), to the Excise Tax, then, after
taking into account any reduction in the Total Payments provided by reason of Section 280G of the Code in such other plan, arrangement or agreement, the
severance benefits payable hereunder shall be reduced to the extent necessary so that no portion of the Total Payments is subject to the Excise Tax but only if
(A) the net amount of such Total Payments, as so reduced (and after subtracting the net amount of federal, state and local income taxes on such reduced Total
Payments and after taking into account the phase out of itemized deductions and personal exemptions attributable to such reduced Total Payments) is greater
than or equal to (B) the net amount of such Total Payments without such reduction (but after subtracting the net amount of federal, state and local income taxes
on such Total Payments and the amount of Excise Tax to which the participant would be subject in respect of such unreduced Total Payments and after taking
into account the phase out of itemized deductions and personal exemptions attributable to such unreduced Total Payments).

6.2 Ordering of Reduction. In the case of a reduction in the Total Payments pursuant to Section 6.1, the Total Payments shall be reduced in the
following order: (i) payments that are payable in cash the full amount of which are treated as parachute payments under Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-
1, Q&A 24(a) shall be reduced (if necessary, to zero), with amounts that are payable last reduced first; (ii) payments and benefits due in respect of any equity
the full amount of which are treated as parachute payments under Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-1, Q&A 24(a), with the highest values reduced first (as
such values are determined under Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-1, Q&A 24) shall next be reduced; (iii) payments that are payable in cash that are valued
at less than full value under Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-1, Q&A 24, with amounts that are payable last reduced first, shall next be reduced;
(iv) payments and benefits due in respect of any equity valued at less than full value under Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-1, Q&A 24, with the highest
values reduced first (as such values are determined under Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-1, Q&A 24) shall next be reduced; and (v) all other non-
cash benefits not otherwise described in clauses (ii) or (iv) shall be next reduced pro-rata.

6.3 Additional Payments. If the participant receives reduced payments and benefits by reason of this Section 6 and it is established pursuant to
a determination of a court of competent jurisdiction which is not subject to review or as to which the time to appeal has expired, or pursuant to an Internal
Revenue Service proceeding, that the participant could have received a greater amount without resulting in any Excise Tax, then the Company shall thereafter
pay the participant the aggregate additional amount which could have been paid without resulting in any Excise Tax as soon as reasonably practicable.

SECTION 7.  CLAIMS, INQUIRIES, APPEALS.

1. Applications for Benefits and Inquiries. Any application for benefits, inquiries about the Plan or inquiries about present or future rights
under the Plan must be submitted to the Administrator in writing, as follows:



Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
c/o General Counsel

452 5th Avenue, 24th Floor

New York, New York 10018

The Administrator shall designate to one or more individuals or positions within the Company’s Human Resources function (the “Claims Reviewer”)
responsibility for reviewing applications for benefits under the Plan and rendering decision on such claims.

2. Denial of Claims. In the event that any application for benefits is denied in whole or in part, the Claims Reviewer must notify the
applicant, in writing, of the denial of the application, and of the applicant’s right to review the denial. The written notice of denial shall be set forth in a manner
designed to be understood by the applicant, and shall include specific reasons for the denial, specific references to the Plan provision upon which the denial is
based, a description of any information or material that the Claims Reviewer needs to complete the review and an explanation as to why such material or
information is necessary, and an explanation of the Plan’s review procedure and the time limits applicable to such procedures, including a statement of the
applicant’s right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse benefit determination on review.

This written notice shall be given to the employee within ninety (90) days after the Claims Reviewer receives the application, unless special circumstances
require an extension of time, in which case, the Claims Reviewer has up to an additional ninety (90) days for processing the application. If an extension of time
for processing is required, written notice of the extension shall be furnished to the applicant before the end of the initial ninety (90) day period.

This notice of extension shall describe the special circumstances necessitating the additional time and the date by which the Claims Reviewer is to render his or
her decision on the application. If written notice of denial of the application for benefits is not furnished within the specified time, the application shall be
deemed to be denied. The applicant shall then be permitted to appeal the denial in accordance with the review procedures described below.

3. Request for a Review. Any person (or that person’s authorized representative) for whom an application for benefits is denied (or
deemed denied), in whole or in part, may appeal the denial by submitting a request for a review to the Administrator within sixty (60) days after the application
is denied (or deemed denied). The Administrator shall give the applicant (or his or her representative) an opportunity to review pertinent documents in preparing
a request for a review and submit written comments, documents, records and other information relating to the claim. A request for a review shall be in writing
and shall be addressed to:

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
c/o General Counsel

452 5th Avenue, 24th Floor

New York, New York 10018

A request for review must set forth all of the grounds on which it is based, all facts in support of the request and any other matters that the applicant feels are
pertinent. The Administrator may require the applicant to submit additional facts, documents or other material as he or she may find necessary or appropriate in
making the Administrator’s review.

4. Decision on Review. The Administrator shall act on each request for review within sixty (60) days after receipt of the request, unless
special circumstances require an extension of time (not to exceed an additional sixty (60) days), for processing the request for a review. If an extension for
review is required, written notice of the extension shall be furnished to the applicant within the initial




sixty (60)-day period. The Administrator shall give prompt, written notice of the Administrator’s decision to the applicant. In the event that the Administrator
confirms the denial of the application for benefits in whole or in part, the notice shall outline, in a manner calculated to be understood by the applicant, the
specific reason or reasons for the decision, the specific Plan provisions upon which the decision is based, a statement of the applicant’s right to receive, upon
request and without charge, reasonable access to, and copies of, all documents, records and other information relevant to the applicant’s claim for benefits, and
a statement of the applicant’s right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA. If written notice of the Administrator’s decision is not given to the
applicant within the time prescribed in this Section 7.4 the application shall be deemed denied on review.

5. Rules and Procedures. The Administrator may establish rules and procedures, consistent with the Plan and with ERISA, as necessary
and appropriate in carrying out the Administrator’s responsibilities in reviewing benefit claims. The Administrator may require an applicant who wishes to
submit additional information in connection with an appeal from the denial (or deemed denial) of benefits to do so at the applicant’s own expense.

6. Exhaustion of Remedies. No legal action for benefits under the Plan may be brought until the claimant (a) has submitted a written
application for benefits in accordance with the procedures described by Section 7.1 above, (b) has been notified by the Administrator that the application is
denied (or the application is deemed denied due to the Administrator’s failure to act on it within the established time period), (c) has filed a written request for a
review of the application in accordance with the appeal procedure described in Section 7.3 above and (d) has been notified in writing that the Administrator has
denied the appeal (or the appeal is deemed to be denied due to the Administrator’s failure to take any action on the claim within the time prescribed by
Section 7.4 above). In addition, no such legal action for benefits under the Plan may be brought later than one-year following the date the claim for benefits is
denied, or is deemed denied, in accordance with Section 7.4 above.

SECTION 8.  ERISA RIGHTS STATEMENT

1. As a Participant, you are entitled to certain rights and protections under ERISA. ERISA provides that all Participants in the United
States shall be entitled to:

Receive Information About Your Plan and Benefits

Examine, without charge, at the Administrator’s office and at other specified locations, all Plan documents, including the Plan and a copy of the latest
annual report (Form 5500 Series) filed by the Plan with the U.S. Department of Labor and available at the Public Disclosure Room of the Employee
Benefits Security Administration.

Obtain, upon written request to the Administrator, copies of Plan documents, including the Plan and copies of the latest annual report (Form 5500
Series). The Administrator may require a reasonable charge for the copies.

Prudent Actions by Plan Fiduciaries

In addition to creating rights Participants, ERISA imposes duties upon the people who are responsible for the operation of the employee benefit plan.
The people who operate your Plan, called “fiduciaries” of the Plan, have a duty to do so prudently and in the interest of you and other Participants and
beneficiaries. No one, including your employer or any other person, may fire you or otherwise discriminate against you in any way to prevent you from
obtaining a welfare benefit or exercising your rights under ERISA.



Enforce Your Rights

If your claim for a welfare benefit is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, you have a right to know why this was done, to obtain copies of documents
relating to the decision without charge, and to appeal any denial, all within certain time schedules.

Under ERISA, there are steps you can take to enforce the above rights. For instance, if you request a copy of the Plan documents or the latest annual
report from the Plan and do not receive them within 30 days, you may file suit in a federal court. In such a case, the court may require the Administrator to
provide the materials and pay you up to $110 a day until you receive the materials, unless the materials were not sent because of reasons beyond the control of
the Administrator. If you have a claim for benefits which is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, you may file suit in a state or Federal court. In addition, if
you disagree with the Plan’s decision or lack thereof concerning the qualified status of a domestic relations order or a medical child support order, you may file
suit in a Federal court. If it should happen that the Plan fiduciaries misuse the Plan’s money or if you are discriminated against for asserting your rights, you
may seek assistance from the U.S. Department of Labor, or you may file suit in a Federal court. The court shall decide who should pay court costs and legal
fees. If you are successful the court may order the person you have sued to pay these costs and fees. If you lose, the court may order you to pay these costs and
fees, for example, if it finds your claim is frivolous.

Assistance with Your Questions

If you have any questions about your Plan, you should contact the Administrator. If you have any questions about this statement or about your rights
under ERISA, you should contact the nearest office of the Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, listed in your telephone
directory or the Division of Technical Assistance and Inquiries, Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution

Avenue N.W., Washington, D.C. 20210. You may also obtain certain publications about your rights and responsibilities under ERISA by calling the publications
hotline of the Employee Benefits Security Administration.

2. The following additional details are provided to you for your information and possible use:
Name of Plan: Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. Severance Plan
Type of Plan: Welfare (Severance Benefits)
Plan Year: January 1 — December 31
Recordkeeping: The Plan and its records are kept on a calendar year basis, January 1 — December 31.
Source of Contributions: The Plan is unfunded and the Company pays for the cost of coverage.
Plan Sponsor: Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.

452 5th Avenue, 24th Floor
New York, New York 10018
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Plan Administrator and Agent for Service of Legal Process:

Identification
Numbers:

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
c/o General Counsel

452 5th Avenue, 24th Floor

New York, New York 10018

Company EIN: 87-1433334
Plan No.: 501

soksk
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10.
11.
12.
13.

14.

David Newman (Chief Underwriting Officer)
Brad Mulcahey (Chief Financial Officer)
[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

EXHIBIT A

Schedule of Participants



EXHIBIT B
Form of Participation Acknowledgment

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (the “Company”) has adopted the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. Change in Control Severance Plan (the “Plan”),
which (without its exhibits) is attached hereto. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Plan.

The Plan is primarily intended to help retain qualified executives, maintain a stable work environment and provide economic security to eligible
executives in the event of certain qualifying terminations of employment.

You hereby acknowledge and agree that you have been designated as a Participant in the Plan and have been provided a copy of the Plan (without its
exhibits). If you have any questions regarding the Plan, please contact Matthew Crusey, General Counsel, mcrusey@bowheadspecialty.com.

You further acknowledge and agree that you are or may be bound by certain restrictive covenants and hereby reaffirm and agree that such restrictive
covenants will survive the termination of your employment or service with the Company (or a PEO, if applicable) pursuant to the terms thereof. In the event
that the Company determines, in its sole discretion that you breached any such restrictive covenants, then in addition to any remedies and enforcement
mechanisms set forth in the Plan, you shall forfeit any additional consideration owing under the Plan and shall be obligated to promptly return to the Company
(within fifteen (15) business days of any breach) the pre-tax amount of any severance payments and benefits previously received under the Plan.

Thank you for your continued efforts on behalf of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Participant have executed this Participation Acknowledgment effective as of [ ,20 .

By:
Name:
Title:

PARTICIPANT

By:
Name:
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EXHIBIT C
Form of Separation and Release Agreement

I enter into this Release and Separation Agreement (the “Release Agreement”) pursuant to Sections 2.1 and 2.5 of the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. Change
in Control Severance Plan between Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (the “Company”) and me dated February 21, 2025, (the “Plan”). I acknowledge that this
Release Agreement is the Release and Separation Agreement referenced in Sections 2.1 and 2.5 of the Plan and that my timely execution and non-revocation of
this Release Agreement are conditions to certain of the Company’s obligations pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Plan. I therefore agree to the following terms:

1. Release of Claims.

a. I, on behalf of myself, my spouse, heirs, administrators, representatives, executors, successors, assigns, and all other persons claiming through
me (collectively “Releasors”), voluntarily release and forever discharge the Company, together with its parents and their respective affiliated
and related entities, together with each of their respective current, former or future officers, directors, partners, members, sharcholders,
employees, joint ventures, trustees, investors, representatives, attorneys, accountants and agents, and each of their respective subsidiaries,
affiliates, estates, predecessors, successors and assigns, both individually and in their official capacities (collectively referred to as the
“Releasees”) generally from any and all claims, rights, actions, charges, causes of action, demands, debts, claims for relief, complaints,
remuneration, sums of money, suits, covenants, contracts, agreements, promises, obligations, accounts, expenses (including attorneys’ fees and
costs), damages and liabilities of any kind whatsoever, known or unknown, contingent or absolute (“Claims”) that, any Releasor now has, ever
had, or may hereafter claim to have by reason of any matter, cause or thing whatsoever: (i) arising from the beginning of time up to the date I
execute this Release Agreement, including, but not limited to, (A) any such Claims relating in any way to my employment with the Company or
any other Releasee, and (B) all Claims arising under any federal, local, or state statute or regulation, including, without limitation, Claims,
relating to my employment by the Company or any other Releasee, of wrongful discharge or violation of public policy; of breach of contract; of
defamation or other torts; of retaliation or discrimination under federal, state or local law, including, without limitation, Claims of
discrimination or retaliation under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Acts of 1866 and 1871 (42 U.S.C. § 1981), the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the National Labor Relations Act,
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Equal
Pay Act of 1963, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008, the New York State Human Rights Law, the New York State Civil
Rights Law, the New York State WARN Act, the New York State Correction Law, Section 125 of the New York Workers’ Compensation Law,
the New York State Labor Law, the New York City Earned Safe and Sick Time Act, the New York City Human Rights Law, the Illinois One
Day Rest in Seven Act, the Illinois WARN Act, the Illinois Employment Contract Act, the Illinois Labor Dispute Act, the Illinois Whistleblower
Act, the Victim’s Economic Security and Safety Act, the Illinois Union Employee Health and Benefits Protection Act, the Illinois Human
Rights Act, the Illinois Constitution, the Illinois Equal Pay Act, the Chicago
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Human Rights Ordinance, and the Cook County Human Rights Ordinance, the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, the New Jersey
Conscientious Employee Protection Act, the New Jersey Family Leave Act, the New Jersey Wage Payment Law, the New Jersey Wage and
Hour Law, the New Jersey Equal Pay Act, the New Jersey Security and Financial Empowerment Act, the New Jersey Family Leave Insurance
provisions of the New Jersey Temporary Disability Benefits Law, the New Jersey Earned Sick Leave Law, the New Jersey Warn Act, the New
Jersey Civil Union Act, the New Jersey Smoking Law, the New Jersey Workers’ Compensation Law, the Massachusetts Wage Act, the
Massachusetts Equal Pay Act, the Massachusetts Fair Employment Practices Act, the Massachusetts Civil Rights Act, the Massachusetts
Parental Leave Act, the Massachusetts Labor and Industries Act, the Massachusetts Privacy Act, the Minimum Fair Wage Act, the
Massachusetts Plant Closing Law, and the Massachusetts Wage Act, the Connecticut Family and Medical Leave Act, Connecticut’s
whistleblower law, Connecticut’s free speech law, the Connecticut Fair Employment Practices Act, Connecticut’s minimum wage and wage
payment laws, Connecticut’s workers’ compensation statute, the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, the Pennsylvania Whistleblower Law, the
Pennsylvania Public Employee Retaliations Act, the Philadelphia Fair Practices Ordinance, the Florida Civil Rights Act, the Florida
Whistleblower Protection Act, Florida Workers’ Compensation Retaliation provision, Florida Minimum Wage Act, the Florida Constitution, the
Florida Fair Housing Act, the Florida Equal Pay Law, Florida OSHA and any other federal, state or local law protecting employees including,
but not limited to, laws prohibiting discrimination or harassment on the basis of protected characteristics, prohibiting retaliation for engaging in
protected activity, (i.e. “whistleblower” laws), providing for protected leaves of absence (e.g. military, sick, family or jury leave) or relating to
notice of termination (e.g. state mini-WARN acts), each as amended and including each of their respective implementing regulations and/or any
other federal, state, local, or foreign law (statutory, regulatory, or otherwise) that may be legally waived or released; (ii) arising out of or
relating to the termination of my employment; or (iii) arising under or relating to any policy, agreement, understanding, or promise, written or
oral, formal or informal, between the Company or any other Releasee and me (including, without limitation, the Plan).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Releasors do not waive or release (i) Claims that cannot be waived under applicable law; (B) rights to the
payments and benefits set forth in Section 2.1 of the Plan; (C) any rights to vested benefits under employee welfare benefit and qualified
retirement plans; and (D) any Claims relating to indemnification of Releasors by the Company or to benefits under any directors or officers
insurance policy maintained by the Company.

I agree that neither this Release Agreement, nor the furnishing of the consideration for this Release Agreement, shall be deemed or construed at
any time to be an admission by the Company, any other Releasee or me of any improper or unlawful conduct. I further acknowledge and agree
that the Company and the other Releasees have fully satisfied any and all obligations owed to me and Releasors arising out of or relating to my
employment with the Company or any other Releasees, and no further sums, payments, or benefits are owed to me or Releasors by the
Company or any of the other Releasees arising out of or relating to my employment with the Company or any of the other Releasees, except as
expressly provided in this Release Agreement.
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Legal Representation; Review of Agreement. I acknowledge that I have been advised to discuss all aspects of this Release Agreement with an
attorney of my choosing, and I have had the opportunity to review this Release Agreement with an attorney of my choosing. I represent that I am
receiving benefits and payments pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Plan which I would not otherwise be entitled to unless I sign this Release Agreement,
that I have carefully read and fully understand all of the provisions of this Release Agreement and I am entering into this Release Agreement freely,
knowingly and voluntarily.

Right to Consider and Revoke Agreement. I acknowledge that I have been given the opportunity to consider this Release Agreement for a period of
twenty-one (21) calendar days from my last day of employment with the Company, unless my termination is part of a group termination or exit
incentive program (as such terms are defined by the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967) in which case I will have forty-five (45) calendar
days from my last day of employment with the Company to consider the terms of this Release Agreement. In the event that I execute this Release
Agreement sooner than twenty-one (21) or forty-five (45) calendar days, as applicable, I acknowledge that such decision is entirely voluntary and that I
have the opportunity to consider this Release Agreement until the end of the twenty-one (21) or forty-five (45) calendar day period. To accept this
Release Agreement, I shall deliver a signed Release Agreement (either as an original or as a PDF copy attached to an email) to the [POSITION] within
such twenty-one (21) or forty-five (45) calendar day period. For a period of seven (7) days following the date I execute this Release Agreement (the
“Revocation Period”), I shall retain the right to revoke this Release Agreement by written notice that is received by the [POSITION] at [ADDRESS]
[EMAIL] or other Company-designated recipient on or before the last day of the Revocation Period. If I revoke my consent within the Revocation
Period, this Release Agreement shall be of no force or effect and I shall have no right to the payments set forth in the Plan. This Release Agreement
shall become effective, irrevocable and enforceable on the eighth (8th) calendar day following the date on which I sign and return this Release
Agreement to the Company.

Protected Disclosures and Other Matters. Nothing in this Release Agreement, or any other agreement between me and the Company, shall be
interpreted or applied to prohibit me or the Releasors from making any good faith report to any governmental agency or other governmental entity,
including the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), the National Labor Relations Board (“NLRB”), the United States Department of Labor,
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, any state or federal attorney general, or any other state or local commission on human rights, or any
self-regulatory organization (each, a “Government Agency”) concerning any act or omission that I reasonably believe constitutes a possible violation of
federal or state law or making other disclosures that are protected under the anti-retaliation or whistleblower provisions of applicable federal or state
law or regulation. In addition, nothing contained in this Release Agreement limits my ability to (a) voluntarily communicate with an attorney retained
by me, (b) communicate with any Government Agency or otherwise participate in any investigation or proceeding that may be conducted by any
Government Agency, (c) seek and obtain payment or an award from the SEC, pursuant to Section 21F of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or obtaining any other “whistleblower” award, to the extent such right cannot by law be waived, (d) disclose any information to a court or
other administrative or legislative body in response to any subpoena, court order or written request, provided that with respect to any subpoena, court
order or written request on behalf of any non-governmental person, I use commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with any effort by the Company
to seek to challenge the subpoena, court order or written request on behalf of any non-governmental person or obtain a
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10.

11.

protective order limiting its disclosure, or other appropriate remedy, (e) file or disclose any facts necessary to receive unemployment insurance,
Medicaid or other public benefits to which I am entitled, (f) disclose the underlying facts or circumstances relating to claims of discrimination, in
violation of laws prohibiting discrimination, against the Company or making truthful statements or disclosures related to unlawful discrimination,
harassment or retaliation, or otherwise discussing or disclosing information about unlawful acts in the workplace, such as harassment or discrimination
or any other conduct that I have reason to believe is unlawful, (g) enforce my Section 7 rights under the National Labor Relations Act, participate in
Section 7 activity (including the right to communicate with former coworkers and/or third parties about terms and conditions of employment or labor
disputes) or otherwise cooperate through investigation, testimony, or otherwise with the NLRB, the SEC or any other administrative agency or court, or
(h) disclose or discuss conduct, or the existence of a settlement involving conduct, relating to a dispute: (i) involving a nonconsensual sexual act or
sexual contact, as such terms are defined in § 2246 of title 18, United States Code, or similar applicable Tribal or State law, including when the victim
lacks capacity to consent; or (ii) relating to conduct that is alleged to constitute sexual harassment under applicable Federal, Tribal, or State law.

No Assignment. | represent that I have not assigned to any other person or entity any Claims against any Releasee.

No Waiver. A failure of any of the Releasees to insist on strict compliance with any provision of this Release Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver
of such provision or any other provision hereof. If any provision of this Release Agreement is determined to be so broad as to be unenforceable, such
provision shall be interpreted to be only so broad as is enforceable, and in the event that any provision is determined to be entirely unenforceable, such
provision shall be deemed severable, such that all other provisions of this Release Agreement shall remain valid and binding.

Binding Nature of Agreement. This Release Agreement shall be binding upon me and upon my heirs, administrators, representatives and executors.
Amendment. This Release Agreement may be amended only upon a written agreement executed by the Company and me.

Severability. In the event that at any future time it is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that any covenant, clause, provision or term of
this Release Agreement is illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions and terms of this Release Agreement shall not be affected thereby
and the illegal, invalid or unenforceable term or provision shall be severed from the remainder of this Release Agreement. In the event of such
severance, the remaining covenants shall be binding and enforceable.

Return of Property. I agree that upon my execution and delivery of this Release Agreement, the I have returned to the Company any and all of
property, including intellectual property, of the Company (which shall include any documents, files or other materials which contain confidential
information) in my possession or subject to my control.

Governing Law and Interpretation. This Release Agreement shall be deemed to be made and entered into in the State of Delaware, and shall in all
respects be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect to the conflict of laws
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principles of such state. The language of all parts of this Release Agreement shall in all cases be construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and
not strictly for or against either the Company or me.

12. Absence of Reliance. I acknowledge that I am not relying on any promises or representations by the Company or any of its agents, representatives or
attorneys regarding any subject matter addressed in this Release Agreement.

13. Entire Agreement. This Release Agreement together with the Plan contains the entire agreement between the Company and me relating to the matters
contained herein and amends, supersedes and restates all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, between the Company and me with

respect to the subject matter hereof.

PLEASE READ THIS AGREEMENT CAREFULLY. IT CONTAINS A RELEASE OF ALL KNOWN AND UNKNOWN CLAIMS.

[Employee Name] Date



Exhibit 14.1

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

(Effective May 23, 2024)

L. INTRODUCTION

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) is committed to conducting its business in compliance
with the law and the highest ethical standards and to promoting ethical and honest behavior. As part of this commitment, all directors, officers and
other employees of the Company, as well as independent contractors (collectively, “personnel”’) must comply with this Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics (this “Code”), which has been adopted by Bowhead’s Board of Directors (the “Board”). This Code is in addition to Bowhead’s other
corporate policies and procedures.

We are committed to establishing an environment that encourages and allows employees to seek and receive prompt guidance as to
questionable conduct so that they do not engage in conduct that is unlawful, unethical or that creates a real or perceived conflict with their duties
to the Company. Any individual violating this Code or other Company policies will be subject to disciplinary measures, up to and including
termination of employment or service.

1I. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Our products and services are subject to considerable regulatory oversight. All personnel, in connection with their activities related to or on
behalf of the Company, are required to comply with applicable laws, rules, standards and regulations of federal, state and local governments, and
other appropriate public or private regulatory, listing and standard-setting agencies.

Employment Laws and Practices

Federal and state laws provide employees with a variety of protections and rights. Bowhead is dedicated to the goal of providing equal
employment opportunities for all employees and applicants for employment. All employees are required to refrain from any act which is designed
to cause, or does cause, unlawful employment discrimination in any aspect of a person’s employment.

Antitrust Laws

Antitrust laws are designed to ensure a fair and competitive free market system where no single company has a monopoly on providing a
service or a product. We seek to maintain and grow our businesses through superior products and services—not through improper or anti-
competitive practices. Some of the most serious antitrust offenses occur between competitors, such as agreements to fix prices or to divide
customers, territories or markets. Therefore, it is very important for you to not engage in any form of agreement or understanding with



competitors to fix prices, rig bids, allocate customers or restrict the supply of products or services. Antitrust laws are complex and may vary
among different countries and states. If you are unsure of appropriate practices, consult with the Legal Department for additional information and
guidance.

Competition and Fair Dealing

Bowhead is committed not only to free competition, but to competition that is fair and ethical. This applies particularly to competitive
intelligence gathering and to statements about our products and services and those of our competitors. Bowhead prohibits using illegal or unethical
means to obtain confidential information from its business partners or competitors. We also prohibit improperly taking advantage of anyone
through manipulation, concealment, abuse or privileged information, misrepresentation of material facts or any other unfair practice.

In addition, you are expected to honor any disclosure or use restrictions on information obtained from former employers or other third
parties. If you are unsure whether prior employer information would be considered confidential or subject to use restrictions, you should not use or
share information until you have consulted with the Legal Department.

III. PROTECTION AND PROPER USE OF ASSETS

Theft, carelessness and waste have a direct impact on the Company’s profitability. We should protect Company assets and ensure their
efficient use. All Company assets should be used for only legitimate business purposes. Such assets are not for personal use. If you become aware
of loss, damage, theft, misuse or waste of assets, or have any questions about your proper use of them, you should consult with the Legal
Department. Refer to the Company’s Information and Data Security Policy for additional information on properly handling assets that process
information.

IV.  POLITICAL ACTIVITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Company strictly adheres to applicable state and federal election laws, which restrict contributions by companies to political
candidates or parties or to any other organization that might use the contributions for a political candidate or party. You must comply with all
campaign finance and ethics laws. Generally, federal law prohibits the use of Company funds, assets, services, or facilities on behalf of a political
party or candidate in an election for a federal office.

If you are aware of any conduct that violates the Company’s policies and procedures related to political activities and contributions, you
must immediately notify the Legal Department and refrain from participation in such questionable conduct until you are advised that it is
allowable. These policies and procedures are not intended to discourage or prohibit employees from: voluntarily making personal political
contributions; participating in the political process on their own time and at their own expense; expressing their personal views on legislative or
political matters; or otherwise engaging in political activities. Note, however, you may not receive any reimbursement from corporate funds for
personal political contributions.



V. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

All personnel should engage in honest and ethical conduct, including avoiding any actual or apparent conflicts of interest. A conflict of
interest occurs when a person’s private interest interferes, or even appears to interfere, with the interests of the Company. A conflict of interest
situation can arise when you engage in an activity that prevents you from objectively or effectively performing your duties to the Company, such
as outside employment or when you make significant personal investments in or pursue business opportunities with the Company’s competitors or
partners. In these and other conflict of interest situations, it is important that you act in the Company’s best interests, not your own. Officers and
directors should also refer to the Company’s Related Person Transactions Policy for additional information.

Duty to Disclose Conflicts of Interest

You are responsible for assessing your own situation, including your outside activities, investments and business and personal
relationships, and promptly disclosing to the General Counsel any actual, apparent or potential conflicts of interest. If you have questions about a
potential conflict, you should discuss your particular situation with the General Counsel. In addition, if you become aware of a conflict of interest
or a potential conflict of interest involving other personnel, you should bring it to the attention of your supervisor or the Legal Department.

Corporate Opportunities

If you become aware of a business or financial opportunity as part of your work with Bowhead, you are not permitted to use any such
information or take that opportunity for your own personal gain. You should not use Company property, information or position for personal gain
and should not directly or indirectly compete with the Company.

VI. IMPROPER PAYMENTS

Making or receiving improper payments, including bribes, kickbacks or payoffs to or from governmental officials or anyone with whom
the Company does business, and payments made with an improper intent, whether made or received directly or indirectly, is strictly prohibited.
Participation in arrangements that aid and abet another party to make or receive such a payment is also strictly forbidden. Improper payments need
not be in the form of money, but may also include gifts or services.

You should be aware that, with respect to governmental and regulatory officials, it is not necessary that a gift or payment be given with the
intent to influence that governmental official to constitute a violation of state or federal law. U.S. federal law also prohibits bribery of foreign and
domestic governmental officials. Any request made to you by a governmental or regulatory official for an improper payment, or any action taken
or threatened by such an official with the intent of obtaining such a payment, must be reported immediately to the Legal Department. The slightest
mistake may expose both you and the Company to criminal prosecution, including the imposition of large fines.



VII. DISCLOSURES

It is Company policy to make full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations in all reports and documents that Bowhead files with, or submits to, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or any insurance
regulatory authority or organization, and in all other public communications made by the Company. All personnel are required to comply with this
policy and to abide by the Company’s standards, policies and procedures designed to promote compliance with this policy. We will maintain
books, records and accounts that accurately reflect the Company’s business transactions and assets.

VIII. KEEPING INFORMATION CONFIDENTIAL

One of our most important assets is the information that we generate in the course of business, whether technical, business, financial or
otherwise. You must maintain and protect the confidentiality of information entrusted to you by the Company during the course of your
employment, service or while carrying out your duties and responsibilities, except when disclosure is authorized by the Company or legally
mandated. The obligation to preserve confidential information continues even after you leave the Company.

IX. INSIDER TRADING

You may have access to or become aware of material non-public information relating to the Company or other entities. No director, officer
or employee may trade or advise others to trade the Company’s securities while in possession of material non-public information. Using inside
information for personal financial benefit or to “tip” others who might make an investment decision on the basis of such information is not only
unethical, but a violation of insider trading laws. It is also illegal for any director, officer or employee to trade in the securities of other entities
about which they learn material non-public information through the course of their employment or service with the Company. Refer to the
Company’s Insider Trading Policy, and contact the Legal Department with any questions.

X. REPORTING ILLEGAL OR UNETHICAL BEHAVIOR

Officers, directors and employees should promptly report suspected violations of laws, regulations or Company policies, including this
Code to appropriate personnel, including your managers, the executive officers, or the Board of Directors or relevant committee thereof.

You are expected to demonstrate reasonable grounds for concern and are encouraged to provide sufficient information to permit a thorough
investigation of your concerns. Reports of a known or suspected violation, or complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or
auditing matters, may also be made anonymously by calling the toll-free hotline at 1-855-662-7233 or accessing the website at safehotline.com.
After a potential violation is brought to the Company’s attention, the Company shall promptly perform an evaluation, and to the extent appropriate
and necessary, conduct an investigation.



Anti-Retaliation

The Company prohibits any form of intimidation, harassment, threats, discrimination or other retaliation or adverse employment
consequence against any employee who reports a complaint in good faith. Any act of alleged retaliation should be reported immediately to the
General Counsel.

Legal Protected Communications

Nothing in this Code shall be construed so as to restrict or interfere with your rights or ability to: communicate, without notice to or
approval by the Company, with any government agencies as provided for, protected under or warranted by applicable law; participate in any
investigation or proceeding that may be conducted by any government agency, including providing documents or other information, without notice
to the Company; or receive an award from any government agency for information provided to any such government agency.

XI. WAIVERS AND REVISIONS

Waivers of or exceptions to this Code will be granted only in rare circumstances. Any waiver of this Code for a director or officer, or any
amendment of this Code, may only be made by Bowhead’s Board of Directors or the appropriate committee of the Board and will be promptly
disclosed in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. Waivers for all other employees will be considered by the General Counsel.

XII. CERTIFICATION OF THIS CODE

Due to the importance of adhering to these principles of business conduct and ethics, all personnel are required to submit a certification
confirming that they have received this Code, read it, understood it, agree to comply with it and abide the standards and procedures contained
therein. Abiding by the standards and procedures outlined in this Code and other Company policies is a condition of continued employment or
service with the Company. Any questions as to the issues or interpretation of policies covered in this Code should be directed to the Legal
Department.



BOWHEAD SPECIALTY HOLDINGS INC.

ANNUAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

1.1, , of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. have received, read and understand the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the
“Code”). I agree to comply with each of the terms of the Code.

2. (a) I have not received any gifts, entertainment or favors in violation of the Code, and confirm my complete compliance with the
Code, or

(b) I have listed below any present or anticipated financial interest, outside employment or other activities and any additional
information that might constitute a conflict of interest or a violation of the Code.

I understand that if any changes should occur, I will immediately complete a new Compliance Certification Form.

Executed on

Signature:

Name:
Title:

Department:



Exhibit 19.1

Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Insider Trading Policy

Adopted February 21, 2025

In the course of conducting the business of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”), you may
come into possession of material information about the Company that is not available to the investing public (referenced herein as “material
nonpublic information,” as explained in greater detail below). You have a legal and ethical obligation to maintain the confidentiality of material
nonpublic information. In addition, it is illegal and a violation of Company policy to purchase or sell securities of the Company while you are in
possession of material nonpublic information about the Company obtained in the course of your position with the Company. The Company’s
Board of Directors has adopted this Insider Trading Policy (this “Policy”) in order to ensure compliance with the law and to avoid even the
appearance of improper conduct by anyone associated with the Company. It is also the policy of the Company that the Company will not engage
in transactions in securities of the Company while aware of material nonpublic information relating to the Company or its securities.

L. PERSONS SUBJECT TO THIS POLICY

The procedures and restrictions set forth in this Policy apply to all Company officers, directors and employees, wherever located
(collectively, “Designated Insiders”). The Company may also determine that other persons should be subject to this Policy, such as contractors or
consultants, who have access to material nonpublic information. This Policy also applies to family members, such as spouses, minor children,
adult family members who share the same household, and any other person or entity whose securities trading decisions are influenced or
controlled by the officer, director or employee (collectively, “Related Insiders”). For additional information regarding post-termination
transactions, see section XI of this Policy.

1I. TRANSACTIONS SUBJECT TO THIS POLICY

This Policy applies to transactions in common stock, preferred stock, bonds and other debt securities, options to purchase common stock,
convertible debentures and warrants, as well as derivative securities whether or not issued by the Company, such as exchange-traded put or call
options or swaps relating to the Company’s securities. See section VI, “Special Transactions” and section VIII, “Prohibited Transactions” for
further discussion of certain types of securities and transactions.

III. INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBILITY

Each person subject to this Policy is individually responsible for complying with this Policy and ensuring the compliance of any Related
Insiders whose transactions are subject to this



Policy. Accordingly, you should make your family and household members aware of the need to confer with you before they trade in Company
securities, and you should treat all such transactions for the purposes of this Policy and applicable securities laws concerning trading while in
possession of material nonpublic information as if the transactions were for your own account.

In all cases, the responsibility for determining whether an individual is in possession of material nonpublic information rests with that
individual, and any action on the part of the Company or any other employee pursuant to this Policy (or otherwise) does not in any way constitute
legal advice or insulate an individual from liability under applicable securities laws.

IV. MATERIAL NONPUBLIC INFORMATION

What is Material Information? Under Company policy and the U.S. federal securities laws, information is material if:

» there is a substantial likelihood that a reasonable investor would consider the information important in determining whether to trade in
a security; or

+ the information, if made public, likely would affect the market price of a company’s securities.
Information may be material even if it relates to future, speculative or contingent events and even if it is significant only when considered

in combination with publicly available information. Material information can be positive or negative. Nonpublic information can be material, even
with respect to companies that do not have publicly-traded stock, such as those with outstanding bonds.

Depending on the facts and circumstances, information that could be considered material includes, but is not limited to, information
pertaining to the following:

* earnings announcements or guidance, or changes to previously released announcements or guidance;

* other unpublished financial results;

« writedowns and additions to reserves for bad debts;

* expansion or curtailment of operations and business disruptions;

» asignificant cybersecurity incident or risk;

* pending or threatened significant litigation or government action, or the resolution thereof;

* apending or proposed merger, acquisition, tender offer, joint venture, restructuring or change in assets;

» changes in analyst recommendations or debt ratings;

» events regarding the Company’s securities (e.g., defaults on senior securities, calls of securities for redemption, repurchase plans, stock
splits, changes in dividends, changes to the rights of securityholders or an offering of additional securities);



» changes in control of the Company or extraordinary management developments;

» changes in the Company’s pricing or cost structure;

+ extraordinary borrowing or other financing transactions out of the ordinary course;

e liquidity problems or impending bankruptcy;

+ changes in auditors or auditor notification that the Company may no longer rely on an audit report;
* development of a significant new product, process, or service; or

* new significant contracts, customers or financing sources, or the loss thereof.

What is Nonpublic Information? Information is considered to be nonpublic unless it has been adequately disclosed to the public. This
means that the information must be publicly disseminated and sufficient time must have passed for the securities markets to digest the information.

It is important to note that information is not necessarily public merely because it has been discussed in the press or on social media, which
will sometimes report rumors. You should presume that information is nonpublic, unless you can point to its official release by the Company in at
least one of the following ways:

e publicly available filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) or securities regulatory authorities; or

» issuance of press releases via major newswire, such as Dow Jones or Reuters.

You may not attempt to “beat the market” by trading simultaneously with, or shortly after, the official release of material information.
Although there is no fixed period for how long it takes the market to absorb information, out of prudence, a person in possession of material
nonpublic information should refrain from any trading activity for one full trading day following its official release.

Twenty-Twenty Hindsight. If securities transactions ever become the subject of scrutiny, they are likely to be viewed after-the-fact with
the benefit of hindsight. As a result, before engaging in any transaction you should carefully consider how the transaction may be construed in the
bright light of hindsight. If you have any questions or uncertainties about this Policy or a proposed transaction, please ask the General Counsel.

V. “TIPPING” MATERIAL NONPUBLIC INFORMATION IS PROHIBITED

In addition to trading while in possession of material nonpublic information, it is also a violation of this Policy to provide such information
to another (“#ipping”) who may trade or to advise another to trade on the basis of such information. It is a violation of law to do so if a trade then
occurs, and insider trading liability may be extended to the tipper. This Policy applies regardless of whether the person or entity who receives the
information, the “tippee,” is related to you and regardless of whether you receive any monetary benefit from the tippee.



VI. SPECIAL TRANSACTIONS
The trading restrictions in this Policy do not apply in the case of the following transactions except as specifically noted:

A. Stock Option Exercises. The trading restrictions in this Policy do not apply to exercises of: (i) stock options where no Company
common stock is sold in the market to fund the option exercise price or related taxes (i.e., a net exercise or where cash is paid to
exercise the option) or (ii) a tax withholding right pursuant to which a person has elected to have the Company withhold shares
subject to an option to satisfy tax withholding requirements. The trading restrictions do apply, however, to subsequent sales of
Company common stock received upon the exercise of options in which the proceeds are used to fund the option exercise price
(i.e., a cashless exercise of options) or related taxes.

B. Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units. The trading restrictions in this Policy do not apply to the vesting of restricted
stock or the settlement of restricted stock units, or the exercise of a tax withholding right pursuant to which you elect to have the
Company withhold shares of stock to satisfy tax withholding requirements upon the vesting of any restricted stock or settlement of
any restricted stock units. The trading restrictions do apply, however, to any market sale of restricted stock or sale of Company
common stock received upon the settlement of restricted stock units.

C. Other Similar Transactions. Any other purchase of Company securities directly from the Company or sales of Company securities
directly to the Company may be exempted from the trading restrictions of this Policy with the approval of the General Counsel or
the Company’s Board of Directors.

VII. GIFTS OF SECURITIES

Gifts of securities may include gifts to trusts for estate planning purposes, as well as donations to a charitable organization. Whether a gift
of securities is a transaction that should be avoided while the person making the gift is aware of material nonpublic information or is subject to a
blackout period may depend on various circumstances surrounding the gift. Accordingly, you are required to obtain pre-clearance of the gift as
outlined in Section XIII of this Policy.

VIII. COMPANY TRANSACTIONS

From time to time, the Company may engage in transactions in its own securities. It is the Company’s policy to comply with all applicable
securities and state laws (including appropriate approvals by the Board of Directors or appropriate committee, if required) when engaging in
transactions of its securities.

IX. PROHIBITED TRANSACTIONS

Due to the heightened legal risk associated with the following transactions, the individuals subject to this Policy may not engage in the
following:

A. Publicly-Traded Options. You may not trade in options, warrants, puts and calls or similar instruments on Company securities.
Given the relatively short term of



publicly-traded options, transactions in options may create the appearance that a director, officer or other employee is trading based
on material nonpublic information and focus a director’s, officer’s or other employee’s attention on short-term performance at the
expense of the Company’s long-term objectives.

B. Short Sales. You may not engage in short sales of Company securities. Short sales may reduce a seller’s incentive to seek to
improve the Company’s performance and often have the potential to signal to the market that the seller lacks confidence in the
Company’s prospects.

C. Margin Accounts and Pledges. Because a margin sale or foreclosure sale may occur at a time when the pledgor is aware of
material nonpublic information or otherwise is not permitted to trade in Company securities, you may not hold Company securities
in a margin account or otherwise pledge Company securities as collateral for a loan.

D. Hedging Transactions. You may not engage (directly or indirectly) in hedging transactions, or otherwise engage in transactions
that hedge or offset, or are designed to hedge or offset, any decrease in the market value of Company securities. Hedging
transactions include (but are not limited to) collars, equity swaps, exchange funds and prepaid variable forward sale contracts.
Hedging transactions may allow a director, officer or other employee to continue to own Company securities, but without the full
risks and rewards of ownership. This may lead to the director, officer or other employee no longer having the same objectives as the
Company’s other shareholders.

E. Standing and Limit Orders. You may not place standing or limit orders on Company securities, unless executed as part of an
approved Rule 10b5-1 Plan discussed in section IX of this Policy. Standing and limit orders create heightened risks for insider
trading violations because there is no control over the timing of purchases or sales that result from standing instructions to a broker,
and as a result, the broker could execute a transaction when a director, officer or other employee is in possession of material
nonpublic information.

X. RULE 10B5-1 TRADING PLANS

Notwithstanding the prohibition against insider trading, SEC Rule 10b5-1 provides an affirmative defense against insider trading liability
under Rule 10b-5. A person subject to this Policy can rely on this defense and trade in Company securities, regardless of their awareness of inside
information, if the transaction occurs pursuant to a pre-arranged written trading plan (“Rule 10b5-1 Plan’) that was entered into when the person
was not in possession of material nonpublic information and that complies with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1. Directors and officers
(collectively, “Section 16 Insiders”) subject to Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) should be aware that the
Company will be required to make quarterly disclosures regarding all Rule 10b5-1 Plans entered into, amended or terminated by Section 16
Insiders and to include the material terms of such plans, other than pricing information.

The following requirements apply to all Rule 10b5-1 Plans:



Prior Approval. Anyone subject to this Policy who wishes to enter into a Rule 10b5-1 Plan must submit the Rule 10b5-1 Plan to the
Legal Department for its approval at least five business days prior to the planned entry into the Rule 10b5-1 Plan. In addition, prior
approval is required for any amendment or early termination of an effective Rule 10b5-1 Plan.

Entry into a Plan. A director or employee may enter into a Rule 10b5-1 Plan only at a time when he or she is not in possession of
material nonpublic information regarding the Company or its securities and, if subject to blackout periods, when a blackout period
is not in effect under the Insider Trading Policy. Each plan must include a representation that, as of the date of adoption of the plan,
the individual is not aware of any material nonpublic information about the Company or its securities, and that the plan is being
adopted in good faith and not as a part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b5-1.

Waiting Period. The waiting periods from the time a plan is adopted until the time of the first trade under the plan must comply
with requirements of Rule 10b5-1. Under Rule 10b5-1, plans established by Section 16 Insiders must include a waiting period
consisting of the later of (i) 90 days after the adoption of the plan, or (ii) the period ending two business days following the
disclosure of the Company’s financial results in a Form 10-Q or Form 10-K for the completed fiscal quarter in which the plan was
adopted that discloses the Company’s financial results (but in any event, this waiting period is subject to a maximum of 120 days
after adoption of the plan). For all other individuals, the waiting period shall be the same as the waiting period for Section 16
Insiders unless otherwise approved by the General Counsel.

Multiple Plans. Generally speaking, an individual entering into a Rule 10b5-1 Plan may have only one plan in place at any time.
An exception to this restriction applies for certain separate plans with different brokers that would be treated as a single “plan” such
as when a person holds Company securities in multiple brokerage accounts. Additionally, an individual may enter into one later-
commencing plan so that the waiting period of the later plan can begin to run while an existing plan is in place, provided that the
individual does not early terminate the first plan, in which case a full waiting period from the time of such termination must occur.
Lastly, individuals may have an additional plan providing only for eligible sell-to-cover transactions, where the plan provides for
sales of securities as are necessary to satisfy tax withholding obligations arising exclusively from the vesting of a compensatory
stock award.

Single Transaction. Rule 10b5-1 prohibits more than one plan in any 12-month period that is designed to effect a single
transaction. Single transaction plans are generally discouraged.

Amendments. Amendments to Rule 10b5-1 Plans will be permitted only at a time when: (i) the director or employee is not in
possession of material nonpublic information and (ii) a blackout period is not in effect (if applicable) under the Insider Trading
Policy. Furthermore, any amendment relating to the amount, price or timing of the purchase or sale of securities will be subject to
the same waiting periods as would be applicable to a new plan, as described above.

Termination. A Rule 10b5-1 Plan may be terminated at any time upon notification to the General Counsel. However, terminating a
Rule 10b5-1 Plan is strongly discouraged because it may call into question whether the plan was
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entered into and operated in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the insider trading rules, which could affect the
availability of the Rule 10b5-1 affirmative defense.

Outside Trades. Adoption of a Rule 10b5-1 Plan does not preclude trading outside of the plan that otherwise is in accordance with
the Insider Trading Policy. However, directors and employees should be cognizant of the fact that the Rule 10b5-1 affirmative
defense will not apply to such trades outside a Rule 10b5-1 Plan. In addition, under Rule 10b5-1, the director or employee may not
have further influence over whether, when or how the trades under the plan are made once the plan is put in place, and therefore
their trading outside of the plan must not have direct or indirect influence on the trading instructions under the plan. In other words,
securities subject to the plan (e.g., shares underlying unexercised stock options) should not be purchased or sold outside the plan.

Section 16. Each Section 16 Insider understands that the approval or adoption of a Rule 10b5-1 Plan in no way reduces or
eliminates such person’s obligations under Section 16 of the Exchange Act, including such person’s disclosure and short-swing
trading liabilities thereunder. If any questions arise, such person should consult with their own counsel in implementing a Rule
10b5-1 Plan. In addition, each Section 16 Insider must agree to cooperate with the Company in any reporting of the Rule 10b5-1
Plan in the Company’s SEC filings.

REPORTING VIOLATIONS/SEEKING ADVICE

You should refer suspected violations of this Policy to the Legal Department or through the reporting procedures set forth in the

Company’s Code of Conduct. In addition, if you:

XII.

receive material nonpublic information that you are not authorized to receive or that you do not need to know to perform your
employment responsibilities; or

receive confidential information and are unsure if it is within the definition of material nonpublic information or whether its release
might be contrary to a fiduciary or other duty or obligation, you should not share it with anyone. To seek advice about what to do under
those circumstances, you should contact the General Counsel. Consulting your colleagues may have the effect of exacerbating the
problem, as containment of the information, until the legal implications of possessing it are determined, is critical.

POST-TERMINATION TRANSACTIONS

This Policy continues to apply to transactions in Company securities even after a person’s service with the Company is terminated. If a

person is in possession of material nonpublic information when his or her service terminates, that individual may not trade in Company securities
until that information has become public or is no longer material. Questions or concerns on whether any continuing nonpublic information remains
material should be directed to the General Counsel. The pre-clearance procedures specified in this Policy, however, will cease to apply to
transactions in Company securities upon the expiration of any blackout period or other Company-imposed trading restrictions applicable at the
time of the termination of service.



XIII. BLACKOUT PERIODS

All Designated Insiders and their Related Insiders are subject to the following blackout periods, during which they may not trade in the
Company’s securities (except by means of pre-arranged Rule 10b5-1 Plans established in compliance with the Policy).

Quarterly Trading Window/Blackout Period. Because the announcement of the Company’s quarterly financial results will almost always
have the potential to have a material effect on the market for the Company’s securities, you may only trade in the Company’s securities during the
period beginning at the close of the first full trading day following the public release of the Company’s earnings for that quarter and ending ten
calendar days later.

Interim Earnings Guidance Blackout. The Company may on occasion issue interim earnings guidance or other potentially material
information by means of a press release, SEC filing on Form 8-K or other means designed to achieve widespread dissemination of the
information. You should anticipate that trading will be blacked out while the Company is in the process of assembling the information to be
released and until the information has been released and fully absorbed by the market.

Event-Specific Blackout. From time to time, an event may occur that is material to the Company and is known by only a few directors,
officers and/or employees. The existence of an event-specific blackout will not be announced; however, if a person whose trades are subject to
pre-clearance requests permission to trade in the Company’s securities during an event-specific blackout, the General Counsel will inform the
requesting person of the existence of a blackout period, without disclosing the reason for the blackout. Any person made aware of the existence of
an event-specific blackout should not disclose the existence of the blackout to any other person.

Regulation BTR. Directors and officers may also be subject to event-specific blackouts pursuant to the SEC’s Regulation Blackout
Trading Restriction, which prohibits certain sales and other transfers by insiders during certain pension plan blackout periods.

NOTE: Even if a blackout period is not in effect, at no time may you trade in Company securities if you are in possession of material
nonpublic information about the Company. The failure of the General Counsel to notify you of an event-specific blackout will not relieve you of
the obligation not to trade while in possession of material nonpublic information.

XIV. PRE-CLEARANCE PROCEDURES

Designated Insiders (and their Related Insiders) may not engage in any transaction involving the Company’s securities (including gifts,
loans, contributions to a trust or any other transfers) without first obtaining pre-clearance of the transaction from the General Counsel.

Each proposed transaction will be evaluated to determine if it raises insider trading concerns or other concerns under federal laws and
regulations. Any advice will relate solely to the restraints imposed by law and will not constitute advice regarding the investment aspects of any
transaction. Clearance of a transaction must be re-requested if the transaction order is not



placed within 48 hours of obtaining pre-clearance. If clearance is denied, the fact of such denial must be kept confidential by the person requesting
such clearance.

When requesting pre-clearance, the requestor should carefully consider whether he or she may be aware of any material nonpublic
information about the Company, and should describe fully those circumstances to the General Counsel. Section 16 Insiders should also indicate
whether they have effected any non-exempt “opposite-way” transactions within the past six months, and should be prepared to report the proposed
transaction on an appropriate Form 4 or 5, if applicable. The requestor should also be prepared to comply with SEC Rule 144 and file Form 144, if
advisable, at the time of any sale.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, pre-clearance is not required for any trades made pursuant to a pre-arranged Rule 10b5-1 Plan adopted in
accordance with the requirements of the Company’s Insider Trading Policy. Pre-clearance also is not required for the “Special Transactions” to
which the Policy does not apply, described in section VI of the Policy.

XV. SECTION 16 INSIDERS

In addition to the blackout periods and pre-clearance requirements described above, all Section 16 Insiders (and their Related Insiders) are
subject to the reporting requirements and other restrictions discussed in this section.

A. Reporting and Form Filing Requirements

Under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, directors and officers of the Company, as well as beneficial owners of more than 10% of the
outstanding shares of any class of voting Company equity securities registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act, must file forms with the
SEC disclosing their direct and indirect pecuniary interest in most transactions involving the Company’s equity securities. In this context, “equity
securities” of the Company include shares of the classes of equity securities created under the Company’s governing documents, such as common
stock, as well as any securities (regardless of whether issued by the Company) that are exchangeable for or convertible into, or that derive their
value from, an equity security of the Company. These other securities are known as “derivative securities,” and include options, restricted share
units, warrants, convertible securities and stock appreciation rights.

i. Forms 3, 4 and 5

The Legal Department will assist directors and officers in preparing and filing the following Section 16 reports but each individual director
and officer is responsible for the timing and contents of his or her reports:

+ Form 3, Initial Beneficial Ownership Statement. A person who becomes a director or officer of the Company must file a Form 3
within 10 calendar days of becoming a director or officer, even if such person does not own any Company equity securities at the time.
The Form 3 must disclose such person’s position and ownership of any Company equity securities as of immediately prior to assuming
office.



* Form 4, Changes of Beneficial Ownership Statement. As long as a person remains a director or officer, and for up to six months
after a person no longer holds such a position with the Company, a Form 4 must be filed with the SEC before 10:00 p.m., Eastern

Time, on the second business day following any transaction by that person, whether directly or indirectly, in Company equity
securities.

*  Form 5, Annual Beneficial Ownership Statement. A Form 5 must be filed with the SEC by any individual who served as a director
or officer of the Company during any part of the Company’s fiscal year to report:

— all reportable transactions in Company equity securities that were specifically eligible for deferred reporting on Form 5;
— all transactions that should have been reported during the last fiscal year but were not; and

— with respect to an individual’s first Form 5, all transactions which should have been reported but were not for the last two fiscal years.

A Form 5 need not be filed if all transactions otherwise reportable have been previously reported. If required, Form 5 must be filed within
45 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year (e.g., February 14) or the first business day thereafter. Common types of transactions reportable
on Form 5 include gifts and certain acquisitions of less than $10,000 in any six-month period, either of which may be reported on a voluntary basis
on any Form 4 filed before the Form 5 is due.

ii.  Indirect Ownership by Related Insiders

The reports described above must also reflect any indirect ownership by directors and officers, including all holdings and transactions by
Related Insiders. This includes changes in ownership by immediate family members living in the director’s officer’s household and any other
person or entity over whom the individual exercises influence or control over his, her or its securities trading decisions. For this purpose,
“immediate family” includes a spouse, children, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, grandparents, stepparents and siblings, including in-laws
and adoptive relationships.

Any questions concerning whether a particular transaction will necessitate filing of one of these Forms, or how or when they
should be completed should be asked of the General Counsel, or, if you prefer, your individual legal counsel. The Company must disclose in
its Annual Report on Form 10-K and in its Proxy Statement any delinquent filings of Forms 3, 4 or 5 by directors and officers, and must post
on its website, by the end of the business day after filing with the SEC, any Forms 3, 4 and 5 relating to the Company’s securities.

XVI. SHORT-SWING TRADING PROFITS AND SHORT SALES

i. Short-Swing Trading Profits

In order to discourage directors and officers from profiting through short-term trading transactions in equity securities of the Company,
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act requires that
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any “short-swing profits” be disgorged to the Company. (This is in addition to the reporting requirements described above.)

“Short-swing profits” are the profits, whether real or notional, that result from any purchase and sale (or sale and purchase) of the
Company’s equity securities within a six-month period, unless there is an applicable exemption for either transaction. It is important to note that
this rule applies to any matched transactions in the Company’s securities (including derivative securities), not only a purchase and sale (or sale and
purchase) of the same shares, or even of the same class of securities. Furthermore, pursuant to SEC rules, profit is determined so as to maximize
the amount that the director or officer must disgorge, so that “short-swing profits” may exceed economic profits. In addition, the short-swing rules
exempt, or permit the Company’s board of directors or a qualifying committee to exempt, certain transactions between (i) a director or officer and
(i1) the Company or certain benefit plans sponsored by the Company.

ii.  Prohibition Against Short Sales

You may not engage in short sales of Company securities, as prohibited by this Policy and Section 16(c) of the Exchange Act. Short sales
may reduce a seller’s incentive to seek to improve the Company’s performance, and often have the potential to signal to the market that the seller
lacks confidence in the Company’s prospects.

XVII. LIMITATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS ON RESALES OF THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES

The Securities Act requires that securities may be sold only pursuant to an effective registration statement or an exemption from the
registration requirements. Directors and certain officers who are (or were within the prior 90 days) affiliates of the Company and who wish to sell
Company securities may seek a “safe harbor” for their sales to establish an exemption from such registration requirements by complying with the
conditions of Rule 144 applicable to affiliates. “Securities” under Rule 144 are broadly defined to include all securities, not just equity securities.
The Rule 144 safe harbor is available not only to sales of common and preferred stock, but also to sales of bonds, debentures and any other form
of security. Affiliates and others who seek to sell securities acquired directly from the Company or a Company affiliate in a series of transactions
not involving any public offering may avail themselves of the safe harbor of Rule 144 by complying with the provisions applicable to resales of
“restricted securities” (which apply, for affiliates, in addition to, and in conjunction with, the provisions of that Rule applicable to resales by
affiliates).

The following summarizes relevant provisions of Rule 144, as they apply to resales by directors and officers seeking to take advantage of
the safe harbor:

e Current public information. There must be adequate current public information available regarding the Company. This requirement is

satisfied only if the Company has filed all reports required by the Exchange Act during the 12 months preceding the sale, other than Form
8-K reports.
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Manner of sale. The sale of Company shares by a director or officer must be made in one of the following manners:

(1) in an open market transaction through a broker at the prevailing market price for no more than the usual and customary brokerage
commission;

(i) to a market maker at the price held out by the market maker; or
(ii1) in a riskless principal transaction in which trades are executed at the same price, exclusive of any explicitly disclosed markup or
markdown, commission equivalent or other fee, and where the transaction is permitted to be reported as riskless under the rules of a

self-regulatory organization.

Furthermore, the broker may not solicit or arrange for the solicitation of customers to purchase the shares. In addition, your broker likely
has its own Rule 144 procedures (and must be involved in transmitting Form 144 (see item 4 below)), so it is important to speak with your
broker prior to any sale.

Even if your stock certificates do not contain any restrictive legends, you should inform your broker that you may be considered an
affiliate of the Company.

Number of shares which may be sold.

Equity Securities. The amount of equity securities that a director or officer may sell in a three-month period is limited to the greater of:
(1) 1% of the outstanding shares of the same class of the Company; or

(i) the average weekly reported trading volume in the four calendar weeks preceding the transactions.

Debt Securities. The amount of debt securities that a director or officer may sell in a three-month period is limited to the greater of:

(1)  the average weekly reported trading volume in the four calendar weeks preceding the sale; or

(i) 10% of the principal amount of the tranche of debt securities (or 10% of the class of non-participatory preferred stock).

Notice of proposed sale. If the amount of securities proposed to be sold by a director or officer during any three-month period exceeds
5,000 shares or has an expected aggregate sale price in excess of $50,000, the director or officer must file a notice of sale on Form 144
with the SEC, prior to, or concurrently with, the placing of the order to sell securities.

Holding periods. Any restricted securities must be held for six months prior to reselling such securities.
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In certain situations (e.g., securities acquired through stock dividends, splits, conversions or the net settlement of certain options),
“tacking” is permitted, that is, the new securities will be deemed to have been acquired at the same time as the original securities.

XVIIL. PENALTIES FOR VIOLATING THE SECURITIES LAWS AND COMPANY POLICY

The seriousness of securities law violations is reflected in the penalties such violations carry. A director’s resignation may be sought, or an
officer will be subject to possible Company disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. In addition, both the Company
itself and individual directors, officers or employees may be subjected to both criminal and civil liability. These violations may also create
negative publicity for the Company.

In addition, in the United States and many other countries, the personal consequences to you of illegal insider trading can be severe. In
addition to injunctive relief, disgorgement and other ancillary remedies, U.S. law empowers the government to seek significant civil penalties
against persons found liable of insider trading, including as tippers or tippees. The amount of a penalty could total three times the profits made or
losses avoided. The maximum penalty may be assessed even against tippers for the profits made or losses avoided by all tippees, including remote
tippees (i.e., others who may have been tipped by the tippee). Further, civil penalties of the greater of $2.5 million or three times the profits made
or losses avoided can be imposed on any person who “controls” a person who engages in illegal insider trading.

Criminal penalties may also be assessed for insider trading. Any person who “willfully” violates any provision of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (or rule promulgated thereunder) may be fined up to $5 million ($25 million for entities) and/or imprisoned for up to 20 years. Subject
to applicable law, Company employees who violate this Policy may also be subject to discipline by the Company, up to and including termination
of employment, even if the country or jurisdiction where the conduct took place does not regard it as illegal. Needless to say, a violation of law, or
even a governmental or regulatory investigation that does not result in prosecution, can tarnish a person’s reputation and irreparably damage a
career.

XIX. QUESTIONS

Because of the technical nature of some aspects of the federal securities laws, all directors and officers should review this material
carefully and contact the General Counsel if at any time (i) you have questions about this Policy or its application to a particular situation; or (ii)
you plan to trade in the Company’s securities, but are unsure as to whether the transaction might be in conflict with the securities laws and/or this
Company Policy.

XX. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All directors, officers and other employees subject to the procedures set forth in this Insider Trading Policy must acknowledge their
understanding of, and intent to comply with, the Company’s Insider Trading Policy on the form attached to this Insider Trading Policy.

* k%
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

I have read and understand the Company Insider Trading Policy applicable to directors, officers and employees (the “Insider Trading
Policy”). I agree to comply fully with the policies and procedures contained in the Insider Trading Policy for as long as I am subject to this Policy.
If I am an employee of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc., I acknowledge that the Insider Trading Policy is a statement of policies and procedures
and does not, in any way, constitute an employment contract or an assurance of continued employment.

Printed Name

Signature

Date



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-279647) of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. of our
report dated February 27, 2025, relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 27, 2025



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
BOWHEAD SPECIALTY HOLDINGS INC.
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

1, Stephen Sills, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

[Reserved];

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):



a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: February 27, 2025

[s/ Stephen Sills
Stephen Sills
Chief Executive Officer and President

(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
BOWHEAD SPECIALTY HOLDINGS INC.

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Brad Mulcahey, certify that:

L.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. [Reserved];

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and



5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: February 27, 2025

/s/ Brad Mulcahey
Brad Mulcahey

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (the “Corporation”) for the period ended December 31,
2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Stephen Sills, Chief Executive Officer and
President of the Corporation, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that, to my knowledge

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

Dated: February 27, 2025

[s/ Stephen Sills
Stephen Sills
Chief Executive Officer and President

(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (the “Corporation”) for the period ended December 31,
2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Brad Mulcahey, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer of the Corporation, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

Dated: February 27, 2025

[s/ Brad Mulcahey,
Brad Mulcahey

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 97.1

BOWHEAD SPECIALTY HOLDINGS INC.
CLAWBACK POLICY

Adopted May 22, 2024

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc. (the “Company”) has determined that it is appropriate for the
Company to adopt this Clawback Policy (the “Policy”) to be applied to the Executive Officers of the Company and adopts this Policy to be
effective as of the Effective Date.

1. Definitions

For purposes of this Policy, the following definitions shall apply:

a)

b)

¢)

d)

“Committee” means the Compensation, Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee or a committee of one or more Board
members appointed by the Board to administer the Policy.

“Company Group” means the Company and each of its Subsidiaries, as applicable.

“Covered Compensation” means any Incentive-Based Compensation granted, vested or paid to a person who served as an Executive
Officer at any time during the performance period for the Incentive-Based Compensation and that was Received (i) on or after the
effective date of the NYSE listing standard, (ii) after the person became an Executive Officer and (iii) at a time that the Company
had a class of securities listed on a national securities exchange or a national securities association.

“Effective Date” means the effective date of the Company’s initial public offering pursuant to a registration statement filed with the
SEC, as a result of or following which the Company shall have a class of securities listed on the NYSE or other national securities
exchange.

“Erroneously Awarded Compensation” means the amount of Covered Compensation granted, vested or paid to a person during the
fiscal period when the applicable Financial Reporting Measure relating to such Covered Compensation was attained that exceeds the
amount of Covered Compensation that otherwise would have been granted, vested or paid to the person had such amount been
determined based on the applicable Restatement, computed without regard to any taxes paid (i.e., on a pre-tax basis). For Covered
Compensation based on stock price or total shareholder return, where the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is not
subject to mathematical recalculation directly from the information in a Restatement, the Committee will determine the amount of
such Covered Compensation that constitutes Erroneously Awarded Compensation, if any, based on a reasonable estimate of the effect
of the Restatement on the stock price or total shareholder return upon which the Covered Compensation was granted, vested or paid
and the Committee shall maintain documentation of such determination and provide such documentation to the NYSE.

“Exchange Act” means the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934.



g)

h)

)

k)

)

~—~

“Executive Officer” means each “officer” of the Company as defined under Rule 16a-1(f) under Section 16 of the Exchange Act,
which shall be deemed to include any individuals identified by the Company as executive officers pursuant to Item 401(b) of
Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act. Both current and former Executive Officers are subject to the Policy in accordance with its
terms.

“Financial Reporting Measure” means (i) any measure that is determined and presented in accordance with the accounting
principles used in preparing the Company’s financial statements, and any measures derived wholly or in part from such measures
and may consist of GAAP or non-GAAP financial measures (as defined under Regulation G of the Exchange Act and Item 10 of
Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act), (ii) stock price or (iii) total shareholder return. Financial Reporting Measures may or may
not be filed with the SEC and may be presented outside the Company’s financial statements, such as in Managements’ Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Result of Operations or in the performance graph required under Item 201(e) of
Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act.

“Home Country” means the Company’s jurisdiction of incorporation.

“Incentive-Based Compensation” means any compensation that is granted, earned or vested based wholly or in part upon the
attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure.

“Lookback Period” means the three completed fiscal years (plus any transition period of less than nine months that is within or
immediately following the three completed fiscal years and that results from a change in the Company’s fiscal year) immediately
preceding the date on which the Company is required to prepare a Restatement for a given reporting period, with such date being the
earlier of: (i) the date the Board, a committee of the Board, or the officer or officers of the Company authorized to take such action if
Board action is not required, concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that the Company is required to prepare a
Restatement, or (ii) the date a court, regulator or other legally authorized body directs the Company to prepare a Restatement.
Recovery of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation under the Policy is not dependent on if or when the Restatement is actually
filed.

“NYSE” means the New York Stock Exchange.

“Received”: Incentive-Based Compensation is deemed “Received” in the Company’s fiscal period during which the Financial
Reporting Measure specified in or otherwise relating to the Incentive-Based Compensation award is attained, even if the grant,
vesting or payment of the Incentive-Based Compensation occurs after the end of that period.

“Restatement” means a required accounting restatement of any Company financial statement due to the material noncompliance of
the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the securities laws, including (i) to correct an error in previously
issued financial statements that is material to the previously issued financial statements (commonly referred to as a “Big R”
restatement) or (ii) to correct an error in previously issued financial



statements that is not material to the previously issued financial statements but that would result in a material misstatement if the
error were corrected in the current period or left



uncorrected in the current period (commonly referred to as a “little r”” restatement). Changes to the Company’s financial statements
that do not represent error corrections under the then- current relevant accounting standards will not constitute Restatements.
Recovery of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation under the Policy is not dependent on fraud or misconduct by any person in
connection with the Restatement.

0) “SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

p) “Subsidiary” means any domestic or foreign corporation, partnership, association, joint stock company, joint venture, trust or
unincorporated organization “affiliated” with the Company, that is, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries,
“controlling”, “controlled by” or “under common control with”, the Company. “Control” for this purpose means the possession,
direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such person, whether through the

ownership of voting securities, contract or otherwise.
2. Recoupment of Erroneously Awarded Compensation

In the event of a Restatement, any Erroneously Awarded Compensation Received during the Lookback Period prior to the Restatement (a)
that is then-outstanding but has not yet been paid shall be automatically and immediately forfeited and (b) that has been paid to any person shall
be subject to reasonably prompt repayment to the Company Group in accordance with Section 3 of this Policy. The Committee must pursue
(and shall not have the discretion to waive) the forfeiture and/or repayment of such Erroneously Awarded Compensation in accordance with
Section 3 of this Policy, except as provided below.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee (or, if the Committee is not a committee of the Board responsible for the Company’s
executive compensation decisions and composed entirely of independent directors, a majority of the independent directors serving on the
Board) may determine not to pursue the forfeiture and/or recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation from any person if the Committee
determines that such forfeiture and/or recovery would be impracticable due to any of the following circumstances: (i) the direct expense paid to
a third party (for example, reasonable legal expenses and consulting fees) to assist in enforcing the Policy would exceed the amount to be
recovered (following reasonable attempts by the Company Group to recover such Erroneously Awarded Compensation, the documentation of
such attempts, and the provision of such documentation to the NYSE), (ii) pursuing such recovery would violate the Company’s Home Country
laws adopted prior to November 28, 2022 (provided that the Company obtains an opinion of Home Country counsel acceptable to the NYSE
that recovery would result in such a violation and provides such opinion to the NYSE), or (iii) recovery would likely cause any otherwise tax-
qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly available to employees of Company Group, to fail to meet the requirements of 26
U.S.C. 401(a)(13) or 26 U.S.C. 411(a) and regulations thereunder.

3. Means of Repayment



In the event that the Committee determines that any person shall repay any Erroneously Awarded Compensation, the Committee shall
provide written notice to such person by email or certified mail to



the physical address on file with the Company Group for such person, and the person shall satisfy such repayment in a manner and on such
terms as required by the Committee, and the Company Group shall be entitled to set off the repayment amount against any amount owed to the
person by the Company Group, to require the forfeiture of any award granted by the Company Group to the person, or to take any and all
necessary actions to reasonably promptly recoup the repayment amount from the person, in each case, to the fullest extent permitted under
applicable law, including without limitation, Section 409A of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and the regulations and guidance thereunder. If
the Committee does not specify a repayment timing in the written notice described above, the applicable person shall be required to repay the
Erroneously Awarded Compensation to the Company Group by wire, cash or cashier’s check no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of such
notice.

4. No Indemnification

No person shall be indemnified, insured or reimbursed by the Company Group in respect of any loss of compensation by such person in
accordance with this Policy, nor shall any person receive any advancement of expenses for disputes related to any loss of compensation by such
person in accordance with this Policy, and no person shall be paid or reimbursed by the Company Group for any premiums paid by such person
for any third-party insurance policy covering potential recovery obligations under this Policy. For this purpose, “indemnification” includes any
modification to current compensation arrangements or other means that would amount to de facto indemnification (for example, providing the
person a new cash award which would be cancelled to effect the recovery of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation). In no event shall the
Company Group be required to award any person an additional payment if any Restatement would result in a higher incentive compensation
payment.

5. Miscellaneous

This Policy generally will be administered and interpreted by the Committee, provided that the Board may, from time to time, exercise
discretion to administer and interpret this Policy, in which case, all references herein to “Committee” shall be deemed to refer to the Board. Any
determination by the Committee with respect to this Policy shall be final, conclusive and binding on all interested parties.

Any discretionary determinations of the Committee under this Policy, if any, need not be uniform with respect to all persons, and may be made
selectively amongst persons, whether or not such persons are similarly situated.

This Policy is intended to satisfy the requirements of Section 954 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, as it
may be amended from time to time, and any related rules or regulations promulgated by the SEC or the NYSE, including any additional or new
requirements that become effective after the Effective Date which upon effectiveness shall be deemed to automatically amend this Policy to the
extent necessary to comply with such additional or new requirements.

The provisions in this Policy are intended to be applied to the fullest extent of the law. To the extent that any provision of this Policy is found
to be unenforceable or invalid under any applicable law, such provision will be applied to the maximum extent permitted and shall automatically
be deemed amended in a manner consistent with its objectives to the extent necessary to conform to applicable law. The



invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Policy shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Policy.
Recoupment of Erroneously Awarded Compensation under this



Policy is not dependent upon the Company Group satisfying any conditions in this Policy, including any requirements to provide applicable
documentation to the NYSE.

The rights of the Company Group under this Policy to seek forfeiture or reimbursement are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any rights of
recoupment, or remedies or rights other than recoupment, that may be available to the Company Group pursuant to the terms of any law,
government regulation or stock exchange listing requirement or any other policy, code of conduct, employee handbook, employment
agreement, equity award agreement, or other plan or agreement of the Company Group.

6. Amendment and Termination

To the extent permitted by, and in a manner consistent with applicable law, including SEC and NYSE rules, the Committee may terminate,
suspend or amend this Policy at any time in its discretion.

7. Successors

This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all persons and their respective beneficiaries, heirs, executors, administrators or other
legal representatives with respect to any Covered Compensation granted, vested or paid to or administered by such persons or entities.



BOWHEAD SPECIALTY HOLDINGS INC. CLAWBACK POLICY
ACKNOWLEDGMENT, CONSENT AND AGREEMENT

I acknowledge that I have received and reviewed a copy of the Bowhead Specialty Holdings Inc.
Clawback Policy (as may be amended from time to time, the “Policy”) and I have been given an opportunity to ask questions about the Policy
and review it with my counsel. I knowingly, voluntarily and irrevocably consent to and agree to be bound by and subject to the Policy’s terms
and conditions, including that I will return any Erroneously Awarded Compensation that is required to be repaid in accordance with the Policy. I
further acknowledge, understand and agree that (i) the compensation that I receive, have received or may become entitled to receive from the
Company Group is subject to the Policy, and the Policy may affect such compensation and (ii) I have no right to indemnification, insurance
payments or other reimbursement by or from the Company Group for any compensation that is subject to recoupment and/or forfeiture under
the Policy. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings set forth in the Policy.

Signed: __ Print Name: Date:



